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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEPSYE PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
KEE BYaN
FERE  REER (RLE B ik
iGEan:E! Mls  REmRE  REEE  REER Jii&
Completed
Overall Project Group's GFA
Expected  Interestin  Remaining  GFAUnder  GFA Under
HH AR Project Name UL Location CompletionDate  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use
£ (Fr#) (i) (FiA)
Y (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
FIHH Train New Town i Baoding 2025/12 70% 47344.84 99,18264 42148419 RICP
BUEKA Guan Cheng Da Jia itx Beijing 20243 20% - 140480.62 - RICP
EREERE Xingfu West Street Project st Beijing 2024/12 50% - 5985100 - RICP
K Longfor Faerie B Jinzhong 2026/6 100% 19,614.20 79,597.55 - R/CP
K5 Longfor Faerie Ll Tangshan 2024112 50% - 10098137 - R/CP
R KB Chengluo Avenue Project A Chengdu 2024/6 949 - 7692172 = RICP
RIERHIEH Changshun Avenue Project A Chengdu 202455 50% 31619 5555567 - RICP
MMM No. 23, Donglan Street Plot g Chengdu 2024/12 5% BL36Y 7736429 = RICP
bzl Fangshu Qingchuan A Chengdu 200512 70% 215381 33,736.67 86473.16 RICP
MENIEA Kehui Road Project b Chengdu 2024112 84% - 5437958 4621716 RICP
BIlKEER Lushan Avenue Project i Chengdu 2004111 50% - 7434957 - RICP
LXK River Palace i Chengdu 204111 80% 358895 115,716.88 = RICP
=TEH Sangian Yunjin it Chengdu 2024/11 50% 17,750.42 §8,029.83 - R/CP
ik Xincheng Avenue i) Chengdu 2024111 100% - 16564330 = RICP
SR Shunshan Fu e Chengdu 2029/11 0% 2090939 - 5674834 RICP
e The Light Year i) Chengdu 2026/1 6% 27710535 16676705 4876269 RICP
[EYNILE Yingbin Avenue Project ] Chengdu 20255 100% - - 11L465.00 RICP
Wb EER  Pidu Zhongyin Avenue Project I Chengdu 2025/5 60% - 159807.09 = RICP
K Star Glamor £ Chongging 2026/4 51% - 7187227 16,813.64 RICP
LR Bay City £l Chongging 2026/11 60% = - 6609100 RICP
RN Chunyu Riverbank it Chongging 202555 60% - 8621416 - RICP
R: fi% | Residential C: W | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park

4 # Annual Report 2023 5




Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEWE w) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

K g%l
HHER  RERT DRAE Bk il
ik anik] Ml REEE REOR  REWR ki3

Completed
Overall Project Group's GFA

Expected Interestin ~ Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JHH %1 Project Name U Location Completion Date  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use

£ (Frk) (Frk) (FiA)

YM (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
1 Bright City £ Chongging 202812 50% 3660352 66134103 RICP
FMER Meilin Meiyuan £ Chongging 20263 100% 1,081.70 29,774.74 31,874.42 RICP
R Lu Chen £ Chongging 20055 50% 20,12115 92,0627 - RICP
11 Shangian £l Chongging 206011 70% - 17569760 = RICP
BIKE Chunjiang Heaven Ed Chongging 2026/12 70% - - 25419497 RICP
R Changtan Mansion B Chongging 2027/12 51% - 52954.27 143,425.50 R/CP
R Changtan Mansion £ Chongging 2026/3 51% 2038791 3044226 24586.00 RICP
BRAE Science Mansion B Chongging 2026/11 SI%  SL382T9 3949358 3478328 RICP
B Xishang B Chongging 202511 80% - 10597019 - RICP
it La Defense £ Chongging 202755 100% 2612853 - 10596054 RICP
BT Xishang (1 Chongging 2024/6 66% - 72,168.54 - RICP
AN e Car Expo N18 Project [ Chongging 202506 50% - 8220800 = RICP
R Jinglin Jiuxu El Chongging 202811 51% 14753353 50,960.41 - RICP
B/ MAFIER E-sports Town New Project U Guiyang 2024011 90% = 51,600.00 = RICP
AT Binhe Road Project &Y Changsha 2024/11 51% - 21756744 - R/CP
KIEEHEERAE  Datang Longfor Qingyunque Project 1) Changsha 2024110 51% - 74,865.67 - R/CP
VB Bamboo Grove R’ Changsha 202611 51% 9,545.55 81,67632 11803682 RICP
REEH Gufeng Project R Changsha 2025011 31% 209558 15668133 = RICP
FILE Chunjiang Central 130 Changsha 202511 51% 10721046 11535310 - R/CP
SR Jin Xing North Plot £ Changsha 202611 51% 407.01 7131322 933937 RICP
HER Xinlian Road Project =2 Changsha 2025/6 70% - 10579233 77,705.68 RICP

R: % | Residential C. P | Commercial 0. WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park

6 Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g i#f & @ i i% B R 2 &)



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEWE a0 PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%H SV AN
HHER  REET DRHE B Al
jiEE anit] i REmR REER REOH it

Completed
Overall Project Group’s GFA

Expected Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name % Location Completion Date  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use

£ (Fik) (Fr#) (FrA)

M (Sgm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BT Fuli Ten i Changsha 2026/10 41% WAL 954777 - RICP
RIKE Glorious Mansion &Y Changsha 202515 100% - 10409162 4,553.59 RICP
IRILE Jiangchen Garden M Fuzhou 202506 60% 32302 2098464 37,502.28 RICP
W T i Yangxia Street Plot M Fuzhou 202415 70% 28933.06 57,725.66 - RICP
BIiR City Garden T Fuzhou 2025012 70% - - 5579700 RICP
HHZZEH Putian Shoui Project i Putian 2024111 25% - 39700771 - RICP
HRAE Jindong Xinqu M Quanzhou 202455 55% - 365,785.86 - RICP
K Star Glamor i Guiyang 2030111 90% 70,567.5  230,057.12 7332125 RICP
BIIMEERAS  Guanshanhu District Party &h Guiyang 2027/6 51% 3869208 15223649 23072857 RICP

School Plot
RERE Jing Lin Longfor Mansion Eb Guiyang 2007111 51%  112,792.98 8428874 1,004,747.63 RICP
THERR River City il Foshan 2025011 80% 2276051 12442676 5671434 RICP
FHRBILAA Panyu Xiangjiang Project JEM Guangzhou 2024/11 70% - 12719404 - R/CP
K Tian Feng M Guangzhou 20512 66% - 4815998 82,914.15 RICP
ERIER Yunlai Garden A Guangzhou 2025/1 100% 37,156.81 90,633.00 - RICP
TEMHRIER Binhe Road Project i Hefei 202455 51% 359362 10671835 - RICP
LREWER Beiyanhu Project &I Hefei 2024/5 60% - 191,259.94 = R/CP
FAEHAK The Light Year 4l Hefei 2024/10 100% 6493.66 9411618 - RICP
A Ca Yaohai Railway Station Project A1 Hefei 2024/12 100% 2548286 5546256 - RICP
Nl Jinxiu Avenue A Hefei 2004/5 70% — 8409057 - RICP
EE Starlight Bay &I Hefei 2024112 32% — 20269899 = RICP
K IEH Zipeng Road Project A1 Hefei 2025/6 100% ~ 10780592 - RICP
R: fi% | Residential C: W | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEWE w) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

REH BT
HHEE  OREER (ke B il
HAHALHY Ml BEmE  REEE RSk il

Completed
Overall Project Group’s GFA

Expected Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
R4 Project Name o Location Completion Date  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use

£ (Frgk)  (FEK) (T

YiM (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
bl ag b Pobopoxiang Plot %0 Haikou 2025011 100% 4653195 23618031 - R/CP
KIS, Longfor Origin il Hangzhou 202717 60% - - 103,705.00 RICP
fiER Hangyu Central M Hangzhou 2026/5 519 - - 8809200 RICP
BYETAWWER  Qiantang Xiasha Jinsha Lake Project i Hangzhou 2025/6 100% - 185,787.00 = R/CP
HE e Gongshu East New Project M Hangzhou 2024/4 300 - 685461 - RICP
FlER Xiaoshan Xianghu Project M Hangzhou 202412 66% - 60,711.80 = RICP
EWxE Junlan Mansion it Hangzhou 2025/1 30% - 109,780.93 95,875.83 RICP
SRBNHEREIER Ningbo Jinzhou Century Avenue Ningbo 202412 0% - 980 - R

Project
IREE Shangchen Cloud Building M Wenzhou 20253 33% - 21608739 116655.21 RICP
4] Lanjingyuan it Wenzhou 2024/9 100% - 13301614 - RICP
SRR Jasper Sky it Jinan 2024/9 100% 53,782.53 92,325.35 - RICP
ETAEEEMA  Liangzigu Industrial Park Plot L] Jinan 202416 65% - 6597197 = RICP
LR Chunjiang Land g Ji'nan 2027/11 349% - - 8152909 RICP
R Prestige Town i Ji'nan 2025/1 100% - 368LTA - RICP
BHES Jing Lin Orient Original it Ji'nan 2026/11 100% — 5653851 35947212 RICP
A Zibo Road Project it Ji'nan 2024/11 80% - 8009347 21750637 RICP
AHETHIE  Beilun Riverside New Town Plot £} Ningbo 202506 50% - 23592133 - RICP
BRILER Chunjiang Center FX Nanjing 202755 100% = - 10494836 RICP
HEERBEH Qixia Hengjing Road Project A Nanjing 2024/11 45% 9,093.92 56,315.50 - RICP
R: % | Residential C. P | Commercial 0. WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park

8 Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g i#f & @ i i% B R 2 &)



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEWE a0 PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

K g%l
HHER  RERT DRAE Bk Al
ik anik] i REEE  REOR  REER ki3

Completed
Overall Project Group’s GFA

Expected Interest in Remaining ~ GFAUnder ~ GFA Under
JHH %1 Project Name U Location Completion Date  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use

&N (Frk) (FrAk) (FrAk)

VM (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
i £ R AT Jiangbei New District B Nanjing 20245 100% - 519879 - RICP

KR Qilihe Street Project
KB Crystal Licheng M Nanjing 2025/12 70% 32,940.26 (7,473.86 = RICP
HRTIHA Yinquan West Road Plot A Nanjing 2024/11 100% 53550 6027728 - RICP
TR 25E 8, Pukou District No. 2 MR Nanjing 2025/12 70% 13,171.66 35,139.12 81,168.00 RICP
Yushan Road Plot
f\4A3BH Woniu A-3 Project &M Xuzhou 2024/5 51% - 55,351.74 - R/CP
S Legend of City £ Qingdao 202711 70% - - 15995065 RICP
ERBR Lan'an Central i Qingdao 2026/10 51% - - 18960084 RICP
FIKE Glorious Mansion 6 Qingdao 2025/5 35% - 159.997.69 - R/CP
101 Faity Castle h Qingdao 202711 70% - 8773843 18886230 RICP
R Prestige Town 5 Qingdzo 2026/12 70% 20,163.74 - 18239412 RICP
LAEH Shanghe One HE Qingdzo 202811 100% 5,154.25 66,14165 192,817 RICP
i Xue Tang Mansion & Qingdao 2026/10 35% = - 12599700 RICP
S The Light Year L Qingdzo 2025011 5% -G 1290130 RICP
BREN Jade Mansion [ Nantong 2026/11 70% - 74,087.26 54,675.42 RICP
R Tongzhou Bihua Road Project [l Nantong 2024110 33% - 885287 1201575 RICP
SEEEH Jingyuan Road Project L Shanghai 2024111 70% - 10344776 = RICP
EBIER Chengyang Road Project Ll Suzhou 2025/5 51% - 125,465.05 30,703.34 RICP
Sl Wuzhong Xinli Road Project M Suzhou 2025/11 70% - 15536052 87.99449 RICP
KR Longfor Origin e Dongguan 2025011 100% - - 98469.00 RICP
R: fi% | Residential C: W | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park

£ #; Annual Report 2023 ~ Q




Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEWE w) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%H AN
HHER  REET (RHE Rk Al
e anit] i REmR REER REOH it

Completed
Overall Project Group’s GFA
Expected Interestin ~ Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAH Project Name % Location Completion Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
£ (Fik) (FrAk) (Frk)
M (Sgm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
FIKS Chunjiang Heaven M Huizhou 2024/11 95% 7655681 80,835.66 - RICP
&S sMEE Jinshan Lake Island Outside Project 2| Huizhou 2024/11 50% - 7167117 - RICP
BILWEGRER  Jinjiang Chidian Qiaonan Project M Quanzhou 20053 100% - - 8713055 RICP
KHEH Guangming Project iz Shenzhen 2024/11 55% - 9330600 = RICP
K Emerald Legend A5 Shijiazhuang 2025/6 70% - 17855392 - RICP
Bt Xue Tang Mansion RE Changchun 2025011 51% 5,480.87 74,888.17 46,104.89 RICP
HA R Guign Avenue North Plot k& Changchun 2025011 35% - 75,3874 - RICP
RHUF Jinglin Jiuxu k& Changchun 2025/11 100% 34,361.98 175618 102,674.70 RICP
TR Shunshan Fu RE Changchun 2024/11 100% - 12798118 - RICP
kHEH Shui Du Project k& Changchun 2024/11 0% - 1316650 7433248 RICP
KHE Emerald Legend k& Changchun 2025/5 100% 088833 13345445 - R/ICP
HiEH Caozhong Project il Shenyang 2026/11 49% 15,470.44 53,445.57 200,564.51 RICP
GG R H Xuanxing 4th Road Project & Shenyang 2029/11 35% - 428065 24102821 R/CP
HhaE Plum and Youth el Shenyang 2024/11 50% 647585 106359.72 7,263.98 RICP
B Rose and Ginkgo Villa b Shenyang 202812 100% 6,366.14 - 13662767 RICP
I Cloud Valley 1 Shenyang 202617 70% 20,284.34 65,39851 9,483.56 RICP
FIETH An Zhi Ting Lan i Shenyang 202515 0% 42,544.18 54,356.75 1,199.79 RICP
WHERERITEIR  Shefu Avenue Huayu il Shenyang 2025/11 51% 3483863 2829878 4176376 RICP
HH Bamboo Grove Project
KREET M Dadong District Wanghua Plot 1553 Shenyang 2026/6 70% 1784907 4848496 66,623.76 RICP
K Tianju KR Taiyuan 202511 100% 59,365.10 93,565.75 80,469.01 RICP
L Zhongzing Road Plot B Suzhou 202613 25% 9,640.96 1171285 64,779.98 RICP
R: % | Residential C. P | Commercial 0. WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park

10 - Longfor Group Holdings Limited g 3 &= [ {2 j% 45 [& 2 &)



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEWE a0 PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%H SN
HHER  REET DRHE B Al
jiEE anit] i REmR REER REOK i

Completed
Overall Project Group’s GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name b1 Location Completion Date  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use
&N (Fik) (FrAk) (Frk)
M (Sgm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
IHARAMMAR  Hedong Dongsuntai Plot Project K Tianjin 2024111 50% - 54,061.02 - RICP
JafE N Style Town Plot K Tianjin 20281 70% 40,091.84 56883.12  180,735.40 RICP
KH Emerald Legend R Tianjin 202415 100% 32,8234 65,998.83 - R/CP
HIE Chunjiang Central Kt Tianjin 2025/4 90% 52,721.22 68,297.00 - R/CP
YBILTHETODA  Binjiang Business District TOD Plot 4% Wuhan 20053 50% - 137,62058 - RICP
FILE Chunjiang Land RiE Wuhan 2026/11 10% = - 11376821 RICP
RILBI Chunjiang Central i 4 Wahan 2026/12 60% - - 36535600 RICP
KA Guanggu Cheng R Wuhan 202610 52% = - 206619.00 RICP
AERREEH Honglianhu Avenue Project 2 Ezhou 2026/11 35% - 104485 163161791 RICP
REMINER T KL Wuhan Hongshan District University i1 Wuhan 20255 100% - 14704188 = RICP
(e of Technology North Project
A B Sino-French Terminus Project v Wuhan 2026/11 0% - 9972025 123309.03 RICP
HaEER Xinrong Project i Wuhan 2024/11 49% - 33890435 = RICP
baviillih Jingyue Mansion WM Changzhou 2025/6 49% 124862 16056333 13,779.23 RICP
K Star Glamor M Changzhou 2025/5 51% - 24453639 - RICP
RRKE Jing Lin Longfor Mansion S Wuxi 202412 40% 38,974.10 36,674.10 - R/CP
TAMCPEHBIS - Shuofang Middle School East Ploc B,  #4} Wi 202509 51% S - 503314 RICP
EGE Shuofang Middle School South Plot
KEBEA Land Bridge Project M Lanzhou 2024111 70% - 12010518 - RICP
SR The Light Year Plot TN Lanzhou 2024/11 70% - B03T6 15622325 RICP
EFIFEHEGI9%  Pengjiaping Xiping Street Project M Lanzhou 202611 100% S 60T 5044052 RICP
A No. G219
R: fi% | Residential C: W | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park

£ # Annual Report 2023 = ]1]




Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEWE w) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

K g%l
HHER  RERT DRAE Bk il
ik anik] Ml REEE REOR  REWR ki3

Completed
Overall Project Group's GFA

Expected Interestin ~ Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JHH %1 Project Name U Location Completion Date  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use

£ (FrA) (i) (FiA)

YM (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
HiEH Caobei Project fi% Xim 202412 70% - 33200025 - RICP
FHCIDEH Gaoxin CID Project % Xi'an 202411 70% 3420718 11865597 = RICP
FHERSEE Gaoxin Yunhesong Project f% Ximn 2024/12 50% - 14345800 - RICP
RERFEHCD Chang'an District Gaogin CID (i Xian 202506 52% - B 931977 RICP

BEERE Xingchang Street East Project
KB Star Glamor W% Xian 202616 100% - 11512558 - RICP
B Starry Mansion fi% Xi'an 2025/ 100% = 51,848.59 = RICP
M Xinsing South Road Project (i Xian 2025011 80% - U760 5224400 RICP
R Jinglin Jiuxu [ig7s Xin 2024111 0% 3,289.23 7231495 = RICP
FHEMS MEE  Gaoxin Yunhesong Phase Il Project 1% Xian 202506 61% - 11029453 3679124 RICP
BRI Caotang Main Street Plot 1 Xianyang 20275 519 - 1578157 5184949 RICP
T Longfor Central Bl Xianyang 2025/11 55% - 37020710 462,700.35 R/CP
RS AR Guancheng District Jindai Project &} Zhengzhou 2024/11 S1% 5239557 103,71882 - RICP
WA -5 Times Central M Xiamen 20276 40% - - 29157200 R/CP
fissh Paradise Seasons i Kunming 202711 100% = - 49893305 R/CP
KH Emerald Legend ] Kunming 202505 100% 1667661 165,168.79 - RICP
FEMHE S Longfor Splendor B Kunming 202512 100% 227124 2467763 37,779.81 RICP
KR Jing Lin Tian Xu 2] Kunming 2025012 55% - (8020.72 35,591.50 RICP
FIKE Chunjiang Heaven it Weihai 2024111 70% 37,666.98 68,346.49 = RICP
EABYER Yentai Plot B Project i Yantai 2030/12 100% - - 7375300 RICP
BRI Rose and Ginkgo Villa g Yantai 2026/11 100% 408.46 92,459.17 73,682.07 RICP
HkE Banyan Bay s Yantai 2026/11 100% — 12287134 1,000,182.90 R/CP
R: % | Residential C. P | Commercial 0. WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park

12 + Longfor Group Holdings Limited g 3 &= [ {2 j% 45 & 2 &)



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEWE a0 PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%H SN
HHER  REET DRHE B Al
jiEE anit] i REmR REER REOK i

Completed
Overall Project Group’s GFA

Expected Interestin ~ Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAH Project Name o Location Completion Date  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use

&N (Fik) (FrAk) (Frk)

M (Sgm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
FILKE Glotious Mansion fif Yantai 202411 100% 1593746 70,788.12 - RICP
b s Yan Lan Hai An jixs) Yantai 2026/11 100% 3,109.83 5837774 4,973,15438 RICP
SEFHER Jinwan Xi Lake Project il Zhuhai 202511 50% - 5458243 - RICP
g Star Discovery Bay i Zhuhai 2026/12 2% 1757557 9249222 34425804 RICP
3IPN. Glorious Mansion WM Zhengzhou 2026/6 100% - 11488891 - RICP
K Longfor Facrie WA Zhengzhou 2025/11 51% 49,939.01 8,219.11 = RICP
BILKH Chunjiang Tian Yue Ll Zhengzhou 2026/11 43% - 70,404.49 06,795.38 R/CP
HElRE Qihu Mansion B Zhengzhou 2026/11 51% = - 8016 RICP
SR E Longfor Mansion M Ganzhou 2025/11 0% - 2404414 22,834.59 RICP
TR Qinghui Road Plot its Qingyuan 202915 51% = - 13535925 RICP
IR Chunjiang Central BB Zhaoging 202715 70% 438693 6670624 119,640.07 RICP
VTRl v Haihe South Road Plot L Zhanjiang 20251 100% 4120138 7844118 - RICP
HITHWAREH  Zhanjiang Yinfan Park Project T Zhanjiang 2025/9 51% - 60,6898 51,727.68 RICP
M KSR Jiaojiang Shuangshui Road Project &M Taizhou 2024111 31% - 15,1301 63,055.15 RICP
SR Shunshan Fu AN Taizhou 2024111 80% - 18679200 - RICP
BRI Nanhai Future City Plot HIiR Yancheng 2024/12 00% 2492155 10545881 - RICP
SRR Yancheng Kaichuang Road Project  BJi¢ Yancheng 202611 33% - - 154,588.64 RICP
BHAE Shuanglong Mansion i Jiangmen 2024/5 50% 2851030 141,949.68 - RICP
BHAEEH Jucheng Avenue Project il Zhongshan 2026/1 40% - 145,991.92 - R/CP

R: fi% | Residential C: W | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBEYE PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

K%M
HHER  RERY S5AN i il
i ANk Ml REER  REER  REER ik

Overall Project Group’s

Expected Interest in Completed ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
VR Project Name k] Location  CompletionDate  the Projects GFA  Development Planning Use

(E/h) (FrA) (FiA) (FiA)

(Y/M) (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
YN PR Beijing Daxing Paradise Walk I Beijing L% Opened 100% 203,134 - - cIcp
ErRFLKE Beijing Fangshan Paradise Walk L3¢ Beijing BB Opened 100% 119,964 = = clcp
by N Beijing Lize Paradise Walk 1= Beijing BB Opened 51% 92,014 - - clep
LB R Beijing Xiyue Paradise Walk I Beijing 2% Opened 50% 145,678 = = CICP
TrRERESE Beijing Summer Palace Starry Street L5 Beijing £ Opened 100% 6,320 - - cIcp
By SIS Beijing Yizhuang Paradise Walk L3¢ Beijing BB Opened 100% 162,743 = = clcp
b3S ON Beijing Chang'an Paradise Walk ~ JU& Beijing £ Opened 17% 9,199 - - cicp
TRl Xt Beijing Changying Paradise Walk ~ 4L3¢ Beijing E B Opened 100% 300,192 = = c/cp
BRI Changzhou Longcheng Paradise Walk ] Changzhou £ % Opened 100% 155,862 - - cicp
A K Chengdu North Paradise Walk g Chengdu B B Opened 100% 215,536 = - CIcP
AR K Chengdu Binjiang Paradise Walk i Chengdu E B Opened 51% 171,500 - - cicp
WAERAERRE  Chengdu Huazhao Xichen A Chengdu BB Opened 50% 189,860 - - cIcp

Paradise Walk
B kAN Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk i Chengdu ELB Opened 100% 91,638 - - cicPp
AR RS Chengdu Jinchen Paradise Walk i Chengdu BB Opened 100% 97,161 = 5 CICP
ME SR EBEE  Chengdu Renbei Road Shangcheng AU Chengdu % Opened 80% 129,964 - - CIcP
Paradise Walk
R: fFE | Residential C. P | Commercial 0. WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBEWE @) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%H
HREE  REHEY (VAN B Al
i anikl i REmR REER REOH fiig

Overall Project Group’s
Expected Interestin ~ Completed ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
YR 4% Project Name L Location Completion Date  the Projects GFA  Development Planning Use
(/) (Fik)  (Frk)  (Fik)
(Y/M) (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
=T K Chengdu Theee Thousand b Chengdu £ B Opened 100% 38,043 - - cice
Paradise Walk
WARFRKBIE  ChengduTime Panadise Walk A Chengd EHE Opened 100% 63942 - - cicp
Phase II
BRI Chengdu Time Paradise Walk i Chengdu E R Opened 100% 61,989 - - cicp
Phase I
TR AT K B Chengdu Shuxin Paradise Walk A Chengdu BB Opened 100% 118,611 - - cice
HAREENE Chengdu Wuhou Starty Street A Chengdu BB Opened 100% 31,168 - - cice
g NAIPRENL Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk i Hangzhou E % Opened 100% 2,601 - - cicp
Phase II
UMLK 1 Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk 4 Hangzhou % Opened 100% 158,067 - - Clcp
Phase [
WM THEXE Hangzhou Dinggiao Paradise Walk — Hi Hangzhou £LBH% Opened 100% 206,729 - - cIcp
RMILEEE Hangzhou Jiangdong Paradise Walk ~ fip/H Hangzhou L% Opened 50% 107,125 - - cicp
RMEDKE Hangzhou Jinsha Paradise Walk M Hangzhou £ Opened 100% 180,645 - - (00
WM K Hangzhou Xixi Paradise Walk M Hangzhou L% Opened 100% 148,222 - - Cicp
Rk Hangzhou Zijing Paradise Walk i Hangzhou BB Opened 100% 83,000 - - cIce
BEER Hefei Yaohai Paradise Walk 4 Hefei 2% Opened 100% 123,695 - - cicp
TERCBD KA Ji'nan CBD Paradise Walk iz} Ji'nan aliES Opened 50% 96,782 - - C/CP
FRLEAE Ji'nan Beichen Paradise Walk it} Ji'nan EL B3 Opened 100% 129,721 - - CICP
R: fi% | Residential C: W | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEEWE @ PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%
EREE  WEED gL B it
FrtR LEY Ml BEmE REER REERK g

Overall Project Group's

Expected Interestin ~ Completed ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HAAH Project Name o Location Completion Date  the Projects GFA  Development Planning Use

(#/A) (Fik)  (Fk) (Fik)

(YM) (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BB LK B Nanchang Qingshanhu Paradise Walk 55 Nanchang EL B3 Opened 100% 123,542 - - CIcp
MR Kt Nanjing Hexi Paradise Walk G Nanjing EL B3 Opened 100% 146,619 = = c/cp
EERN Nanjing Liuhe Paradise Walk [ Nanjing BB Opened 100% 136,361 - - c/cp
B R R T Nanjing Longwan Paradise Walk 3% Nanjing E B Opened 100% 175,292 - - CIcP
BRWIILRE  Nanjing Pukou Jiangbei [ Nanjing E % Opened 100% 199,552 - - clep

Paradise Walk
EEMN RS Ningbo Yinzhou Paradise Walk %} Ningbo E B Opened 100% 161,232 = = cicp
HEERY Ningbo Haishu Paradise Walk =i Ningbo B Opened 100% 129,163 - - (¢[03]
EEBM X Qingdao Jiaozhou Paradise Walk &5 Qingdao BB Opened 70% 123,851 = = CICcP
FEEIK Shanghai Baoshan Paradise Walk [ Shanghai £ Opened 100% 179,206 - - cice
IR %5 N Shanghai Fengxian Paradise Walk L1} Shanghai £ Opened 51% 145,496 = = cicp
BRI PR Shanghai Honggiao Paradise Walk ~ Liff Shanghai £ B Opened 100% 253,293 - - cice
HEEE K Shanghai Huajing Paradise Walk -1 Shanghai B B Opened 51% 66,007 = = cIcp
LR Shanghai Jinhui Paradise Walk i Shanghai EH % Opened 100% 105,719 - - cice
iR Shanghai Minhang Paradise Walk ~ Hi§ Shanghai £ B Opened 51% 196,534 - - cicp
LBMTENE Shanghai Minhang Starry Street L Shanghai £ B3 Opened 50% 45,698 - - c/cp
R: fFE | Residential C. P | Commercial 0. WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBEWE @) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%H
HREE  REHEY (VAN B Al
i anikl i REmR REER REOH fiig

Overall Project Group’s

Expected Interest in Completed ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAH Project Name L Location Completion Date  the Projects GFA  Development Planning Use

(/) (FrAk) (FrAk) (Frk)

(Y/M) (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
TR K Shenyang Hunnan Paradise Walk 115 Shenyang B B Opened 100% 114916 - - CIcP
BMRAK S Suzhou Dongwu Paradise Walk B Suzhou BRI Opened 100% 235,825 - - cicp
BEMAAIMENRE  Sushou Qingjian Lake Xinghu B Suzhou E % Opened 100% 149,198 - - cicp

Paradise Walk
IR Suzhou Shishan Paradise Walk BE Suzhou B3 Opened 51% 197,466 = - cic
BMMIKABE  Suhou Shishan Pardise Walk M Suzhou B Opened 51% 12643 - - cic
Block B
| RINN Suzhou Xujiang Paradise Walk B Suzhou £ B Opened 51% 125,760 - - cicp
REAYKETY  Wuban Baisha Paradise Walk Phase Il 5% Wahan B Opened 100% 38,096 - - cic
REAYRES  Wuban Baisha Paradise Walk Phase | 3 Wahan £ Opened 100% 141,799 - - cic
RELRK S Wuhan Emperial Paradise Walk i Wauhan EFE Opened 50% 210310 - - Clcp
(it Xi'an Daxing Starry Street Ti% Xian E % Opened 100% 53,266 - - cicp
BEMTENE Xi'an Qujiang Starry Street fi% Xi'an L% Opened 100% 78,499 - - cicp
iSRG Xi'an Xiangti Paradise Walk fi% Ximn BB Opened 100% 109,860 - - clcp
RUHER K Changsha Yanghu Paradise Walk 1) Changsha BB Opened 34% 158,120 - - cIce
RUFEX Changsha Furong Paradise Walk %) Changsha ELBHE Opened 100% 145372 = = c/cp
EEMOCO Chongging MOCO £l Chongging £ Opened 100% 29,104 - - cce
R: fi% | Residential C: W | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEEDE @ PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

L
HRER  WEE g%L i Rl
FrtR LA i REEE  REOR  REWR i

Overall Project Group's
Expected Interestin ~ Completed ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HAAH Project Name s Location Completion Date  the Projects GFA  Development Planning Use
(E/H) (Fi#) (Fik) (FiA)
(Y/M) (Sgm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BRUMKHIE  Chongging UCiry Paradise Walk Chongging 2 Opened 100% 164,609 - - cice
Phase I
Gl REE Chongqing U-City Paradise Walk B Chongging % Opened 100% 31,271 - - c/cp
Phase |
R Chongging North Paradise Walk B Chongging BB Opened 100% 146,262 - - c/ce
EEERLENE Chongging Chunsen Starry Street B Chongging BB Opened 100% 54,018 - - c/cp
- ON Chongging High-Tech Paradise Walk & Chongging £ Opened 100% 125,158 - - CIcp
BEARKE Chongging Gongyuan Paradise Walk B Chongqing B Opened 51% 197,591 = = CICcP
BELURE Chongging Jinsha Paradise Walk E Chongging B Opened 100% 204,113 - - C/CP
HESRE Chongging Crystal Castle £l Chongging EL B3 Opened 100% 33,600 = = clcp
BEEE K Chongging Lijia Paradise Walk R Chongging BB Opened 100% 110,508 - - CICP
BEBARAEIN  Chongging Time Paradise Walk B Chongging E % Opened 100% 122,758 - - C/cP
Phase 1T
BEHAKHEIN  Chongging Time Paradise Walk Chongging L% Opened 100% 257,113 - - cce
Phase 1T
BEHAKEVYE  Chongging Time Paradise Walk — HJE Chongging B Opened 100% 96,590 - - cIcp
Phase IV
BRI Chongging Time Paradise Walk E1: Chongging £ Opened 100% 218,569 - - Cicp
Phase |
B VR Chongging West Paradise Walk £l Chongging £ Opened 51% 111,654 - - C/CP
TR RS Chongging Hometown Paradise Walk Chongging a1 E4 Opened 100% 174,817 - - C/CP
R: fFE | Residential C: 5% | Commercial 0. WAE | Office CP: {&HY | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBEYE ) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%
ERER  WEH g%L i Al
i ANk Ml REEE  REOR  REER i

Overall Project Group's

Expected Interest in Completed ~ GFAUnder  GFA Under
VR Project Name 5 Location Completion Date  the Projects GFA  Development Planning Use

(£/5) (Frk)  (Frk)  (FEK)

(Y/M) (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
TEEIN Chongging Fairy Castle £ Chongging EH Opened 100% 29413 - - CIcP
FEEERECHE Chongging Lijia Paradise Walk BB Chongging EHE Opened 100% 29,687 - - cicp

Block C
HNEIL AT Changzhou Yuanshan Paradise Walk &/ Changzhou 301112027 100% - 106,521 - CIcP
%5 EoRE] Chengdu Dongan Paradise Walk ~ Hih Chengdu 30032024 5% - 103,705 - clcp
AR TBLE b Chengdu School of Administration i Chengdu 29/1112026 66% - 134,927 - CICP
FETOD Dongguan TOD e Dongguan 2911112027 100% = S 168,031 cicp
FMEEEE Guangzhou Panyu Coach Terminal M| Guangzhou 291112026 100% - - 100,968 CICP
BOTODX S Haikou TOD Paradise Walk jidn Haikou 30/812024 100% = 323,901 = (o3
RINAEFRE] Hangzhou Binkang Paradise Walk i Hangzhou 300512026 100% - 139331 - CIcP
B E3REH Hangzhou Shangcheng Fengshou Lake f1 Hangzhou 29/11/2025 100% - 198,390 - cice
TUNEIRK Hangzhou Yucheng Paradise Walk — fJH Hangzhou 29/11/2025 51% - 198,986 - CIcp
LT BN Hefei High-Tech Paradise Walk A1 Hefei 29/11/2024 100% = 168,491 = cicp
R R R Ji'nan West Railway Station i Jinan 300512025 100% - 214171 - CIcP
Paradise Walk
BB KA Kunming Time Paradise Walk 2] Kunming 29/11/2024 100% = 175,815 = CICP
HMEERE Lanzhou Guangnian Project HiM Lanzhou 30052027 100% - - 113,055 CICP
R LUK Nanjing Yushan Paradise Walk 7% Nanjing 30/5/2024 100% = 179,067 = cicp
HEEERE Nanning Qingxiu Paradise Walk %! Nanning 2911112024 49% - 179,878 - cice
R: fi% | Residential C: W | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBEWE @) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

A%H
REEE  RERW gL i Al
e ANl i REmR  REER  REOR iil3

Overall Project Group’s

Expected Interestin ~ Completed ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
R4 Project Name % Location Completion Date  the Projects GFA  Development Planning Use

(/%) (Fik)  (Frk)  (FFK)

(¥M) (Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BRI K Ningbo Binjiang Paradise Walk %3 Ningbo 30/8/2027 50% - - 163,851 cicp
SRS Xiamen Xiang'an Paradise Walk L Xiamen 1/6/2025 40% - - 125,080 cice
LERAENE Shanghai Kunxiu Starry Street L Shanghai 1/9/2024 65% - - 46,789 cice
BEGMR Shaoxing Jinghu Paradise Walk 4280 Shaoxing 29/11/2024 50% 5 202,692 = clcp
BRMARSA B Suzhou Xiangcheng Oriental Tower B Suzhou 30/412024 30% - 208479 - cice
PR LRInN ] Tianjin Meijiang Paradise Walk R Tianjin 30/7/2024 100% = 177,260 - clcp
KR K Tianjin Wuging Paradise Walk K Tianjin 111212026 100% - 124,734 - cice
e IR Wi Xishan Paradise Walk L Wi 300812027 100% = 56,762 = clcp
RERILKHE Wauhan Binjieng Paradise Walk A% Wuhan 29/1112024 509 - 211,800 - cicp
RERAH Wuhan Guanggu City RE Wuhan 11512025 52% = = 171,182 cIcp
REHER Wuhan Xinrong Paradise Walk R Wuhan 30/5/2025 49% - 152,839 - c/ce
i Xi'an XingFu Green Belt f% Xi'an 29/11/2025 100% - 141,746 - clcp
BABREERYE  Yantai Pui Bay Paradise Walk A Yantai 1/812025 100% - 103,770 - CIcP
RUHEXHE Changsha Kaifu Paradise Walk =3 Changsha 2911112025 100% = 159,755 = CICP
ROMEAE Changsha Xingao Paradise Walk 1) Changsha 30/5/2026 100% - 182823 - cicp
BRI (40) Caijia Travel Culture (Letao) B Chongging 30032026 100% = = 84,365 clcp
KN Dadukou Paradise Walk Plot B Chongging 30/5/2027 100% - - 158,940 cIcp
ERER Chongging Caijia E1 Chongging 300312026 51% - 93,257 = clcp
BERERE Chongging Longxing Paradise Walk T Chongging 301512027 51% - 107,902 - C/CP
BEHTAE Chongging Nanping Paradise Walk T Chongging 29/1112025 100% - 157,150 - cicp

BifeE o AEER EEREMHER AL A - Note: The principal investment properties of the Group are owned by the Group.

R: % | Residential C. P | Commercial 0. WAE | Office CP: [FEE | Car Park
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Chairman’s Statement

I am pleased to present to our shareholders the full-year business review and
outlook for the year ending 31 December 2023 of Longfor Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively the

“Group”).

The focus of China’s economic development has shifted from prioritizing “high
growth” to “high quality”. Over the past two years, the real estate market
has experienced cyclical adjustments, and has been in the process of striking
a new equilibrium between supply and demand under the themes of market
stabilization, risk management, and transformation facilitation. In response to
this new landscape, Longfor Group has proactively adjusted its operations and

firmly executed its core strategy centered around high-quality development.

Financial security is the bedrock of the Company’s development. The Group’s
interest-bearing liabilities as of the end of 2023 totaled RMB192.6 billion,
representing a decrease of 7.4% as compared to 2022, with bank financing
accounting for 77%. We have steadfastly long adhered to the financial discipline
of repaying loans on time, avoiding rollovers and late payments, which earned
us continued trust and support from our strategic partner banks, strengthening
our solid foundation to navigate economic cycles. Backed by current policies, the
Group has intensified efforts to raise funds through operating property loans,
thereby further extending the average contract borrowing period at a more
favorable cost. Moving forward, we will continue to optimize our debt structure
by gradually and orderly reducing our indebtedness to ensure sustainability of our

financial position.

In 2023, the Group achieved positive operating cash flow*, enabled by the
synergies between each segments. Our emphasis on quality cash collection,
centralized funding, and integrated management has contributed to this
success. Additionally, we have flexibly adjusted investment and construction
commencements according to market conditions while improving efficiency,
lowering fees, and dynamically matching income with expenditures. This has
enabled the Company’s various business segments to continue enhancing their

financial stability.

* Including investing cash flow, interest and dividend paid, etc.

% 3% Annual Report 2023
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Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E i#i & @ % i% B R A&

Among the Group’s three major business segments, our property development
business recorded contracted sales of RMB173.5 billion for the year, ranking
ninth in the industry. The pace of new home sales recovery closely correlates
with the improvement of homebuyers’ expectation on income, where short-term
adjustments are expected. We have a clear direction in mind and have promptly
responded to the evolving market situation by conducting developments in core
areas in key cities, adhering to our product-centered principle, focusing on sales-
price balance and investment value realisation. We will continue to provide high-

quality houses and products with timely delivery.

The investment property operation and services and others businesses generated
a sustainable revenue of RMB24.9 billion for the year, representing a year-
on-year growth of nearly 6%. The contribution of these two businesses to the
core attributable profit has climbed to over 60%. The sustainable and healthy
development of these two business segments has become an important engine for

the Group’s profit and growth trajectory.

Longfor Commercial has always focused on satisfying diverse consumer needs
regarding shopping experience. We have achieved rapid recovery following the
pandemic through the introduction of new forms of businesses and brands to
drive regional consumption trends. Our shopping malls recorded a 30% year-
on-year same-store sales increase and a 28% year-on-year same-store increase in
average daily customer traffic for the year, with occupancy rates recovering from
93% at the beginning of last year to 96%, leading to a steady increase in rental

income.

In response to the state’s initiative of encouraging both housing purchase and
leasing, Longfor has maintained our optimistic outlook on the rental housing
business with the aim of establishing a favorable rental market. As of the end of
last year, Longfor Goyoo launched 123,000 units in higher-tier cities, boosting
the overall occupancy rate to 95.5%. Goyoo remains committed to meeting
young people’s needs for quality urban housing and living through product
iteration and quality enhancement. Concurrently, it is actively engaged in the

renovation and revitalization of existing projects to support urban renewal.

Within the Longfor portfolio, the service brands, Longfor Intelligent Living and
Longfor Intelligent Construction, adopt the asset-light management model to
effectively broaden and extend the real estate service chain. We stay alert to mere
business expansion without focus but strive to focus on the core aspects of our
business. On the customer front, we are deep-rooted in providing superior basic
services and value-add services, complemented by our evolving digital technology
capabilities to efficiently and effectively address the needs of property owners. On
the business front, we are providing high-quality solutions to customers through
intelligent construction and design capabilities across all sectors and cycles,

creating significant value-add.
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2023, the Longfor Group was included in the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index and its MSCI ESG rating improved to AA. The recently-
launched Smart Carbon Neutrality and Peaking Data Dashboard reinforces
the green and low-carbon concept across the entire life cycle of buildings
to effectively promote the accomplishment of the goal of carbon emission
reduction. Longfor’s unwavering commitment to continuously enhancing its ESG
management system as well as implanting sustainable development and social
responsibility into its organizational framework is an integral part of Longfor’s

high-quality development strategy.

Longfor is a true believer and committed pioneer of high-quality development
strategy. From all the efforts devoted and lessons learnt through various economic
cycles, our foundation has grown even stronger, supported by positive cash flow
which drives the synergistic progression of the three core business segments:
property development, investment property operation, and services and others.
The Company is poised to achieve robust returns from the asset-heavy segments
and provide primer services in the asset-light segments. We are confident
that Longfor’s competitiveness cultivated in this process will strengthen our
adaptability to the market and our future readiness, which enable us to remain
resilient and disciplined during favorable times and to persevere in the face of

adversity.

Last but not least, on behalf of the board of directors, I would like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to our shareholders, customers and all sectors of the society for

your full support!

Longfor Group Holdings Limited
Chen Xuping

Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LR E T PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

TR REMMABEREERLNRK In 2023, revenue from Property Development business of the Group was
1,558.6f57C A A ST £51,070.8 85T RMB155.86 billion. The Group delivered 10.708 million square meters

Tk o BEEBGEENER11L.0% - —F = of property in gross floor area (GFA) terms. The gross profit margin of the
AE S BT RS NR 1455500 F property development business was 11.0%. Recognized average selling price was
K o RMB14,555 per square meter in 2023.
Fo— 1 T T AR KA [ il 5 S R A A ] A Table 1: Breakdown of property development revenue of the Group in 2023
* ik * Amount excluding tax
e R SRR
Revenue Total GFA
ot =0 St Sntunt: St S-St St
2023 2022 2023 2022
AR¥FE#ET  AREFEHT L RE S I RE S
W City RMB million  RMB million 0’000 Sqm 0°000 Sqm
HLM Hangzhou 20,127 24,769 77.9 85.7
TR Chengdu 13,612 9,698 76.3 67.5
AHE Hefei 11,452 9,017 68.8 60.4
[k Xi'an 9,695 4,675 59.3 325
HE Chonggqing 9,330 19,155 89.2 159.4
e Beijing 6,123 5,165 20.9 19.4
Fi Shanghai 5,658 3,902 15.5 15.9
& Shenyang 5,131 7,427 53.2 63.6
v Wuhan 5,021 7,312 47.0 51.9
b Changsha 4,860 5,184 43.2 47.0
K Tianjin 4,646 5,813 28.5 30.3
gy Wuxi 4,502 1,537 26.4 17.5
A Nanjing 4,460 6,269 21.9 30.4
HE Qingdao 4,300 9,918 56.9 107.9
ap Shijiazhuang 4,188 3,428 27.6 26.4
e Fuzhou 3,534 7,632 25.2 46.2
EM Kunming 2,829 5,949 19.8 35.2
HEN Suzhou 2,621 5,542 14.6 34.9
pigEa) Jinan 2,526 13,563 25.8 92.0
Fits Hong Kong 2,110 941 0.7 0.4
TN Guangzhou 2,093 4,823 9.4 17.7
RH Changchun 2,048 4,552 22.2 36.8

24 - Longfor Group Holdings Limited g 4 & [ # jg & B 2 @)
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e A S A

Revenue Total GFA
e e TR Y TR
2023 2022 2023 2022
ANRBHET  ARFEE T Ik RV S
W City RMB million ~ RMB million 0’000 Sqm 0’000 Sgm
-] Guiyang 2,000 3,223 24.1 38.1
N Huizhou 1,989 2,604 15.1 24.3
BE N Lanzhou 1,866 - 18.9 -
LN Zhengzhou 1,729 1,356 15.4 10.8
e Dongguan 1,590 2,764 8.9 12.3
515 Xianyang 1,557 4,168 18.1 46.1
g n| Haikou 1,168 1,189 6.6 6.1
ME Nanchang 1,125 1,125 10.1 13.3
=0 Taizhou 1,121 2,643 7.4 19.1
JE Xiamen 987 1,106 7.4 7.5
AR L Shaoxing 975 3,923 7.3 18.6
B Ganzhou 970 12 14.2 0.4
A Yantai 726 1,343 10.7 20.8
T Nantong 670 9 4.9 0.1
B Tangshan 625 - 7.8 -
PN Dalian 624 2,614 7.9 19.8
B Ningbo 611 8,019 4.7 30.4
i Yancheng 565 - 2.9 -
JiiRiss Weihai 548 869 6.4 8.6
PN Taiyuan 456 535 5.8 6.4
—5d Sanya 441 523 2.2 2.5
R Quanzhou 331 2,280 4.1 18.9
i Yangzhou 315 883 3.4 7.1
Bl Foshan 313 1,728 3.4 11.9
B Zhuhai 252 200 3.2 1.7
G Shenzhen 241 934 0.6 3.1
FERAN Zhanjiang 232 - 2.2 -
HE Nanning 199 3,445 2.1 36.2
Hrh Jinzhong 173 482 2.3 5.7
N Wenzhou 150 6,351 1.0 32.3
R Baoding 132 52 2.1 0.5
HAt Others 310 6,366 9.3 69.9
Hast Total 155,857 227,017 1,070.8 1,551.5

£ # Annual Report 2023 ~ 2§
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TR AEBARMEESNRE7349
Bor > SRR S1,079.68 T K S
A NEW16,07000, T K « R=A B
W~ P SR R IE AR S ERA A A
RWss00. 74870 ~ ARM377.76870 ~ AR 4925
B0~ ANR¥205 4680 R AR 158.6f800 > 4
G 48 A ] B 4H 1928.9% ~ 21.8% ~ 28.4%
11.89%59.1% °

K E AR A A R

In 2023, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB173.49 billion with sales
of total GFA of 10.796 million square meters. Average selling price of GFA
sold was RMB16,070 per square meter. Contracted sales from Yangtze River
Delta, Pan Bohai Rim, western China, southern China and central China were
RMB50.07 billion, RMB37.77 billion, RMB49.25 billion, RMB20.54 billion
and RMB15.86 billion respectively, accounting for 28.9%, 21.8%, 28.4%,
11.8% and 9.1% of the contracted sales of the Group, respectively.

Table 2: Details of contracted sales of the Group in 2023

* Erika ] * Amount including tax

fiEH Fy e T i

Contracted sales Total GFA
SFET=E TR TE SR TR TE
2023 2022 2023 2022
AREH#H L ARWFEHT BTk BTk
W City RMB million ~ RMB million 0’000 Sqm 0°000 Sqm
B Chengdu 19,801 12,912 96.0 75.6
[ Xi'an 14,189 8,349 77.9 48.2
Jes Beijing 11,212 7,717 30.2 22.2
A Hefei 10,591 14,578 58.8 93.5
BEM Suzhou 9,699 8,028 39.3 43.0
WL Wuhan 7,483 9,287 53.5 72.5
) Chongqing 7,474 9,577 80.4 88.6
K Tianjin 6,795 4,129 35.0 27.3
B Changsha 6,044 6,017 46.8 48.0
& Shanghai 5,689 6,374 11.7 23.6
[ Nanjing 4,991 8,537 21.1 37.5
bige] Ji'nan 4,856 9,250 31.1 63.7
AL Hangzhou 4,514 21,929 33.2 73.8
= Ningbo 4,157 2,810 19.4 13.6
M Quanzhou 4,034 1,178 26.9 9.2
BE Changchun 3,417 3,001 37.0 28.8
T Shenyang 3,201 6,212 30.4 53.1
& Guangzhou 3,165 4,325 11.9 15.4
&5 Qingdao 3,103 4,699 414 52.4
H Kunming 2,631 3,863 19.1 29.6
itk Hong Kong 2,594 1,726 0.9 0.6
AR Shijiazhuang 2,403 2,175 163 133
s Guiyang 2,152 1,909 12.8 32.8
Euge) Wuxi 2,033 3,246 13.6 23.4
M Fuzhou 1,859 4,566 14.9 25.7
O Huizhou 1,814 1,964 14.0 13.2
A M Taizhou 1,745 2,981 11.2 18.6

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g i#f & @ i i% B R 2 &)
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Hi ARSI

Contracted sales Total GFA
e i TR == TRCTE
2023 2022 2023 2022
AREH#HL ARWFEHT RS LRSS
W City RMB million  RMB million 0’000 Sqm 0°000 Sgm
EH Zhengzhou 1,728 693 15.9 6.3
gl Changzhou 1,524 1,672 11.4 11.2
M Wenzhou 1,501 2,848 12.5 16.5
T Xianyang 1,470 1,653 14.2 19.9
BEN Lanzhou 1,432 1,154 15.7 11.4
FE Shaoxing 1,374 1,102 8.5 5.2
fiagu| Haikou 1,247 1,311 7.0 8.0
S Dongguan 1,020 1,518 5.6 10.2
i1l Foshan 795 905 5.9 6.1
& Yantai 746 1,019 13.7 20.1
FERIN Zhanjiang 741 679 7.9 6.9
I Shenzhen 714 759 2.5 2.6
oo Jinhua 709 389 3.1 1.7
BRA Zhuhai 637 206 4.9 2.7
M Huzhou 572 883 4.0 5.5
PN Taiyuan 567 659 6.8 7.4
J& Xiamen 536 906 5.2 5.6
B Tangshan 504 565 6.0 7.2
B Jinzhong 430 271 5.1 3.1
kil Nantong 403 796 3.4 5.1
B Xuzhou 387 276 3.0 2.3
R Weihai 367 577 5.3 5.6
HH Putian 352 2,081 2.2 11.9
e Nanchang 329 1,313 3.5 12.3
il Zhongshan 325 241 2.4 2.3
PN Jiangmen 319 444 4.8 6.4
= Sanya 253 434 1.2 2.2
B Ganzhou 240 574 3.8 6.0
N Dalian 126 1,086 2.3 9.2
a5 Yancheng 125 204 0.7 0.9
HAb Others 369 3,031 6.3 35.7
Hast Total 173,488 201,588 1,079.6 1,304.7

£ # Annual Report 2023 « 27
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As at December 31, 2023, the Group had sold but unrecognized contracted sales
of RMB173.4 billion (with GFA of 12.60 million square meters), which formed

a solid basis for the Group’s sustainable and stable development in the future.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY OPERATION

The Group has been intensifying the management of its properties based on
its coverage in first and second-tier cities in China. Currently, the Investment
Property Operation of the Group are mainly shopping malls and Goyoo. The
shopping malls of the Group have two main product lines, namely urban
shopping malls under the brand name of “Paradise Walk” and community
shopping malls under the brand name of “Starty Street series”. “Goyoo”, having
the purpose of providing new generations with comprehensive rental housing
services, have commenced operation in several high-magnitude cities such as
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Chengdu, Hangzhou, Chongqing,
Wuhan and Nanjing.

In 2023, the rental income, net of tax, of the Group’s Investment Property
Operation was RMB12.94 billion*, representing an increase of 8.9% as compared
to last year. The rental income from shopping malls, rental housing and others
accounted for 77.4%°, 19.7% and 2.9% of the total rental income respectively.
The gross profit margin of the Investment Property Operation was 75.9%,
representing an increase of 0.3% as compared to last year. As at December 31,
2023, the Group has shopping malls totalling 7.97 million square meters in
GFA (10.28 million square meters in GFA including parking space) that had
commenced operation with an occupancy rate of 96.2%. Additionally, 123,000
apartments by Goyoo had also commenced operation, boasting a leading position
in the industry in terms of its scales with the occupancy rate of 95.5%. The
occupancy rate of the portions of Goyoo which have commenced operation for

more than six months was 96.4%.

Excluding Beijing Chang an Paradise Walk etc.
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K= DE T AR R S A Table 3: Breakdown of rental income of shopping malls of the Group in 2023"
* PEBA * Amount excluding tax
L |
“ECEE B S
2023 2022
il il
REmRE  HSIA [ip:pA HEE  HeUA ARl ik
Rental %of  Occupancy Rental %of  Occupancy
GFA income Revenue Rate Income Revenue Rate
ik  AREFT ANREFT
Sqm RMB000 RMB000
[ 2oN | 120,778 510,245 5.0% 96.3% 524,351 5.6% 96.9%
Chongging North Paradise Walk
BRI 76,031 104,800 1.0% 94.1% 131,871 1.4% 91.1%
Chongging West Paradise Walk
BRI K 160,168 353,676 34% 94.9% 398,685 4.2% 92.5%
Chongging Time Paradise Walk Phase I
BRI 154,460 247,790 24% 94.8% 261,946 2.8% 93.8%
Chongging Time Paradise Walk Phase II
BB K 73,774 60953 0.6% 86.7% 93,803 1.0% 789%
Chonggqing Time Paradise Walk Phase I1I
B =T X 38,043 8,589 0.1% 77.7% 26,041 0.3% 63.0%
Chengdu Three Thousand Paradise Walk
PRI 215,536 140,134 L4% 90.6% 167,324 1.8% 80.1%
Chengdu North Paradise Walk
IR PR 61,989 53,042 0.5% 97.5% 56,238 0.6% 95.4%
Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase I
B85 PN 221,286 539,095 5.2% 98.0% 555,259 5.9% 97.8%
Beijing Changying Paradise Walk
[RUEAVPN 151,135 306,117 3.0% 99.2% 304,253 3.2% 96.4%
Hangzhou Jinsha Paradise Walk
ARSI 91,638 137,056 1.3% 97.0% 136,019 L4% 97.2%
Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk
T RER 144,565 295,828 2.5% 98.5% 265,187 2.8% 95.5%
Beijing Daxing Paradise Walk
IR:IPR 170,450 144,139 1.4% 95.1% 140,148 1.5% 94.4%
Shanghai Honggiao Paradise Walk
ERURKHIY 15,516 18,075 0.2% 97.0% 19,451 0.2% 84.9%
Chongging U-City Paradise Walk Phase I
ERURK I 96,411 139,544 14% 97.1% 151,085 L.6% 94.2%
Chonggqing U-City Paradise Walk Phase II
EERERE 93,152 131,302 1.3% 98.6% 136,250 L4% 94.4%
Chongging Hometown Paradise Walk
MBI A1 158,067 367,832 3.6% 98.9% 343,541 3.60 97.5%
Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk Phase I
SR XA 197,466 361,616 34% 98.1% 343,937 3.6 98.3%
Suzhou Shishan Paradise Walk
I PN 98,339 228,955 2.2% 99.1% 226876 24% 94.8%
Shanghai Baoshan Paradise Walk
HMERK L 119,328 124,010 1.2% 94.9% 121,043 1.3% 95.0%
Changzhou Longcheng Paradise Walk
ERFLXE 103,688 206,730 2.0% 98.7% 208,963 2.2% 98.5%
Beijing Fangshan Paradise Walk
HANRESE 152,639 160,480 1.6% 96.6% 171,140 1.8% 94.3%

Chengdu Xichen Paradise Walk

£ # Annual Report 2023 = 29
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ZEFERE ZEFCRE
2023 2022
et e
e Iy HARA A iz HeRA ERA i
Rental %of  Occupancy Rental %of  Occupancy
GFA income Revenue Rate Income Revenue Rate
Tk  AREFI ARBFIL
Sqm RMB000 RMB000
BT K 140,000 160,872 1.6% 98.6% 159,392 1.7% 95.8%
Chengdu Binjiang Paradise Walk
MBI XN 22,627 40,749 0.4% 99.1% 36,344 0.4% 90.2%
Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk Phase IT
RMILER 130,063 254,766 2.5% 98.2% 253,830 2.7% 96.7%
Hangzhou Xixi Paradise Walk
WNEHIK 83,000 128,261 1.1% 94.6% 139,560 1.5% 94.0%
Hangzhou Zijing Paradise Walk
BiER R 42,053 62,682 0.6% 95.1% 63,142 0.7% 96.7%
Shanghai Huajing Paradise Walk
LEREEE 94,859 179,292 1.7% 99.5% 169,913 1.8% 98.2%
Shanghai Minhang Paradise Walk
LA PR 98,320 82,816 0.8% 97.9% 76,341 0.8% 94.1%
Hefei Yaohai Paradise Walk
EEaNIN 108,000 60,683 0.6% 93.2% 67,730 0.7% 88.4%
Nanjing Liuhe Paradise Walk
B e S ON 52,563 108,106 1.1% 99.7% 113,899 1.2% 99.3%
Beijing Chang'an Paradise Walk
P R K 120,367 150,993 1.5% 95.6% 168,749 1.8% 93.6%
Nanjing Longwan Paradise Walk
[EESIE R 146,286 148,935 1.4% 95.6% 157,059 1.7% 90.0%
Nanjing Jiangbei Paradise Walk
M EmRKE 78,962 86,109 0.8% 96.9% 80,836 0.9% 96.8%
Xi'an Xiangti Paradise Walk
BRI KE 204,113 266,524 2.6% 94.2% 330,628 3.5% 88.5%
Chongqing Jinsha Paradise Walk
RPN | 114,027 110,550 1.1% 93.7% 132,030 14% 89.6%
Chengdu Shangcheng Paradise Walk
LWt 63,183 58,739 0.6% 92.2% 61,133 0.6% 93.5%
Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase IT
BEMEB RS 112,537 114,466 1.1% 96.5% 120,721 1.3% 95.8%
Suzhou Star Lake Paradise Walk
B K 110,508 123,970 1.2% 94.5% 142,013 1.5% 92.7%
Chongqing Lijia Paradise Walk
L PR 71,571 92,668 0.9% 98.0% 91,231 1.0% 94.2%
Ji'nan Olympic Sports Center Paradise Walk
SIy R ] 92,014 158 814 1.5% 98.4% 156,234 1.7% 99.1%
Beijing Lize Paradise Walk
BRI K p B e 12,259 20,268 0.2% 87.7% 18,800 0.2% 96.7%
Suzhou Shishan Paradise Walk Block B
RN K 101,629 67,738 0.7% 94.1% 92,502 1.0% 88.9%
Changsha Yanghu Paradise Walk
RIETRE A 138,583 214,054 21% 98.5% 231,672 2.5% 95.0%
Wuhan Emperial Paradise Walk
IS K 83,000 90,767 0.9% 100.0% 89,589 1.0% 95.8%
Chengdu Jinchen Paradise Walk
FAU 7 K 112,123 123,897 1.2% 93.1% 151,018 1.6% 89.8%

Nanjing Hexi Paradise Walk

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g i#f & @ i i% B R 2 &)
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e St B S
2023 2022
s s
BEmR  HERA L4 i S i EL /N B A
Rental %of  Occupancy Rental %of  Occupancy
GFA income Revenue Rate Income Revenue Rate
Tk ARETE ARH T
Sqm RMB 000 RMB000
S BRE] 105,311 164,056 1.6% 99.1% 170,699 1.8% 97.2%
Beijing Xiyue Paradise Walk
RN SR 107,125 89,335 09% 97.0% 98,662 L.0% 94.6%
Hangzhou Jiangdong Paradise Walk
BMRR R 114,200 171,582 L.7% 98.6% 166,335 1.8% 99.3%
Suzhou Dongwu Paradise Walk
HMT fXf 125,186 172,253 L.7% 95.2% 188,228 20% 94.6%
Hangzhou Dinggiao Paradise Walk
il N PR 138,034 91,235 09% 91.6% 121,557 1.3% 86.4%
Chongging Gongyuan Paradise Walk
HERF RV 77,188 72371 0.7% 91.4% 16,188 0.2% 94.2%
Chongging Time Paradise Walk Phase IV
[ LEPRE 125,158 124,233 1.2% 97.0% 8,045 0.1% 97.5%
Chongging High-Tech Paradise Walk
BB B KA 114,721 103,129 L.0% 96.4% 11,110 0.1% 98.0%
Chengdu Shuxin Paradise Walk
LRI R A 107,101 215,114 21% 99.7% 73,357 0.8% 99.3%
Beijing Yizhuang Paradise Walk
HRBHRE 86,935 63,476 0.6% 97.2% 395519 04% 94.0%
Qingdao Jiaozhou Paradise Walk
LELEPRE 86,812 56,195 05% 90.4% 26,081 03% 86.1%
Shenyang Hunnan Paradise Walk
N2 o 104,163 194,218 1.9% 99.0% 13,325 0.1% 100.0%
Shanghai Fengxian Paradise Walk
HiRER Y 72919 92,403 09% 99.4% 30,480 0.3% 98.1%
Shanghai Jinhui Paradise Walk
B KA 53,884 39,787 04% 94.2% 30,100 0.3% 923%
Hangzhou Wujiao Paradise Walk
HEM R 110,899 126,384 1.2% 96.2% 9,930 0.1% 98.3%
Ningbo Yinzhou Paradise Walk
REAY KA 35,822 27,365 0.3% 94.4% 6,353 0.1% 93.0%
Wuhan Baisha Paradise Walk Phase II
REAY KT 105,577 122314 1.2% 97.5% 28875 0.3% 97.7%
Wuhan Baisha Paradise Walk Phase I
FEHILWAT 95,463 74,755 0.7% 97.0% 34,360 0.4% 93.7%
Nanchang Qingshanhu Paradise Walk
BB K f 73,806 57,513 0.6% 97.8% - - -
Hangzhou Guofang Paradise Walk
RSN 105,372 58,100 0.6% 98.2% - - -
Changsha Furong Paradise Walk
BN RILR 91437 69,443 0.7% 95.7% - - -
Suzhou Xujiang Paradise Walk
il SR 92,344 47,890 0.5% 97.1% N - -
Ningbo Haishu Paradise Walk
HREE 93,121 12,278 0.1% 100.0% - - -
Ji'nan Beichen Paradise Walk
B K ECH 20,552 2,980 0.0% 88.9% - - -

Chongging Lijia Paradise Walk Block C
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R Y S
2023 2022
flies flies
fiig AH GiEL/ON A i R UN Al i
Rental %of  Occupancy Rental %of  Occupancy
GFA income Revenue Rate Income Revenue Rate
Tk  AREFIL ARWFT
Sqm RMB000 RMB000
B s R 93,262 53,107 0.5% 99.2% - - -
Beijing Beiyuan Paradise Walk
Kt 7,389,988 9,808,243 95.4% 96.2% 8,961,577 95.1% 93.8%
Paradise Walk Subtotal
BERBE 16,161 18,070 0.2% 85.5% 20,784 0.2% 92.6%
Chonggqing Crystal Castle
ERERENE 54,618 39,682 0.4% 91.8% 42,509 0.5% 94.9%
Chonggqing Chunsen Starry Street
BRI 29413 13,639 0.1% 100.0% 12,436 0.1% 100.0%
Chonggqing Fairy Castle
TRBERENE 6,320 34,723 0.3% 100.0% 31,149 0.3% 100.0%
Beijing Summer Palace Starry Street
BEKRENE 44,027 58,844 0.6% 96.3% 61,822 0.7% 87.4%
Xi'an Daxing Starry Street
MZ MR 63,206 75,473 0.8% 96.3% 75,613 0.8% 94.6%
Xi'an Qujiang Starry Street
LBETENE 24,740 21,882 0.2% 96.8% 23,546 0.3% 92.7%
Shanghai Minhang Starry Street
BRGNS 31,168 35,167 0.3% 99.2% 36,980 0.4% 99.4%
Chengdu Wuhou Starry Street
EREEMENE 52,500 55,317 0.6% 95.6% 47,506 0.5% 95.7%
Chongqing Aijia Starry Street
ML BN 38,190 13,519 0.1% 90.6% - - -
Longfor Leshan Starty Street
AFARAE AR 39,603 1,967 0.0% 93.3% - - -
Shijiazhuang Dongchuang Longfor Yuhua
Starry Street
ity 147,476 77,177 08%  MEFIN/A 82,690 0.9%  AMEN/A
Others
BB NGt 547,682 445,460 4.4% 95.3% 435,035 4.6% 95.0%
Starry Street Subtotal
HEMOCO 29,104 23,832 0.2% 91.3% 29,699 0.3% 92.8%
Chongqing MOCO
FHE /Nt 29,104 23,832 0.2% 91.3% 29,699 0.3% 92.8%
MOCO Subtotal
st RA AT 7,966,774 10,277,535 100.0% 96.2% 9426311 100.0% 93.9%

Total rental income of shopping malls

" SRS B EEERARE2T ; BIF

T A& 263 AR o
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In 2023, the total sales volume for shopping malls were RMBG63.2 billion. Annual average
daily foot traftic was 2.63 million.
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ESHUIE IR YRt y/E S IS Major investment properties under construction of the Group are as follows:
Flq - AEEE TR G Table 4: Major investment properties under construction of the Group
L S T A
Estimated

Commencement of

R E 3] Operation Planned GFA

Frrk

Sqm

TR 5 R A Chengdu Dong'an Paradise Walk 2024 2024 101,583
= PR Hefei High-Tech Paradise Walk 2024 2024 121,020
FHE A K Nanning Qingxiu Paradise Walk 2024 2024 121,483
EEGIBRE Nanjing Yushan Paradise Walk 2024 2024 125,885
KT KA Tianjin Meijiang Paradise Walk 2024 2024 128,028
AR BLEE A KA Shaoxing Jinghu Paradise Walk 2024 2024 133,560
BRONARI R Suzhou Xiangcheng Paradise Walk 2024 2024 143,200
18 0 TOD K Haikou TOD Paradise Walk 2024 2024 222,032
E i AN Chongging Longxing Core District Paradise Walk 20254 Jz DA% 2025 and thereafter 75,652
TR R Changzhou Yuanshan Paradise Walk 20254 K DAR 2025 and thereafter 81,889
FUNIE R R A Hangzhou Binkang Paradise Walk 20254 B LM 2025 and thereafter 101,331
[ &2 Xi'an XingFu Green Belt 20254 R LME 2025 and thereafter 105,169
L T SN Chongging Nanping Paradise Walk 20254 K AR 2025 and thereafter 111,192
RUHEXE Changsha Kaifu Paradise Walk 20254 B IE 2025 and thereafter 111,591
RIH K Changsha Xinyao Paradise Walk 20254 R LME 2025 and thereafter 127,940
[EIEAWN Kunming Time Paradise Walk 20254 K DAR 2025 and thereafter 133,022
BN E 3 KA Hangzhou Yuncheng Paradise Walk 20254 B LM 2025 and thereafter 135,046
B b3 KA Hangzhou Shangcheng Paradise Walk 20254 R LME 2025 and thereafter 135,945
R SRR Wuhan Xinrong Bus Terminal 20254 K LAE 2025 and thereafter 152,747
TP 7Y %5 S K Ak Ji'nan West Railway Station Paradise Walk 20255 & L% 2025 and thereafter 157,514
REMIL R Wuchang Binjiang Paradise Walk 20254 J A 2025 and thereafter 170,600

BN CHERENHE TR - s Due to the rental increase of shopping malls in operation, continuous investments
WAL KHEMERE [HE NsE AEE % in shopping malls under construction and the development of rental housing

ARG 2 S (N 00,145 9C Goyoo, the valuation gain of investment properties of the Group amounted to
RMB2.01 billion in 2023.

£ # Annual Report 2023 ~ 33
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SERVICES AND OTHERS

In 2023, the total income, net of tax, generated from services and others of the
Group was RMB11.94 billion, representing an increase of 2.4% as compared
to last year. The gross profit margin of the services and others was 31.0%,
representing an increase of 2.0% as compared to last year. As at December 31,
2023, the area of the Group’s properties in operation was 360 million square

meters.

COST CONTROL

In 2023, benefiting from the Group’s continuous focus on organization and
business efficiency improvement and high quality talents, the Group’s share of
general and administrative expenses to the revenue decreased by 0.2% to 2.8%
as compared to last year, the selling expenses as a percentage to the revenue was

2.7%, representing an increase of 0.3% as compared to last year.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

In 2023, the contribution of joint ventures was mainly from projects such as the
Group’s 49.9%-owned Suzhou Oriental Tower Project. The attributable profit

after tax of the Group in joint ventures was RMB1.42 billion.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

In 2023, the contribution of associates was mainly from projects such as the
Group’s 30.0%-owned Beijing Sidaoqiao Project. The attributable profit after tax

of the Group in associates was RMB130 million.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense includes PRC enterprise income tax and land appreciation
tax. In 2023, the enterprise income tax expense and land appreciation tax of
the Group were RMBG6.46 billion and RMB1.14 billion, respectively. The total

income tax expenses for the period amounted to RMB7.60 billion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROFITABILITY

In 2023, the Group’s core net profit margin was 8.7%, while that of last year
was 12.3%; and core net profit margin attributable to shareholders was 6.3%,
while that of last year was 9.0%. It was mainly due to the combined effects of
revenue, expenses, share of results of joint ventures and associates and changes in

tax expenses for the year.

LAND BANK REPLENISHMENT

As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s total land bank was 45.39 million square
meters or 32.36 million square meters on an attributable basis. The average unit
land cost was RMB4,705 per square meter, accounting for 29.3% of the unit
price of current contracted sales. In terms of regional breakdown, the land bank in
Pan Bohai Rim, western China, Yangtze River Delta, central China and southern
China accounted for 33.1%, 25.3%, 16.7%, 13.8% and 11.1% of total land

bank, respectively.

In 2023, the Group acquired new land bank with total GFA of 3.68 million
square meters or 2.66 million square meters on an attributable basis. Average cost
of acquisition on an attributable basis was RMB9,730 per square meter. In terms
of regional breakdown, the newly acquired area in Yangtze River Delta, western
China, southern China, Pan Bohai Rim and central China accounted for 26.3%,
41.8%, 9.5%, 11.4% and 11.0% of the total GFA of the newly acquired land

bank, respectively.

Subsequent to the reporting period®, the Group acquired new land bank with a
total GFA of 154,000 square meters or 125,000 square meters on an attributable
basis. In terms of regional breakdown, the newly acquired area in western China
and southern China accounted for 47.2% and 52.8% of the total GFA of the

newly acquired land bank, respectively.

* As of March 7, 2024
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The geographic spread of the land bank of the Group was as follows:

Table 5: Breakdown of the land bank of the Group

A ST Pl et S S A Finfil G4l
Attributable
Hh [ Region W City Total GFA % of Total GFA % of Total
Fhk Fhk
Sqm Sqm
B lE  Pan Bohai Rim e Yantai 7,286,109 161% 7,286,109 22.5%
&1 Shenyang 1,359,968 3.0% 800,185 2.5%
H Qingdao 1,637,456 3.6% 1,100,381 3.4%
bigea] Ji'nan 1,456,817 3.2% 1,307,640 4.0%
BE Changchun 981,538 2.2% 703,102 2.2%
K Tianjin 725,716 1.6% 592,131 1.8%
TRiE Baoding 520,668 1.1% 520,668 1.6%
k| Beijing 335,683 0.7% 116,191 0.4%
AR Shijiazhuang 241,801 0.5% 165,146 0.5%
B Tangshan 100,981 0.2% 50,491 0.2%
PN Taiyuan 174,035 0.4% 174,035 0.5%
N Dalian 30,889 0.1% 28,305 0.1%
B Jinzhong 82,617 0.2% 82,617 0.3%
B Weihai 68,346 0.2% 47,843 0.1%
INGEE Subtotal 15,002,624 33.1% 12,974,844 40.1%
2 1 [ Central China R Wuhan 2,265,723 5.0% 1,207,144 3.8%
rY Changsha 1,604,601 3.5% 1,037,090 3.2%
RN Ezhou 1,771,863 3.9% 620,152 1.9%
BN Zhengzhou 504,738 1.1% 302,407 0.9%
M Ganzhou 119,784 0.3% 78,353 0.2%
ANet Subtotal 6,266,709 13.8% 3,245,146 10.0%
T Western China i Chongqing 3,176,887 7.0% 2,054,574 6.3%
TR Chengdu 1,900,382 42% 1,419,456 4.4%
=i Guiyang 1,961,191 43% 1,104,255 3.4%
fiii7s Xi'an 1,620,196 3.6% 1,152,916 3.6%
i) Xianyang 934,996 21% 518,502 1.6%
W] Kunming 598,763 1.3% 543,710 1.7%
TN Lanzhou 767,794 1.7% 597,874 1.8%
£z Yuxi 515,924 1.1% 515,924 1.6%
INEE Subtotal 11,476,133 25.3% 7,907,211 24.4%
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Attributable
o [ Region W City Total GFA % of Total GFA % of Total

FHK FHK

Sqm Sqm
R=MMIE  Yangtze River Delta H{| Hangzhou 1,245,997 2.7% 866,262 2.7%
AHE Hefei 1,256,586 2.8% 905,146 2.8%
[l Suzhou 814,230 1.8% 551,058 1.7%
BB Nanjing 946,901 2.1% 803,801 2.4%
3} Ningbo 625,022 1.4% 312,511 1.0%
55 Wuxi 284,658 0.6% 190,609 0.6%
=Rl Taizhou 400,986 0.9% 214,977 0.7%
i Shanghai 274,326 0.6% 228,697 0.7%
NER Wenzhou 467,759 1.0% 244,821 0.8%
N Changzhou 539,006 1.2% 330,264 1.0%
paskin Shaoxing 198,918 0.4% 99,459 0.3%
[ Yancheng 260,047 0.6% 156,473 0.5%
P Nantong 229,351 0.5% 123,328 0.4%
B Xuzhou 55,352 0.1% 28,229 0.1%
il Yangzhou 4,004 0.0% 4,004 0.0%
INEE Subtotal 7,603,143 16.7% 5,059,639 15.7%
HE g Hh [ Southern China W Haikou 558,062 1.2% 558,062 1.7%
&1 Xiamen 522,701 1.2% 209,548 0.6%
JE N Guangzhou 522,559 1.2% 439,828 1.4%
Rt Zhuhai 491,333 1.1% 136,479 0.4%
SR Quanzhou 452,916 1.0% 288,313 0.9%
i Putian 397,008 0.9% 99,212 0.3%
5 Dongguan 245,719 0.5% 245,719 0.8%
faM Fuzhou 244,622 0.5% 161,848 0.5%
T Zhanjiang 232,212 0.5% 177,138 0.5%
W Nanning 210,421 0.5% 103,106 0.3%
B Huizhou 198,297 0.4% 149,876 0.5%
R Zhaoqing 186,346 0.4% 130,442 0.4%
il Foshan 181,141 0.4% 144,913 0.4%
I Shenzhen 170,264 0.4% 122,104 0.4%
| Zhongshan 145,992 0.3% 58,397 0.3%
VL Jiangmen 141,950 0.3% 70,975 0.2%
T Qingyuan 135,359 0.3% 69,033 0.2%
=n Sanya 6,391 0.0% 6,391 0.0%
i Subtotal 5,043,293 11.1% 3,171,384 9.8%
Yt Total 45,391,902 100.0% 32,358,224 100.0%
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Table 6: Land acquisitions in 2023

ol JEH AR ot JEAY e MEgmE SRR
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
7 FHK FHK
% Sqm Sqm
BNGE R Wi 80% 306,600 245,280
Pan Bohai Rim ~ West Railway Station Tian Yue Ji’nan
North Plot
R 5 oF 27  HR Je 50% 59,851 29,926
Shunyi New Town Block 2 Plot Beijing
TR A R K 50% 54,061 27,031
Hedong Dongsuntai Plot Tianjin
ANit 420,512 302,237
Subtotal
P AN s Ed 50% 82,208 41,104
Western China ~ Yubei N18 Plot Chongqing
R 4 8 5 HE 75% 25,895 19,421
Liangjiang New District Yuanyang Plot Chongqing
LRl [LEA 70% 332,220 232,554
CaoBei Plot Xi'an
FHIGX3-42-72- 2103 P 52% 220,941 114,889
HIDZ GX3-42-72-2 Plot Xi'an
FIHIGX3-42-24-2334 (LKA 61% 147,086 89,722
HIDZ GX3-42-24-2 Plot Xi'an
FHIGX3-18-46HL 7% 50% 143,458 71,729
HIDZ GX3-18-46 Plot Xi'an
M4 E H 90% 51,600 46,440
E-sports Town No. 46 Plot Guiyang
R S WA R HH 60% 159,807 95,884
Pidu 75 Mu Plot Chengdu
S 49WI JEHR 100% 111,465 111,465
Jinniu 49 Mu Plot Chengdu
B A3 S OWA AR FH 84% 100,597 84,501
Xinglong Street 50 Mu Plot Chengdu
KIF44Rp IR HH 50% 74,350 37,175
Tianfu 44 Mu Plot Chengdu
IR R T 24 A JIHS 100% 49,736 49,736
Pidu Xipu 24 Mu Plot Chengdu
ST R 2 1 A 3 JCHR 70% 35,150 24,605
Pidu Xipu 21 Mu Plot Chengdu
it 1,534,513 1,019,225
Subtotal

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g i#f & @ i i% B R 2 &)
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M [ THH 4 W e R RS MmN R
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
” FAK FHK
% Sqm Sqm
REfE 187 B B R 70% 243,355 170,349
Yangtze River ~ Shihu West Road Plot Suzhou
Delta PR GEE R 70% 43,621 30,535
Dongwu Paradise Walk North Plot Suzhou
P WL AR SR it 70% 152,891 107,024
Jiading District Jiangqiaozhen Plot Shanghai
RN AS-1 B 4 50% 59,834 29,917
Yinzhou A5-1 Plot Ningbo
HE VY 5 2 B 50 BHE 100% 152,070 152,070
Feixi Zipeng Road Plot Hefei
B i A 50% 40,606 20,303
Baohe Shanghai Road Plot Hefei
BYET U IR B 100% 212,777 212,777
Qiantang Xiasha Plot Hangzhou
R LR 0 L 66% 60,712 40,070
Xiaoshan Xiang Lake Plot Hangzhou
i 965,866 763,045
Subtotal
T 4 8 T B 2 R R 70% 183,498 128,449
Central China  Xinlian Road Liangan Plot Changsha
R % 4R &Y 51% 74,866 38,181
Datang Liangan Plot Changsha
R TR E LR R 100% 147,042 147,042
WUT North Plot Wuhan
INGE 405,406 313,672
Subtotal
T g 8 15 A G 55% 93,306 51,318
Southern China  Matian Street Plot Shenzhen
FE fid T L L 37l 85% 41,148 34,976
Longgang Street Plot Shenzhen
B33 9 FM 100% 87,131 87,131
Jinjiang Chidian No. 33 Plot Quanzhou
N R JEM 70% 127,194 89,036
Yingbin Road Plot Gaungzhou
gt 348,779 262,461
Subtotal
At 3,675,076 2,660,640
Total

£ # Annual Report 2023 ~ 39
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The details of the land bank acquired by the Group subsequent to the reporting

period” are as follows:

Table 7: Land acquisitions subsequent to the period”

M [ JHH 4 i WEMRER:  RHAERSEAR  RERRE A
Attributable Expected Attributable
Region Project Name City Interest GFA GFA
z Tk Tk
% Sqgm Sqm
P PR 3 LA [543 60% 72,670 43,602
Western China  Xi’an Hangtian 31 Mu Plot Xi'an
THE T [ 1L 44 B R il 100% 81,365 81,365
Southern China  Foshan Amusement Park Plot Foshan
wast 154,035 124,967
Total
' #HE-FWWE=HLH ¢ As of March 7, 2024
WEIRG FINANCIAL POSITION
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As at December 31, 2023, the Group’s consolidated borrowings amounted to
RMB192.65 billion. Cash in hand was RMBG60.42 billion*. Net debt to equity
ratio (net debt divided by total equity) was 55.9%. Liabilities to asset ratio (ex.
Pre-sale Deposits)** was 60.4%. The credit rating of the Group was BBB- by
Standard & Poor, Bal by Moody’s, BBB- by Fitch, and AAA by CCXR*#*,
Shanghai Brilliance.

* Of them, regulated pre-sale funds amounted to RMB22.76 billion

wok Liabilities to asset ratio (ex. Pre-sale Deposits) = (total liabilities — Pre-sale Deposits)/(total

assets — Pre-sale Deposits)

##k The ratings given by CCXR were for the rating on Chongqing Longhu Development Co.,
Led., a major subsidiary of the Company in Mainland China.

Approximately 82.3% of the Group’s total borrowings were denominated
in RMB, while 17.7% were denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
maintains its borrowings in foreign currencies in a low proportion with a certain

amount of exchange rate swap so as to minimize the risk in exchange losses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Approximately RMB61.15 billion of the Group’s consolidated borrowings were
with fixed interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 4.8% per annum, depending on
the term of the loans, and the other loans were quoted at floating rates. As of
December 31, 2023, the fixed interest debt as a percentage of total debt was 32%
(December 31, 2022: 33%).

The Group’s average cost of borrowing was 4.24% per annum. The average
maturity period of loan was 7.85 years. The unsecured debt as a percentage of
total debt was 59.8%. The debt due within one year was RMB26.84 billion,
accounting for 13.9% of total debt. Excluding regulated pre-sale funds and

restricted capital, cash to short-term debt multiple was 1.36X.

In 2023, the Group successfully issued medium-term notes of RMB2.3 billion in
the domestic capital market, at a coupon rate ranging from 3.50% to 3.70% per

annum with a term of three years.

EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2023, the Group had 29,116 full-time employees in China.
Of these employees, 6,118 worked in the property development business, 3,066
in the investment property operation business, and 19,932 in the services and
other business. Average age of our employees is 33.17 years old. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, work experience and the
prevailing market wage level. The total compensation of employees consisted of
base salary, cash bonus and share-based rewards. The distribution of cash bonus
is assessed and determined based on a combination of factors, such as the Group’s
actual performance against its targets and the scores gained on the balanced

scorecard of its subsidiaries

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2023, the national new home sales reached RMB11.7 trillion, down 6.5%
year-on-year. The sea change in the supply and demand dynamics within the
real estate market prompted comprehensive policy adjustments tailored to each
city’s unique circumstances. These adjustments were made to optimize real estate
regulation and control with a primary focus on ensuring the delivery of housing
projects, assuring security in basic living needs, and maintaining stability.
Therefore, efforts were made to support improved housing demand, promote the
stable operation of the real estate market, and foster a new model for real estate

development.
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Based on the high-quality development model, the Group centers on three major
business segments of property development, operation and service and firmly
pursue the synergy between business divisions such as property development,
commercial investment, rental housings, property management, and smart
construction, expanding the extensive strategy to tier-1 and tier-2 cities across
the country. By targeting customers’ needs, the Group proactively observes and
seizes market opportunities, through which the Group constantly iterates and
upgrades structural systems in the form of reformations while solidifying its
core businesses, improving the professional capabilities of the entire chain and

bolstering operational efficiency and efficacy.

In terms of commercial investment, 12 new malls were launched as scheduled
throughout the year, of which 7 were asset-light, demonstrating steady
development with a mixture of both asset-light and asset-heavy projects. Longfor
Commercial endeavors to enrich the consumer scenario through continuous space
innovation and brand renewals, leading to a recovery in the occupancy rate to
96% at the end of the period. Furthermore, same-store turnover and customer
traffic achieved a nearly 30% increase year-on-year, and rental income soared by
9% to RMB10.28 billion.

Goyoo, the Group’s rental housing brand, persistently seeks product upgrades
and the creation of multi-functional composite spaces to meet diverse needs
for housing. As of the end of the period, Goyoo has opened 123,000 rental
housing units, yielding an overall occupancy rate increase to 95.5%. Particularly
noteworthy is the occupancy rate of rooms in operation for over 6 months, which
climbed to 96.4%. Rental income surged by 6% year-on-year, reaching a total of
RMB2.55 billion. That means Goyoo effectively boosts operational efficiency and

ensures a steady rise in profitability.

Longfor Intelligent Living, known for its high-quality services and stellar
reputation alongside full digital empowerment, continues to expand its service
scope. As of the end of the period, Longfor Intelligent Living has managed a
property area of over 359 million square meters, spanning 13 major property
types, including residential, office buildings, industrial buildings, public
buildings, and other facilities. Emphasizing the service mantra of “Satisfaction +
Surprise”, Longfor has garnered considerable customer recognition, maintaining

a customer satisfaction rate of over 90% for 15 consecutive years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s smart construction brand, Longfor Smart Construction, continues
to fortify its digital technology capabilities by resolving the pain points of
traditional construction, thereby enhancing development and operational
efficiency. Drawing upon extensive experience in all-type development and
industry-leading digital technology capabilities, the Group has extended its
business footprint to core tier-1 and tier-2 cities, such as Beijing, Chengdu,

Chongqing, and Hangzhou.

Backed by high quality land bank and with our focus on tier-1 and tier-2 core
cities, the Company spares unrivalled flexibility to launch saleable resources in
a timely manner after having regard for the market situations. Additionally, the
Group still focuses on the demand for home improvement by leveraging our
product series, including Glory of Galaxy, Glory of Thorns, Cloud Palace, and
Noble Mansion to well align with marketable property types and capitalize on

market opportunities to increase sales.

The Group (including joint ventures and associates) completed properties with
a total GFA of approximately 16 million square meters in 2023 and plans to
complete properties with a total GFA of 15 million square meters in 2024, most
of which will be completed in the second half of the year. Steady progress has been

made in the construction and sales of these projects.

In terms of commercial properties, approximately 14 shopping malls are expected
to be in operation in 2024, located in cities such as Chengdu, Nanjing, Tianjin,
and other cities, marking our steadfast commitment to the models of both asset-
light and asset-heavy, and strengthens the grid layout of core cities. As our
rental housing projects are in operation in tier-1 and tier-2 cities such as Beijing,
Shanghai, Shenzhen, Hangzhou, Chengdu, and Chongqing, our future focus is to

drive product iteration and enhance service quality.

Looking ahead, the Group will prioritize high-quality development and uphold
a prudent financial management strategy. Longfor will achieve internal growth
through generating positive operating cash flow from multiple business and
continue to optimize our profit structure to ensure the Group’s profit growth is

more robust and sustainable in the future.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Xuping, aged 41, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on August 25, 2021. Currently, Mr. Chen was the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) of the Group and the Chairman of the board of directors and a
member of Investment Committee and Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2008 and served as
a construction manager, project manager, regional general manager and general
manager of property development core business. Mr. Chen graduated from

Tsinghua University with a Master Degree in civil engineering in 2008.

Mr. Zhao Yi, aged 47, was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on March 18, 2015 and is currently the Chief Financial Officer of (“CFO”) the
Group and a member of the Investment Committee. He joined the Group in
2006 and has served as the senior manager of Chongqing Longfor, the financial
controller of Chengdu Longfor, the head of the Group’s Financial Management
Centre and the general manager of the Department of Finance of the Group. Mr.
Zhao graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (47 B 8B
£ KB, majoring in international accounting and obtained a bachelor degree in
business administration. He is a member of China Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. Before joining the Group, he served at Pan-China (Chongqing)

Certified Public Accountants (E% PN a9 ).

Mr. Zhang Xuzhong, aged 49, Mr. Zhang, was appointed as an executive
director and a member of the Investment Committee of the Company on 10
January, 2023 and is currently the president of the property division. Mr. Zhang
had served as the general manager of Zhejiang Longfor since joining the Group in
2014. Mr. Zhang graduated from Southeast University (R F K%) in 1997 and
obtained a Bachelor degree in civil engineering majoring in industrial and civil
engineering ([ ##). He graduated from the University of South Australia in

2004 and obtained a master degree in business administration.

Madam Shen Ying, aged 48, Madam Shen was appointed as an executive
director and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on
October 28, 2022, and was appointed as a member of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee on August 31, 2023. Madam Shen is currently
General Manager of Human Resources Department of the Group and chairperson
of Longfor Foundation. Madam Shen obtained a Bachelor Degree in economics
from Shanghai University (F1K%E2) in July 1998 and obtained a MBA at
Boston College in May 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Madam Shen worked at
General Electric and CHP.
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Biographies of Directors

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xia Yunpeng, aged 46, Mr. Xia was appointed as a non-executive director,
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Investment Committee of the Company on October 28, 2022. In July 2003, Mr.
Xia obtained a Master Degree in Law from Tsinghua University. Since November
2017, Mr. Xia has been the chief legal and risk management officer of Charm
Talent International Limited, our controlling shareholder. Mr. Xia served as the
general manager of the legal and internal audit department of the Group from
September 2007 to October 2013 and previously worked in the legal department

of China Resources Land.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, aged 74, was appointed as an independent
non- executive director of the Company on November 1, 2009. Mr. Churchouse
is also a member of the Audit Committee and Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee of the Company. He has been involved in Asian securities
and property investment markets for more than 30 years. Currently, he is a
private investor including having his own family business, Portwood Company
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director of Hysan Development

Company Limited (a company listed on the SEHK, stock code: 00014).

In 2004, Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse set up an Asian investment fund under
LIM Advisors. He acted as a director of LIM Advisors and as Responsible Officer
until the end of 2009. Prior to this, Mr. Churchouse worked at Morgan Stanley
as a managing director and advisory director from early 1988. He acted in a
variety of roles including head of regional research, regional strategist and head
of regional property research. Mr. Churchouse gained a Bachelor of Arts degree
and a Master of Social Sciences degree from the University of Waikato in New
Zealand.
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Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on November 1, 2009. Mr. Chan is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is the chairman of Halcyon Capital
Limited and Halcyon Securities Limited, which is engaged in corporate finance
and securities business in Hong Kong respectively. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences (majoring in
Economics) and from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology with
a Master degree in Business Administration. He worked for the SEHK and has
been an executive director of Haitong International Securities Group Limited
(formerly Taifook Securities Group Limited) and head of its corporate finance
division for 16 years. Currently he is an independent non-executive director of
Yuexiu Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 00405), Embry Holdings
Limited (stock code: 01388) and China Conch Venture Holdings Limited (stock
code: 00586), both are listed on the SEHK.

Mr. Xiang Bing, aged 61, was appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company on November 1, 2009, Mr. Xiang is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. He obtained a Doctoral degree in Accounting from the University of
Alberta in Canada. Mr. Xiang is the founding dean and professor of the Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in Beijing, China. Currently, Mr. Xiang
was the independent non- executive director of Sinolink Worldwide Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1168) which is listed on the SEHK, and he retired from the
position on May 31, 2023.

Mr. Leong Chong, aged 58, Mr. Leong was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on January 1, 2023. Mr. Leong is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He obtained his bachelor’s
degree in computer science from the University of California, Berkeley in the
United States of America in December 1990. From July 1997 to June 2000,
he worked as an analyst in the equity research division of Morgan Stanley Dean
Witter. From June 2000 to October 2001, he was a director of the equity research
department of Credit Suisse First Boston (Hong Kong) Limited. From June 2002
to September 2015, he worked in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited as the managing
director of the investment banking division. From December 2016 to March
2019, he was the deputy general manager of S.F. Holding Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002352.8Z). Mr. Leong
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of JY Grandmark
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2231)
and Central China New Life Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 9983) since November 2019 and April 2020, respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to present the

corporate governance report for the year ended December 31, 2023,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve
its corporate value with effective corporate governance procedures. During the
year, the Company had adopted, applied and complied with the applicable
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix Cl (renamed from Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules except for the
deviations set out in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board currently comprises four executive directors, one non-executive
director and four independent non-executive directors and therefore has a fairly

strong independence element in its composition.

Following the appointment of Mr. Chen Xuping as the Chairman of the Board
with effect from October 28, 2022, Mr. Chen Xuping assumes the dual roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. This
deviates from code provision C.2.1 of the Code, which requires that the roles
of chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. After evaluating the development of the
Group and taking into account of the experience of Mr. Chen Xuping, the Board
was of the opinion that it is in the best interest of the Company at the present
stage for vesting the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in the same person as it helps to facilitate the execution
of the Group’s development strategies. The Board will nevertheless review this
structure from time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles as

and when appropriate.
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The Chairman of the Board should be responsible for the management of the
Board while the CEO should be responsible for the day-to-day management of

business. The division of responsibilities should be set out in writing as below:
Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board:

1. To provide leadership for the Board; to ensure that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities; to ensure that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established.

2. To attend annual general meeting and ensure that issues raised by
shareholders are answered by the chairperson of the Board Committees (as
defined below), or the appropriate alternate on the meeting.

3. To lead the formulation of corporate strategies, mid-to-long term plans of
development and significant organizational and structural adjustments.

4. To lead the formulation of an investment and financing decision system.
To provide leadership in respect of corporate risk and crisis management.

6. To lead the recruitment and appointment of senior management and Board
members of the Company under the recommendations of the nomination
committee; to participate under the recommendation of the remuneration
committee in decision making in respect of remuneration and bonuses of,
and share award scheme for, directors and senior management, and other
material changes and reforms in human resources management system and
remuneration system.

7. To provide leadership in respect of corporate culture.
Responsibilities of the CEO:

1. To provide leadership in the daily corporate operation, the execution of
corporate strategies formulated by the Board and achieving the objectives
of plans.

2. To establish and continuously improve the effective management system
and management team.

3. To lead the management team and continue to retain and train

management talents.

N
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises nine directors, including four executive directors
namely Mr. Chen Xuping. Mr. Zhao Yi, Mr. Zhang Xuzhong and Madam Shen
Ying, one non-executive director Mr. Xia Yunpeng and four independent non-
executive directors namely Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, Mr. Chan Chi On,
Derek, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Leong Chong.

The Boatd is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
overseeing the Group’s business, strategic decisions and performances, as well
as performing the corporate governance duties, including: (a) developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and directors; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with Appendix C1 (renamed from Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules
(Corporate Governance Code). During the year, the Board has reviewed the Code
of Conduct of the Group, assessed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, assessed the training needs of the directors and senior
management and arranged relevant trainings accordingly, and reviewed the status
of compliance with Appendix C1 (renamed from Appendix 14) to the Listing
Rules. The Board was satisfied with the effectiveness of the Company’s corporate
governance policy. The Company has in place effective mechanisms to ensure
that independent views and input are available to the Board. The Nomination
Committee, a majority of which is comprised of independent non-executive
directors, assesses the suitability and independence of potential candidates to be
appointed as independent non-executive directors and reviews the independence
of each independent non-executive director annually. The independent non-
executive directors meet with the Chairman at least once annually without
the presence of other directors and they can interact with management and
other directors including the Chairman through formal and informal means.
Independent professional advice is also available to all directors whenever
necessary. A review of these mechanisms is conducted on an annual basis to
ensure their effectiveness. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board has

reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of these mechanisms.
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The Board has delegated the management the day-to-day management and
administrative functions as they think fit and provides guidance of the rights of
management. The Board will review the relevant delegation from time to time to
ensure that clear guidance and rights have been provided and the proper reporting
procedures have been complied. In addition, the Board has also established
various Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the environmental, social and
governance committee (the “ESG Committee”) and the investment committee
(the “Investment Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). All the
Board Committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective

terms of reference.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, businesses, family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.

All of the independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of
three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors a confirmation of his independence in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-

executive directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the

requirements of the business of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) since August
19, 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant to the Policy,
the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to professional experience, culture
and education background, skill and knowledge, gender, age and length of

service.

The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable objectives to

implement the Policy.

Our non-executive director and independent non-executive directors possess
diverse academic and professional qualifications, financial and management
expertise and bring a wide range of business and financial experience to the
Board.
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The Board currently has one female director. The Board will strive to ensure the
Board is made up of a reasonable and justifiable proportion of women. Close to
44% of the overall workforce of the Group are female. Appropriate balance of
gender diversity of workforce is maintained taking into account the business

models and operational needs.

The Nomination Committee will conduct annual review of the effectiveness of
the Board Diversity Policy. During the year, the Board Diversity Policy was duly
implemented and considered as effective, taken into account of full compliance
with the relevant and up-to-date requirements under the Listing Rules and other

statutory requirements.

During the year, the Company held four Board meetings and one general

meeting, the attendance of each director is as follows:

HREFEaRRY L& VN e Ve
Exa-p e g -p e
No. of Board meetings No. of general meetings
attended/Total no. Attended/Total no.
HE Directors of Board meetings of general meetings
HiTEH Executive directors
WP Chen Xuping 4/4 111
LS Zhao Yi 4/4 1/1
IR (B —F ==~ 1HZFE)  Zhang XuZhong (Appointed on January 10, 2023) 4/4 11
L& Shen Ying 4/4 1/1
FafrEHE Non-executive directors
e Xia Yunpeng 4/4 11
HEBHWE (0 =% =4~ H BHE) Shao Mingxiao (Resigned on January 10, 2023) - -
WL FAfTEH Independent non-executive directors
Frederick Peter Churchouse Frederick Peter Churchouse 4/4 /1
i /q Chan Chi On, Derek 44 11
i Xiang Bing 4/4 11
PH(H—F == FE—f—HE(E) Leong Chong (Appointed on January 1, 2023) 4/4 /1

BB (i = S —f — A FHE)

Zeng Ming (Resigned on January 1, 2023)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on December
29, 2021 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
B.3.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board, and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of directors, re-appointment
of directors, succession planning for directors and assesses the independence of
independent non-executive directors. The nomination process, selection criteria
and succession plan are set out in the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) adopted by the Board. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, two are independent non-executive directors and one non-executive
director. The three members are Mr. Xiang Bing (being the chairman of the

Nomination Committee), Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek and Mr. Xia Yunpeng.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year to the review the
qualifications of the nominated directors. The attendance of each member is as

follows:

Rk S 2R

No. of meetings attended/

ZHMEA Name of members Total no. of meetings
JHI Xiang Bing /1
B 7 % Chan Chi On, Derek 1/1
HEMW Xia Yunpeng 111

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g i#f & @ i i% B R 2 &)
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NOMINATION POLICY

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee has been
delegated to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships. The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and

appointment of new directors.

The Nomination Committee should consider the following factors as a minimum
to be required for a candidate in recommending to the Board to be a potential new

director, or the continued service of existing director:
1. the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

2. proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;
3. skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

4. the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company’s success;

5. an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required for a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessaty to

diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

6. independence: the candidates for independent non-executive directorship
should meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing
Rules and the composition of the Board is in conformity with the

provisions of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors as it may deem

are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on November 1,
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in
paragraph E.1.2 of Appendix C1 (renamed from Appendix 14) to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include evaluating
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration system and
package of the directors and senior management, and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. The
Remuneration Committee consists of one executive director, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Leong
Chong* (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Xia Yunpeng, Madam
Shen Ying, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek.

*  Mr. Leong Chong was appointed as chairman on January 1, 2023 to replace Mr. Zeng

Ming whom resigned.

Major duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

1. To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing

remuneration policy.

2. To review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives.

3. To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. This should include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any

compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.

4. To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the group.

5. To review and approve compensation payable to executive directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and

not excessive.

6. To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with

contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate.
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7. To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-

executive directors.

8. To ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his

own remuneration.

9. To consult the chairman and/or the chief executive about their remuneration
proposals for other executive directors. The Committee should have access to

independent professional advice if necessary.

10. To review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter

17 of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year to conduct
a review on the remuneration of the directors and senior management. The

attendance of each member is as follows:

R A

No. of meetings attended/

W Directors Total no. of meetings
P —F = E—H—HE(E) Leong Chong (Appointed on January 1, 2023) 3/3
HEfS Xia Yunpeng 3/3
W Shen Ying 3/3
B ks 22 Chan Chi On, Derek 3/3
HiE Xiang Bing 3/3
WG (R = = =4 — [ BHE) Zeng Ming (Resigned on January 1,2023) -

HEHEI B BOR

AR AR & A s AR SERUE
JRAS R RN GBI A5 S H AR
Ji~ B0k WALEEME AR E R o B
AR TR ~ Y (AL R CHEE =1 &1 - 7l
DRI 0 U B 8 AR T G B )

R S BT P B e O o 1 A S TR M 48

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the directors is determined by taking into
consideration of various factors, such as strategic objectives of the Group, results
performance fulfillment and external market conditions as well as directors’
competence, performance, value of the position and contribution to the Company.
The total remuneration includes fixed salary, allowance, bonus and share award
scheme and ensures an appropriate mixture of long term and short awards as well

as its competitiveness in the market.

Details of the remuneration of the directors are set out in note 48 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on November 1, 2009 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in paragraph
D.3.3 of Appendix C1 (renamed from Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control and risk management systems
of the Group and nominating and monitoring external auditors. The Audit
Committee consists of three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, and Mr. Xiang Bing and
is chaired by Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate

professional and accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings with the senior management
and independent auditor of the Company during the year, to consider the
independence and audit scope of independent auditor, and to review and discuss
the risk management and internal control systems, interim and annual financial
statements of the Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor

before submitting to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

R T A

ZHEA Name of members No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
B % Chan Chi On, Derek 2/2
Frederick Peter Churchouse Frederick Peter Churchouse 2/2
s Xiang Bing 22

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g i#f & @ i i% B R 2 &)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Company established the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
(the “ESG Committee”) on August 26, 2020 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide in Appendix C2 (renamed from Appendix 27) to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the ESG Committee include advise and assist the Board in
managing matters relating to Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), including but not limited to

governance, policies, initiatives, performance and reporting.

The ESG Committee consists of one executive director and three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chen Xuping, Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, M.
Frederick Peter Churchouse, Mr. Xiang Bing and Madam Shen Ying. Mr. Chan
Chi On, Derek is the chairman of the ESG Committee.

During the year, the ESG Committee held two meetings to formulate the
Company’s ESG strategies and directions and approval of the publication of the
ESG report.

DA fy & %% B k0 8% - The attendance of each member is as follows:
HUR B, 2 R
No. of meetings attended/
ZHEA Name of members Total no. of meetings
B Chan Chi On, Derek 2/2
B 71 Chen Xuping 22
W == =4\ H =+— HZAF) Shen Ying (Appointed on August 31, 2023) -
Frederick Peter Churchouse Frederick Peter Churchouse 2/2
JHIT Xiang Bing 2/2
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee reports directly to the Board and is responsible for
investment proposal (including but not limited to appraising land acquisition as
well as making land purchase decisions) submitted by the business development
department of the headquarters and the regional companies. The Investment
Committee currently consists of Mr. Chen Xuping, Mr. Zhao Yi, Mr. Xia
Yunpeng, Mr. Zhang Xuzhang (appointed on January 10, 2023) and Mr. Chang
Keyi.

The Investment Committee held 27 meetings during the year, to discuss and
make investment decision on several projects. The attendance of each member is

as follows:

R 2

ZREA Name of members No. of meetings attended/
Total no. of meetings

BT Chen Xuping 27/27
L7 Zhao Yi 27127
BIRE (= FE =+ HZE() Zhang Xuzhong (Appointed on_January 10, 2023) 27/27
HEMm Xia Yunpeng 27/27
(R Chang Keyi 27127
WEPUIR (0 = F = =4FAH ~—HEHT) Su Xizhen (Resigned on June 21, 2023) 13/13

R BIE (72— — =4F—H 1 H G#HE)

Shao Mingxiao (Resigned on January 10, 2023) -

AR R
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the directors are aware of the latest development relevant to the
operation of the Group, the Company has arranged and funded suitable training
for the directors. During the year, relevant directors have attended the corporate
governance related training organized by the Company. Certain directors also
attended business seminars, and seminars organized by the accounting firm and
the independent third party institutes on directors’ duties and development in

securities laws.
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The Company has received from all directors’ records of their continuous

professional development trainings during the year, details of which are set out in

below table:

A
AR
Rk R RR

EREMGEN  REFREE

Reading
regulatory Attending
updates or training on
information regulatory

relevantto  development

the Company  and directors’

or its business duties
BRITF Chen Xuping v v
LS Zhao Yi v v
R (ZE === A1 AZ(F) Zhang Xuzhong (Appointed on January 10, 2023) v v
e Shen Ying v 4
EEE Xia Yunpeng 4 v
Frederick Peter Churchouse Frederick Peter Churchouse v v
e Chan Chi On, Derek v v
P Xiang Bing v v
P —E T~ —AZ(T) Leong Chong (Appointed on January 1, 2023) v v

GG (R F =~ HRHE)

FRBAE (¢ —F — =4 —f + HRHE)

Zeng Ming (Resigned on January 1, 2023)
Shao Mingxiao (Resigned on Jaunary 10, 2023)
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

All directors entered into formal letters of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years. Under the articles of associations of the Company, one-third
of the directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire from office by
rotation provided that every directors shall be subject to retirement at an annual

general meeting at least once every three years.

On January 1, 2023, Mr. Zeng Ming resigned as an independent non-executive
director an Mr. Leong Chong was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of the Company.

On January 10, 2023, Mr. Shao Mingxiao resigned as a non-executive director

and Mr. Zhang Xuzhong was appointed as an executive director of the Company.

The shareholders of the Company may propose a petson for election as a director
in accordance with articles of association of the Company and applicable law,
details of which are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com set out
in the “Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for election as director of

the Company”.
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AUDITORS REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are
RMB8,508,000 and RMB1,772,000, respectively.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow for that period. The directors consider that the financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with all appropriate accounting standards
and requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and
reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the Board and the management.
The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The directors have prepared the financial statements

of the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section headed

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 96 of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of an effective system of internal
control. The Group has established an internal audit department (the “Internal
Audit Department”) which is responsible for the independent review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and for the periodic report
(twice a year) of the auditing result to the Audit Committee and the Board. The
Company has also engaged external professional agent annually to re-assess and

evaluate the internal control system of the Company regularly.
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During the year, all the functional departments in the Group constantly
strengthened their daily supervision and improved their internal management,
respectively. The Group had launched certain measures and improvement in
various management systems to enhance its risk management and internal control
including: the Review and Prevention Guideline Regarding the Legal Risks of
the Business Light Asset Items of the Enabling Platform (2023 Edition), the
System for Protecting and Managing Personal Data of the Enabling Platform
(2023 Edition), the Measures for the Administration of Procurement Platform of
Services and Materials of the Enabling Platform (2023 Edition), the Operational
Guideline for Pledging Trade Receivables of the Enabling Platform (2023
Edition), the Regulations of Information Circulation Regarding Public Affairs
and Matters relating to Assistance of the Enabling Platform (2023 Edition),
the Measures for the Administration of Safety Audit of the Enabling Platform
(2023 Edition), the Measures for the Administration of Subcontractor of Services
and Materials Procurement Platform of the Enabling Platform (2023 Edition),
the Requirements of Emergency Response Plan for Personal Information Safety
Event of the Enabling Platform (2023 Edition), the System of Managing
Costs of Headquarters of Property Developer (2023 Edition), the System of
Managing Operation Risks and Stopping Points of the Projects for Sales of
Headquarters of Property Developer (2023 Edition), the Operational Guidelines
on Leakage Prevention System for Residential Projects (2023 Edition), the
System of Managing Engineering Safety of Headquarters of Property Developer
(2023 Edition), the Measures for the Administration of Marketing Expenses
Regarding Procurement of Headquarters of Property Developer (2023 Edition),
the System for Managing Discount Offered by Headquarters of Property
Developer (2023 Edition), the Measures for the Administration of Tendering
and Procurement of Business Headquarters (2023 Edition), the System for
Managing Fire Safety of Business Headquarters (2023 Edition), the System
for Managing Construction Safety of Commercial (Operational Phase) Capex
Owned by Business Headquarters (2023 Edition), Operational Guidelines for
Managing Payback for City-Industry Projects of Headquarters of Goyoo and
City-Industry (2023 Edition), the Measures for the Administration of Operation-
Type Tendering and Procurement of Headquarters of Goyoo and City-Industry
(2023 Edition), the Measures for the Administration of Undertaking Inspection
of Commercial Services Development Department of Property Services Group
(2023 Edition), Operational Guidelines for Managing Energy Consumption
of Commercial Services Development Department of Property Services Group
(2023 Edition), the System for Managing Pre-intervention of Properties under
Projects of Commercial Services Development Department of Property Services
Group (2023 Edition), the Guidelines for Code of Practice of Safe Construction
of Property Services Group (2023 Edition), the Measures for the Administration
of Panorama Planning of Commercial Services Projects of Property Services
Group (2023 Edition), the Code for Quality Inspection of Commercial Services
Development Department of Property Services Group (2023 Edition), the
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System for Managing Materials of Headquarters of Smart Engineering (2023
Edition), the Guidelines for Preparation and Evaluation of Technical Standards of
Headquarters of Smart Engineering (2023 Edition) and the System for Insurance

of Project Works of Headquarters of Smart Engineering (2023 Edition).

During the year, the Internal Audit Department is responsible for conducting
independent and objective review of internal control and risk management of the

Company, and carried out a series of audit projects, which includes:

Regular audit of Wuhan Company

Regular audit of Chengdu Company

Regular audit of Goyoo Northern China

Regular audit of Property Services Central China
Regular audit of Smart Engineering Northern China

Special audit of fixed assets

P I i A

Special audit of car parks

The Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing Branch and appointed its corporate risk management
services department to assess and evaluate the internal control and risk
management of the Company in 2023. According to the overall risk and
responding plan determined at the beginning of the year, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP selected two business processes of
investment property operation, namely marketing expenses management and
collection management for internal control review. Its re-assessment report
demonstrates that the Company has established key internal control procedure

within the selected business processes to respond to relevant risks.

All of the above mentioned internal and external audit reports and the follow-up
measures have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board
is of opinion that the internal control system of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2023 is effective and sufficient.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is the basic and necessary factor for achieving strategic
goals of the Group. As such, the Group has established the Risk Management
System of Longfor Group, which specifies the Group’s risk management
organizational system, detailed responsibility, overall procedures of risk

management, risk assessment method and regular risk reporting mechanism.

Risk management organizational system: The risk management organizational
system of Longfor Group consists of three basic lines of defense under the
leadership of the Board, namely the management and staff of business
departments as the first line of defense; the risk management team consisting
of the general manager of business departments of the Group with the CEO
as team leader and CFO as deputy team leader as the second line of defense;
and the Audit Committee, Internal Audit Department, Safe and Innovation
Management Department as the third line of defense. The Board shall be the
ultimate accountability body of risk management, and shall have the right to
provide guidance and make final decisions on the policy, system and responding
plan of risk management of the Group, conduct assessment on the risk appetite
of the Group and control the balance between the realization of strategic goals
and risk management. The Audit Committee, Internal Audit Department,
Safe and Innovation Management Department are authorized by the Board to
advise on and monitor the implementation of risk management of the Group
and review the annual risk management report. The risk management team is
responsible for the ongoing improvement of risk management system as well as
the implementation of management procedures including risk identification,
assessment, responding plan and risk management report, covering the annual
update of risk database, follow-up and monitoring of the implementation of
responding plan and the preparation and reporting of the risk management
report. The business departments are risk owners and shall manage and monitor

their respective risk exposure.
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Major risk management procedures: Through various interviews and
communications with the management members of different business units
and the headquarter of the Company, the management procedures have been
formulated and completed, which include target setting, risk identification, risk

assessment, risk response and supervision and risk reporting.

U Target setting: Target setting is the first step of risk management. The
Company shall firstly set the annual target in order to identify and assess
the risks affecting the realization of the target and take necessary action
to control such risks. The targets of the Company are set in four aspects,
namely strategic target, operational target, compliance target and financial

target.

U Risk identification: The identification of risk events from the operational
activities and important business procedures of each business unit shall be
conducted in bottom-up and top-down approaches through questionnaire,
group discussion, expert consultation, policy analysis and industry
benchmarking. Risk database shall be established and updated annually.
Risk owner and responding measures shall be determined for risks

identified.

U Risk assessment: The Company shall rank the risks identified through
assessment based on vulnerability and impact. Risk management team
shall conduct annual review on the risk assessment criteria (vulnerability
and effect) and report to the Audit Committee and final approved by the
Board.

U Risk response: Based on the result of risk assessment, the business units
of the Group shall propose the risk management and control measures
and recommendations for the risks involved in various aspects such as
improvement of business procedures and internal control system as well as
control of key procedures, and formulate relevant responding plans. Such
management and control plans shall be implemented in daily operation in

the form of management regulation.

. Risk reporting: The Company has established the systems of annual
risk management report and special risk management report. The risk
management team shall prepare the annual report and special report with

the support of the Internal Audit Department.
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In early 2024, the Group conducted the risk identification and assessment for
2024 and mapped out the risks faced by Longfor Group in 2024. The Group also
determined the top ten risk of 2024 and formulated the responding plan through
the assessment based on vulnerability and effect. The top ten risk included
cash flow risk, profit risk, macro-environmental risk, project management risk,
brand reputation risk, strategy and investment risk, resource management risk,
talent management risk, commercial and operation risk as well as quality and
safety risk. Details of risks and responding plans were submitted by the Audit
Committee and confirmed by the Board. During the year, the Group monitored
the implementation of risk management based on the risk responding plans and

prepared a report at the end of the year.

The Board is of opinion that the risk management system of the Group for the

year ended December 31, 2023 is effective and sufficient.

The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and internal control

systems of the Group and shall review the effectiveness of such systems.

The procedures by which the Company examines the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems shall include: to formulate an appraisal
proposal, to establish an appraisal team, to implement on-site tests, to identify
and control defects, to summarise and compile the appraisal results, and to
prepare an appraisal report. The Company shall authorise the Internal Audit
Department to be responsible for the specific organisation and implementation of
the appraisal on internal control. The Company shall put forward some confirmed
opinions after conducting comprehensive analysis on the defects in internal
control. Then, the Company shall make a final confirmation after it has carried
out the review pursuant to the stipulated authority and procedures and shall
classify such defects as material defects and general defects based on the degree
of the impact imposed by such defects. The Company shall timely adopt the
corresponding strategies with respect to the identified defects, and practicably
control risks within the range that the Company can undertake. In addition, the

Company shall hold the relevant department or personnel accountable.
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Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to

achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

DISCLOSURE INSIDE INFORMATION

Inside Information Disclosure Working Group (hereinafter referred to as “Inside

Information Working Group”) is a working group established under the Board of

the Company, which is responsible for the administration of inside information

disclosure.

The Composition of Inside Information Working Group

The team leader of the Inside Information Working Group is the chief

executive officer of the Company.

The members of the Inside Information Working Group include: the
chairman of the Board, the chief financial officer, the company secretary,
the officer in charge of Capital Markets Centre, the officer in charge
of Public Affairs and Media, and the officer in charge of the Legal

Department.
The secretary of the Inside Information Working Group is the company

secretary, who is responsible for communicating and reporting between the

Inside Information Working Group and the Board.

% 3% Annual Report 2023

67




5 5 iR

Corporate Governance Report

AT B AR /AL o

o NEIHETAE/DLZBEIR AEE SR
SE BRI H R TARMNE > E g Rk
HHERE

® RIEE I T AR /NN B R RS
% &AM - BT - VI arfl e
TS R -

o R TAR/INARLE 9 ol AR P A
MPATIED » REHRATHN  #ER A 7
A REHEAR A BN B T AR S
TR ANFERT B E A o

P AEYS B T B Y B
SR A TR T R B O L £ B (f
SRR BRSO A F - ASES) - JREAL%) -

o RIS BB RS —RFE R
WFTHE LA/ > i B A RE AT

o NFEHE LIEMNABARGEREITZEE
o HEREE S MTE . EAEEER
M EERE E AR A I 0F FiRE S -
A B DR R S A BB R AL A
175

o MW REAWEMC > WEHHE TR/ MILE
BB IR ORAT BRI AR A R (T > KSR
OB R PR R BE AN REAERF IR > S22 e
B O BB R A B,

68 - Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g ¥ % @ 2 f& 45 [

The Terms of References for the Inside Information Working
Group

o The Inside Information Working Group is the daily execution unit that
is engaged in the preliminary determination and handling of inside

information, whilst the Board is the decision making unit.

J The Inside Information Working Group conducts proper inquiry, confirms
fact, preliminarily assesses sensitive informations’ significant to the

Company, and timely reports to the Board where necessary.

U The Inside Information Working Group regularly review the effectiveness
and execution of the processes. It also conducts training from time to time,
so as to ensure that the staffs of the Company that may be exposed to inside
information are aware of the disclosure liability and handling principles for

inside information.

Handling Procedures that may Involve Inside Information

As to the business information that is reasonably expected in becoming inside
information (including, but not limited to acquisitions and mergers, movement

in share capital, and organizational restructuring etc.):

. The relevant staff capturing such information shall report to the Inside
Information Working Group promptly, and has the duty to keep such

information confidential;

U The Inside Information Working Group shall conduct proper
investigation and confirmation of facts for the said information. Where
necessary, it will make preliminary judgment upon consulting professional
opinions and report to the Board promptly. The relevant disclosure matters

will be conducted by the company secretary and the Legal Department;

o If the said information is involved with Safe Harbours, the Inside
Information Working Group shall supervise and ensure the confidentiality
of the information. If it is noted that the confidentiality of the information
has not been preserved, it shall report to the Board and disclose the

information as soon as reasonably practicable.

N
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix C3
(renamed from Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules as the guidelines for the
directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries of all
the directors, each of them confirmed that he/she has complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2023 in

relation to their securities dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management and
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the

Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zhang Lei joined the Group in 2008, and is an employee of the Company. She
was appointed as company secretary on August 21, 2015. Ms. Zhang is a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an Affiliated
Person of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. She graduated from
the Central University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in
international finance. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company
secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during

the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in enhancing the corporate transparency as well as
establishing market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent
internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws and regulations
in order to ensure all investors equally access to information. The Company has a
Capital Markets Center to serve as an important communication channel between
the Company and its shareholders, investors and analysts. To strive for effective
communication and transparency of the Company, the personnel in charge have
frequent contacts with the shareholders, investors and analysts through various
channels such as social networking site, telephone and email. On-site visits to the
projects of the Company have been arranged for the fund managers and analysts
to create opportunities for direct communication with investors and to provide
the latest development of the Company as well as information of the real property

industry to the capital market in time.
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In addition, the annual general meeting also provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board, as
well as chairman of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, members
of the respective Committees, and the external auditors of the Company, is
available to answer questions from shareholders at annual general meetings
and extraordinary general meetings of the Company. As such, investors’
understanding of and confidence in the Company can be enhanced. At the
annual general meeting of the Company held on June 16, 2023, the chairman
of the Board and Chairman of each of the Board Committees attended and
answered questions from the shareholders. The Company maintains a website at
www.longfor.com, where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance and

other information are available for public access.

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy aims to ensure that shareholders and the
investment community are provided with appropriate and timely access to
material information about the Company. It sets out the Company’s framework
for promoting effective communication with its shareholders so as to enable
them to exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner, and to
allow the investment community to engage actively with the Company. During
the reporting period, the Company has protected shareholders’ rights such as
the right to request the convening of general meetings, the right to propose
resolutions and speak etc. at general meetings and the right to make enquiries
to the Board in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules and
the articles of association of the Company. The Company’s social networking
site, investor hotline, email and other communications are also kept open. The
Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders’

Communication Policy and the results were satisfactory.

Information Disclosure

The Group discloses information in compliance with the securities regulations of
the SEHK, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Group
endeavours to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to make

rational and informed decisions.
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Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting
and Propose Resolutions

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings.
Any one or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by

the Company.

There are no provisions in the Company’s articles of association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to propose new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out

in the above paragraph.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director

are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 15/F., 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The Board hereby presents the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of Longfor Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in property development, commercial investment, asset management,

property management and smart construction.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the year by principal
activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the

Group on page 104.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business and performance highlights of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections of this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in note 52(b) to
the consolidated financial statements. No important event affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the financial year ended December 31, 2023. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environment policies and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can
be found in the section headed “Environmental Policies” and “Compliance with
Laws and Regulations” of this Report of the Directors. An analysis of the Group’s

key performance indicators during the year are as follows:
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DIVIDEND

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.23 per share for
the year ended December 31, 2023 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, July 17, 2024. The proposed
final dividend shall be paid on Thursday, August 22, 2024 after approval by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”). The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB
and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars
will be converted from RMB at the average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong
dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for the period from Monday,
June 17, 2024 to Tuesday, June 18, 2024.

Eligible shareholders will be given an option to elect to receive the final dividend
all in cash or all in new shares or partly in new shares and partly in cash (the

“Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is subject to (1) the approval of the proposed
final dividend by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM; (2) the Stock
Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in the new shares to be
issued pursuant thereto; and (3) where necessary, the whitewash waiver granted
by the Executive Director of the Corporate Finance Division of the Securities and

Futures Commission or any of his/her delegate.
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A circular containing full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with
the relevant form of election will be sent to the shareholders of the Company
on or around Wednesday, July 24, 2024. It is expected that the final dividend
warrants and certificates for the new shares (in case the eligible shareholders have
elected to receive part or all their final dividend in the form of new shares) will be

dispatched to the shareholders of the Company on Thursday, August 22, 2024.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to shareholders of the
Company to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a stable dividend policy to
achieve such goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board would take into account the Group’s results
of operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial condition, future
prospects, as well as statutory, regulatory and debt covenant restrictions on the
payment of dividends, and other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Whilst the Board will review from time to time for determination on proposed
dividend with the above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance that

dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any given period.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, June
13, 2024 to Tuesday, June 18, 2024, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine
the identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on Tuesday, June 18, 2024, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, June 12, 2024.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, July
16, 2024 to Wednesday, July 17, 2024 (both days inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. To qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16

Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, July 15, 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year is set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at December 31, 2023, the distributable reserve of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB4,077,028,000.

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
RMB95,147,000 (2022: approximately RMB204,470,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five years financial summary of the Group is set out on page 308 of this annual

report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, revenue attributable to the largest
customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.1% of the total revenue in
the year and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 0.5%

of the Group’s revenue in the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, purchases attributable to the largest
supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 2.4% of the total purchases in
the year and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 7.6%

of the Group’s purchases in the year.

So far as the Board of the Company is aware, neither the directors, their associates
nor any shareholder of the Company which owns more than 5% of the Company’s

issued share capital had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers
and contractors, in order to meet our own quality, safety, environmental and
product criteria. During the year ended December 31, 2023 and up to the date
of this report, the Group maintained good relationship with its suppliers and

contractors.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEE

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees as highly importance. The
Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path and opportunities
for advancement and improvement of their skills. In addition, the Group has
also adopted share award scheme to recognize and reward the contribution of the

employees to the growth and development of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note

33 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xuping (Chairman)

Mr. Zhao Yi

Mzr. Zhang Xuzhong (Appointed on January 10, 2023)
Madam Shen Ying

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shao Mingxiao (Vice Chairperson) (Resigned on _January 10, 2023)
Mr. Xia Yunpeng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse

Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek

M:r. Xiang Bing

Mr. Leong Chong (Appointed on January 1, 2023)
Mr. Zeng Ming (Resigned on January 1, 2023)
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Report of the Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Chen Xuping,
Mzr. Chan Chi On, Derek and Mr. Xiang Bing shall retire from office and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a period of three years. None of the directors of the Company
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of association of the Company provides that the directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain by them
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty or supposed duty provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said

persons.

In addition, liability insurance for directors and senior management of the
Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain

legal actions against the directors.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the directors and those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note

48 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Connected Transactions, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, either directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at December 31, 2023, none of the directors of the Company are considered to
be interest in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly

or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted for
the year ended December 31, 2023.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s assets with carrying values of
RMB156.4 billion have been pledged to secure certain banking and other

facilities granted to the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any such
rights exercised by them. Also, there was no arrangement to which the Company,
its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that

would enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS AND THE DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into the non-competition deed dated November 1,
2009 with the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Charm Talent
International Limited (“Charm Talent”), Junson Development International
Limited (“Junson Development”), Silver Sea Assets Limited (“Silver Sea”),
Silverland Assets Limited (“Silverland”), Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”)
and Mr. Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) pursuant to which Madam Wu, Charm Talent
and Silver Sea have jointly and severally undertaken, and Mr. Cai, Junson
Development and Silverland have jointly and severally undertaken, not to
compete with the Group. Each of Madam Wu, Mr. Cai, Charm Talent, Junson
Development, Silver Sea and Silverland has also undertaken with the Company to
procure that any investment or commercial opportunity relating to any property
business or investment or management in the People’s Republic of China that
they or any of their respective affiliates identify or propose or that is offered or
presented to them by a third party, be first referred to the Company in accordance

with the terms of the non-competition deed.
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Report of the Directors

In March 2024, the Company has received an annual declaration from each of
the controlling shareholders of the Company and the directors in respect of their
respective compliance with the non-competition undertakings as at December
31, 2023. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the said
declaration and are of the view that each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors has complied with their respective non-competition

undertakings during the year ended December 31, 2023.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in Connected Transactions, no contract of significance was
entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries, whether for the provision of services or

otherwise, during the year ended December 31, 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

De minimis Connected Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2023, certain directors and their close
family members, and companies controlled by certain directors and/or their
close family members entered into transactions with the Group which are
disclosed in note 49 (c) and (d) “Related party transactions” to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Such transactions constituted de minimis
connected transactions of the Company which were exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as above, the other related party transactions which were carried out by
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2023, did not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as

the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on November 1, 2009 (the

“Option Scheme”). The Option Scheme was effective for 10 years from the

adoption date. The Option Scheme was expired on October 31, 2019. No further

options will be granted under the Option Scheme but in respect of all options

which remain exercisable on such date, the provisions of the Option Scheme shall

remain in full force and effect.

On December 23, 2009, January 17, 2011, September 28, 2011 and November
4, 2014, the Company granted options to subscribe for a total of 10,600,000
shares, 46,000,000 shares, 150,000,000 shares and 110,000,000 shares under the

Option Scheme to certain directors and employees of the Company. Details of the

outstanding share options are as follows:
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As for the share option granted on November 4, 2014, the closing price of the shares on the SEHK

immediately before the date on which the options were granted was HK$9.37. The options are vested

and exercisable in 5 tranches from November 4, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 to November 3, 2024,

the exercisable percentage is 10%, 15%, 20%, 25% and 30% respectively.



LU 2 i et ) £ 2 e e

(1)

(i1)

(1)

(iv)

JERERE AT #1A9 H 7Y

$f PBCRE T B 5 1 1o AR T T B R
Sl FBCHE L RR I A A R B Y 2 B (E 3%
ST 3G B ) SR B A R A AR
fi o A BE B B By AN R RILBOR
A g SARTHA A R B (E S5 7 -

2%

RO RE AT B > G W R A
FAT A B 2 R B A A S (B0 A AT o
o FUOEENELFRTES) LR
BUIRESG 2R O s AL E
71t R A% S B A B 2 R AR ff
f) ~ OERER ~ 2087 ~ RELR - AR
AT BN - A KF R
- BEDERBY N B (2
S5 |) 2 B IBOHERT ) -

TRIFHE IR i AT (e B 1T I 0 AL

AR I B 3 s A 2 0 47 Y00 A £ L At
S B T S 452 10 2 0 O A o T
A B MR EBR > A5 e B
JRHER L B O AT (A BRI 0
10% ° fERHH10% REER: » Aat ALK
1 g PR HE

H88016,698,500 B M (R A A A A
Hert H A 2 AT A #0.259% ) 7T AR
S PR T AR AT

# B A P R B

REE TSR IR B A 2 AT 124
FIIRIA > FRAT AR S R Mt ) e A
TR FH A LAt B PR B 42 T
BT &S0 W R 1T A T
TR R 3 AL > AN AT TR AR
119 o

B

Report of the Directors

A summary of the principal terms of the Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(1)

(i)

(if1)

(iv)

Purpose of the Option Scheme

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide the Participants (as
defined in paragraph (ii) below) who have been granted options to
subscribe for shares of the Company under the Option Scheme with the
opportunity to acquire share interests in the Company and to encourage
Participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and the

benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Who may join

Pursuant to the Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite
any directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) and employees of any member of the
Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint
venture business partners, service providers of any member of the Group
who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group (the “Participants”) to participate in the Option

Scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Option Scheme

Initially the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Option Scheme or any
other option schemes adopted by the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the Option
Scheme. The lapsed share options are excluded when calculating the 10%

limit.

A total number of 16,698,500 shares, representing approximately 0.25%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report, are

available for issue under the Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to each Participant in any
12-month period up to and including the date of grant of the options shall

not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

Time for exercise of the Options

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by
the Company at the time of grant. This period must expite no later than 10

years from the relevant date of grant.

Vesting Period

At the time of grant of the options, the Company may specify any
minimum period(s) for which an option must be held before it can be

exercised.

Consideration for acceptance

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00.

(viif) Basis of determining the subscription price

(ix)

The subscription price per share under the Option Scheme is a price
determined by the Board and notified to each Participant and shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the SEHK on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the SEHK for the five SEHK business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the

date of grant.

Remaining life of the Option Scheme

The Option Scheme was expired on October 31, 2019. No further options
will be granted under the Option Scheme but in respect of all granted
options which remain exercisable on such date, the provisions of the

Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

To provide long-term incentive for employees, assist to retain its existing

employees and attract more talents, and provide human resources protection for

the long-term strategic goals of the Group, the Company has adopted restricted

share award schemes (the “Award Schemes”) on October 28, 2014 and August

26, 2020, which are subject to the administration of the Implementation

Committee (as defined below). According to the Award Schemes, the trustees (the

“Trustees”) can purchase shares from the market out of cash contributed by the

Group.
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T S R AR T 2 1 M £33 19 e LA Details of the shares granted under the Award Schemes and their movements

U during the Reporting Period are set out below:
(1 #HHE (1) Directors
—— —
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REFZ=E KERN KER FZA=-H REEE N
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Weighted

average

Number of Closing price closing price

Number of Number of Number of Numberof ~ granted shares immediately immediately

granted shares Number of shares granted shares granted shares unvestedasat  before the date before

Vesting unvested as at shares granted vested during cancelled lapsed during December 31, of grant  the vesting date

Name Date of grant Period January 1,2023  during the year theyear  during the year the year 2023 (HKS) (HKS)

(Note 1)
(k)

lias fitkis ks (H3k1) 4046743 5,000,000 (384674 - - 8,662,069 A48 18
Chen Xuping Barches 1-5&7-8 (Note 1)

#% 15 k7-8 (&) 6,301,626 2,000,000 (617,163) - - 7,684,463 18 185
Zhao Yi Batches 1-5&7-8 (Note 1)

R #ik15%7-8 i3y 5,396,822 2,000,000 (526,682) - - 6,870,140 185 2185
Zhang Xuzhong Batches 1-&7-8 (Note 1)

i #ik15%7-8 (1) 3,451,856 1,000,000 (333,186) - - 4,118,670 185 2485
Shen Ying Batches 1-5&7-8 (Note 1)

19,197,047 10,000,000 (1,861,705) - - 27,335,342
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Q) AERALREEHTHAL (2)  Five highest paid individuals during the year
AENALE LA B A LT =4 Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year, three
BANAHS > LD RS AR g were directors of the Company, details of the shares granted to them under
B A S AR R R R B s the Award Schemes and their movements during the reporting period are
B o 5 B I R A R R T 45 B e disclosed above. Details of the shares granted to the remaining two highest
NEH L B W RES A RS ST - paid individuals during the year and their movements during the reporting

period are as follows.
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Weighted
average
Number of Number of Closing price closing price
granted shares Number of Number of Numberof ~ granted shares immediately immediately
unvested as at Numberof ~ granted shares granted shares granted shares unvested s at before the before the
Vesting January 1, shares granted vested during cancelled lapsed during December 31, date of grant vesting date
Date of grant Period 2023 during the year theyear  during the year the year 2023 (HKS$) (HKS$)
(i3EL)
(Note 1)
k15 kr-s () 14,190,785 2,400,000 (1,389,078) - - 15,201,707 24.89 24.85
Batches 1-5&7-8 (Note 1)
3) HfgzA (3) Other grantees
— —
ZRIER
e e KER KER AER FZASER RERGAEE  REEEASE
B 5 AR ERE BAHY WS CRIREE UL SRZI 1 aee iU
ik L] RERRAYH K% CEERBYA BhRHEA ShRAEH Ret¥H et (#50) (i)
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of Number of closing price closing price
granted shares Number of Number of Number of granted shares immediately immediately
unvested as at Number of granted shares granted shares granted shares unvested as at before before
Vesting January 1, shares granted vested during ~ cancelled during lapsed during December 31, thedateof grant  the vesting date
Date of grant Period 2023 during the year the year the year the year 2023 (HKS) (HKS)
(Hizt1)
(Note 1)
fkiZ10 (fsE1) 106,003,990 40,100,000 (21,016,743) (10,382,420) - 114704827 VINE] 220
Batches 1-10 (Note 1)
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BiaE Notes:
1. BB EE T 1. The vesting periods of the granted shares are as follows:
i H ) SEH
Date of grant Vesting period
iR/ xR —EHEEA=1—H AoZ— N\ F=ZA=1t—HE_FLF=A=1+—H
Batch 1 March 31, 2017 From March 31, 2018 to March 31, 2027
#vk2 “E-NEZH=AH HoZ—UE=AST—HEZZ O E=A=1T—H
Batch 2 March 31, 2018 From March 31, 2019 to March 31, 2028
iR/ R -NWE=ZH=F—H A-E = FE=A=t—HE L= NE=A=1—H
Batch 3 March 31, 2019 From March 31, 2020 to March 31, 2039
#k4 SR ZTAFENA—H A-Z - —F=A=t—AE - FNEF=H=1—H
Batch 4 April 1, 2020 From March 31, 2021 to March 31, 2040
K “ETENA—H CECCHEEAETHECSFENEEA =4
Batch 5 April 1, 2021 From March 31, 2022 to March 31, 2041
#tike B S o e A-E AN HESR T HERA=1H
Batch 6 July 1, 2021 From June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2025
il CERZZHERA AR HoZ =S THAE - ZN FELA+HA
Batch 7 May 16, 2022 From May 15, 2023 to May 15, 2042
ks ZERC=ENALH HZZF PR A H 2 2R =4 R H
Batch 8 April 17,2023 From April 16, 2024 to April 16, 2043
# 9 “ERCEHEEA=TH A-ETNELA =t —HE SR TAE LA =1—H
Batch 9 July 31, 2023 From July 31, 2024 to July 31, 2026
LK 10 “ECEHFEA=ET—H A-Z-MELA=E—HE - F==FLH=1—H
Batch 10 July 31, 2023 From July 31, 2024 to July 31, 2033

R BB R % - 2SR m A g ES
B (EFRR T 0 R EHRHEA - AT
SR B SR UHRAT RERZ AR IR Ay« TR
AT {5 200 0 O AR AR R 1 4%t
A B R M M

Upon vesting of the granted shares, such shares shall become wholly beneficially
owned by the relevant Selected Participants (as defined below) without requiring
any of them to exercise such shares. As such, no exercise period is applicable to the

granted but unvested shares under the Award Schemes.

2. TEBR A& 5 EUR B FE S RN G A B R 2. Details of the accounting policy adopted are set out in note 3.2 “Material accounting
MR 2T RS FTHORER | (T UMD A policy information” (under the sub heading “Share-based payment transactions”) to
LB A ac 5y 1) o the Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. TEHRAE A - AR R 4 T 1) e 2 3. The vesting of the shares granted under the Award Schemes during the reporting

B TR S%‘?D’fﬁ@%?ﬁ
BT SRIL ~ A Al B AR~ AR
FEBS SRR E R L B AN AT H 2 )
RN ER (ARG8T E )

e S oY LTS B s ol = e 1 o
LH =1 — BEE RO A T EIR R
HE AT B RO 1 O 2 T s AR
1,097,674,0007C (F k4 A B M 21.5270) K
N R 18,973,000 7C (5t 4 AR 12.65
Jo) °

BEZ T HA=ZT—H BT
WK B B B 157,241,876 > i
FE R B 1% H O R0y 594,589,841

period is subject to certain performance targets, which encompass various factors
such as the market and industry conditions, the strategic goals of the Company, the
achievability of the Company’s financial results, and the benchmarks of external

comparable companies (as stated on page 87 of this report).

The estimated fair value of shares granted on April 17, 2023 and July 31, 2023
amounted to RMB1,097,674,000 (approximately RMB21.52 per share) and
RMB18,973,000 (approximately RMB12.65 per share) respectively, which was

calculated based on the market price of the relevant shares on the date of grant.

Up to December 31, 2023, there were accumulated 157,241,876 shares
being granted and unvested, and 94,589,841 shares were granted and

vested to selected employees.
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R £ AL T

(1)

(i1)

(ii1)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g i#f & @ i i% B R 2 &)

ST # H 7Y

W E RS R E AT
HEMAL GERR PGB 1F
W ELIRR > R R I T B A 4 1R PR
HBARE KRG EFLEHNA
T B A SR R S s )
HEALTR 45 -

BIF REAHI B )57

g EEE > AT ZRAE (LA
REFETR  HFMEAEG LR
AN B RATE ~ A0 EE
B E RAL TSGR A AL )
(TRATZH & ) iR RHE A W
TR 98 A 4 AL Ao i B 24 A S
fAE AT 2 AR B (B4 (R BRI A
ST A AR HITEDSR) -
AEBLMT A 2RI RTES
PLRHAT % B & 1 A8 S W i hE
R i AU B 2 A N
(TEEMAL D) - HB g
BS EEEE 2 R (18
EBHE |) o BT WMy R #IH TR
TSR 1 AR AT T -

it & kR

ZR AR - E—NETA A
17 40 PR 073 S0 -8 T 5 ) B 07y
FRAGERAN T TP+
AZ T N\BOBITRARE Z3% -
AR B S AR
— AR A N B SR B
JED R B — 2 AR 2 B o 7
AR _F R NH Z+~H
A0 P73 8 T T A B
BRSNS A AR RS KS B 34T AR
Mz s ([EHE LR ) - #i2 %
CEEYTAZ B IR ARF
B AT A £56,591,755,153 ] >
UEETE EBR A 329,587,757H ©

A summary of the principal terms of the Award Schemes is set out as

follows:

)

(i)

(1i1)

Purpose of the Award Schemes

The purpose of the Award Schemes is to recognise and motivate the
contribution of certain Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph (ii)
below) and to provide incentives and help the Group in retaining
its existing employees and recruiting additional employees and to
provide them with economic interests in attaining the long-term

business objectives of the Group.

Eligibility of participants and payment for accepting award

share

Pursuant to the Award Schemes, the implementation committee
(comprising the chairman of the Board, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, the chief executive officer of the
Company, the chief financial officer of the Company and the
general manager in charge of human resources of the Company)
(the “Implementation Committee”) may, from time to time, at
its absolute discretion, select any full-time employee employed
by any member of the Group (including without limitation any
executive director of any member of the Group), non-executive
director of any member of the Group and any individuals who the
Implementation Committee may in its absolute discretion select
subject to the Listing Rules (the “Eligible Person(s)”) after taking
into account various factors as it deems appropriate for participation
in the Award Schemes (the “Selected Participant(s)”). No payment
of purchase price is required for the acceptance of an award share

granted under the Award Schemes.

Scheme Limit

The maximum number of shares which the Trustees may purchase
under the share award scheme adopted on October 28, 2014 shall
not exceed 3% of the total issued share capital of the Company
as at October 28, 2014. As at the date of this report, no further
purchase shall be made pursuant to the share award scheme adopted
on October 28, 2014. The maximum number of shares which the
Trustees may purchase under the share award scheme adopted on
August 26, 2020 shall not exceed 5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company from time to time (the “Scheme Limit”).
As at December 31, 2023, the issued share capital of the Company
is 6,591,755,153 shares, pursuant to which the Scheme Limit is
329,587,757 shares.



(iv)

(v)

(vi)

KBHEEZHETHERFZRE
Bo#
18 E 2 B AR DR Y w1 B T
B B BRI 75 2 it 2%
Wi B IA R R BT IRA AL
1% °

Fit 10 % B g 1 76 2 B

AT % B & ] R A B
I 2 S o e B ) R B
18 o 1R E % S R B ARN - 847
BHEEHHMATHERD ~ AR FH)
SO FRE ~ AN R IR SN
BRI H s F R A A MR 2R

Lt 2] 19 A

B o 4 i DU R 0 AT 4R A
1k A RERD E A SR A E AR
PERCE AR W R B
RBUESIF R LR LE -

2 B R - R R A
1k > ZFEN ARG R =1 F L
(TRFEVBLA J) 42 B R Ay - MERT
BIRLARL 32 FE AR SR R A
R A BUA I (BLAE i A5t BY
e ~ BB R EAR AR
BB 14 R B R BB ) R BT A
HABTT AR 2 AR -

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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Maximum entitlement of each Selected Participant

The maximum number of shares which may be granted to a Selected
Participant under the Award Schemes shall not exceed 1% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as at the respective

adoption date of the Award Schemes.

Vesting period and performance targets for vesting

The Implementation Committee may from time to time at its
discretion determine the vesting periods and performance targets
for vesting in respect of the shares granted. In determining the
performance targets, various factors such as the market and industry
conditions, the strategic goals of the Company, the achievability
of the Company’s financial results and the benchmarks of external

comparable companies shall be taken into consideration as a whole.

Duration of the Award Schemes

The Award Schemes shall be effective from the respective adoption
date and shall continue in full force and effect until the aggregate
number of shares purchased under the Award Schemes reaches the
Scheme Limit or the Award Schemes are otherwise early terminated
by a resolution of the Board.

If the Scheme Limit is reached or the Award Schemes are
terminated, the Trustees shall not purchase any shares pursuant
to the rules of the Award Schemes (the “Scheme Rules”), but
the Scheme Rules shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects for the existing shares purchased and held by the Trustees
pursuant to the Scheme Rules including shares not yet granted,
granted shares and granted shares which are not vested in accordance
with the Scheme Rules.
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EE Y EL T YN-PA £
REZFZ=F A= —H o SEF AR
TEATHN B IR A7) BRI A 5 B (G 6
ST BB RO ([ 3 25 BB W6 ]) 55X viEs)
PR AR 5 T B 01368 3 5 2 e o ZH I A
BRI AER - SUREE S5 T R
DN A) (TS AT |) B Lt A (7 LAl )
Bt EkCa € B TEEAT N SHEAT 76 520 5 I R HE ST
HPY (T ) 1) (AR RR 8%+ ) ZH e A 24 /) )
BT AC T 2 Bty ~ AR B 0 B FEHE RS 2 HE A
T

P A wIRE SR (47T

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at December 31, 2023, the interests of the directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register which were required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix C3 (renamed from Appendix 10) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing Rules”) were as

follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

EHENY St/ s E

I

% i
+ZA=1—H
A ] i
BEATE 4 b
Approximate %

of interest in

the Company as at

Lt

Name of director

Capacity/Nature of interest

Number of ordinary shares

December 31, 2023

b7 EETE TN 1,252,894 0.0190%
Chen Xuping Beneficial Owner
Atz A () 8,662,069 0.1314%
Beneficial of a trust (Note)
i -t ZEUN 1,609,114 0.0244%
Zhao Yi Beneficial Owner
Bl a A (FE) 7,684,463 0.1166%
Beneficial of a trust (Note)
R Haa A 698,316 0.0106%
Zhang Xuzhong Beneficial Owner
Atz A () 6,870,140 0.1042%
Beneficial of a trust (Note)
s -tk ZEUN 193,357 0.0029%
Shen Ying Beneficial Owner
fartZ s A (fHE) 4,118,670 0.0625%
Beneﬁcial of a trust (Note)
fiefd 2 i 29,000 0.0004%
Interest of spouse
Frederick Peter Churchouse I8t TN 445,000 0.0068%
Beneficial Owner
B % A A 205,000 0.0031%
Chan Chi On, Derek Beneficial Owner
T ERA A 10,507 0.0002%
Xiang Bing Beneficial Owner
2 il 8 2 HE 4 200,000 0.0030%
Leong Chong Interest of spouse
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%A HE 1A Dragon Dynasty Asset Limited ([ Dragon
Dynasty ) UG REE R A - Dragon Dynastyﬁgé%lgdﬁﬁ
JB A FR TME Trust (HK) Limited A Dragon Dynasty Share Award
TrustZ sE A B2 EHEA © Dragon Dynasty Share Award
Trustl) 3 4 (G0 45 T 44 8 2 A 21 vl 6 00D

HfE E K o

W ESCHTER 41 > A TSRS A AN R LR
o F T I 2 ) B AT R MR MO B 4 o R N

T

Lo BRFFPSEAETE LU A 2 m] ] 4 B g 2 )
H R A S R A IR A7) ([ AR 4
SR ) FE b B BB AT I B SR P A

RV

1 *

@)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

AZEZEE-A T L HBITH
BRA RS (BT 8 AR 23 (E
TC o B A 24200 ) FHEA AR
390 # W HESS > R I A AR EEAT
HE10.16% ;

R TRE =AM A BTNER
AEIHAF NS (BITE AR
308870 - SR FIZE3.80%) HHEA A
R e40 8 ARELS > HIH R A ok
BATEM0.22% 3

AR CERENA L HBEITNEN
ANafES (BT e AR 0
S A E4309%) PR ARTE130
SRS  AE A SRR TR
0.13% 5 )

R~ AL AR
NEES (BT R AR 108 T
S A 4409 ) PR AR 150
BORERR o M AR SRR T R
0.15%

Notes:
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Such number of shares are held on trust by Dragon Dynasty Asset Limited (“Dragon Dynasty”). The

entire issued share capital of Dragon Dynasty is wholly-owned by TMF Trust (HK) Limited as the

trustee of the Dragon Dynasty Share Award Trust. The beneficiary objects of the Dragon Dynasty

Share Award Trust are certain selected employees and directors of the Group as participants of the

Award Schemes adopted by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, certain Directors are also interested in the bonds issued by

the Company and the indirect subsidiaries of the Company, details ate as follows:

1. Mr. Chen Xuping is interested in the following bonds publicly issued in

China by Chongqing Longhu Development Co., Ltd. (“Chongqing Longhu

Development”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Owning RMB3.9 million of interest in the domestic corporate
bonds with a principal amount of RMB2.3 billion at a coupon rate
of 4.20% issued on January 17, 2020, representing 0.16% of the

total principal amount of the bonds;

Owning RMB6.4 million of interest in the rental apartments special
corporate bonds with a principal amount of RMB3.0 billion at a
coupon rate of 3.80% issued on March 4, 2020, representing 0.22%

of the total principal amount of bonds;

Owning RMB1.3 million of interest in the domestic corporate
bonds with a principal amount of RMB1.0 billion at a coupon rate
of 4.30% issued on August 7, 2020, representing 0.13% of the total

principal amount of the bonds; and

Owning RMBL1.5 million of interest in the domestic corporate
bonds with a principal amount of RMB1.0 billion at a coupon rate
of 4.40% issued on January 7, 2021, representing 0.15% of the total

principal amount of the bonds.
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2. SRMBSEAEAELL d AL R BB 2 F
B LA S AR A BB AT
A

G —EFE-AFELATLHBTNER
EBUEA A6 (R ITE AR
15f870 > BRI A FR4.67%) HHEA A
R 1008 HELE > MERITEMN
0.07% 5 &

() —EFECFEFEZHNHBETNERM
BHRIEAAES (B8 AR 30
&0 > B AI23.80% ) FHEA AR
W00 BHIMESS > M R BT R
0.07% °

5.0 WL LRTELIT AL B 2 7
BB A S AR P B PR AT Y
A A

=t

G A CE-EEZANABETNSE
% (e AR 1080 > 2l
F5R3.28% ) HHEA A R W40 g O HE

i AE TR IN0.04%

() MEF-RFEATHETNER
WA A& S (B TR A RS RO -
EHFIR470%) PHEA AR 408
MRER: > A E BT 2 190.08%

Gi) R FFE AL H R
S/ A (TR AR M2 0
T B4 2000 ) FHEAR AR
WeA0 MRS A O B R
0.00% »
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Mr. Zhang Xuzhong is interested in the following bonds publicly issued in
China by Chongging Longhu Development, an indirect subsidiary of the
Company:

(i)  Owning RMB1.0 million of interest in the rental apartments special
corporate bonds with a principal amount of RMB1.5 billion at a
coupon rate of 4.67% issued on July 19, 2019, representing 0.07%

of the total principal amount of bonds; and

(i)  Owning RMB2.0 million of interest in the rental apartments special
corporate bonds with a principal amount of RMB3.0 billion at a
coupon rate of 3.80% issued on March 4, 2020, representing 0.07%

of the total principal amount of bonds.

Madam Shen Ying is interested in the following bonds publicly issued in
China by Chongging Longhu Development, an indirect subsidiary of the
Company:

(i)  Owning RMB0.4 million of interest in the green bonds with a
principal amount of RMB1.0 billion at a coupon rate of 3.28%
issued on March 6, 2017, representing 0.04% of the total principal

amount of the bonds;

(i)  Owning RMBO0.4 million of interest in the domestic corporate
bonds with a principal amount of RMB500 million at a coupon rate
of 4.70% issued on February 20, 2019, representing 0.08% of the

total principal amount of the bonds;

(iii) Owning RMBO.1 million of interest in the domestic corporate
bonds with a principal amount of RMB2.3 billion at a coupon rate
of 4.20% issued on January 17, 2020, representing 0.00% of the

total principal amount of the bonds;



(v) MoFZFE=ANHBTHERE
TSI ) (5 55 (AT AR
30T - FEA%3.80% ) A A
RMso B MR - HIE R BT R
0.02%

v R TETEENALHEITHSEA
NEfES (BT R AR 06T
SR %4.30% ) A N R W60 8
ot > AE TR EITR0.06% 5 &

vi)  SEZCTHE-R AT
N RS (BT R AR 2018 T >
SRTFI%E3 499 ) thHEA N RS0 H
MRS > A E IR TE90.03% ©

4. BREREEARL TR T — NFERET
8 S SRR (BT &SRR o > TR A5
4.5%) PHEF 100 85 TR RERS - AHE A EE
TEM0.20% °

5. PEEA BUEAA A AR T — T
1 18 S SRR (B AT RS 3R 0 - FEIE 2%
4.5%) B —F—JUFEATIOE SR SRR (8817
w8 SEETT - A 23.95% ) T4y bl B
20082508 T RERE > AHE
BEATRER0.49H10.29% o
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(iv)  Owning RMBO.5 million of interest in the rental apartments special
corporate bonds with a principal amount of RMB3.0 billion at a
coupon rate of 3.80% issued on March 4, 2020, representing 0.02%

of the total principal amount of bonds;

(v)  Owning RMBO0.6 million of interest in the domestic corporate
bonds with a principal amount of RMB1.0 billion at a coupon rate
of 4.30% issued on August 7, 2020, representing 0.06% of the total

principal amount of the bonds; and

(vi)  Owning RMBO.5 million of interest in the domestic corporate
bonds with a principal amount of RMB2.0 billion at a coupon rate
of 3.49% issued on January 14, 2022, representing 0.03% of the

total principal amount of the bonds.

4. Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek owns US$1 million of interest in the senior
notes with a principal amount of US$500 million at a coupon rate of 4.5%
issued by the Company in 2018, representing 0.20% of the total principal

amount of the notes.

5. The spouse of Mr. Leong Chong owns US$2 million of interest and
US$2.5 million of interest in the senior notes with a principal amount of
US$500 million and US$850 million, respectively, at a coupon rate of
4.5% and 3.95%, respectively, issued by the Company in 2018 and 2019,
respectively, representing 0.4% and 0.29% of the total principal amount

of the respective notes.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register which
were required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS

As at December 31, 2023, the interests of persons, other than the directors or
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company representing 5% or more of the nominal value of shares comprised in
the relevant share capital of the Company as recorded in the register kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

INTEREST IN THE COMPANY

JBE Sk

Name of shareholder

By Wi E

Capacity/Nature of interest

W s H

Number of
Ordinary shares

A s
+=A=+—H
A F R
WAE 4
Approximate %
of interest in the

Company as at

December 31, 2023

HSBC International Trustee

Charm Talent

Snidg ([ R4

Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”)
BB (5Lt ])

Madam Cai Xinyi (“Madam Cai”)

Silver Sea

AR S )
Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”)

Junson Development

Silverland Assets Limited (“Silverland”)

Jumbomax Investments Limited

SRR

Woo Kwong Ching, Peter
b

Pao Pui Yung, Bessie

RN (BREL > 2023) 4,284,563,571(L) 65.00%

Trustee (Notes 1, 2 and 3) 163,943,700(S) 2.49%
A A (MR 2,899,941,483(L) 43.99%

Registered owner (Note 1)

Al B 2 M (FED) 2,899,941,483(L) 43.99%

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)

SHEEFEADIA 5k 2,899,941,483(L) 43.99%

Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)

SR B 2 REAS (B k1) 2,899,941,483(L) 43.99%

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)

HER FEADIA (B iE2) 1,382,888,518(L) 20.98%

Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 163,943,700(8) 2.49%
HRCHEA A (5E2) 1,382,888,518(L) 20.98%

Registered owner (Note 2) 163,943,700(S) 2.49%

R B 2 M (FRE2) 1,382,888,518(L) 20.98%

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 163,943,700(S) 2.49%

A B 2 Wi (FE4) 426,172,500(L) 6.47%

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)

ZREHL I 2 e (HEE4) 426,172,500(L) 6.47%

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)

i fey 2 HE 4 (FfE4) 426,172,500(L) 6.47%

Interest of spouse (Note 4)

L FRiE s RnikE

L stands for long position S
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stands for short position
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According to the disclosure of interests filing submitted (dated October 17, 2023), these
shares are held by Charm Talent. The entire issued share capital of Charm Talent is wholly
owned by Silver Sea, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn indirectly wholly-
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC International Trustee”) as the trustee
of the XTH Trust. The XTH Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Cai Xinyi
(“Madam Cai”) as settlor and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on October 22, 2018.
Madam Cai as settlor of the XTH Trust is taken to be interested in the shares held by Charm
Talent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) has received an
undertaking from Madam Cai, the settlor of the XTH Trust, pursuant to which Madam Cai
has undertaken to procure Charm Talent to exercise the voting rights of the shares held by
Charm Talent in accordance with Madam Wu's instructions. As Madam Wu is entitled to
control the exercise of the voting power of the shares held by Charm Talent, Madam Wu is
taken to be interested in the shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Madam Wu does not have personal interest in the shares.

According to the disclosure of interests filing submitted (dated October 17, 2023),
these shares are held by Junson Development. The entire issued share capital of Junson
Development is wholly owned by Silverland, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn
wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Cai Family Trust. The Cai
Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) as settlor and HSBC
International Trustee as trustee on June 11, 2008. Mr. Cai as settlor of the Cai Family Trust is
taken to be interested in the shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

According to the disclosure of interests filing submitted (dated October 17, 2023), these
shares are held by HSBC International Trustee as trustee for XTH Trust, Cai Family Trust

and other trusts. These other trusts are independent from XTH Trust and Cai Family Trust.

According to the disclosure of interests filing submitted (dated July 12, 2021), these shares
represent the corporate interest of Jumbomax Investments Limited through a number of
its wholly owned subsidiaries. Mr. Woo Kwong Ching, Peter is interested in these shares
through the interest of corporation controlled by him while Madam Pao Pui Yung, Bessie is

interested in these shares through the interest of spouse.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Trustees of the Award Schemes purchased on the Stock
Exchange a total of 17,921,000 shares at a total consideration of approximately
RMB311,136,000 pursuant to the terms of the trust deed under the Award
Schemes; in addition, a subsidiary of the Company purchased senior notes issued
by the Company in an aggregate principal amount of USD299,875,000 on the

open market.

Other than the aforesaid, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholder.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is subject to a number of laws and regulations concerning overall
environmental protection, impact to the environment, noise pollution and

environmental protection for development projects.

We place high emphasis on complying with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. We require our own staff and construction contractors to comply
with the relevant laws and regulations including environmental, labour, social
and safety regulations, as well as our own standards and specifications. Please refer
to the “2023 Sustainability Report” which published in April 2024 of the Group

for details.

We believe that we are in compliance in all material respects with the relevant

laws and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the

applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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Report of the Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this report, the directors confirm
that the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required under

the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share
Award Scheme” in this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered into

during the year and subsisted at the end of the year.

AUDITOR

The Company has not changed its auditor for the past three years. The
consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the reappointment of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s auditor will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chen Xuping

Chairman

Hong Kong, March 22, 2024
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TO THE MEMBERS OF LONGFOR GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longfor Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 104 to 307, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Valuation of investment properties
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the estimation
associated with determining the fair value.
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The investment properties of the Group mainly comprise
shopping malls and apartments located in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). As disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements, the investment properties are carried at
RMB199,752 million as at December 31, 2023, which represents
29% of the Group’s total assets. A fair value gain upon transfer
to investment properties of RMB13 million and a change in
fair value of investment properties of RMB1,999 million were
recognised in profit or loss for the year then ended.
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All of the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuations performed by independent qualified
professional valuers (the “Valuers”) and directors. Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are
disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
The valuations are dependent on certain key inputs that involve
management estimation, including term yield, reversionary yield
and reversionary rental for completed investment properties,
gross development value, developer’s profit and discount rate
for investment properties under development, discount rate and
reversionary rental for investment properties under sublease.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the investment
properties included:
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o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuers and directors;
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o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
directors about the valuation methodology, the
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, key inputs and data used in the
valuation and how the Valuers and directors justify the
methodology and assumptions used;
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o Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
source data used in the valuations by the directors and
the Valuers by comparing them, on a sample basis, to
rentals and prices for similar neighbourhood properties;
and
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o Involving our internal valuation expert, on a sample
basis, to evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation
techniques and reasonableness of the key inputs and data
used in the valuation by the Valuers and directors.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Assessment of net realisable value ("NRV”) of properties held for development (the “PFD”), properties under development for sales

(the “PUD”) and properties held for sales (the “PFS”) under inventories of properties
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We identified the assessment of NRV of the Group’s PFD, PUD
and PFES (collectively referred to as the “Properties”) as a key audit
matter due to the estimation involved in the determination of
the NRV of the Properties and the estimation of future costs to
completion of the Properties, where applicable.
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The Group had PFD of RMB8,518 million, PUD of RMB185,913
million and PFS of RMB60,348 million as at December 31, 2023.
As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management of the Group determined the NRV of the Properties
by reference to the estimated market prices and estimated future
costs to completion, if applicable, of the Properties, which takes
into account a number of factors including the recent prices of
similar property types in the same project or by similar properties,
and the prevailing and forecasted real estate market conditions
in the PRC. Besides, as set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management estimated the future costs
to completion of the Properties, where applicable, by reference to
the actual development cost of the Group’s completed projects,
adjusted by certain current market data.
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Our procedures in relation to the assessment of NRV of the

Properties included:
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o Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future
costs to completion of the Properties, where applicable,
on a sample basis, by comparing it to the actual
development cost of similar completed properties of
the Group and comparing the adjustments made by the
management to current market data;
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J Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of the
Properties, on a sample basis, estimated by the
management by comparing the estimated market price
that derive the NRV to the market prices achieved in
the same project or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the real estate
industry in the PRC; and
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o Assessing the accuracy of the estimation of the
market price that derive the NRV and future costs to
completion of the Properties by comparing the previous
estimation to the actual amounts.
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We identified revenue recognised from sales of properties at  Our procedures in relation to the appropriate point at which
to recognise revenue from sales of properties by the Group
significant to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and  included:

other comprehensive income and there are judgments involved in  FRAM L 4 B 5 e ] B e 0 4 B 0 26 U A R R I

determining the appropriate point at which to recognise revenue L :

a point in time as a key audit matter as it is quantitatively

from sales of properties.
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Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of the
properties underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customers as disclosed in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements. Control of the properties is
transferred to the customers at a point in time.
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Evaluating the terms set out in the relevant contracts
and obtaining evidence, on a sample basis, to assess
whether the control of the properties underlying the
particular performance obligations is transferred to the
customers at a point in time;
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Assessing management’s process and control over the
appropriate point in time at which revenue from sales of
properties is recognised; and
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Evaluating the terms set out in the relevant contracts
and inspecting the property delivery notices or other
appropriate evidence for a sufficient period before and
after year-end, on a sample basis, to determine whether
the performance obligations identified in the sales and
purchases agreements as disclosed in revenue from
contracts with customers to the consolidated financial
statements are satisfied and revenue from sales of
properties are recorded in the correct reporting period.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not exptess any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

U Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

U Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

U Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

U Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Lam Chi Hong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 22, 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
REZFE AL
For the year ended December 31, 2023

Bkt R EE CF
NOTES 2023 2022

ARWTFE  ARWTT
RMB000 ~ RMB'000

A Revenue 5 180,736,575 250,565,107
S A Cost of sales (150,152,727) (197,526,615)
EH Gross profit 30,583,848 53,038,492
HAA Other income 6 1,508,598 1,949,742
HoAthle 7 J k18 Other gains and losses 7 819,202 (36,565)
HEAEEN Lease liability charges (792,734) (888,159)
R 2 BRI A T R Fair value gain upon transfer to investment
properties 13,254 -
Ve~ L/E UNSBIEL 11| Change in fair value of investment properties 1,998,986 2,887,575
HAb AT SR T B THEE) Change in fair value of other derivative
financial instruments (40,919) (260,138)

B T 4G B S Selling and marketing expenses (5,262,817)  (5,337,715)
TR Administrative expenses (5,502,495)  (6,794,312)
R A Finance costs 8 (149,479) (158,193)
JREA L W N ) 2E A Share of results of associates 134,835 425,322
TN A2 3EAE Share of results of joint ventures 1,419,023 996,152
I3 o s ) Profit before taxation 24,729,302 45,822,201
T Income tax expense 9 (7,596,752)  (12,999,484)
A s ) Profit for the year 46 17,132,550 32,822,717
AR REAS i85 A1) - Profit attributable to:

ES/NGIE 2N Owners of the Company 12,850,011 24,362,046

Tz Non-controlling interests 4,282,539 8,460,671

17,132,550 32,822,717

104 = Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E i £ [ {2 j% 45 f& 2 &)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
R =R A

For the year ended December 31, 2023

(LI ==l s e
NOTES 2023 2022

ARWTFE  ARWTT
RMB000  RMB'000

A Y Profit for the year 17,132,550 32,822,717
Hot 21 (BA 7)) 4 Other comprehensive (expense) income:
N GE R HH - Irem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

AR A AN 2 U RS ([1%2Y  Fair value (losses) gains on investments in
STAEFEA A A S 1) RE S equity instruments at fair value through
THHE 2 A TE(EHR) other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (1,417,318) 1,093,507

HENTBEEH R w2 HE ©  Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

S TR AT I R A Net fair value gains on hedging instruments 899,539 653,411
AR RGN LR Losses on hedging instruments reclassified
A B R R to profit or loss (929,886)  (3,721,941)

(30,347)  (3,068,530)

oA T BA S AR AR Total other comprehensive expense (1,447,665)  (1,975,023)
AT A AR Total comprehensive income for the year 15,684,885 30,847,694
DATR A 4 17 i o A - Total comprehensive income attributable to:
E/NCIETZEDN Owners of the Company 11,402,346 22,387,023
TR 45 Non-controlling interests 4,282,539 8,460,671

15,684,885 30,847,694

BRAA (NRETT) Earnings per share, in RMB
BN Basic 11 2.07 4.08
ks Diluted 11 2.06 4.05

£ # Annual Report 2023 ~ 105
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRoF=HETZA=1—H
At December 31, 2023

I

Bt RO ZE CE T
NOTES 2023 2022
ANR#EFLE AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE NON-CURRENT ASSETS

B Investment properties 12 199,751,631 187,671,060
W B Kk Property, plant and equipment 13 2,200,305 2,770,400
g RE Right-of-use assets 14 579,569 1,349,672
[k Goodwill 15 3,834,757 3,834,757
IR G Intangible assets 17 2,009,314 2,196,421
NS TR S Interests in associates 18 15,399,336 15,904,823
BN Interests in joint ventures 19 16,052,277 13,281,430

Fe O FARRE AT A TS £ 1Y Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI

s LA 20 6,639,807 8,108,525
MiEEmTA Derivative financial instruments 32 358,577 201,834
AL IR Deferred taxation assets 34 11,389,985 11,217,441

258,215,558 246,536,363
B CURRENT ASSETS
WERE Inventories of properties 21 254,779,161 325,035,092
Hinfr & Other inventories 22 61,519 434,123
TR SRR Y EN AT R 2 Deposits paid for acquisition of properties
held for development 4,488,522 5,851,083
TR &,HJ’[EWEIUI KIH -~ Ha Accounts and other receivables, deposits and

M prepayments 23 28,645,379 29,819,796
A H A Contract cost 1,680,381 1,270,657
%4&#%%’”‘%5#@5 Amounts due from non-controlling interests 24 61,589,422 70,056,337
JRE WS B 5 ) 3O Amounts due from associates 24 4,215,911 6,969,133
JEW & B A S Amounts due from joint ventures 24 13,166,780 15,597,233
ﬂll&[ﬁlﬁtlﬁ Taxation recoverable 13,039,789 12,380,706

AN TERARS ([EAFE Financial assets at fair value through

HM%E@J R E profit or loss (‘FVTPL") 20 2,000 34,933
fiEemT R Derivative financial instruments 32 99,723 164,665
BT ERI TR Pledged bank deposits 25 1,198,327 528,886
SRATH B R BL & Bank balances and cash 25 59,224,403 72,095,409

442,191,317 540,238,053
B R CURRENT LIABILITIES
JREARH BRI B A 2 ~ At A Accounts and bills payables,

FRIE K e 2 other payables and accrued charges 26 67,598,945 93,447,704
BHIAE Contract liabilities 27 102,785,977 125,176,251
JREASS I 42 i W 4 3R Amounts due to non-controlling interests 28 23,403,687 42,652,900
JEAT 7?}( H Amounts due to associates 28 9,173,004 11,655,376
JEAT A B R Amounts due to joint ventures 28 7,692,958 6,897,980
JEATRL I Taxation payable 27,539,502 33,611,306
BATEFI ARG 2 AR Financial liabilities at FVTPL 35 50,705 51,905
HEA H——FREY Lease liabilities — due within one year 29 1,666,987 1,460,684
SRAT S LA S B — — 4 R E A Bank and other borrowings — due within one year 30 26,840,905 20,657,172
it TR Derivative financial instruments 32 8,990 114,562
HoAbATA 4 m TR Other derivative financial instrument 30 227,767 149,494

266,989,427 335,875,334
LB & TR NET CURRENT ASSETS 175,201,890 204,362,719
AR W B A TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 433,417,448 450,899,082

Longfor Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i S o g & [y el |
At December 31, 2023
ir3 e Sat: S S
NOTES 2023 2022
ANR#EFLE AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EAR R fit CAPITAL AND RESERVES

i Share capital 33 574,477 546,290
Tt Reserves 33 151,392,232 141,554,069
AN A A AL RE 45 Equity attributable to owners of the Company 151,966,709 142,100,359
FEHEHIE S Non-controlling interests 84,491,558 91,078,731
£ AR TOTAL EQUITY 236,458,267 233,179,090

FR Ui A it NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEfHEIE AT Deferred consideration payable 26 1,268 454,913
AR A RS 2 Sl B Financial liabilities at FVTPL 35 56,983 60,223
AEEE - —ERTY Lease liabilities — due after one year 29 13,165,227 13,402,662
SRAT B HA A 3 — — 4R 21 Bank and other borrowings — due after one year 30 154,501,113 174,145,759
B EEYE — — AT Senior notes — due after one year 31 11,303,543 13,205,169
fiEamT A Derivative financial instruments 32 375,278 1,077,442
HitfiE£m TR Other derivative financial instruments 30 513,557 561,762
IEIERIIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 34 17,042,212 14,812,062
196,959,181 217,719,992
433,417,448 450,899,082

1042307 H Z 55 & W MR & 20 4R
ZH T T BRI AR 5 S b

TALERES

T
CHEN Xuping
HH
DIRECTOR

on its behalf by:

ek
ZHAO Yi
HH
DIRECTOR

£ 3% Annual Report 2023

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 307 were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on March 22, 2024 and are signed
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

I

2023 2022
AREFLE ARWTL
RMB’000 RMB’000
RS OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Wt g 1) Profit before taxation 24,729,302 45,822,201
KLUT R Adjustments for:

il LA Finance costs 149,479 158,193

HEAESH Lease liability charges 792,734 888,159

W~ W BT Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 221,084 319,058

i G e Depreciation of right-of-use assets 49,089 81,197

MV o Amortisation of intangible assets 204,167 205,375

T BCE YR AP Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties (13,254) -

PG N T Change in fair value of investment properties (1,998,986)  (2,887,575)

HAWAT A 4 T2 ESEE) Change in fair value of other derivative financial

instruments 40,919 260,138

JREAG B ) S Share of results of associates (134,835) (425,322)

HENL B2 25 Share of results of joint ventures (1,419,023) (996,152)

WEYE - BUE K ER Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 119,008 355,145

FLEIA Interest income (874,358)  (1,302,279)

BEE 57 s 48 Net exchange loss 27,538 1,407,725

DA 173 £ B 09 45 3 B 52 Share-based payments expenses 194,270 564,345

I e O 51 B AR SR M M 4 Gain on repurchase of senior notes and bonds (889,734) (264,556)

JFAEIN A8 A 2R I IR 2 T Remeasurement gain on previously held interest in

wHE AR S B 2 J R s R a joint venture and net loss on disposal of subsidiaries (109,343) (70,419)

OB S R R 3 R Provision for write-down of PUD and PFS

S} LUE P4 ] 1,013,782 -
BHEESEH) NN BN E Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 22,101,839 44,115,233
HAn &> Decrease in other inventories 372,604 148,854
E AL Decrease in inventories of properties 62,393,825 83,436,541
AR AR R0 O AT a3 Increase in deposits paid for acquisition of
properties held for development (562,870) (567,865)
JREMACHE R S LA AR ~ #4 Decrease in accounts and other receivables,

TR D deposits and prepayments 373,276 2,287,667
JREAT BN R g - HABMESTE K Decrease in accounts and bills payables,

JERT 2 F s other payables and accrued charges (22,937,536)  (34,878,071)
BHAMED Decrease in contract liabilities (16,522,968)  (66,904,731)
BEEENHE Cash generated from operations 45,218,170 27,637,628
C At e AR ER ([ P ) st The People’s Republic of China

(The “PRC”) income tax paid (12,210,455) (17,676,315)
RIS A B A R NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 33,007,715 9,961,313

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E 4 = B # % 5 R A &)



GalleiiBg

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

i e =X S S
NOTES 2023 2022
AR ARETFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
A INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Era=CUE S| Additions to investment properties (8,518,263) (10,214,819)
HEREY Disposal of investment properties 867,410 -
T & R Additions to intangible asset 17 (17,060) (9,560)
RS I R R Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
g acquisition of subsidiaries 36 (36,036) (895,139)
B SRR A R R AT B Settlement of consideration payable for
Oy Eli i R R acquisition of assets and liabilities through
RAE acquisition of subsidiaries in prior year 36 (132,682) (242,386)
SR A DS 2 AUE Settlement of consideration payable for business
combination (246,871) (803,517)
B B A ) Disposal of subsidiaries 39 (744,616) 104,239
AECERE Capital reduction from joint ventures - 10,200
B A AU Capital reduction from associates 55,793 485,321
A ERRE Investments in joint ventures (63,064)  (1,547,234)
B e A\ FAE R A A 2 i 4 Purchase of equity instruments designated
Mz TH at FVTOCI - (97,000)
EEHATERIABL 2 £/ &E  Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL = (31,833)
HERATHEF ARG ZE2MEE  Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
14 T 15 30 at FVTPL 32,933 72,900
TR A R IR Investments in associates (10,946)  (2,191,727)
Sl A E R Dividend received from joint ventures 807,872 732,700
TS A Al B, Dividend received from associates 136,512 931,695
BE - ZNCIE- T Advances to associates (1,037,802)  (1,457,353)
i /NTIE 4 Repayments from associates 4,133,807 7,612,553
] & A A Advances to joint ventures (3,644,284)  (10,581,133)
AR Repayments from joint ventures 6,175,778 2,807,070
16]) 42 | A B K Advances to non-controlling interests (21,390,765)  (27,800,880)
TR 2R 22 2K Repayments from non-controlling interests 11,873,730 29,228,825
A SR T 773K Placement of pledged bank deposits (944,987) (446,712)
PRI IEIERITAE X Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 275,546 348,117
TR L ~ Bm BA Purchase of property, plant and equipment (849,792) (302,253)
SR B Interest received 874,358 1,302,279
B I A R TS 30H Proceeds from disposal of an associate - 169,100
FR T E R A AL 2 T i Capital distribution from equity instruments at
Wiz THEG designated FVTOCI 51,400 250,426
WA - WS Bk TR R Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 740,069 148,139
Y S 20R Proceed from disposal of intangible assets = 5,887
&G B T B R NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (11,611,960) (12,412,095)

£ # Annual Report 2023 ~ |11
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BaBleiig

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BERC=ZETHZTHIERE

For the year ended December 31, 2023

e —

B3 B S S S
NOTES 2023 2022
ANR¥EFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE ) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
WSC B I 2 )RR S M i Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries 37 (2,815,166)  (3,578,907)
B O 2 B A0 HE i Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary not
(I FHEHIHE) resulting in losing control 38 124,956 61,234
(BB ERAT R Ho A i 2 Repayment of bank and other borrowings (66,508,764)  (57,008,637)
EATFILE Interest paid (8,800,441)  (8,769,902)
AT R HAb A New bank and other borrowings raised 61,397,895 72,416,454
BT TR S0E Proceeds from issue of bonds 2,300,000 8,500,000
ltdie Repayment of bonds (9,666,413)  (7,212,113)
BT ESRAI Expenses on issue of bonds (6,900) (41,550)
(B s Repayment of asset-backed securities (27,715) (17,682)
B EaE Repayment of lease liabilities (647,167) (494,561)
EAHE & R Lease liability charges paid (792,734) (888,159)
FEEROR & Capital injection from non-controlling
shareholders 1,716,380 11,585,866
B g A 9 Capital reduction of subsidiaries (1,113,999) (14,070,723)
BATIRAR P 15 3K0E Proceeds from issue of shares = 31,793
FUARYR I b 5 180 3 B R 3 14 Payment for purchase of shares under the share
(RN award scheme (311,136)  (1,617,960)
CATIE Dividend paid (1,762,222)  (5,512,043)
I FEFE T RE 25 S ARG IR Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (574,643) (373,840)
T R B Advances from associates 2,184,846 2,994,081
I B R R Repayments to associates (4,618,836)  (1,834,980)
AR Advances from joint ventures 7,595,101 1,515,463
M EEAERR Repayments to joint ventures (6,978,455)  (2,729,978)
FEFE IR Fhak Advances from non-controlling interests 8,298,432 24,090,287
) JE I HE 2 IR X Repayments to non-controlling interests (11,696,722)  (24,970,004)
I [ 5 S 2 Redemption of senior notes - (4916,174)
[ 4 Sl 2 Repurchase of senior notes (1,385,680) (716,029)
I Inl (& 25 Repurchase of bonds (177,378) -
Tl T 0 O T B NET CASH USED IN FINANCING

Bl BB &S EYED 8

FEH B G KB ESFEY

ERMB & KB & HY

Bl BB & EWAS R T

BATH B N B &

ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash

(34,266,761)  (13,558,064)

(12,871,006)  (16,008,846)

72,095,409 88,104,255
59,224,403 72,095,409
59,224,403 72,095,409

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E 4 = B # % 5 R A &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

Longfor Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated on
December 21, 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “SEHK”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The addresses of the principal
place of business of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and Hong Kong are Beijing Longfor Blue Engine Industrial Park,
Building 6, No. 8 Beiyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, and 15/F, 1
Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 54(a).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the Company and its major

subsidiaries.
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IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 and

December 2021 Amendments to IFRS 17)

I 5 MR R SR 8 SR B AT A
Amendments to IAS 8

B e RIS 1 25 BT A
Amendments to TAS 12
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Amendments to TAS 12
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Statement 2
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on January 1, 2023 for the preparation of

the consolidated financial statements:

REEEH

Insurance Contracts

CERERYE

Definition of Accounting Estimates

LB — S G B M B IR A B A AEBIA

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

PR BB i — SR — B A

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two model Rules

At Bk

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or

on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

(@ Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal

taxable and deductible temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i)  the Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to leasing transactions that occurred on or
after January 1, 2022;

(i)  the Group also, as at January 1, 2022, recognised a deferred
tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all
deductible and taxable temporary difference associated with

right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial position and performance, except that the
Group disclose the related deferred tax assets of RMB4,016,922,000
and deferred tax liabilities of RMB(3,583,955,000) on a gross basis
in note 34 but it has no impact on the retained earnings at the

earliest period presented.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

(b) Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS

Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended
to replace all instances of the term “significant accounting policies”
with “material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those

financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting policy

information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity
applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance and examples

are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance but has affected the
disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies in the consolidated

financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to IFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective:

B K EE &R E

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture!

AR A

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

HARED R B R B

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

Wi 258 2 R £ A

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

AL R P 2

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

bz s

Lack of Exchangeability’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.

Except for the amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other amendments to IFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in

the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

(@ Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures deal
with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically,
the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors™ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the former
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’

interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the

Group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022

Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as

current or non-current, which:

U clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of
the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument

applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

U specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the liability

within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments
have been modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which an entity
is required to comply with on or before the end of the reporting
period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Covenants which are
required to comply with only after the reporting period do not affect

whether that right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022

Amendments”) (Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if
the entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those
liabilities is subject to the entity complying with covenants within

twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying
the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with
the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2024, with early application
permitted. If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should

also apply the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2023, the related terms and conditions stipulated in the agreements
between the Group and the relevant lenders, the application of the
2020 and 2022 Amendments will not result in reclassification of the

Group’s liabilities.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1

3.2

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
SEHK (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values, at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Material accounting policy information
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

U is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

U has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.
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RTBORE R ) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
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ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,

including:

J the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the

size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

U potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders

or other parties;

U rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

U any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’” meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets

of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity including reserves and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests

in the subsidiaries.
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ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries (Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of

the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The concentration test is met if substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
taxation assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred

tax liabilities.

If the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is

determined not to be a business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise

to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”) (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication

that the unit may be impaired.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the
group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a
CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or
the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of
CGUs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an

associate and a joint venture is described below.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying

the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or

services that are substantially the same.

For property development and sales contracts for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment and the

collection of the consideration is probable.

For property development and sale contracts for which the control
of the property is transferred at a point in time, deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to delivery of the
properties to the customers are recognised as contract liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position. A contract liability
represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an

amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

For property management and related service, hotel operations and
consultancy fee income, the progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured based on output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of the services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining services promised under the contract, that best

depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group’s
performance completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in the

amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for

such purposes).

Investment properties also include leased properties which are being
recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under

operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude

any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the

investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. A leased
property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset is derecognised
if the Group as an intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as
a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit

or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair

value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less any

subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate ot a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint venture and associate), the Group discontinues recognising its

share of further losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with TAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of

disposal) with its carrying amount.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
of the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon

disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in associates and joint

ventures

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in

ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related

assets or liabilities.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates or joint

ventures

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an associate ot
a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method,
goodwill is recognised at acquisition date if there is excess of the
consideration paid over the share of carrying amount of net assets
attributable to the additional interests in associates or joint ventures
acquired. Any excess of share of carrying amount of net assets
attributable to the additional interests in associates or joint ventures
acquired over the consideration paid are recognised in the profit or

loss in the period in which the additional interest are acquired.
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ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Inventories of properties

Properties held for/under development which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties for sales
are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties held for/
under development/held for sales are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (“NRV”). Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for the properties less estimated cost to completion and
costs necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-

incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties held for/under development are transferred to properties

held for sales upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from property held for sales to
investment property when there is a change in use to hold the
property to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by
the inception of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its

previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation,
the part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable.
If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits
will be required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent
liability, a provision is recognised in the consolidated financial
statements in the reporting period in which the change in
probability occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances where

no reliable estimate can be made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting

contractual cash flows; and

U the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

(@)

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit-impaired.



b

Ao B 2 R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 TS o RS B TR
Tt BORE R )

3.2 HEARGFEECRER @)
S TR (4)
BRI E (47)
G AR TR ()

(if)

(iif)

YR A I AN
s a2t a TR

He NP R A M AT AR
M THIBE KA A
FERHE > HAFEZHE
HE MR R PR At A T
Wi it e I A B3 T A fok
At RAER B -
HE RS THEE R > Rt
oo i s FRHE A & ERT 0 8
iR Wik ERE A
Al o

B A B I S SR BB e
MR > %5 TR
FBEB AT I 4 A ERT - R OE
P S5 e 2 s o [ 0 15
A o IR B R A S T A
WA JIEH -

TR TEFT ARG 2 S ME
&
UNGRCES 3 R A
(L FH A JHC At 2 T W i B R
RAR T EF A HA 2 T i
i Z AT R AR G A
NEFFAR R

REBEMAR - FE
U bR A e /A
AT T AT AR 2 (e i
fetH A R AR R -

3.

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(1if)

Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, and will be transferred to retained

earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in

profit or loss.
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being

measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated at
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or

losses recognised in profit or loss.
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R BORE R ) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
32 HEREFEORER 4 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
ST H (45) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including accounts and other
receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interests, associates
and joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) and
other items (representing financial guarantee contracts) which are
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit

risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debt as with
significant balances and/or collectively using a collective basis with

appropriate groupings.
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3, AOMBRESWIHEKETELA 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

Frat BORE R ) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Ek@%f&%féﬂ (%) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
S TR (4) Financial instruments (Continued)
BRI () Financial assets (Continued)
<55 TR (L % ZEAR 4 I R Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
Bk e HI B o SR A AT (54 impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)
(I HABIEH (4)
A HA TR > AREBFEY For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
e 4R S N 124 A TR B equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
B BRI B E KRR S SRS increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
RN > IR BEIE IS A 4 [ A R Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
FREEIGE SR - R ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
e RR A NG BRI AR R A likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

YRR LA 3R 1 4 2 T REAE R
JE BB B S AR L -

() FEEERAIE SN (i)  Significant increase in credit risk

ARG BB B KRR In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
PABRAT 75 K WG 2 i > A 2 since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
9 Lo T EL R i B a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
H B 72 4 1 Ja B BEL % 4 T reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
HRA T WHERR H A BUE &) financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
B o E MR Al IR - AAR In making this assessment, the Group considers both
B o 2% R A I A R S R quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
K€ ' REER > afhR and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
48 By S B A B S B A looking information that is available without undue cost or
A S5 ) RV AT A B i B 1 effort.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; or

J an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on the Group’s financial assets has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial assets
are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A financial asset is determined to have low credit risk if 1) it
has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of

‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
for financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on

the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

4 % Annual Report 2023 - 143




144

B B U 5 R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

3. EIEWERAHRIERRETEKR
fratBORYERH a0

3.2 EAREGFERER @)

ST H 4

BB E (47)

45 Al E U1 I ZE AR R R

5 0 Y R 5 O SR AR A T 0 (B T A

W EALIEH (47)

G EHER
A A R B BT
i PR A B A1 AR TR B
(ENN< VN v PN N
e EREA (B ALE) T
BT ORFE B A B R 1
AT i ) B > AR 6
HEBEEL S -

M b R A A G
oA v L E L A
QOR A i B4 o A4 [
A B AT SRR BB A
ERAARKENEEERS
AR -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g #f & @ % % B R 2 &)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by

the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
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3, AOMBRESWIHEKETELA 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

it BORE R a0) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
3.2 Ek@%f&%féﬂ (%) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
S TR (4) Financial instruments (Continued)
BRI () Financial assets (Continued)
<55 TR (L % ZEAR 4 I R Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
Bk e HI B o SR A AT (54 impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)
W EALIEH (47)
(i) [FEBEHERE (iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets
o —TA B & TR 4 g Al A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
F R 2 B 4 L A B T of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
WEA MR SME future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
EHEGERE SREE Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
B B I B Y A8 0 45 observable data about the following events:
KA S AT A g
@ BT ASEHRALER (a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
GigNLE 73T borrower;
(b)  HEA > QA aE (b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
Edi
© fERAHEZRANER (c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
L 2O B R AT contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
E% 488 3% B A & DA financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
1 1] 1 X% T concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
N 5547 %5 g 1 1 consider; or
B
@ &AW e T (d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
78 A A B bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
#HA -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in

measuring the lease receivable in accordance with IFRS 16.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of
the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit
loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to

receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that,
the risks are taken into account by adjusting the discount rate

instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivable are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information. For collective
assessment, the Group takes into consideration the following

characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

J External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit

risk characteristics.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with exception of account and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also

recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is

transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.
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fralBORY R ) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
3.2 Ejﬁ@%ﬂ&%ﬁﬂ (%) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
SRR (%) Financial instruments (Continued)
A R TR (%) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
s TR Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including accounts and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling interests, associates and
joint ventures, deferred consideration payable, senior notes and bank
and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using effective interest method.

Financial liability at FVTPL

Financial liability is classified as at FVPTL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies;
(ii) held for trading or (iii) it is designated at FVPTL.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is

subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9; and

J the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee

period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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32 HEREFEORER 4 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
ST H (45) Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends

on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated. The entire
hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in its

entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host

contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges for foreign

currency and interest rate movements exposure (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at
the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item

attributable to the hedged risk.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Hedge accounting (Continued)
Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which
is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge

effectiveness requirements:

o there is an economic relationship between the hedged item

and the hedging instrument;

U the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes

that result from that economic relationship; and

U the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as
that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging
instrument that the entity actually uses to hedge that

quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness
requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same,
the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e.

rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

For changes made to the hedged risk, hedged item or hedging
instrument required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Group
amends the formal designation of a hedging relationship to reflect
the changes by the end of the reporting period during which the
relevant changes were made. Such an amendment to the formal
designation of the hedging relationship constitutes neither the
discontinuation of the hedging relationship nor the designation of a

new hedging relationship.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Hedge accounting (Continued)
Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve
limited to the cumulative charge in fair value of the hedged item
inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss and is included in

the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

When a hedged item in a cash flow hedge is amended to reflect the
changes that are required by the interest rate benchmark reform, the
amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve is deemed to be
based on the alternative benchmark rate on which the hedged future

cash flows are determined.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or
loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the
same line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Hedge accounting (Continued)
Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively only
when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This
includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised. Discontinuing hedge accounting can
either affect a hedging relationship in its entirety or only a part
of it (in which case hedge accounting continues for the remainder
of the hedging relationship). Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transactions is
ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in

equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient,
leases with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ materially from

individual leases within the portfolio.
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ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made reliably. Non-
lease components are separated from lease component on the basis of
their relative stand-alone prices are accounted for by applying other

applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of lands and buildings that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of the initial

measurement of lease liability.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the

lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-
of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property
and inventory are presented within “investment properties” and

“inventories of properties” respectively.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is

not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance

fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value model.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are

recognised as income when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary course

of business are presented as revenue.



Ao B 2 R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 TS o RS B TR
Tt BORE R )

3.2 BEAREFHECRER @)

e &)

AREFER BN (47)

HAE B2 A R AR

i A 406 45 0 & I IF L& A R
a3 o A HE ] IR P I S A R T L
B1sE o M AHMRES R EHE &
FHEART A o FEAEHRE
LR G5 AL T 2 S A B 1 B
BE(ERE B

AL

TAZSE A 2 o RN > i
FHE SRR 2y M SE S ) B A A
AR o BREL 4 45 AL B A M O
BiE > MAEZHMREE - MR
Ei-gik=e ik

i AL R 55 1 ) R B )
74 4 T 9 £ FEL AR TG B R (B
SRELAF B A9 A A 00 0 L BAR 1
JRR) DA R 1Y B T o

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative stand-

alone selling prices.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head
lease and the sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the

underlying asset.

The Group uses the discount rate used for the head lease (adjusted
for any initial direct costs associated with the sublease) to measure
the net investment in the sublease if the interest rate implicit in the

sublease cannot be readily determined.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred

income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred taxation liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
taxation assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which these deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred taxation assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does not

give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

In addition, deferred taxation liabilities are not recognised if the

temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred taxation assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at each
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for freehold land, which
is always presumed to be recovered entirely through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred taxation liabilities and deferred
taxation assets for such investment properties are measured in
accordance with the above general principles set out in IAS 12
(i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets
and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether
the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the

lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 requirements to
the lease liabilities and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred

tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same

taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred taxation are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred taxation are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred taxation arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at

the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of options
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity

(share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options or shares expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in

share option reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

£ 3% Annual Report 2023
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ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share awards granted to employees

The fair value of service received, determined by reference to the fair
value of awarded shares granted at the date of grant, is expensed on

a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share award reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of the awarded shares that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such

that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to share award reserve.

When awarded shares are vested, the amount previously recognised
in share award reserve and the amount of the relevant awarded shares

(presented under the shares held for share award scheme) will be

transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, contract costs,

right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
contract costs and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the

recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine

the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually, when it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the

Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the

asset belongs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, contract costs,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporates assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under IFRS 15, the Group assesses
and recognises any impairment loss on other assets related to
the relevant contracts in accordance with applicable standards.
Then, impairment loss, if any, for assets capitalised as contract
costs is recognised to the extent the carrying amounts exceeds
the remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects to
receive in exchange for related goods or services less the costs which
relate directly to providing those goods or services that have not
been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs
are then included in the carrying amount of the CGU to which they

belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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EratBORE R a0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)
3.2 Ejﬁ@%ﬂ&%ﬁﬂ (%) 3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
W BE & &4 Impairment on property, plant and equipment, contract costs,
A fEFREE E R B (G right-of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
AN ) JAE (4) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUgs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
Control over certain entities

During the year, certain entities (the “Subsidiaries”) have been accounted
for as subsidiaries by the Group (note 54) although the Group has only

held less than 50% equity interests in them.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the Group has
control over the Subsidiaries based on whether the Group has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the Subsidiaries unilaterally.
In making the judgment, the directors of the Company considered the
Group’s voting power in making decision over the relevant activities of the
Subsidiaries at different times throughout their lives, such as the approval
of the operation plan and budget, the status of the property projects of the
Subsidiaries, pre-sale of property projects and the extent of workforce in
place and the right of appointing, remunerating and terminating the key
management personnel or service providers of the relevant activities. After
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the Group has
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of the

Subsidiaries and therefore the Group has control over them.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption of investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the
Group has recognised deferred taxation for PRC Enterprise Income Tax

(“EIT”) on changes in fair value of investment properties.

Contractual arrangements

The Group conducts a substantial portion of the value-added
telecommunications business and medical institution through Ample
Chaser Limited and Chunshan Wanshu Health Industry Development
Co., Ltd., (collectively the “PRC Investment Holding Companies”) and
their wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively the “Consolidated Affiliated
Entities”) in the PRC due to regulatory restrictions on the foreign
ownership in the PRC. The Group does not have any equity interest
in the Consolidated Affiliated Entities. The directors of the Company
assessed whether or not the Group has power over the Consolidated
Affiliated Entities, has rights to variable returns from its involvement
with the Consolidated Affiliated Entities and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the Consolidated Affiliated Entities. After
assessment, the directors of the Company considered that the Group can
direct the relevant activities and the effective interest in the Consolidated
Affiliated Entities through the contractual agreements, and concluded that
the Group has control over the Consolidated Affiliated Entities as a result
of the contractual agreements and accordingly the financial position and
their operating results of the Consolidated Affiliated Entities are included

in the Group’s consolidated financial statements throughout the year.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Contractual arrangements (Continued)

Nevertheless, the contractual agreements may not be as effective as direct
legal ownership in providing the Group with direct control over the
Consolidated Affiliated Entities and uncertainties presented by the PRC
legal system could impede the Group’s beneficiary rights of the results,
assets and liabilities of the Consolidated Affiliated Entities. The directors
of the Company, based on the advice of its other legal counsel, consider
that the contractual agreements among the Consolidated Affiliated
Entities and their equity shareholders are in compliance with the relevant

PRC laws and regulations and are legally enforceable.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Certain of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The Chief Financial Officer of
the Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs

for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
petform the valuation. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company every half
year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and

liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of investment
properties and certain types of financial instruments. Notes 12 and 52(f)
provide detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various assets

and liabilities.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Properties held for development (“PFD”), properties under
development for sales (“PUD”) and properties held for sales (“PFS”)
under inventories of properties (collectively referred to as the

“Properties”)

As explained in note 3, the Properties are stated at the lower of cost
and NRV. The directors of the Company make significant judgments
in determining the estimated selling prices of the Properties and
the estimation of future costs to completion of the Properties, where

applicable.

Based on the experience of the directors of the Company and the nature of
the subject properties, the directors of the Company determine the NRV of
the Properties by reference to the estimated market prices of the Properties,
which takes into account a number of factors including the recent prices
of similar property types in the same project or by similar properties, and
the prevailing and forecasted real estate market conditions in the PRC.
The directors of the Company estimate the future cost to completion of the
Properties, where applicable, by reference to the actual development cost of

the Group’s completed projects, adjusted by certain current market data.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in selling
prices, this may result in write-downs for the Properties. Such write-
downs require the use of judgment and estimates of the directors of
the Company. As at December 31, 2023, the carrying amounts of
PFD, PUD and PFS were RMB8,518,159,000, RMB185,912,853,000
and RMB60,348,149,000, respectively (2022: RMB9,555,265,000,
RMB248,077,246,000 and RMB67,402,581,000, respectively).

A write-down of the Properties amounting to RMB1,013,782,000 (2022:
nil) has been made in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for sale in the PRC,
at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including the cost of land, sales charges, borrowing costs and all relevant

property development expenditures.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Land appreciation tax (“LAT”) (Continued)
The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. Significant judgments are

made by the directors of the Company in estimating the amounts of land
appreciation and the applicable land appreciation tax rate due to the
uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties and deductible expenditures

for the whole project.

The Group recognises LAT in its consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when properties are delivered
to the buyers. However, the LAT calculation and payments with local
tax authorities in the PRC for the year will not be finalised until the
appreciation amount of the whole property project is confirmed with local
tax authorities. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the income
tax expense and the related income tax provisions in the period in which

such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Deferred taxation assets

As at December 31, 2023, deferred taxation assets of RMB11,389,985,000
(2022: RMB11,217,441,000) mainly in relation to tax losses, land
appreciation tax provisions, unrealised profit on intra-group purchases and
related lease liabilities have been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position, after offsetting certain deferred taxation
liabilities as set out in note 34. The realisability of the deferred taxation
assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. The directors of
the Company determine the deferred taxation assets based on the best
knowledge of profit projections of the Group for coming years during
which the deferred taxation assets are expected to be utilised. The directors
of the Company review the assumptions and profit projections by the end
of the reporting period. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are more or less than expected, an additional recognition or a reversal of
deferred taxation assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which such a recognition or reversal takes place.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal reports

about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief

operating decision maker (‘CODM”) (i.e., the executive directors of the

Company) in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its

performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their types of

activities, based on which information is prepared and reported to the

Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

performance. The Group’s operating segments under IFRS 8 Operating

Segments are identified as three main operations:

(a)

Property development: this segment represents the development
and sales of office and commercial premises and residential
properties. The Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in
the PRC.

Investment property operation: this segment represents the lease of
investment properties, which are self-developed or under subleases
by the Group to generate rental income and to gain from the
appreciation in the properties’ values in the long term. Currently the
Group’s investment property portfolio mainly comprises shopping

malls and rental housing and are all located in the PRC.

Services and others: this segment mainly represents the income
generated from property management and related services, hotel
operation and others. Currently the Group’s activities in this regard

are carried out in the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Company’s executive directors
monitor the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to

each operating segment on the following basis:
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and
current assets directly attributable to each segment with the
exception of deposits paid for acquisition of properties held for
development, interests in associates and joint ventures, equity
instruments designated at FVTOCI, deferred taxation assets,
taxation recoverable, derivative financial instruments, financial
assets at FVTPL and other corporate assets. Other corporate assets
are not allocated to the operating segments because they are head
office assets or assets which are managed centrally by the Group.
The investment properties included in segment assets are stated at
cost when assessed by the CODM.

Segment liabilities include accounts and bills payables and accrued
expenditure on construction, lease liabilities, contract liabilities,
deferred consideration payable and financial liabilities at FVTPL
but exclude taxation payable, deferred taxation liabilities, bank and
other borrowings, senior notes, derivative financial instruments,
other derivative financial instruments and other corporate liabilities.
Other corporate liabilities are not allocated to the operating
segment because they are head office liabilities or liabilities which

are managed on a group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses

incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted earnings
before interest, other income, other gains and losses, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation, share of results of associates and
joint ventures, change in fair value of investment properties and
upon transfer to investment properties, change in fair value of
other derivative financial instruments and finance costs (“Adjusted
Earnings”), where “interest” includes investment income and
“depreciation” includes impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at Adjusted Earnings of each segment, the segment
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as directors’ emoluments, auditor’s
remuneration and other head office or corporate administration

COSts.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the measurement of segment assets and results, property, plant
and equipment and certain right-of-use assets are allocated to
segments while their corresponding depreciation and amortisation

are not allocated to segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
profit, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales) and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar service.

Information regarding the Group’s operating and reportable

segments is set out below.

BEZB=RAS—H IR
Year ended December 31, 2023

TR

BB B RA 5t
Investment

Property property Services
development  operation  and others Total
ANRFFE  ARWFLE  ARETLE  ARFFE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

(WHik1) (WHik2) (WHk3)

(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
RAIMEFHA Revenue from external customers 155,857,211 12,935,821 11,943,543 180,736,575
AEbEA Inter-segment revenue - - 6,193,627 6,193,627
Vi LN Segment revenue 155,857,211 12,935,821 18,137,170 186,930,202
TR (AR ) Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 12,078,240 7451041  4999,016 24,528,297
NiERE Segment assets 272,006,481 166,678,920 10,798,562 449,483,963
NREE Segment liabilities 132,783,344 24,273,272 3,484,337 160,540,953

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g #f & @ % % B R 2 &)
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5. e R ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
@ EES - EEMAE®E) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BECF A BILER
Year ended December 31, 2022

LS
ZEES . e 5 Rt E 5
Investment
Property property Services
development operation and others Total

ARWTFE  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETL

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(Hf3E1) (Fir&k2) (Hf3E3)
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)

RASMFF A Revenue from external customers 27017339 11879811 11,667,957 250,565,107
A Inter-segment revenue - - 6,481,307 6,481,307
AHUA Segment revenue 227017339 11,879,811 18,149,264 257,046,414
AR (BB RR) Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 34727259 6823454 5261905 46,812,618
PR Segment assets 345,425,607 153,974,793 12,525,810 511,926,300
A Segment liabilities 172,774,171 27,858,724 4,655,455 205,288,350
M3E - Note:
1. R AY BB ST A A A S I ] 1. Substantially all of the revenue from property development is recognised at a
BT LARERR point in time.
2. JIT R T ST A BB IR 1 7 LA 2. All of the revenue from investment property operation is recognised over
e time.
3. BEFZ - =+"H=t+—HIk 3. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the amount of revenue from
AERE > MRS SET T H A K s T 2 services and others recognised at a point in time and recognised overtime
TlERR e A 5 N R 6 2,948,498,000 are RMB2,948,498,000 (December 31, 2022: RMB1,956,779,000)
T E -+ H=+—H: and RMB8,995,045,000 (December 31, 2022: RMB9,711,178,000)
N B #1,956,779,000 7G ) i IR respectively.

5 2L R H bt I e 32 A0 g A
Fy N R M 8,995,045,000 76 ( — %
o+ ZAZt—H AR
9,711,178,0007C) ©
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5. JHEER @

(a)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Other segment information

I
ik s
MEEE  EEXE St st
Investment
Property property  Setvices and
development operation others Total

ANRHTFL ARETE ARWTT ARETT
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO

AN EE LK Amounts included in the measure of

segment assets:

ZECERE 2023
B (WE) Additions to non-current assets (Note) 476082 10,248,855 95,856 10,820,793
“ROTHE 2022
INE BB () Additions to non-current assets (Note) 144,806 11,342,669 165,003 11,652,478

Wik o SRARBEREYE WX K
[ B seAfl ~ IV E A R
o

Wk 28 B A B o i 1 2 6 R
b EBAE RN A B A
EMEGSHENER > Ha T
R O B AR B A A B
B TR AR SE R RE AR B A AR B
B BEVE R B
e P8 S - KT S TR
KFESEE) - HABIOA ~ HoAtlicas
Kt - E%ﬁm%%&ﬁ e
T A LA 2 0GR i 2 7 1 R Y
WEREE () -

EHEEERERAR

Note: Amounts represent additions to investment properties, property, plant and

equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
profit, the CODM is provided with information concerning the
Group’s consolidated amount of interests in associates and related
share of results, interests in joint ventures and related share of
results, change in fair value of investment properties and upon
transfer to investment properties, change in fair value of other
derivative financial instruments, other income, other gains and
losses, finance costs from borrowings, depreciation and amortisation
and impairment losses (if any) which are not allocated to operating

segments.
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5. AER @) 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) WA - HE > BEKA (b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,
AR assets and liabilities
I 20000000
DROEE DE T
2023 2022
ARWFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue
AERICA Segment revenue 186,930,202 257,046,414
3 R S A 2 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (6,193,627)  (6,481,307)
LERIRA Consolidated revenue 180,736,575 250,565,107
i Profit
i il Segment profit 24,528,297 46,812,618
HAbgA Other income 1,508,598 1,949,742
HoAtb #5 K18 Other gains and losses 819,202 (36,565)
T BRI AP AR Fair value gain upon transfer to investment
properties 13,254 -
VS~ L/E UNSEIEL 11| Change in fair value of investment properties 1,998,986 2,887,575
HAb AT SR T B THEE) Change in fair value of other derivative
financial instruments (40,919) (260,138)
R AR Finance costs (149,479) (158,193)
JREAG B ) 24 Share of results of associates 134,835 425,322
TENE A 2 dEss Share of results of joint ventures 1,419,023 996,152
e gy Depreciation and amortisation (302,276) (437,501)
RABLB % Unallocated expenses (5,200,219)  (6,356,811)
SR BRBL T A Consolidated profit before taxation 24,729,302 45,822,201
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5. ibER ) 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

178

(b) WA - B EEKRA
B H R ()

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities (Continued)

CERCEE SE
2023 2022
ANRWETFIL AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HE Assets
G Segment assets 449,483,963 511,926,300
BB AN TH BT Cumulative change in fair value of
investment properties 43,668,837 41,616,690
N EENGIlIE Interests in associates 15,399,336 15,904,823
WEEAENER Interests in joint ventures 16,052,277 13,281,430
8 78 #e A FAHFE A AL 2 i 4 Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI
g T H 6,639,807 8,108,525
TR R AT 5 Deposits paid for acquisition of
properties held for development 4,488,522 5,851,083
IR TE G Deferred taxation assets 11,389,985 11,217,441
firem T A Derivative financial instruments 458,300 366,499
QLEE Taxation recoverable 13,039,789 12,380,706
AN TR ARG 2 S ERE Financial assets at FVTPL 2,000 34,933
o AR S oAt Unallocated head office and other assets 139,784,059 166,085,986
HeEERH Consolidated total assets 700,406,875 786,774,416
fafit Liabilities
AR Segment liabilities 160,540,953 205,288,350
JREATBLIE Taxation payable 27,539,502 33,611,306
IEIERITE A 1A Deferred taxation liabilities 17,042,212 14,812,062
SRAT B H A 3K Bank and other borrowings 181,342,018 194,802,931
et Senior notes 11,303,543 13,205,169
fit4m T A Derivative financial instruments 384,268 1,192,004
HibfirE &R/ TA Other derivative financial instruments 741,324 711,256
A B AR B A & Unallocated head office and other liabilities 65,054,788 89,972,248
Fra ARAME Consolidated total liabilities 463,948,608 553,595,326

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E 4 = B # % 5 R A &)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(¢) Revenue from major product and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
properties sold, properties self-developed or under subleases for

investment and services provided:

I

e = SN e
2023 2022

ARHFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

EEaE g Property development segment 155,857,211 227,017,339
RS S5 e HoAth Services and others 11,943,543 11,667,957
BEAHRA Revenue from contract with customers 167,800,754 238,685,296
AU A Rental income 12,935,821 11,879,811
M Total revenue 180,736,575 250,565,107
d M5 (d) Leases
TERCSE E
2023 2022
ANRWETFIL AREFIC
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEE it For operating leases:
1] 7 AR B AR (RS ARIE T Lease payments that are fixed
AL E ) (including those under subleases) 12,386,428 11,558,803
AN e — 8 Bl L i Variable lease payments that do not
] S5 R B 2k IE depend on an index or a rate 549,393 321,008
T 2R i 405 Total revenue arising from leases 12,935,821 11,879,811
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5. JHEER @ 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
) HulmER (e)  Geographical information
TR B S B The following table sets out information about the Group’s revenue
2 W2 T AR AR S BT A v I8 i ) from external customers by cities in the PRC, based on the location
SR B AR AR B AN F A at which the properties are sold, properties are invested or under
EORL o JE D G R R R BT subleases and services are provided. Information about its non-
IR BT - current assets is analysed by geographical location of assets.
AR A Jem
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
I ZECTHE i R
2023 2022 2023 2022

ARWTFL ARETT  AREFL ARKTT
RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB000

RN Zhejiang 26,745,620 52,189,904 28,767,776 27,114,854
S Chengdu 20,298,566 18,802,372 27,896,930 25,011,543
B #% Husu 18,468,646 12,382,205 37,700,332 31,638,799
Ed Chongqing 17,981,985 25,782,500 41,108,607 38,855,460
it Xizheng 16,297,229 11,541,197 3,832,219 3,225,115
A Hefei 11,857,124 9,430,543 3,839,296 3,048,107
Jem Beijing 11,669,112 13,847,652 27,807,257 26,143,364
K Tianjin 7,995,138 10,965,517 2,613,568 974,774
bite] Jinan 7,829,116 13,982,015 4,109,020 3,063,815
i3 Wuhan 7,351,885  9456,628 8,541,268 6,716,816
# Dongbei 7,078,524 16,091,816 3,513,118 3,697,094
Bk Jiaodong 6,285,714 12,800,158 1,854,162 1,942,097
JE& Guangfo 5,002,598 10,335,371 4,951,163 4,674,828
A Fujian 5,368,950 13,100,470 3,959,025 3,695,371
B ECA T Other cities in the PRC 10,506,368 19,856,759 39,333,448 47,206,526

180,736,575 250,565,107 239,827,189 227,008,563

Btk JERENE E A S SR T H R iRE Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred taxation
ﬁﬁ%é ° assets.

A 4 BEL B — R 7% 5 AT A8 2 A No revenue from transaction with a single external customer

NZEAE AR 0% | o amounts to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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6. JABBA 6.  OTHER INCOME
EEEee—— 0000
TERCOEE R COF
2023 2022
AREFLE AR¥TL
RMB’000 RMB’000
FLEHA Interest income 874,358 1,302,279
R (Bt ita) Government subsidies (Note a) 171,438 242,539
AN (FEED) Penalty income (Note b) 105,251 108,977
AR (B aEe) Consultancy income (Note ¢) 276,052 180,616
METH A Sundry income 81,499 115,331
5t Total 1,508,598 1,949,742
WRE - Notes:
(a) B2 ARG R T v R R B o B A S b I A% (a) The amount represents the grants received from the relevant PRC
G A E AL T 55 R G o HA government to encourage the investments in specific regions and rental
B G A R 4F TR P O R ME AR T AN 4R housing market development. The subsidies are unconditional and granted
[ - on a discretionary basis to the Group during the year.
(b) el B AT S E B R R (b) It represents penalty received from property buyers who did not execute
R IR R R W R i AL WO 40 sales and purchase agreements on property sales and from tenants who early
4o terminated tenancy agreements.
(c) B4 REAE S B B R TE 1) A £E E] Y (c) The amount represents the consultancy services provided to the Group’s
AR R A A RS =T SR joint ventures and associates and independent third parties in relation to the
RS o property development projects.
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7. Sfbods Kk it

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

I

2023 2022
ANBHTFE ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’000
RS YIE - BRI B S Loss on disposal and written-off of property,
JEitH plant and equipment (119,008) (355,145)
B 5 R 9 (B ) Net exchange loss (Note) (933,783)  (3,741,881)
RSP R SR S B TR Reclassification of fair value gains of hedging
AP A instruments from hedging reserve 929,886 3,721,941
[ i B 5T S B A i Gain on repurchase of senior notes and bonds 889,734 264,556
FHRERGERERBE AT Remeasurement gain on previously held interest
A R AR K in a joint venture and an associate and
H R B 2 R AR TR R net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 109,343 70,419
HoAth Others (56,970) 3,545
819,202 (36,565)

(S Rk PPN SR STNE SIS
JCL) BRI SRATAS R ~ SRAT i SRS (B 5B
TR AR A SR

8. WEMA

Note:

It represents exchange difference arising from the translation of bank balances, bank

borrowings and senior notes denominated in foreign currencies of Hong Kong Dollar

(“HKD”) or United States Dollar (“USD”).

8. FINANCE COSTS

2023 2022
ANRWETFIL AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SRAT T H A 2OR B Interest on bank and other borrowings (8,288,757)  (8,134,361)
CEt kNS 53 Interest expense on senior notes (538,459) (665,801)
(8,827,216) (8,800,162)
W R E Y R Less: Amount capitalised to properties under
BEMEN GRS development for sales and investment
properties under development 8,677,737 8,641,969
(149,479) (158,193)

A B i B AR Y U A S Y — PR

P NERZF =+ A=1+—H
WG4 24% (B 74 4.10%)
MEARLLREE > 5TAR B EEN
o

182
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Borrowing costs capitalised arose on the general borrowing pool of the

Group and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4.24%
(2022: 4.10%) per annum for the year ended December 31, 2023, to

expenditure on the qualifying assets.
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

e = SN e
2023 2022

AR#TFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

BB E
TR
AN
EL IR A ) FEATL
T+ s

TN SE TR R AR A
RSB 5Ea)
- Hb (A (B 3ED)

Current tax

EIT (4,105,477) (8,600,870)
Hong Kong Profits Tax (96,056) (22,054)
Withholding tax on distributed earnings (404,891) (890,698)
LAT (2,626,249) (5,101,594)

(7,232,673)  (14,615,216)

Overprovision in prior years:

EIT (Note a) 175,175 541,253
LAT (Note b) 1,490,584 2,775,445

1,665,759 3,316,698

TEIER TR Deferred taxation
AT (H5E34) Current year (Note 34) (2,029,838)  (1,700,966)
(7,596,752)  (12,999,484)
Wt Notes:
(a) WU T % T 26T E MR S A (a) The assessment and computation of EIT payable in respect of certain subsidiaries
Bt FREA AR B E SE W > A IR which held completed property projects were finalised which differed from the
E RN AE S I R B AR R management’s estimation on EIT in prior years, resulting in an overprovision of
A BRI A SE T3 B AR M - B EIT in respect of prior years. During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
FoEEREFCHEF A= —HIE preferential tax rate has been granted to certain PRC subsidiaries for calculation of
AEHE S AT A B IR A A C AR R R EIT in prior years, resulting to an overprovision of EIT in respect of prior years.
BURFH AL F R R ETGB > HEAE
AR 2E A BLAE (AR
(b) HTYEEE MBS ERD THEE R (b) The actual appreciation amount of certain property projects had been finalised and

TURIEHE B GBI TERT - Hehs
AERT Al Rl S I A (LB 42 P 16t ) 3
(AR IR] > 2B AR 4P o 0 (i B 13
fH o

7o P A5 B AR At e SR B A 9 16.5% =t
B o

MR R B S BTBL ([P aBLik )
B A SE B A3 BLIE BB > 7% 70 4 4F
A RS A R BRI f259

AR T o B AR ) T B R B A
AR G AR {1 A B2 A9 o B 4R 3E T AR
B o

the development plan for certain property projects had been revised in which the
revised estimated or final appreciation amount was different with the appreciation
amount made in prior years, resulting in an overprovision of LAT in respect of prior

years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profits.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible for
exemption from PRC EIT for both years.
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9. BifBLB )

AR BEBL B B e 4R 4 S A 2 T AR R I
R A A SR T -

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

2023 2022
ANREFLT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Al v 1 Profit before taxation 24,729,302 45,822,201
25% W) R SE PTG B EIT at 25% (6,182,326)  (11,455,550)
JEAG T N T BB R 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates 33,709 106,331
NG A8 b RN Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 354,756 249,038
FEBLIET 5 A w4 pRB 21 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
B S 28 ([t 5ka) tax purposes (Note a) (831,625) (801,930)
SUBTEIN & BB AR BB 522 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 247,405 181,446
T (AR LAT (2,626,249)  (5,101,594)
- b 8 R ) S S 2 Tax effect of LAT 656,562 1,275,398
AR R Overprovision in prior years 1,665,759 3,316,698
RMERR TSI WS BB 2 Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
not recognised (253,446) -
RSB TE s R A B HS  2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (546,076) (451,296)
IR R MR ERE RN 2 Tax effect of recognition of tax losses
previously not recognised 1,941 621
I H SR A RERR Y Bl TE S 18 Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised 28,109 36,263
A B B R A BLIE T Effect of tax exemption and preferential rates
P BB granted to certain PRC subsidiaries 155,631 181,505
BRI IRAR A BA R BHIRL (D) Withholding tax on retained earnings to be
distributed (Note b) (338,616) (626,120)
P HA R ERE R A8 2 BB A R B  Effect of different tax rates applicable to
NG R subsidiaries operating in other jurisdiction 33,989 16,184
JERTE IR B R R Tax exemption on reinvestment of
dividend previously declared 3,725 73,522
RS Tax charge for the year (7,596,752)  (12,999,484)
FifaE Notes:
(a) A E B AR A R s R (a) The amount mainly comprises the tax effect of non-deductible corporate expenses and

B A O 2 ] BB 5 T )
VL 5 BT B i 2 ] S A B B

R IR AT IR BB B -

(b) R R R i R A7 L R A 28 P 1
At 67 O BB AN B AL A IR AL A0 2 BE) S

Fiik2008112%5 - 5% % B FEANBL L% 8 A

BB N R R B D 259 1 B s
JE AT o 3% BUREAR AR A A T B B

O B AR R 488 46 0 FELAT B AL

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g j# &= 2 2 i% 4 R

fair value surplus of certain assets acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries of the

Group and the expenses of certain subsidiaries in excess of the allowable deduction

limits in accordance with the relevant tax regulations.

(b) According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong

Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the

Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income” and Guoshuifa 2008

No. 112, where the Hong Kong resident company directly owns at least 25% of the

capital of the Mainland company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable.

The amount represents the withholding income tax provided on the undistributed

profits of certain PRC subsidiaries during the year.
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10. & 10. DIVIDENDS
- = SN S
2023 2022
AR#FE ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS IR YIRS, - Dividends recognised as distribution during
the year:
TERR . = A AR Interim dividend recognised in respect of
R RM0.3270 (ZF 24 2023 of RMB0.32 (2022: RMB0.33)
ANR#0.3370) per share 2,109,362 2,072,632
TR % = AR AR BRI Final dividend paid in respect of 2022 of
TN RWo0.800 (ZF AR RMBO0.80 (2022: in respect of 2021 of
CER AR 2370) RMB1.23) per share 5,073,364 7,475,617
7,182,726 9,548,249

11.

AHEE—Z -+ A =T—HILFE
FER AL > NE¥1,134,614,000CE
VB &IRA > FH A ER T _=FN
H = 4—HRARAE 250,050,403 LR 42
Rty SZA5T o

ABEE—Z =N H = A IEE
IR > NRH631,168,0000CE AR 4
AT > FIERI BN = FFE A /N\H
PAARATINT75,531, 541 IBEH 0L LA S04+

R IAE AR > AN ) E B R R IR R
BT CSHFFT A= HIEFERR
MR N R ¥ 1,516,104,0007C > AR
Wo2300 (R —F =+ A =1 —
HIE BT EE) (CF 4 {2
CECCES A= HIEEERN A
e 2N R H5,025,234,0007C > BERE AR
0.807C) » e ZE 155 Mk RO M Jie JE BRAEL 47 K
et -

(32

AN VAT N IREA A FCRE A T 2
TS TSR DAT i

11.

In respect of the final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2022,
RMB1,134,614,000 has been paid in cash and the remaining portion has
been settled by way of 250,050,403 new fully paid shares of the Company
on August 21, 2023.

In respect of the interim dividend for the period ended June 30, 2023,
RMB631,168,000 has been paid in cash and the remaining portion has
been settled in form of 175,531,541 new fully paid shares of the Company
on February 8, 2024.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMB1,516,104,000, representing RMBO0.23 per share, based on the
number of shares in issue as at December 31, 2023, in respect of the year
ended December 31, 2023 (2022: final dividend of RMB5,025,234,000,
representing RMB0.80 per share, in respect of the year ended December
31, 2022) has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2023 2022
AR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHIA AR IR AR S 2 A Y Earnings attributable to the owners of
A0 A NS B the Company for the purposes of calculation of
basic and diluted earnings per share 12,850,011 24,362,046
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11.

12.

W B ) 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
“E =g CF
2023 2022
TR THM
‘000 ‘000
liidh g Number of shares
TS5 A R A 2 ) 5 4 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TIHET- 4% for the purpose of calculation of
basic earnings per share 6,221,419 5,965,061
BLDLR 45 TEUAH BH 2 35 R T 1 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
L2 in respect of
— IR RE R BB A 54 Jgh — Share options and share awards 12,984 45,175
R R TR 25 M 5 7 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T8 for the purpose of calculation of
diluted earnings per share 6,234,403 6,010,236

A A 4 BE PR AR B 28 A P B
)38 AR S BUS A BR — 2 B %
REAARIEA S R R 03 B B T 3] AR RETE 3K
AR FIREA WM R SR -

BE-_Z-=Ft+H=1t—HILEE
T A B Rl 5 4 S Sl A A A B v
BFGEHEZA -

Bk

AL LR HE HES A E LT EE
i A S - HERRIRIR—
Je R 8 A 2204 - ZEEHMHEQS
H£19 2309 3 15 5T I FE B A B 1 3K AR
AL 2 0 R A BEAR ATk -

7452 T R L 2 B o T A W B > DR
RITEHEEUEEEEE AN IR
WeaHE o FHE A A0 MR 5 R AR 8 (EL A AR
B/ SORTE T RELI 45 oR IR L 0 3 2
R -

12.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g #f & @ % % B R 2 &)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the calculation
of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have been arrived at
after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company by an independent

trustee under the share award scheme of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, certain share award schemes

are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various apartments and retail stores under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 month to 20 years. The leases of retail stores contain variable
lease payment that are based on 1% to 30% of sales or minimum annual

lease payment that are fixed over the lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end

of lease term.
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12. BEWE @) 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
T B
REYE BEWHE FCE
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
ARMTLT  AREFT AR¥FFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NE FAIR VALUE
WoE T TAE—A—H At January 1, 2022 144,458,555 30,306,735 174,765,290
NE Additions 3,779,245 7,112,529 10,891,774
7R R 2 i Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
e MEE (FHE36) acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) - 673,967 673,967
HERE AT (F5E39) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) (2,775,600) — (2,775,600)
TR R 3 Transfer from PFS 1,763,767 - 1,763,767
WY - W R Transfer from property, plant and
(Fi5E13) equipment (Note 13) 359,162 - 359,162
LS B R (M ak14) Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 14) 265,485 - 265,485
[Lg Transfer 14,378,587  (14,378,587) -
R PR Z A TER Net increase in fair value recognised in
Bruyjipei profit or loss 447,032 2,440,543 2,887,575
RIS Early termination of leases (1,160,360) - (1,160,360)
WoE At H=1+—H At December 31, 2022 161,515,873 26,155,187 187,671,060
NE Additions 1,753,706 8,200,235 9,953,941
H BRI N ] (FFEE39) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) (360,900)  (1,495,441)  (1,856,341)
[LEJEERT (IR /E S Transfer from PFS 2,171,277 - 2,171,277
WA EYIE - RS Bkt Transfer from property, plant and
(FffE13) equipment (Note 13) 338,306 = 338,306
e AR (FFE14) Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 14) 543,158 = 543,158
(87 Transfer 7,329,738 (7,329,738) -
TR AR AR P RERR 2 A TR RY Net increase in fair value recognised in
TR profit or loss 973,073 1,025,913 1,998,986
RRLHE Early termination of leases (124,146) = (124,146)
HAEEHTE Disposal (944,610) = (944,610)
RoEZZFE T H=+—H At December 31, 2023 173,195,475 26,556,156 199,751,631
BE_Z =+ H Unrealised gain on property revaluation
=+—HIHEEFIABL 2 included in profit or loss for the year
W2 Al R B ended December 31, 2023 1,352,062 1,025,913 2,377,975
BE-Z "4+ H Unrealised gain on property revaluation
=+ —HIHEEF ARG Z included in profit or loss for the year
VE SR ES ended December 31, 2022 216,564 2,440,543 2,657,107
WRE - AR EEE = AT E C MG - BURY Note: The transfer from PFS, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
EMECEE AR EREYE - investment properties were made since there was a change in use as evidenced by the

S~ R i A A B ol P A g 4

inception of operating leases to third parties.
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12.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g #f & @ % % B R 2 &)

BHWE )

B FEIGOR B o P H AP
{E 2 51 B C % BB Y36 45 A 4R
BERRMYIE K B 5 = E AE AR Y
*

ALEEAERRNCERBEYE - &
THE L EEREFEEYERHE A
SBA 2 (B3 A e B A 4 S e B
19— I SL A B SR AG (BRI — AT 8
ATt 1 1 TSR T A7 PR ) (58— K
AR 1) CHOR AR B st B 0L S 09 £ (8
A A SR A ) AT A
ETESEIE SN LE E kv < /E RSN (k7
5 W3~ WSS B DA B E Y
O FEIRFR AR — RSP SAHE it ¢ A
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12.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are all situated in the PRC. The completed
investment properties which are stated at fair value as at the reporting date
included properties developed by the Group and properties leased from

third parties for sub-lease purpose.

The fair values of the Group’s self-developed completed investment
properties, certain leasehold land and investment properties under
development at the reporting date have been arrived at the basis of
valuation carried out by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited (“Savills”), a firm of independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group, who have appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The fair values of PES, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets transferred to investment properties during the year have also been
arrived at the basis of valuation carried out at the dates of transfer by
Savills.

The fair values of the Group’s remaining leasehold land and investment
properties under development at the reporting date have been arrived on
the basis of valuation carried out by the directors with reference to the basis

of valuation carried out by Savills or based on recent transaction prices.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use. The fair values of certain investment
properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid on accrued operating lease

income to avoid double counting.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined by the valuers

on the following basis:

Completed properties — arrived at by capitalising the net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary

potential income of the respective properties.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Properties under development — valued on the basis that they will be
developed and completed in accordance with the latest development
proposals and taken into account the construction costs that will be
expended to complete the development as well as developer’s profit margin

to reflect the quality of the completed development.

All of the Group’s property interests in leasehold land and buildings to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair

value model and classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Lease liabilities of RMB14,133,694,000 (2022: RMB13,907,263,000)
are recognised with related investment properties under subleases
of RMB14,823,669,000 as at December 31, 2023 (2022:
RMB15,097,955,000). The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor and the relevant leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.
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12. BEWE ) 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
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The Group’s investment properties are grouped under Level 3 fair value
hierarchy and there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both
years. The following table gives information about how the fair values of

these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation

190

FIIAT techniques and inputs used).
SR 7630 BREPRENE
Completed investment Investment properties
properties under development
L
“FCCE CERCCE ZECSE CECCE
2023 2022 2023 2022
AREFL ARETFLT  ARBFZ  ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
B — B L Western China — Shopping malls 55,842,900 54,170,100 5,856,557 4,813,191
HR B T — N B Western China - Apartments 3,597,549 3,803,990 803,000 -
T - A Western China — Apartments under sublease 2,100,278 1,907,895 - -
S — O Pan Bohai Rim — Shopping malls 23,441,500 20,887,000 2974294 3,809464
RN E - A Pan Bohai Rim — Apartments 215,200 146,900 329,000 -
RN R - ER AR Pan Bohai Rim — Apartments under sublease 3,705,142 3,521,881 = -
RIL=fM - Yangtze River Delta — Shopping malls 56,888,460 52,044,130 7,539,140 8,117,703
RIZAN-NE Yangtze River Delta — Apartments 5,846,200 4,480,700 932,000 -
RIZAM-ERAE Yangtze River Delta — Apartments under sublease 3,809,078 4,437,083 = -
RIZAM AR Yangtze River Delta - Office 705,200 1,761,500 = -
i E — O Central China - Shopping malls 8,067,400 6,368,300 1,708,690 3,758,381
HEepi - A8 Central China — Apartments 1,513,400 1,089,000 143,000 -
Hpi s - EHAE Central China — Apartments under sublease 1,110,982 884,484 = -
R — B D Southern China - Shopping malls 130,200 - 6270475 5,656,448
HEphE - Southern China — Apartments 1,748,700 1,290,300 - -
HRE - AR Southern China - Apartments under sublease 4,098,186 4,346,010 = -
R - A% Southern China - Office 375,100 376,000 - -
Ht Total 173,195,475 161,515,873 26,556,156 26,155,187

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E 4 = B # % 5 R A &)
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12. BEWE @) 12.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

CRRARAENEAATRESARS

Significant unobservable inputs for completed investment properties

Ml HRETRANGS gt il 6 EETHE
Term yield Reversionary yield Discount rate Monthly term rental Reversionary rental
(k) (i) (Hike) (Hita) ()
(Note a) (Noteb) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Notee)
I I I I 0202 000
I S S B e S S e S S s S S R e S S
203 222 203 222 2003 22 2023 A2 2023 A0
(7 # - # (&
Pk BFIX BEK HFE
Wit A V- i Y )
(RMB (RMB (RMB (RMB
persgm. persgm. persqm.  persq.m
permonth)  permontl)  permonth)  per month)
MEES- B0 Wesern Chima- Shopping malls — 3%-05% 25%-65%  35%-7%  3%-1% - - 39 9-34 0 %1 Y-
hE - A Western China - Apartments 45% 45% 5% 5% = - 36-100 38-105  28-120  32-100
PR -BHAE  Western China - Apartments under
sublease - - - - 5.5% 5.3% - - M-8 -4
SR -l Pan Bobai Rim
- Shopping malls 3o-0%  33%-6% 35%-05%  4%-65% - - %6-35 65364 27-617  2%3-597
Rl PanBohai Rim - Apartments 45% 45% 5% 3% - - 58-63 03-69 38-19 60-76
SR HE —BHAR  Pan Bobai Rim - Apartments under
sublease - - - - 0% 0% - - 36-18 87
RI=FM-BHHL  Yangue River Delta- Shopping malls 3% -6% 3% 6% 33%-65% 35%-63% - - B-33 =28 213505 162498
RIZEM-AE  VangueRiver Delea- Apartmens  35%-45% 375%-45%  4%-5% 475%-5% = - 36-112 0 38-141 44-234 0 56-209
RIT=filf- /A% Yangtse River Delta - Aparements
under sublease - - - - 5%-65%  5%-65% - - %027 T6-207
RIZEN-BAZ  Yangue River Delta- Offce 3050%-4% 3.25%-45% 375% -43% 3.75%-5% - - BB G-18 0 9-106 49-108
EflE- B0 Central China - Shopping mall 4%-0%  4%-0% 45%-65% 45%-065% - - 98-166 59-168  200-424  198-426
BHBE-RE  Cenunal China - Aparemenss 45% 45% 5% 5% - - -0 B0 -6 -7
R -EHAE  Cenoral China - Aparcments under
sublease - - - - 0% 6% - - % 5
HEfE-AE Souchern China - Apartments 4% 4% 45% 45% = - 55-87 02-89 60-90 67-90
FE-#HAT  Southern China - Apartments under
sublease - - - - 6%-65% 6% - S O N 0
FElE-HLE  Southern China- Office 3.5% 3.5% 4% 49 = - 46 4 0 0
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12. $EWE @) 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
FRPEEMRNERATRE 8N
Significant unobservable inputs for investment properties under development
HERERE AT (3753
Gross development value Developer's profit Discount rate
(Htikf) (Writg) (Hrith)
(Note ) (Note g) (Note h)
SRCER 0 CRoTE ZRCEE Rk CROEE SRk
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
VAT S T v
RMB'million RMB million
Gile Tl e Western China ~ Shopping malls 947-2630  450-1813 5% - 15% 3%-15% 4.25%-475% 435%-4.75%
R - A E Western China — Apartments 210-480 il 5% - 10% BN 435%-5% ENil
TAniGsE ~ 4l Pan Bohai Rim - Shopping malls 2,065 1,236 10% 10% 475% 435%
RiiHE - A Pan Bohai Rim - Apartments 142-265 Nl 5% - 10% il 4335% ENil
RILZAM -0 Yangeze River Delta - Shopping malls 468 - 2,695 465-1,880 8% -15% 5%-20% 435%-475% 4.35%-4.75%
RII=AN-A% Yangtze River Delta - Apartments 136-425 BN 5%-10% ENil 435% Nl
RIZMH-HA%  Yangtze River Dela - Office 468 &Nl 5% &Nl 435% Nl
R - R0 Central China - Shopping malls 143-1,624  1392-1,609  10%-15%  15%-20% 475%  435%-4.15%
BfR-AE Central China - Apartments 46-129 ENil 15% ENil 475% BNl
EHE - L Southern China — Shopping malls 8453912 1,067-3,791 10% - 15% 5% - 15% 435%  4.35%-4.75%
WRE © Notes:
(a) AR A R B 117057 2 4 8 K eT e (a) Term yield has taken into account of yield generated by market average selling price
SEMTB T B R A R s 3 > AR il and the market average rental from comparable properties and adjustment to reflect
B DL AR BB (EBAR Y T35 R - 4 the lower market risk for the term value. The higher the term yield, the lower the fair
Bl B - APEBE - value.
(b) ﬂﬁ‘éiﬂ%ﬂ%%ﬁ%%ﬁé?ﬂm%%ﬁﬁﬁ (b) Reversionary yield has taken into account of yield generated by market average
B by T Y A0 4 AR Y g2 % selling price and the market average rental from comparable properties and
AR AR > DU MR b O T A B IR adjustment to reflect the conditions of the shopping malls and apartments. The
% o I BR T RT AL A AR B AT (E B higher the reversionary yield, the lower the fair value.
(©) BB R R AR R B IR o BB R (c) Discount rate has taken into account of the net profit margin and inflation. The
AFAHBAL o higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
(d) BREALR S H 2 ek A A HER d) Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from the rental as stated in the existing
%g@ WG o B H R - AT rental agreements. The higher the monthly term rental, the higher the fair value.
B o
(e) AT REE T AL T LA 3 T R 4 B0 (e) Reversionary rental is derived from the market rentals from comparable properties or
R 1 e T 31 ) FEL 4 o T B EE RT L the rental as stated in the latest rental agreements. The higher the reversionary rental,
RS the higher the fair value.
() VAR 5% e 1l 8 e {6 (B % i 2 T EL Y (6) Gross development value on completion basis has taken into account of location
S T S A A B R R > o e R and individual factors such as frontage and size, between the comparables and the
I o HEEEFRABE (B » A PE B property. The higher the gross development value, the higher the fair value.
(€3} D2 T8 11 AR 2% TR ] B b 32 5 R 3 (g)  Developer’s profit has taken into account of the comparables land transactions and
?g HEE o BHEERT RO o AT M progress of the property. The higher the developer’s profit, the lower the fair value.
(h) A B R 2 R B 7l 35 AT A B o J B R (h) Discount rate has taken into account of the prevailing market interest rates. The
o AFERE o higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
(1) (1) The fair value of remaining investment properties is based on recent transaction

IR F B G A TE TSR A 2 5 1
HETIE

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g j# &= & # % & R 2

al

price.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

)
R Lilzan ]
WREE  WEE Ry REEE  REREE it
Structure Leasehold Equipment
and leasehold Hotel  land and Motor and
improvement  properties  buildings vehicles  furniture Total

NEHTE ARRFE ARKTE ARKTZ ARRTZ ARETZ
RMBUO)  RMBUY)  RMBUW)  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUW

ik

e S |

K

FRIEHE AT ER RAR
(Hi3k36)

R AR (H330)

BREEREDE ()

fildh

ik

Sy Bt [ el
R

HERBAT (ko)
ERTRENE()
i

1 et g s |

Zitli&

e St S
R

R AR (H3E30)
HRshEnE ()
fits

R
QS 2 <l
R

R (o)

R REE ()
R

e St o o e
(A

e St 2 o o e

S S oyl

(COST
At January 1, 2022 030497 138,771 1,531,856 066,217 895,601 4,510,002
Additions - - 252,809 1,930 47514 302,293
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition

of subsidiaries (Note 36) - - - - 1,302 1302
Disposal of subsidiaies (Note 39) - - - (214) (1,933) (2,147)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 12) - (392910 - - - (392916)
Written off (402,894) - - - - (402,894)
Disposals - - (12,109) (1L,158) (143 454) (166,717)
At December 31,2022 27,003 992,855 1,772,560 56,775 799,00 3848883
Additions - - 830,746 1,041 18,005 849,792
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) - - - (427 (3,866) (4,293)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 12) = Q07,713)  (158,047) - - (365,760)
Disposals (53,683)  (525,633)  (401,627) (7938) (90,767 (1,079,648)
At December 31,2023 173,920 259509 2,043,632 9451 mae 348974
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At Jancary 1, 2022 6T BN 1648 04T SOLA0 860948
Charge for the year 28967 16,608 143,938 3,758 125,187 319,058
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) - - - (79) (1,363) (1,442)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 12) - (337549 - - - (33,754)
Written off (38493) - - - - (38493)
Eliminated on disposals - - (1114 (10436) (16,324) (27.874)
At December 31,2022 2,171 96,774 307,272 £,716 609,550 1,078:483
Charge for the year 20,599 2218 90,313 2,656 83,298 201,084
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) - - - (158) ,715) 2873)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 12) = (18,23) (9,219) = = (27.454)
Eliminated on disposals (8,000) (87,487) (114,367) (5,540) (,177) (220,571)
At December 31,2023 3,770 15,270 273,999 40,674 084,956 1,048,609
CARRYING VALUES
At December 31,2023 140,150 24239 1,769,633 8,711 37,506 2,200,305
At December 31,2022 206,432 896,081 1,465,288 13,0599 189540 2,770,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated

residual values at the following rates per annum:

Hotel properties Over the estimated useful lives of 40 years
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease terms of the land on
buildings which buildings are erected, or 5%

Structure and leasehold ~ Over the shorter of the lease term or estimated

improvement useful lives of 10 years
Motor vehicles 20%
Equipment and 33%

furniture

The hotel properties and buildings are all situated on lands in the PRC.
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14, {IRER A 14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
ML iiNEIES Ak
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total

ABBTL  ARETL  ARKEFL
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

WA COST

WoE - —HF—H—H At January 1, 2022 802,026 1,073,045 1,875,071

B ACEYE (k12) Transfer to investment properties (Note 12) (196,475) (110,681) (307,156)
WoERZZHFFZH=+—H At December 31, 2022 605,551 962,364 1,567,915

R EYE (12) Transfer to investment properties (Note 12) (140,918) (523,048) (663,966)
HeE Disposal (210,446) = (210,446)
WEEC AT H=+—H At December 31, 2023 254,187 439,316 693,503

Zatines ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

S bt S < < At January 1, 2022 44,587 134,130 178,717

GREEAS Charge for the year 21,645 59,552 81,197

B S R (M aE2) Transfer to investment properties (Note 12) (22,609) (19,062) (41,671)
MWoE - —HF+"H=+—H At December 31, 2022 43,623 174,620 218,243

AEBEHIBR Charge for the year 19,611 29,478 49,089

R 2 BOEYE (M 12) Transfer to investment properties (Note 12) (15,481) (105,327) (120,808)
HE Disposal (32,590) - (32,590)
WZEZZEFZH=1+—H AtDecember 31,2023 15,163 98,771 113,934

HR I CARRYING VALUES

NoETZEFTA=Z+—H At December 31, 2023 239,024 340,545 579,569

WoE - HF+H=1T—H At December 31, 2022 561,928 787,744 1,349,672

RO EE SR
2023 2022

AR#TFE ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

BULEEEEME MEMAEABN  Expense relating to lease of low-value assets and

53 short-term leases 90,374 107,978
WRAAERA > AL ERE &A% A For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations. Lease
AHIE o HESALIE MR 128 A contracts are entered into fixed term of 12 months to 20 years. Certain
BO0LEFT L o £ Tl E A T A0 % DA office spaces were sub-leased to the tenants to earn rental income.
BHEUA -

BeAh > AR B AT E Y2 o AR In addition, the Group owns several hotel properties. The Group is the
By s (IS BEME ) i registered owner of these properties interests, including the underlying
A A leasehold land.

£ 3% Annual Report 2023
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16.

[ 15. GOODWILL

At

Total

N RHFFIL

RMB’000

WAk COST

S S < e At January 1, 2022 3,838,796
IR Hh B B J 2 ) 7 A (FfE 3 9) Arising on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) (4039

R TERZECZEFTH=Z+—H At December 31, 2022 and 2023 3,834,757

A A R B A BRYRE 1 638 8

J0E A8 1) 41 00 2 v B M08
FEZ WA

RETHERENN  HEEIREL
AR 1 B e A LA RV SO A B I
Al > EEAEE RS - BR
i B B M RS ) o B e A B AR
KA B E T B I AT A R
JEW -

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note

16.

16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated
to several individual CGUs (being subsidiaries, engaging in provision of
property management service, data technology and medical/healthcare
service, acquired). The CGUs represent the lowest level within the Group

at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

B S R S —
2023 2022
AR#TFE ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000

b T B A PR )
(Mext 2 3 )

e

R RS

AfRHL

HEA

(e AR 2 FLAU 8 2

Beijing Xingruitong Management Consulting

Company Limited (“Beijing Xingruitong”) 221,831 221,831
Kineer Service 717,267 717,267
Yida Service 652,074 652,074
Baiyou Technology 863,666 863,666
Chongqing Youyou 161,658 161,658

Other subsidiaries engaged in
property management business 1,218,261 1,218,261

3,834,757 3,834,757

B EApEA - AR B B IYIE ~ R In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment, right-of-

ATTE ﬁ%%%?u&ﬂﬁﬁﬁLﬂ
MBI AS R R
PG -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g 4} & & 2 i& & R

use assets and intangible assets that generate cash flows together with the
related goodwill are also included in the respective CGU for the purpose of

impairment assessment.

YN
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIVES (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections primarily based
on the respective financial budgets of the CGU covering a five-year period
estimated, including the growth rates in revenue, the pre-tax discount
rates, estimated revenue, estimated gross profit, estimated operating
expenses, approved by management.

The discount rates reflect specific risks relating to each CGU. The growth
rates within the five-year period have been based on past experience and
management’s expectation of market development.

The following table sets out the key assumption on which management has
based on in its cash flow projections for the purpose of impairment testing
of goodwill arising on acquisitions at December 31, 2022 and 2023:

TR R g R LT HG B 2
Growth rate
within the Pre-tax

five-year period discount rate

REF =+ ZA=1—H
Jbm 2 i

e

R M s

R

R

(e 378 AR 2 A B

A

REFZ=F+ZHA=1+—H
JEmt B Bl

H AR

EEMH

R

HE

e 58 AR RS 2 A B

N

At December 31, 2022

Beijing Xingruitong 0% 14%
Kineer Service 12% 13%
Yida Service 4% 14%
Baiyou Technology 63% 18%
Chongqing Youyou 18% 18%
Other subsidiaries engaged in property

management business 1% -12% 14%
At December 31, 2023
Beijing Xingruitong 2% 13%
Kineer Service 8% 12%
Yida Service 7% 13%
Baiyou Technology 41% 20%
Chongging Youyou 11% 18%
Other subsidiaries engaged in property

management business 1% - 11% 13%

A (A LA 2 (R BB AR
BOA BB F AR A0 B 2 U B B A4 A
B > A B T R AR R R
T35 5% R A T -

A b 008 7 A A B A RS 1 5T
fhEEg > AL CR - ZF R
KT T H Z 1 B A R
(B o A i) 40 i A AR T« 5 3 R
B R AT ) & PR RE B B i s
FOH

Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash flow forecast included budgeted revenue and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

Based on the results of the above assessment evaluated by independent
professionally qualified valuers, the Group determines that there is
no impairment on goodwill as at December 31, 2023 and 2022. The
recoverable amounts are higher than its carrying amounts. Management
believed that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not result in impairment.

£ 3% Annual Report 2023
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BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

17. MEEE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
|

MEERAY
REFBGE  FTRYEA  BERIE 3

Property

management

contracts and
customer Licenses Software
relationship ~ and patents  and others Total
ARMFL  ARWTT  AR#TT  ARMFZ
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000

TN COST
WZEZZH—H—H At January 1, 2022 2,161,098 319,800 67,082 2,547,980
NE Additions - - 9,560 9,560
i Disposal - - (7,641) (7,641)
HEMRE AR (fE39) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) (6,603) - - (6,603)
RoZE-HEFZA=+-H At December 31, 2022 2,154,495 319,800 69,001 2,543,296
NE Additions - 17,060 - 17,060
WoEZZEFZA=H At December 31, 2023 2,154,495 336,360 69,001 2,560,356
a8 RnifE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
WZZE-_HF—H—H At January 1, 2022 126,993 6,055 11,511 144,559
R Charge for the year 168,129 29,246 8,000 205,375
HE Disposal - - (1,754) (1,754)
i R 2 ] (HFE39) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) (1,305) - - (1,309)
WoF-—EF-A=+—H At December 31, 2022 293,817 35,301 17,757 346,875
SEEEAE Charge for the year 172,064 29,530 2,573 204,167
REEZ=FE+"H=1—H At December 31, 2023 465,881 64,831 20,330 551,042
] CARRYING VALUES
WoE-ZEFAZ4—H At December 31, 2023 1,688,614 272,029 48,671 2,009,314
Qe S | Y B e | At December 31, 2022 1,860,678 284,499 51,244 2,196,421
AT A R AR o A A The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such intangible assets
TE R A T8 281 S A7 ] i 0 TS are amortised on a straight-line ranging from 8 to 15 years.
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18. TR A v WHE R 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
I 20000000
ST =4 S
2023 2022

ARMTFE  ARWTT
RMB000  RMB'000

BERA Cost of investments 12,666,770 13,170,812
T Goodwill 1,337,050 1,337,050
MG U A > FuBR E YU R

Share of post-acquisition profits, net of
dividend received 1,395,516 1,396,961

15,399,336 15,904,823

CF A A2
AR ES 40 -

WoECEEF A= —H o REEA
) ) HE A5 B 1S — A S s B Bl 2
Wrg ) o BRTE R FE A AR
#2,171,701,000 70 ( = F = 4« AR
2,112,682,000 75 ) & A\ R 773,137,000 70
(ZZ 24 NR¥1,363,499,00070)
HA T TR T 1 o A A 1Y
o TR R T (8 B FL T (B 2 R A A
EEMFHARER « REF AR TF
AR T H = BRI A W R
BRI ETHAH -

FORWE A v A B2
BB A AR AR BEARAF
(TR ) R R R A A
(THESRHF)) (Z B =4 © PI2EK MR
P /PO 2 B AT LA (75 % K
ALY ~ B (B 5 S 8 A R
7 (TR (VLM ) 1) B i DA AR R
AR ) (TR B DA 1) ) B BB Rk
BEERBIIT o BUT BT V0K B3 2 50
T A AR B P o A 2
BRPTR LS -

%S R R AR R I S A A B
BHRENAL -

Details of the principal associates as at December 31, 2023 are set out in
note 54(c).

At December 31, 2023, the interests in associates include an associate
which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with carrying amount
and fair value of RMB2,171,701,000 (2022: RMB2,112,682,000) and
RMB773,137,000 (2022: RMB1,363,499,000), respectively. It’s fair
value is determined based on the quoted market bid price and the directors
of the Company consider the difference between the carrying amount
and its fair value is not material to the Group. The remaining balances of
interests in associates are all unlisted companies at December 31, 2023 and
2022.

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information of Wuhan Qinglongxinrong Real
Estate Development Company Limited (“Wuhan Qinglongxinrong”) and
Beijing Chenxuan Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Beijing
Chenxuan”) (2022: Xi’an Tiandiguojishishangxiaozhen Real Estate
Development Company Limited (“Xi’an Tiandixiaozhen”), Gezhouba
(Hangzhou) Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Gezhouba
(Hangzhou)”) and Chengdu Shoukaishengtai Development Company
Limited (“Chengdu Shoukaishengtai”)), which are the material associates,
is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared in

accordance with IFRSs.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.
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BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

18. A A v WhESR )
R & A v A G R ()

BE-E=ZFHA=ZT—HIEE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

(Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2023

REEEHER TR

Wuhan Beijing

Qinglongxinrong Chenxuan

AR#TFL AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

E & Current Assets 5,751,398 1,384,162
B Non-Current Assets 30 70
Eh g Current Liabilities (3,481,254) (659,614)
FRiEE Non-Current Liabilities (400,000) =
A Revenue 2,256,234 2,144,614
A e B B A T 45 SRR Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 87,483 711,422

FEC D IRBE

Dividend distributed during the year -

A R B A A B R R

F%Y T B R B DR A R A (L ST -

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amounts of the interests in the material associates recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

RIETH RS TR
Wuhan Beijing
Qinglongxinrong Chenxuan
ARWTFL  ARWTI
RMB’000 RMB’000
/NP At 3 <V Net assets of the associates 1,870,174 724,618
ARSE B R 2 A RE Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests
HE 5 EL ] in the associates 49% 30%
AL A 2 T R R The Group’s share of net assets of the associates 916,385 217,385
AT CATR — B A Remeasurement gain on previously held interest
R A 1R in an associate 172,651 =
AL BRI A R R Y Carrying amount of the Group’s interests
R HI{E in the associates 1,089,036 217,385

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E 4 = B # % 5 R A &)
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18. TR A v WREDR () 18.
AW S A v B EREEE ()

WE-F At AT AR

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2022

PERMNE  EWH M) R E R
Xi'an Gezhouba Chengdu
Tiandixiaozhen ~ (Hangzhou) Shoukaishengtai

ABETT ARETT ARKFT
RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000

T Current Assets 607,616 2,995,919 3,789,298
EIT b2y Non-Current Assets - 904 131
E A fE Current Liabilities (268,588)  (1,659,610)  (1,932,902)
i Ey A Non-Current Liabilities - _ _
A Revenue 1,590,009 3,954,990 1,163,310

A FEE Ve 1) B A TR Wi SRR Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year

278,365 362,700 215,062

FECAIRE Dividend distributed during the year - - 100,000

AR BB B B i B R T
F) T TR B DR A 1 e A (L 36T -

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amounts of the interests in the material associates recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

PERMNE  EWH WM R E RS
Xi'an Gezhouba Chengdu
Tiandixiaozhen ~ (Hangzhou) Shoukaishengtai

ARWFE  ARETT ARETL
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

PN F 7 GG Net assets of the associates 339,028 1,337,213 1,856,527
AL NS N T 2 TR RE Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests

WERS EL in the associates

45% 30% 50%

RS RS TR Y Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in

M1 (8 the associates

152,563 401,164 928,264
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BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

18. JRAIRE A vl R (40)

MR 3 B K PR B 4 ] A B

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material

e = S e
2023 2022

AR#TFE ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

A B REA 1 O 180) ¥ 1) 2
AT (B S0) Wi A

ARG R T 2 v O R 2 9 R T

The Group’s share of (loss) profit and
total comprehensive (expense) income (129,549) 83,717

Carrying amount of the Group’s interests
in the associates 14,092,915 14,422,832

19. RABMARMHES

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

I

e S —E T
2023 2022

ARWTFE  ARWTT
RMB000  RMB'000

BEMA > LT
JERE AR A > SBRT U

Cost of investments, unlisted 13,200,742 11,033,834
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of
dividend received 2,851,535 2,247,596

16,052,277 13,281,430

REEZZHEF A= —HZEES

AR A B E 5 4(b) ©

B

Details of the principal joint ventures as at December 31, 2023 are set out

in note 54(b).
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TR B AR 4)

ERA BB TR
AT £ B S R B AL
ST FRATIR A 7] (1 RARIEAE 1) B
U B A LA 7 (T B ) (.
B AR A AR
(Mg ) RUETHER A A
(TRRUCHTHEL) - AR 1 W B B 3
AR (T S J) Bl R D
S B IR A ) (T LSRR ) ) 9
REBS YORHBEEARBIINT » LA RS VORY
2P A B B s e
W2 BB R ITR 2 4 -

A A B IO I RE SR A A S AR e B
BHEMALR -

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

Summarised financial information of Chengdu Longquanyi District Yidu
Rail City Development Company Limited (“Chengdu Yidu”) and Suzhou
Huahu Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Suzhou Huahu”)
(2022: Beijing Zhaotai Real Estate Development Company Limited
(“Beijing Zhaotai”), Wuhan Qinglong Real Estate Company Limited
(“Wuhan Qinglong”), Chengdu Yidu, Shenyang Hauxin Development
Company Limited (“Shenyang Hauxin”) and Beijing Longwanhuakai
Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Beijing Longwanhuakai”)),
which are the Group’s material joint ventures, is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the

joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in accordance with TFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.
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19. REBAEENRER 2
HAGECEMBEERME 2

BE-F_=F+"A=t+—HLHFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

(Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Longfor Group Holdings Limited

R AR L E
Chengdu Suzhou
Yidu Huahu
AR#TFL AREFIT
RMB'000  RMB’000
B G Current Assets 3,806,403 5,374,082
B G Non-Current Assets 813,303 132
B Current Liabilities (3,586,243)  (1,302,085)
ERTE B=K Non-Current Liabilities (408,200) -
FatEE KA EE RS The above amounts of assets and liabilities
LITFIEE - include the following:
REWE Investment property 764,489 _
BRPLEYE PUD 3,048,771 3,273,853
FRE B PFS 449,698 764,524
B B 5 B Cash and cash equivalents 285,499 474,366
Lt 3 58 4 i Other current financial assets 22,435 707,539
T A Current financial liabilities (2,401,617) (507,076)
aRIARE Contract liabilities (972,386) (795,009)
WA Revenue 2,270,091 5,661,686
A B U R A T i AR Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 448967 1,071,629

EHEEERERAR
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19. INMEBEEWHELR @) 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
BERGBMEMHERE ) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
BEZZFZ-=#+-A=+—HILEE For the year ended December 31, 2023 (Continued)
(#)
ol S R B A i £ TS R R AR Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
HIR B K A8 o5 A R T (A R carrying amounts of the interests in the material joint ventures recognised

in the consolidated financial statements:

JRAR R B AW
Chengdu Suzhou

Yidu Huahu

ABETL  ARKETT
RMB000  RMB’000

AN FERE Net assets of the joint ventures 625,263 4,072,129
REFENEEMCEZ AR ILH]  Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests 66% (FtE)
in the joint ventures (Note) 50%

A B A ZE Y RE i ) YR T Carrying amount of the Group’s interests

in the joint ventures 412,674 2,036,065
WERE - BT A A B B 1 S 2 B BOR — B0 & Note: All the relevant activities require approval by unanimous consent of all its
Hlt > FERBS A M A SR shareholders and thus the entity is regards as a joint venture.
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BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

19. REBAEENRER 2
HAGECEMBEERME 2

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)

BE-F- A=+t —HIHEE For the year ended December 31, 2022

206

emg RERE O ERE  BRER LREEER
Beijing Wuhan Chengdu Shenyang Beijing
Zhaotai Qinglong Yidu Huaxin Longwanhuakai
ARETFT  AREFT ARBFL  ARETT AREFx
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
B E Current Assets 7938706 5,329,764 5433940 3978886 1,013,348
iR Non-Current Assets 42,595 95 31,547 2409 17,089
WEE & Current Liabilities (1,085,812)  (3,941,836)  (4,725,145) (920,726) (638,504)
ERBE Non-Current Liabilities - (582,500) (570,000) (297 418) -
ik RAEEAE The above amounts of assets and
AR liabilities include the following:
fEE Investment property - - 20,221 - -
RETRENE PUD 17061 4125606 4883976 2,999,220 -
FRfEH & PFS 207,029 455,199 56,022 - 72,392
He LB 2% EY Cash and cash equivalents 412915 524,386 408,082 691,705 172,290
AR mEE Other current financial assets 6,877,614 15,198 52,035 266,667 577,866
hEeEAR Current financial liabilities (34,494)  (2,759,852)  (3,800,515) (229,657) (119,392)
AHARE Contract liabilities (147,319) (803,623) (759,026) (688,272) (187,201)
A Revenue 202,478 3,517,258 506,469 - 3,387,381
ERERA (B8 RATE  Profic (loss) and oral comprehensive
(b %) 4% income (expense) for the year 5,897 727,651 154,844 (6,368) 410,341

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E 4 = B # % 5 R A &)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

gtg=geaiil £ 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
HRAAENEMBEERE ) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
BE_Z -+ A=+—HILFE For the year ended December 31, 2022 (Continued)
(#5)
bl B R B A A A R R T R Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
B RS K A SR Y R T (B A B carrying amounts of the interests in the material joint ventures recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:
e
SIS KB TR A IR o AR
Beijing Wuhan Chengdu Shenyang Beijing
Zhaotai Qinglong Yidu Huaxin  Longwanhuakai
ARWTFE  ARBETE  AREFT  ARETFT  ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
REEEZFRE Net assets of the joint ventures 6,895,489 805,523 170342 2,763,151 391,933
AERRGENEL Proportion of the Group's ownership
P R R L interests in the joint ventures 25% 50% 66% 49% 25%
REARGEPENER Carrying amount of the Group's incerests
IR in the joint ventures 1,723,872 402,762 112,426 1,353,944 97,983
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BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

19. REBEFENHER @)

MR B A B K H 588 A S E AR )

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material

2023 2022
AR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
7R R A i ) 2 TS K The Group’s share of profit and total
comprehensive income 586,890 429,435
ASSE[E N A A 2 HE 25 1 R T (B Carrying amount of the Group’s interests
in the joint ventures 13,603,538 9,590,443

20. %A PR E A JE b 2 i W

20. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL

BEAR TR A P A 2R ASSETS AT FVTPL
Z A E
2023 2022
ARWFE  AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A (s WA T € ] Equity instruments at FVTOCI
MR TR
INEs < Listed investments:
— A T AR R 5 (FTa) — Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (Note a) 26,795 43,376
ELHHRE : Unlisted investments:
— W25 7B %5 (M atb) — Equity securities (Note b) 6,613,012 8,065,149
st Total 6,639,807 8,108,525
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BATPHZ AL AR KR 20. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/FINANCIAL

Wi TR 4N AR ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Z A E (1)

WRE - Notes:

(a) bl BRI E AR A TR (a) The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares of entities listed in
W o RGN A S TIEA > i Hong Kong. These investments are not held for trading, instead, they are held for
R R IR BT REA o long-term strategic purposes.

(b) bl FF bR 2 5 A AR R A FLE B (b) The above unlisted equity investments represent the Group’s equity interest in the
1A private entities.

R A AR 7 2 R R R 58 A e RR R S 4 The directors of the Company have elected to designate these investments

ENTEZ BB AL ARER in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-

FHZSREREHAERERBE N 2K term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not

WEATT > % 5 B P g S i s TS be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments for

8 7€ By A TAERE A LA 2 T AR long-term purposes and realising their performance potential in the long

run.

FE TR A T 45 1 4 A 22 18 4 Rl A Financial assets at FVTPL represents investments in financial products

BEAT I 4 2 AL issued by financial institutions.

B 21. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES

e 0000000
2023 2022

AR#FE ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

FRfEas ¥ PFD 8,518,159 9,555,265
IR R PUD 185,912,853 248,077,246
FRE R B PFS 60,348,149 67,402,581

254,779,161 325,035,092

BE_Z - =F1+_H=1T—HIEFE During the year ended December 31, 2023, there are additions to
%ﬁ%iﬂﬁ%ﬁi& A R #9,109,677,000 TG leasehold lands amounting to RMB9,109,677,000 (December 31, 2022:
CECCESTAZETH ARW RMB31,372,756,000).

31,372,756,0007T:) o

AR EHEF A= —H s RS As at 31 December 2023, the provision for write-down of PUD and PES to
TR B Fr A 6 W) SE RO 22 T B2 B 1 net realizable value amounted to RMB1,013,782,000 (2022: nil).
(BB 25 A R H1,013,782,000 70 ( =%
TR ) o
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22. HAbfERR 22. OTHER INVENTORIES

I 4000000000

Y ;3 G -

2023 2022

ARWEFE  AR¥TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R Construction materials 40,737 404,147

THE 5 K HAb Consumables and others 20,782 29,976

61,519 434,123

23. MEWCHR X B b MEMCHKIE ~ % 23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

& BB IH AND PREPAYMENTS
—ERC=F F o
2023 2022
ARWEFE ARTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 e IE (Bt 5Ta) Trade receivables (Note a)
—KFR% — Contract with customers 4,497,620 5,165,101
— 4 — Rental 98,041 281,677
4,595,661 5,446,778
HADMEN IR - R IR Other receivables, net of allowance for
(Bt 3ED) doubtful debts (Note b) 6,683,449 6,767,801
T 2 P A Advances to contractors 3,086,071 3,310,976
TEAF R (AR S HoA B TE Prepaid value added tax and other taxes 14,270,154 14,289,139
T R i 4 Prepayments and utilities deposits 10,044 5,102

28,645,379 29,819,796
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23, WMok B U b ROk B~ 4%

WL -

(a)

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
& BB I 40) AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Notes:
B ORI R B AR B e - (a) Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of properties, investment property
T BIRTS 305 - A B8 & Y UE i & operation and rendering of services. Considerations in respect of sales of properties
PR TE A B B e e S o b 2 are paid by customers in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase
Wi s > A RS R H s agreements. For investment property operation, rental income are paid by tenants
AR A R AR IEFE 2 3 At o ﬂﬁ?%%?%llﬁ( within two months from invoice date in accordance with the terms in the tenancy
R AR B IR A Wk A6 i agreements. Service income is received in accordance with the terms of the relevant
service agreements.
MWoEB - ZHE—H—H  RAREFSLH As at January 1, 2022, trade receivables from contract with customers amounted to
5 REMSCHIE s A R 13,600,681,0007C RMBS3,600,681,000.
DR B R e B B R s s o The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on dates of
1 251 1 & 5 HE M SR IE B AT delivery of goods and dates of demand notes.
L
TR TR AR
2023 2022
ARHTFT ARHFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
60 H A Within 60 days 3,183,144 4,143,512
61%180H 61 — 180 days 878,144 826,654
1814365 H 181 - 365 days 341,124 304,111
1524 1 -2 years 155,347 137,254
2534 2 -3 years 28,069 27,732
34 Over 3 years 9,833 7,515
4,595,661 5,446,778

(b)

RoFZ=F+ZA=+—H > A%EH
JRE WS 5 B T A B AR R T (L AR
"15‘263260800075(:55::¢ NS
5 2,426,168,000 7C ) 1 JE WL AR 3K A H
HHME RS - ﬁA Hﬁ G AR
H534,373,000 75 (=% = 4 © AR
476,612,00075) E @90 H 3 A EAHIEAR
B BEA > HNAZSERFEELEA
TE R RIFIRIT B AR e SR IB T4 -

A PRE SR 2 A AR B e~ Bt
WA TR G A R TR S - R
AR B LA E P — 4 A T A28 Y 45 JHUE
HERT S -

As at December 31, 2023, included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,632,608,000 (2022:
RMB2,426,168,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, RMB534,373,000 (2022: RMB476,612,000) had been past due 90
days or more and are not considered as in default as those balances are mainly with
those banks with good credit quality and pending for completing their mortgage

procedures.

(b) Other receivables mainly comprise rental deposits, receivables of refund of the
deposits for land auction, deposits for construction work, temporary payments and

miscellaneous project-related deposits paid which are refundable within one year.
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24. ME o B HE AR AR A

25.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g #f & @ % % B R 2 &)

EVg:50e T L]

REF SRR AT
L S BRSO B HOR (e
R B I E T SORK S LR Mt
(1 - AR BORBS AT R B - Bl
S 2 O 1 RO K
G B 7 BB TR A5
ot ) LA T <

ASEEE RS - %5 A s
ARE12MHH REE > BB REE
7 o

TG BT AR A% BT 5 B R
Bl

@ OISR ANR S E > &
FRHLI TRATIOE R TR AR
Pt miEis o R -F =
TZHA=1T—A » RN A
BNTF029%21.73%( ZF 24 ¢
0.25%2%0.35%) 71 & °

b MEFZ=ZFEFH=ZT—H
HRAE B R  f7E R % R
HISRAT IR P I SRAT A5 8 s AR
7,953,052,0007C ( &~ 4F ¢ AR
#7,501,793,0007C) » %4k B AT A
G EYEERIER - Kok
SRR B SR IE 2
WAL B & KB HEY) - 6
LR ERRNFEEL61% (ZF
AR 1 0.25%%0.35%) RTE

24,

25.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amounts are denominated in RMB
which is unsecured, interest-free, except for certain amount which bear
interest at commercial rates. All of the outstanding balances are repayable
on demand. The amounts due from non-controlling interests mainly
represented the advances to non-controlling shareholders and the amounts
due from associates and joint ventures result from the land costs paid on

their behalf for properties held under development for sales.

In the opinion of the directors of the Group, the amounts are expected to be
repaid within 12 months after the end of the reporting petiod and therefore

classified as current assets.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

(a)  Pledged bank deposits are denominated in RMB which mainly
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the mortgage
guarantees provided to customers. The deposits carry interest at
market rates ranging from 0.2% to 1.73% (2022: 0.25% to 0.35%)
per annum at December 31, 2023.

(b)  As at December 31, 2023, bank balances that are placed in
restricted bank accounts in accordance with the applicable
government regulations amounting to RMB7,953,052,000 (2022:
RMB7,501,793,000), such balances can only be applied in the
designated property development projects, of which most of the
balances are held for meeting short-term cash commitments and are
included in cash and cash equivalents. The balances carrying interest
at variable interest rates ranging from nil to 1.61% (2022: 0.25% to
0.35%) per annum.
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25. CILIET R BAT4iR K 25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND

B4 (#) CASH (Continued)

¢ WZEF-Ht+-HA=1+—H 4§ () As at December 31, 2022, bank deposits of RMB2,168,000 were
AN R 52,168,000 0 Z FR il > restricted mainly for the settlement of consideration payable for the
7 RS B R A A acquisition of subsidiaries.
R1E -

d) SRITHEG A SR ARERRAN (d)  Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
Bl KRB PR A =8 A L demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
G A o SRAT I B A7 34 A The interest rates on cash placed with banks ranged from nil to
REATE189%(“F 4 FF 1.89% (2022: nil to 1.5%) per annum.
1.5%) °

B = "
2023 2022

ARETFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

WA E AR ERITA7 3% An analysis of pledged bank deposits and

SRATEE B M4 bank balances and cash by currency:

— AR HE — Denominated in RMB 59,797,743 71,223,000
— DA eRHE — Denominated in HKD 382,310 746,904
— P ETHHE — Denominated in USD 242,677 654,391

60,422,730 72,624,295
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26. MEATMEZX B MEAT5Ed% ~ HMbBE 26, ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER
Aibok B Mt 3¢ PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES
2023 2022
AR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B ) B Ao T e e S B Trade payables and accrued expenditure
(Fff5Ea) on construction (Note a) 42,482,145 64,096,184
JEEAS 224 (Pt Ta) Bills payables (Note a) = 332,399
42,482,145 64,428,583
JEART I Dividend payables 2,109,362 2,072,632
R A T I e Y (B D) Other payables and accrued charges (Note b) 15,189,228 16,149,318
JREAST 34 (BB Value added tax payables 7,486,549 10,544,042
A AR S B A RO E Consideration payable within one year for
B A A fE acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries - 132,682
R A AT RE Consideration payable for business combination 332,929 575,360
67,600,213 93,902,617
W TR AR PR — A 2 Less: consideration payable due after one year
MERTAAE shown under non-current liabilities (1,268) (454,913)
BN BT R — R B Amount due within one year shown under
current liabilities 67,598,945 93,447,704

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #g 4} & & 2 i& & R
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26. MEATHRAK B AL SR 4R ~ U HE
bk B R B (a0)

WL -

(a)

(b)

2 B Ao UL AT S50 I Mt R 4 A S
LA T R AR IH B A B B S J9A
TR S B RR A N0 F R RAEAT - AR E
M A 5 B BBEORE DA AR BT A7 B £+
IR 5 B A o

LUF A A5 1R 5 50 T O A+
SEPRIR B H R A SR 4T H RO f
RIMT

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

26. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Trade and bills payables and accrued expenditure on construction comprise
construction costs and other project-related expenses which are payable based on
project progress certified by the Group. The Group has financial risk management

policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date

and issuance date of each bill, at the end of the reporting period:

I

RO TR
2023 2022
ABRHTIL AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
60H X Within 60 days 7,273,996 10,999,413
61%180H 61 — 180 days 6,428,339 13,357,249
181%365H 181 — 365 days 5,546,300 15,447,985
1524 1 -2 years 4,575,440 5,460,044
2F 3 2 - 3 years 1,024,799 1,316,826
A3 Over 3 years 539,735 723,234
25,388,609 47,304,751

Foft EA S R e 2 EE @RS EF (b) Other payables and accrued charges comprise mainly tax received and payable to the

BRSO AT BUR 9B -~ BB
LR TARR «

government on behalf of customers, accrued salaries and accrued staff welfare.
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28.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g #f & @ % % B R 2 &)

ARIA

AHAEFEIRY RN S HEIGHIE - A%
A 2 T S ik R — R 1 & P OB 4
EHNI30% E100% 1F F %4 o ARUEMES
& WETAREERERNE TYENY
SERAE T DL B 7R A R e M A
W RERT RIS o T 2RI R A B HERR
SR 40 B B BRI Wik 658 -

27

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities mainly represent the receipt in advance from
property sales. The Group normally receives 30% - 100% of the contract
value as deposits from customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreement. For certain properties sold to the contractors of the Group,
pursuant to the written offset agreement, the consideration of properties
is settled against the payables of construction service provided by
the contractors. The following table shows how much of the revenue

recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

C SEN: U -
2023 2022
ANBH#TFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SIAEY AR BEERINE R  Revenue recognised that was included in the
contract liabilities balance at the beginning
of the year 62,969,739 94,025,626

WEE - —H—H > AHAESES
N EE#5194,874,180,0007C ©

MEERHFEYENE - AEEETRE
5 5 B 00 S T B A 4 4 B 1 R
FrERfAE IR - T4 (R AL 150 25 W) S A0 i
HFK70% o G0RE 7 R RIITH R BE A
Bt > AR IR B SRAT AT RE & 2R A
A R R ) R AR A O B 5 Y
EMTRERTFLE o FEREDLT - AL MR
WO 5 B 8 4 005400 3 th B LA T
AL AT T HRIT R o BRIk B TR
309 > AR B E 78 R SR
RZARK

ME A O v BE 4B B A
A/ R eRR

ZEFEUANRETHE > ARRHNE
AT G0 8 R EOR IR -

28.

As at January 1, 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB194,874,180,000.

For properties under development for sales, the Group typically provides
guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up
to 70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of his/her mortgage during the term of the guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under
such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s deposits and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank.
Unless the selling price would drop by no less than 30%, the Group would

not be in a loss position in selling those properties.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

The amounts are denominated in RMB which are non-trade in nature,

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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29. REEHHE 29. LEASE LIABILITIES
——
ZRO=E SR F
2023 2022
AREFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEATAL 5 £ 1% - Lease liabilities payable:
—ER Within one year 1,666,987 1,460,684
ZIR 4 (BRI Within a period of more than one year but
not more than two years 1,760,907 1,580,706
ZIRMAE > (BB A Within a period of more than two years but
not more than five years 5,361,634 5,158,574
B AR Within a period of more than five years 6,042,686 6,663,382
14,832,214 14,863,346
W RE B ERTR 1248 A N Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months
LEEHIE shown under current liabilities (1,666,987)  (1,460,684)
FE B B TR 1218 A A2 Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown
4R A under non-current liabilities 13,165,227 13,402,662
T A EUE 2 i T 2 s R e AR The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
FIEAF4.88%F8.34% (ZF = "4 : liabilities range from 4.88% to 8.34% (2022: 4.88% to 6.57%) per
4.88%%6.57%) ° annum.
30. ST B ICAbAR K 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
CRO=F —F
2023 2022
AREFLT  ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SRATEE > HIRH Bank loans, secured 70,289,130 55,515,645
SRATEN > I Bank loans, unsecured 70,908,273 91,378,029
&% > MK Bonds, unsecured 32,906,840 40,643,767
GREBERES Asset-backed securities 7,237,775 7,265,490

181,342,018 194,802,931
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30. ST BICMAT K 40 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
R SR ) B T (L2 i Rk Ik Pl The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable, based on
i H IR > REE T scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, as follows:

REE R AR
2023 2022

ABBTL  ARKTL
RMB000  RMB'000

iV Analysed into:
AR TN Bank loans repayable:
—4ER Within one year 12,682,464 10,821,223
ZIRN—4F > (HAN A A Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 38,905,559 50,080,102
ZIRMAE - (B AR AR Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years 49,013,512 58,867,773
i A Exceeding five years 40,595,868 27,124,576

141,197,403 146,893,674
W B AR — SRR R0 Less: Amount due within one year shown

under current liabilities (12,682,464) (10,821,223)
— AR E I FOR Amount due after one year 128,514,939 136,072,451
JR R ARG K Other borrowings repayable:
—AE R Within one year 14,158,441 9,835,949
ZIR 4 s (BRI R4 Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 16,875,803 3,278,190
LWL - (BB AR Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding five years 9,110,371 18,117,884
R LA Exceeding five years - 16,677,234

40,144,615 47,909,257
W W B RTR —4F R E I R0R Less: Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities (14,158,441)  (9,835,949)

— AR E R Amount due after one year 25,986,174 38,073,308

218 = Longfor Group Holdings Limited 3 i % B2 18 5 B & A
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30 SRAT RIABAT K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continucd)
ARSE ) $RAT B LA A 2R T4 N B & M The Group’s bank and other borrowings are denominated in the following
{f currencies:
- = R ——
2023 2022

AR#ETFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

A BT An analysis of borrowings by currency:

— AARHHE — Denominated in RMB 158,606,146 160,254,197

— Aot — Denominated in HKD 22,735,872 34,548,734

181,342,018 194,802,931

7% B T ST 5 A 46 8 R ) 3 i L The exposure and the range of effective interest rates on the Group’s bank
T borrowings are as follows:
“EROEE CERTTF
2023 2022
ARH T BEFI%E  ARNTIT BRI

Effective Effective
RMB000 interest rate RMB'000  interest rate

ERSTER Fixed rate bank loans 6,173,030 4.45% 4,066,219 4.68%
TR Variable rate bank loans 135,024,373 439% 142,827,455 4.10%
TR AR Y _F 2 RS ARAT Bk DA 5 The above secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period were

A2 PRI E T E R o secured by the pledge of assets as set out in note 42.
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30. BAT R IABAE K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
@ AEER_F_=Ht+_H=1+— (@)  The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at
H i H A fE SR EIEAT December 31, 2023:
BT RY#ATHE O
ezt W RmAE REAY folm ERAE AEERY ERENY K& TN R AP
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  toadjust 10 exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  the coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at
L
—3°= “RTR

i =y el I e o el
December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
NRHTT (Hiets) (Hiets) NEfFT  ABEFT  ARETT
RMBU0O (Note a) (Note a) RMBU0O RMBO00 RMBO0O
BRAT
Domestic Corporate Bonds
ERRNEEIRARBSENAA G 669900 e ZFRE §iF 46 e S 1,130,100 067,890 616308
([ZF-REE— MR ~AZtEH 8 years ~A-tIH
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu January 25, 2016 December 25, 2020 January 25, 2021
Development (‘(ii) form of 2016 First Tranche Bonds”)
EEENLERRARTSRAA S 147,000 dr  ZEF-RE 10 o “E-R e 3 1,353,000 $8,199 13,774
([ZF—NEB SR =l 10 years ZHmA =HmH
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu March 4, 2016 February 4, 2021 March 4, 2021
Development (“(ii) form of 2016 Second Tranche
Bonds”)
BRENEERRARBSRAA S - 338 ZFRE 7% ER L7 S e 3 3,000,000 - 2889345
(== AER =) ) tATNA 7 years AATHHE tATNA (Hrito)
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu July 14,2016 June 14, 2021 July 14,2021 (Note b)
Development (“(i) form of 2016 Third Tranche
Bonds”)
BEENEERRARBSRAA S - 3% ZE-NE 51 0% R Rk 3,000,000 - 442,776
([ =% NES—H5]) J-H 5 years tA-H J-H (Hf3Eb)
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu August 1,2018 July 1,2021 August 1, 2021 (Note b)
Development (2018 First Tranche Bonds”)
BREROERRARTRALT R - 330 ZF-ARE s s ZE- ko 2,000,000 - 115,548
([ZF—NEH k] +-FAH 5 years +AAH +-H7xH (Fttb)
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu November 6, 2018 October 6, 2021 November 6, 2021 (Note b)
Development (2018 Second Tranche Bonds”)
EREERO R AR B RAT S 100,000 30 ZF-RE 5 s6w  ZEITR o S 2 1,600,000 97979 90547
(=S s 5 years —A=tH “A=tA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu February 20, 2019 January 20, 2022 February 20, 2022
Development (“(i) form of 2019 First Tranche Bonds”)
RN HIRARBSNAT R 500,000 i ZERE 7 4% ZRZME “FCE TR 495,055 S1L100
(- PR ) ) iy 7 years ~AZtH iy A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu February 20, 2019 January 20, 2024 February 20,2024

Development (“(i) form of 2019 First Tranche Bonds”)
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30. BAT B IABAE K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
@ AEER-F-=FtH=1— (@)  The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at
H A H A G LR ¢ (4F) December 31, 2023: (Continued)
HERERT RYEATHE SR
4 W RmAE REAY Bl EBAE AEMAY ERENY K& TRV R AP
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  to adjust 10 exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  the coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at
L
et “RoE

ST ETe T ET S
December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
ARHT (Hieta) (Hiita) ANBRTE  AREFE ABH T
RMB00O (Note 2) (Note a) RMBU0O RMBU00 RMB00O
SARI )
Domestic Corporate Bonds (Continued)
BERRCERRARTRAL RS - ERYT N S S 5 5t (ko) ENI[ N S 2 e S 500,000 - 496500
(T=F=FEE- i) AL Syers(Noeo) oA ARt
RMB domestic corporation bonds of Chongging Longhu January 17, 2020 December 17, 2022 January 17, 2023
Development (‘(i) form of 2020 First Tranche Bonds”)
EEﬁEiﬁM‘%iﬁH%ﬁMﬁ F% 2300000 [T 7 49 TR “ETRR IRt 1,736,086 2001000
([ ZFRER—- G —AttH 7 years TZAHER iR NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongqmg Longhu January 17,2020 December 17,2024 January 17,2025
Development (“(ii) form of 2020 First Tranche Bonds”)
BREROERRARTRALT R - 8% “FCRE s EEI/ N et S e S 2,000,000 - 1942000
(ZR Bk Mt 5 years LR MitH (Ko
RMB domestic corporation bonds of Chongging Longhu August 7,2020 July7,2023 August 7,2023 (Note ¢)
Development (‘(i)form of 2020 Second Tranche
Bonds")
BN RIS AR 1,000,000 0% CRIEE 7 434 “FCRE “EIhE TN 652680 800000
(IF=FEE MR MR Tyers LAtH AtH N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu August 7,2020 July7,2025 August 7, 2025
Development (‘(i) form of 2020 Second Tranche
Bonds")
e S TN ST 2,000,000 395%  EZ- 5t T e a3 TER 1,900,000 1869440
(%= -5 il 5 yers oAt —AtH N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu January 7, 2021 December 7, 2023 January 7, 2024
Development (‘(i) form of 2021 First Tranche Bonds”)
ERENCER ARIRA S 1,000,000 o BT 7 ib5%  CETRE “EORE TR 593,280 773,000
([ZH—Es—iEsn ) ) —-J1tH 7 years TZALA —-J1tH N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu January 7, 2021 December 7, 2025 January 7, 2026
Development (“(i) form of 2021 First Tranche Bonds”)
BREROHRRARTRALT R 1,500,000 ER S5 s 359%  “FZIE R R 1,395,000 1394985
([=E-—EBRikRE) HAZT-H 5 years WAZ+—H HAZT—H NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu May 21,2021 April 21, 204 May 21,2024
Development (‘(i)form of 2021 Second Tranche
Bonds")
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30. BAT R IABAE K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
@ AEER_F_=Ht+_H=1+— (@)  The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at
H A E A ARG LR ¢ (4F) December 31, 2023: (Continued)
BT RY#ATHE O
firef W RmAE REAY folm ERAE AEERY ERENY AeH T RAIAFE
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  toadjust 10 exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  the coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at
L
ZROEE S
g iy s N et o |
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
NRHFE (Hita) (Hita) NEHFT NRHFR NEEFT
RMB00O (Note a) (Note a) RMBU0O RMBO00 RMBU0O
AR )
Domestic Corporate Bonds (Coninued)
BRI ARBRALT 1,500,000 395%  EZE 7 398%  EIAE ZRIRE RN 804495 1170000
(2R ) ) HAZT—H 7 years MAZ+—H EAZt-H NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu May 21,2021 April 21, 2026 May 21,2026
Development (‘(i1) form of 2021 Second Tranche
Bonds")
ERENE R ARMSERAA 2,000,000 3% R-E 5t 3% CECIE o S 12 RN 1739980 1758240
(T=F=-FE= b)) Mt=H 5 yas LAt At-H N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu August 11, 2021 July 11,2024 August 11, 2024
Development (‘(i) form of 2021 Third Tranche
Bonds")
ERENE R ARMSERAA 1,000,000 0% ZEIE 7 3766 ZRTAE i S RN 513000 760,000
(2R3 =) ) Mt—H 7 years tHT-H Mt—H NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu August 11, 2021 July 11,2026 August 11, 2026
Development (*(i) form of 2021 Third Tranche
Bonds")
ERENEERARMSERAA 2,000,000 EL T S (& 357% AN S FER 1,509,020 1,666,000
e St -2 -5 31 O —~A1TmH 6 years TZATIA —~A+LH NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu January 14,2022 December 14, 2024 January 14, 2025
Development (‘(i) form of 2022 First Tranche Bonds”)
BEENEERRARTSRAA S 800,000 EXO [ S 8 399%  ZEZAR = IRt 410640 800,000
(T b ) iRk 8 years TA+mA iRk N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu January 14,2022 December 14,2026 January 14,2027
Development (“(ii) form of 2022 First Tranche Bonds”)
TR R ARTRALT B 500,000 0%  ZBIZE 6 Q06 ZEZRE S R 350540 407500
e St 5705 ) EATAHR byears WATAH EATAR N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu May 19,2022 April 19, 2025 May 19,2025
Development (*(i) form of 2022 Second Tranche
Bonds")
ERENE R ARMSERAT 1,700,000 IR S (& 4% ZFZEE S TN LI77,760 1,700,000
e St - 154,531 1 tAEA 6 years i tAEA NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu July'5,2022 June 5, 2025 July 5,2025

Development (‘(i) form of 2022 Third Tranche
Bonds”)
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30. BAT B IABAE K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Conrinued)
@ AEER-F-=FtH=1— (@)  The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at
H A H A G LR ¢ (4F) December 31, 2023: (Continued)
HERERT RYEATHE SR
4 W RmAE REAY Bl EBAE AEMAY ERENY AEH TRV R AP
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  to adjust 10 exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  the coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at
L
et “RoE

ST ETe T ET S
December 31, December 31,

2023 2022
NRHFE (Hita) (i) NEEFT NRHFR NEEFE
RMB00O (Note 2) (Note a) RMBO0O RMB000 RMBU0O
Gk
Green Bonds
EERNCERRARKR RS 1,440,000 s AL 7 36  ZEZCE e S R 1425600 1317,546
% S v 2o 4 o2 “HERE Tyears —AtAH “HERHE N/A
RMB green bonds of Chongging Longhu Development February 16, 2017 January 16,2022 February 16,2022
(“(ii) form of 2017 First Tranche Green Bonds”)
EEENLERRARRAGRS 99610 8% ELE 7 340 EITE I S 3% 986985 91489
(e s st - S0 3 ZJIRH 7 years ZJIRH Bl
RMB green bonds of Chongging Longhu Development March 6, 2017 February 6, 2022 March 6, 2022
(“2017 Second Tranche Green Bonds”)
R
Medium-term Notes
TEENEERRARK TSR - 395%  ZEZFE 3 409 R AR 1,200,000 - L164773
(=Z A~ ) tAt=H 3 yers N/A NiA (3tp)
RMB medium-term notes of Chongqing Longhu July 13,2020 (Note b)
Development (‘(i) form of 2020 First Medium-term
Notes”)
TEENEERRARKRSE 500,000 i CEZEE 54 4s6n AR R R 285000 25000
(i S GRS ] tAtT=H 5 years /A N/A NA
RMB medium-term notes of Chongqing Longhu July 13,2020
Development (“(i) form of 2020 First Medium-term
Notes”)
ERENCERRARK RS 1,000,000 30 SESH 156 ERIU R 11 e Sl 15 R 680,000 89,599
(e S o 02 1) TZAAH 15 years TR TZARH N/A
RMB medium-term notes of Chongging Longhu December 8, 2021 “EotE “EotE
Development (2021 First Medium-term Notes) +—RfH +ZRiH
SSI 24
it TZAAE
ZE=CE ZE=CE
it TZAAE
November 9, 2024 December 9, 2024
November 9, 2027 December 9, 2027
November 9, 2030 December 9, 2030
November 9, 2033 December 9, 2033
ERENEERARRERE 1,500,000 0%  ZRIZE 3 33%  AER FER R 1051620 1222500
(R PHEsE)) MZHEH 3years N/A N/A /A
RMB medium-term notes of Chongging Longhu August 29,2022
Development (2022 First Medium-term Notes”)
TEENEERRARRRSE 2,000,000 EA(/ " S——d 3 309% - AR R R 1402160 1,630,000
([ZFZZ B ER ) F-RZAH 3 yaars 1A N/A NiA
RMB medium-term notes of Chongqing Longhu November 29, 2022

Development (2022 Second Medium-term Notes”)
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BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

30. BAT R IABAE K )

30.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

@ AEER_F_=Ht+_H=1+— (a)  The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at
H ) HAE R EAEUT © (4 December 31, 2023: (Continued)
BT RY#ATHE O
firef W RmAE REAY folm ERAE AEERY ERENY AeH TN R AP
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  toadjust 10 exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  the coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at
L
ZROEE S
g iy s N et o |
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
NEEFE (Hita) (Hita) NEHFT NRHFR NEEFT
RMB00O (Note a) (Note a) RMBU0O RMB000 RMBU0O
ERENCERAR IR 1,100,000 350%  ZRZEE 3 68 AN TN TN 1,100,000 -
(g St - i1 ) MZFH 3 years N/A N/A A
RMB medium-term notes of Chongqing Longhu August 30, 2023
Development (2023 Second Medium-term Notes”)
EENEERRARKRE 1,200,000 366 EDEE 3 373% AR KR KR 1199831 -
([ZRZ=FR b)) +ZA+HA 3 yaars NiA NiA N/A
RMB medium-term notes of Chongging Longhu December 15,2023
Development (2023 Second Medium-term Notes”)
[FRHEREAT R
Rental Apartments Special Bonds
RN ERRARNERERYALARS - 3% E-AE s ing  —EIE S 3000000 - 619911
(M=% VR - MR R ERRAT ) ZRZt-R 5 yers ZAZt-R SAZt=H (k)
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging March 21, 2018 February 21,2021 March 21,2021 (Note b)
Longhu Development (*2018 First Tranche Rental
Apartments Bonds”)
BEERCEARARN ERHEY AL - s ZF-0E s el ZFIK Rk 2,000,000 - 1,669,149
(M=%~ VR B R AT %) INiRRH: 5 yers LATEA MR (f3tp)
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging August 17,2018 July 17,2021 August 17,2021 (Note b)
Longhu Development (*2018 Second Tranche Rental
Apartments Bonds”)
TEENEEIRARKERAREALA 10,000 3% E-RE siE 059 “ESTE o St 490,000 10042 10,42
R (- F-nEE-HERRE LATIA 5 yers RATIA LATIA
BN ) July 19,2019 June 19,2022 July 19,2022
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging
Longhu Development (*2019 First Tranche Rental
Apartment Bonds”)
ERENER AR EREREALA RS 1,500,000 6% ZE-NE 7 dng CEZIE SR TR 135,000 1320000
(MEF-LEF - BERREEELAES) tATIA Tyears AR LATIA NA
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging July 19,2019 June 19, 2024 July 19,2024
Longhu Development (*2019 Second Tranche Rental
Aparments Bonds”)
ERENCER AR EREREALA RS 3000000 8% ZEIFE 7 9%  ZEZRE SRR TR 224,890 2564400
(MCEF-FEF-BERREEELANS) =HHA 7 yeass “JIlA By NA

RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging March 4, 2020
Longhu Development (*2020 Fisst Tranche Rental

Apartment bonds”)

February 4, 2025 March 4, 2025
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30. BAT B IABAE K )

(a)

AR _F =T A=
H A A ST © (4)

Bk -

@ AGEEARER AT R R A
PR S B R A o T
BRI HE R S A AR A 2 4
S 4 T LT (SR S e
B 220 -

by  FEIRRAE RN BN R -

©  BORRERTREEETHE R
1] T 2 7 O ] o

bR T IR - A b RAE SR
(R A> B b R 36 1A -

@)

(if)

BRI 48 O 5T 40 AR A B4 ik 12 DA
] PR A RO B R B 4
R ] 3R 4 30 o ) T L R O T
P R 2 A5 AR sk A LR B > {1
AN FRTE T A o

WERZ=EFFZH=1T—H &
T HRE S T N R ¥ 741,324,000 70
(:%::@ © AR #711,256,000
O &E A TSR LR R AT
/\¢AE%40,919,00075E@/\¥{E
B (ZF 4 ERARK
260,138,0007C) E A E —F =
EATH =1 —HIEERERR o

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a)

The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at
December 31, 2023: (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on the date of entitlement
to adjust the coupon rate and the investors have the option to sell back the
bonds between the date of entitlement to adjust the coupon rate and the date
of investors to exercise the option at par or hold until maturity.

(b) The bonds are matured and fully redeemed during the year.

(© The bond has been exercised the early redemption option by the investors

and fully redeemed during the year.

Except for certain Medium-term Notes, all other bonds contain a liability

component and early redemption options:

(i)

(i1)

Liability component represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of future cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate at that time applicable to
instruments of comparable credit status and providing substantially
the same cash flows, on the same terms, but without the embedded
derivatives.

As at December 31, 2023, the fair value of put options of
RMB741,324,000 (2022: RMB711,256,000) have been recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position, of which, fair
value loss of RMB40,919,000 (2022: loss of RMB260,138,000) was
recognised for the year ended December 31, 2023.

R E— B A
Fair value as at December 31,
I 000000000

¢ e S o S

2023 2022

AR#EF ARBFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FERE A A Non-current liabilities 513,557 561,762
M RER Current liabilities 227,767 149,494
741,324 711,256

£ 3% Annual Report 2023
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30. BAT R IABAE K )

Froa T MRS > TR Hb R a A
Tl ARy Mo L SR - (A)

(if)

(iii)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited

(#)

Bim s w2 R AL S B HUIE R R
T3 I S0 DR BT b w8 %7 58 5 B
Lo

mR (B 2 SRR R SR P R BES
LA A RE AR LT -

HR ISR SRS DR B o B SR AT ]
W55 5 i e L o

AT R AEERIEE S
GHEAT A B B A T 36 B
AR B B A 1) R SRR S
([ZEFZRAEEE LR - =
T FAE R B SRR SR o0 B AT
A58 N R %4,650,000,000 70 X A R
#2,650,000,000 TC AT > 2 4F FI| 56
3.99% F4.48% %1 o MR Z M a8
FACZHE > ARG B L
fF—¥R  WIRR By 184F o T HRAE A &
IR 553.99% F4.48% A4 [ A HE
T 2 A R R S Wk
[ B H AT = R
SCRERE SR I PR AR EHE o

EVMEEZERBRAA

30.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Except for certain Medium-term Notes, all other bonds contain a liability

component and early redemption options: (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(Continued)

The Domestic Corporate Bonds and the Rental Apartments
Special Bonds are non-guaranteed and listed on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange.

The Green Bonds are non-guaranteed and listed on the China

Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd..

The Medium-term Notes are non-guaranteed and listed on the

National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors.

In 2020, the Group issued asset-backed securities (“2020 ABS”)
under securitisation arrangements collateralised by the future
earnings relating to leasing of certain properties. The 2020 ABS
were issued with aggregate nominal value of RMB4,650,000,000
and RMB2,650,000,000, which carry interests 3.99% and
4.48% per annum respectively. Under both of the securitisation
arrangements, the principal and interests are payable semi-annually
and with maturity of 18 years. The effective interest rate is 3.99%
and 4.48% per annum respectively. The Group is entitled to
exercise the prepayment option of the 2020 ABS at specific dates set
out in the 2020 ABS agreement correspondingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE =Bt f = H IS

For the year ended December 31, 2023

B 31. SENIOR NOTES
TRt
Carrying amount
e 0000
“EOCE TR
2R +2A
BEETRAR LN iR BRI A LENE MR == =t-H
Nominal Effectie~ December 31,  December 31,
Name of senior notes Principal Issued price  Issue date Maturity date interest rate  interest rate 2023 2022
TEL  fEzER ANRFE ARBFr
UsD000 % of principal RMB000 RMB OO0
RZ- BT ZEONE “FNE-ATAR CED AR
Fnil
2028 USD Notes issued in 2018 500,000 99.793%  January 16,2018 January 16,2028 4.50% 4.62% 3,276,003 3491915
SR e ST EREAAAE CECREAATAR
FEai
2029 USD Notes issued in 2019 850,000 99.071%  September 9, 2019 September 16, 2029 3.95% 3.99% 4,511,433 5,691,243
ﬁl\ 7#7%?"“2 E 4741$ H/\E ifiﬁﬁlﬂlﬁ‘l‘zﬁ
EoTt
2027 USD Notes issued in 2020 250,000 99.940%  January 6, 2020 April 13,2027 3.375% 3.48% 1,597,621 1,751,751
ﬁ/\\ ?#?E%éﬁz ?#QE 4?4?$ H/\B iziiﬁ E+EH
FLRE
2032 USD Notes issued in 2020 400,000 99.857%  January 6, 2020 January 13, 2032 3.850% 3.93% 1,918,486 2,310,260
F
Total amount 11,303,543 13,205,169
i
Analysis
i
Non-current liabilities 11,303,543 13,205,169
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31.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited

B E )

A e AR B B 25 28 5 B A BR
Al b e HARRFELEE -

7% ) T IR A5 A ] 2 3w 45 TE A
S ERES R LR E - ()FF
I o] ) 4% T AR S SR IR AR S B 10092 73 0
o BT 4 % TEL OB Of S0 L S O I 0 1
s BRATFLE (A4 ) K@) i e 44 -

BB ZE P AL 10% 174 5 BH
(BFELR 1T I ERA BT R Q)
[ — B 84T | T HERF AT 81T H
AT T ATRSNEIR) TR % A
AR AT ] A m R ((H
AR R ) L] T A ]y 8 P 22

S I 4 2 A B A T B R R R AR A
100% 7 N E 2 (EAEHE) 1 A

LR EFLE () -
[ 412 AT I 4 98 45 DL 20 S A ] i
[ H AR LA R E 20 2 ()FIB & TR

SRR SRR BLE (R 2 B st
BRSO N LB 2 R AR A G
T BB AT BE - R T
I ] 5 5 OfF 24 86 250 22 e 300

EHDL > PSRRI R AR fR R
S [ R BY A-FEAEAEK o

i 8 A AR I RS SR A S0 AR
JR DABL G 45 M S A A A 1019 H LA 55
IEE (IR B A 80 R RHE R
RS () 4B BT A R R S R
1 -

EVMEEZERBRAA

31.

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

All senior notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading

Limited. They are senior obligations of the Company.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem each senior notes, in
whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of
the principal amount of each senior notes to be redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest on each senior notes to be redeemed, if any, to the date of
redemption and (2) the Make Whole Price.

At any time on or after the date when each senior notes of no more than
10% of the aggregate principal amount (1) originally issued on issue date
and (2) issued on issued date of any Additional Notes permitted under
“Further Issues” remain outstanding, the Company may at its option
redeem the remaining outstanding senior notes, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of each senior
notes plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the

redemption date.

“Make Whole Price” means with respect to each senior notes at any
redemption date, the sum of (1) the present value of the principal amount
of each senior notes, assuming a scheduled repayment thereof on the
maturity date, plus (2) the present value of the remaining scheduled
payments of interest to and including the maturity date, in each case
discounted to the redemption date at the Treasury Rate plus 50 basis

points.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early redemption
options is insignificant at initial recognition and the end of the reporting

period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the Company
must make an offer to repurchase all outstanding senior notes at a price
in cash equal to 101% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid

interest, if any, to (but excluding) the repurchase date.
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B E )

WE-Z_=F+_H=T—HILF
JE 5 R 4 %299,875,000 3 06 (£ N R
2,137,175,00070) (=& " 4F « AEH
142,723,000 3 JG (41 A\ B % 989,239,000
) BAEB RSN . REA
1940790003%5ﬁ (%) N R 1,385,680,000
J(ZFZ AR - RE75107,380,00055 70
?(J}\E"%716,029,00031:) ) o

REZZZHELATEH > AARDERH
B ) F A AT AN 2 AT IR B — L AR
3 S o o [ i = e - e
CIEEITEE o WERE M SR A S
100.00% 7 M EH E (HAEHE) ZF 4

L H = H B2 BERHEAR RIS o

REZFZZEFTZANLE > AAFBRE
BB A BTSN BTN = F— N
FERRZFZ=FNATABEMZ =%
CEAEE TR > WREMA SR AR
100.009% 3 M H & (HAEHE) —F - 4
T A LB B REGHEAR A ALE -

31.

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2023, a principal amount of
USD299,875,000 (approximately RMB2,137,175,000) (2022: a principal
amount of USD142,723,000 (approximately RMB989,239,000))
was repurchased from market by the Group at a consideration of
USD194,079,000 (approximately RMB1,385,680,000)(2022: a
consideration of USD107,380,000 (approximately RMB716,029,000)).

On July 13, 2022, the Company has redeemed in full all outstanding
2022 USD Notes issued in 2017 with maturity date on July 13, 2022 at a
redemption price equal to 100.00% of the principal amount thereof plus
accrued and unpaid interest to (but not including) July 13,2022 upon

mature.

On December 9, 2022, the Company has early redeemed in full all
outstanding 2023 USD Notes issued in 2018 with maturity date on April
16, 2023 at a redemption price equal to 100.00% of the principal amount
thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest to (but not including) December

9,2022 upon mature.
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BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

32. iAW TR

32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

e =X S S
2023 2022
ANR#EFLE AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MRS G =T AR AT Derivative financial assets
BRE (under hedge accounting)
REmaEs Cash flow hedges
— 28 WA 2 g — Cross curtency interest rate swaps 144,838 167,377
— | R gt — Interest rate swaps 6,922 104,294
— SR A A A — Foreign currency forward contracts 276,250 94,828
— HTEHHK R A4 — Capped and floored forward contracts
(THTEERE NS4 1) (“CFF contracts”) 30,290 -
458,300 366,499
MBS G Rk AR AT A Derivative financial liabilities
Eo =L (under hedge accounting)
B S Cash flow hedges
eSS LIRS — Cross curtency interest rate swaps 318,777 661,246
—AMNEE A4 — Foreign currency forward contracts 18,248 285,862
—HIEH KR A4 — CFF contracts 47,243 244,896
384,268 1,192,004
Gy Analysis
B Non-current assets 358,577 201,834
B E Current assets 99,723 164,665
458,300 366,499
FRE B i Non-current liabilities 375,278 1,077,442
mE A E Current liabilities 8,990 114,562
384,268 1,192,004

R X ER R )R Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign
B e Ja 9] 00 B B TH B S 390
#

TASE IR - ARG EA R E By gk v T
B SRR 2450 > OB —E t
A0 A B % U B SR SR SR RE A A 3K
7T B R TT R N R AR S A S R
MRS A AR A e TR A A B K
(5N B B R R -

currency forward contracts and CFF contracts

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had cross currency interest
rate swaps designated as highly effective hedging instruments in order
to minimise its exposures to foreign currency and cash flow interest
rate risk on its fixed rate USD senior notes and corresponding interest
payment by swapping a portion of those borrowings and senior notes and
corresponding interest payment from HKD and USD to RMB.

230 = Longfor Group Holdings Limited 3 i % B2 18 5 B 2 A
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A Am T ] )

R X BRI R R
A R 728 11 5 40 T B TE BRI A
#)(4)
NI AR IR E B A T
LAt DD H R B ALE A
R T BTG B A B A B o

ARSI - AR EA 1 E By A T
HAYSMEE & 4 R A THE R 240
LU i 3K A DU R St T
D H U TURAT (8 BRI SR RE R, -

R AR~ RG]~ SN E
B R ETEE R & A e s A8 2 BE T
DAL & A JE 1 2 3 IE H R > i g
o 2 S SUR R R~ R
HNHE T2 ) £ A B e TR 2 30 5 460 i v
HILH -

I PV 3 b S AR 4 I 1 B S IR L B R B
BT -

@ MAESMTHE-ZXEWHNER

32.

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign
currency forward contracts and CFF contracts (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had interest rate swaps
designated as effective hedging instruments in order to minimise its
exposures to cash flow interest rate risk on its floating-rate interest

payments to fixed rate interest payments.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had foreign currency forward
contracts and CFF contracts designated as effective hedging instruments in
order to minimise foreign currency risk on its HKD bank borrowings by

selling RMB in exchange for HKD at the borrowings maturity dates.

The terms of the cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps,
foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts have been negotiated
to match the terms of the respective designated hedged items and the
directors consider that the cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate
swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts are highly

effective hedging instruments.

The effects of applying hedge accounting on the Group’s financial position

and performance are as follows:

(a)  Derivative financial instruments — Cross currency interest rate

Pl swaps:
R = S
2023 2022
ZEBH(TFEI) 1,600,000 1,840,000
Notional amount (USD’000)
FHH e et 21 5 Y | ZECEFMEA AR

Maturity date

iR ESUNNL 3 S ok )
Strike rate (RMB: USD range)

AT 3 (18] S )

Strike rate (Fixed rate range)

EZFTAELATAH
April 13, 2027 -
September 16, 2029
0.1408 - 0.1596

ECETNFENATAA
April 16,2023 -
September 16, 2029
0.1408 — 0.1596

3.375% — 4.5% 3.375% —4.5%
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BERC=ZETHZTHIERE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

32. RiE4ERTH ) 32.

R B BRI R R B
A1 438 00 A0 et TR DG A O
A (4)

(b)  ATA: AT T A — AR A

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign

currency forward contracts and CFF contracts (Continued)

(b)  Derivative financial instruments — Interest rate swaps

R e Sasta
2023 2022
A FEH(THIT)
Notional amount (HKD'000) 3,600,000 3,900,000
FIMH “F_NE—AZH B S S

Maturity date

AT 3 (8T 2 )

Strike rate (fixed rate range)

January 2, 2024

0.85% — 1.6%

January 2, 2024

0.85% - 1.6%

(©  FiA4m T A - SMEEN A4 :

()  Derivative financial instruments — Foreign currency forward

contracts:

TRC=E e S
2023 2022
Y FBH(THIT)
Notional amount (HKD’000) 15,555,200 29,255,200

FIMA

Maturity date

BUTHRIZR AR S s o i)
Strike rate (RMB: HKD range)

“RINESAZTAHR
“FDREFZATRE
June 28,2024 -
December 19, 2025

1.0699 — 1.1628

R -AZTHRE
SECRAEF A AN
January 25, 2023 —
December 19, 2025

1.0699 —1.1628

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E i & E 2= p& 5 R 2 7
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BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign

currency forward contracts and CFF contracts (Continued)

#48)
d)  AiA: 4T B — B R B (d) Derivative financial instruments — CFF contracts
Gy ]
I
TRC=E - S
2023 2022

HAFEBH(FHIT)

Notional amount (HKD’000) 9,700,000 9,700,000

A “E-HFE—AZHE CERTHFE-HHZE

Maturity date

BUATHH (e N R #iE )
Strike rate (HKD: RMB range)

AR (0 5 N R A E)
Floor rate (HKD: RMB range)

GIES W ETHIPNSEAE )
Cap rate (HKD: RMB range)

“EThEFTFH=+ZH
January 2, 2025 -
December 22, 2025
0.8515 —0.9030

0.8000 - 0.8515

0.9290 - 0.9805

“EHHETZHAZTZH
January 2, 2025 —
December 22, 2025

0.8515 -0.9030

0.8000 —0.8515

0.9290 - 0.9805

3 T A X A R A AR
A ANEE G KB TEI R R
&K B4R e R R BlA R &2 B
HW o MZEZZFETH=E+—
H o baliss CERHEFI R - R
L~ AMEOE I A A R TR R R
BA A AT EIES FEA AR
174,032,00000 (ZF = 4F il
AR #825,505,00070 ) B 7 15
WAEIEGE R - Bk TEAEHEA
[ #929,886,000 70 (& .~

TR A R 3,721,941,0007C ) Ji& [ 4F
N B R E R R 4R o

All of the above cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate

swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts are

designated and effective as cash flow hedges. The net fair value gain

of the above cross currency interest rate swap contracts, interest

rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts
totalling RMB74,032,000 (2022: net loss of RMB825,505,000)
have been deferred in equity at December 31, 2023. The loss of the
hedging instruments amounting to RMB929,886,000 (2022: loss
of RMB3,721,941,000) were reclassified from hedging reserve to

profit or loss in the same year.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

33, JBeAS Kl Al 33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
@ A (a)  Share capital
It
0.10¥T2Z
TR i
Number of

ordinary shares
of par value
HKDO.10 each Nominal value

T
HKD’000
HE Authorised
WoE - HE—~H—H - At January 1, 2022, December 31, 2022

TR HEYFAEtT—HE R and December 31, 2023

R =E+YTA=1—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000

BT A Issued and fully paid
ﬁ/\\gzﬁiiﬁéﬁ —H At January 1, 2022 6,074,310,105 607,431

AT B I RESEAT LA (BT (i) Issue of shares upon exercise of

share options (Note (i)) 4,058,500 406
FATURALE (HE1L0) Issue of scrip dividend (Note 10) 203,173,427 20,317
WoE - At A=1—H At December 31, 2022 6,281,542,032 628,154
BATLIRAE (M3 10) Issue of scrip dividend (Note 10)

(B eEdiy) (Note (ii)) 310,213,121 31,021
WoE - =F+_"H=+—H At December 31, 2023 6,591,755,153 659,175
SR BB IRETR Shown in the consolidated financial

statements
WoE - ZFt - HZ=+—H At December 31, 2023 EX YN T
RMB’000
equivalent 574,477
WoE - A+ H=+—H At December 31, 2022 M ANRBT
RMB’000
equivalent 546,290
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33, JBeAS Bl (an)
JBAK (41)

(a)

(b)

Bk -

(@)

(i)

fi

WE-F- A=t —HIE
AR o AR ON FRAT O R HE B AT
4,058,500 fi% 45 JB T 0.1 98 TG 1 i
B o A T AR AT I AR Y
AT AR £59.37 5 70 (HH 5 1 A R
8.017C) © T BEATHT AL & Jy [ B
RO R A R AR o

AAFER-EZ=4—HZ1H
PL60,162,718 HE BT 4502 FE 32 A+ =
FAEANA =+ A IR
i

M A - HE S

()

W1t 16

CECCER BRI
TZAZ+— B RG & E
BN R A

Je Vi 1 I 57 B 2 9 55 8 )
HHE > AT AR AR R
(HnA ) A5 = Ak A K AN
MR VLR I3 @ @32
LSRR TR (b #E
WEBAT FRERS IR AR B AR
AT e AR R R BT IEAD
OIS RS A FEE 76
PO D I B [ PG4 5 (d)
WES A T B 5 (o8N
BEAT AN T B0 B 5 1 %
FA S S A I & ki T
OETEIISAOL YT (B
B AR T AT A7 B 0 2
AT A% E -

Bk JF S 2% B8 R AT Hh 20 TR 2
AR AR > AR F A
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share capital (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company issued 4,058,500
shares of HKDO.1 each upon exercise of share options. The exercise prices of
the share options exercised in 2022 is HK$9.37 (equivalent to RMB8.01).
The new shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all

respects.

In respect of the interim dividend for the period ended June 30, 2022,
60,162,718 new fully paid shares of the Company has been settled on
January 20, 2023.

Reserves

Name, nature and purpose of reserves

@)

Share premium

Share premium at December 31, 2023 and 2022 represented

share premium of the Company.

The share premium account is governed by the Cayman
Companies Law and may be applied by the Company subject
to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to
members; (b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares;
(c) the redemption and repurchase of shares (subject to the
provisions of section 37 of the Cayman Companies Law);
(d) writing-off the preliminary expenses of the Company;
(e) writing-off the expenses of, or the commission paid or
discount allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures of the
Company; and (f) providing for the premium payable on
redemption or purchase of any shares or debentures of the

Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.
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33, JBOAR Befili i ) 33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Concinued)
(b) Tl ) (b) Reserves (Continued)

08 E R NE () Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

ai) B (i)  Capital reserve
REMAL A R B R On June 11, 2008, a group reorganisation was completed
“EENEASAT—H B for the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
347 3,999,999,000 B B it by issuing 3,999,999,000 shares of HKDO.1 each. The
T {B10.1 75 T 1) 473 5 B 4E ) difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued
B o A E T EAT A 1Y by the Company and the aggregate amount of the share
TE (P L 5% R 8 P A v () capital of Juntion Development Hong Kong (Holding)
B[R] A& Limited (“Juntion Development”), the then holding company
P R PR R 20 ) ) R P A A of the Group, was charged to capital reserve.
B 28 8 EA R
2300
RoFEE+HHH > A On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend of
A ) ) H R M R R S HKD100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000) to the
100,000,000 7G (A1 & A A R then shareholders of the Company and was charged to capital
W 88,120,000 7 ) Wi 1 ¥ A fik reserve.
(R

(iif) HER (iii)  Special reserve
BE_FZTELFET_H During the year ended December 31, 2007,
=t—HILFEE g Juntion Development injected additional capital of
BEM—FEZEMREA HKD770,000,000 in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
AEBEEPCERENE Chongqing Longhu Development in which the non-
770,000,000 % 7T > MM ASA #] controlling shareholders are Madam Wu Yajun and Mr.
i H A i A P R TR L B Cai Kui, who are also the ultimate controlling shareholders
At B A N By R of the Company at that date. The Group’s equity interest
14 24 T 1Y IR T RO - in Chongqing Longhu Development has increased from
A SR Y o B E W A 4 60% to 91.3% and a discount on deemed acquisition of
B % HE 1 609 15 & 91.3% > RMB620,672,000 which represents the excess of the share of
[IRX A A PN net assets attributable to the additional interest acquired over
620,672,000 7T RIl 48 i Wi B 4R the amount injected was recognised in special reserve as the
HIMEE g B JE A 7 PR L contribution from equity owners.
TEEEHIIL - CREFA
T 18 1 i 0 2 HE i AT 0
& o

(v) HAbhth (iv)  Other reserve
oAb ot A 8 A 45 [ RE AL A B Other reserve represents the change in net assets attributable
Fft B A RE R ) (R IETS to the Group in relation to changes in ownership interests in
SR A TIRE) 1 G s i A subsidiaries without obtaining or losing of control.
) o
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33, JBeAS Bl (an)

bt (4
2R~ HE & (%)

(b)

(v)

(vi)

P AE TR

ARABTE o B AL R A T B
NEIABERR A %
W J 2 ) ZE 1 % 5 5L BR b A
AR TR B AR i M9 1092 -
2 ol 2 B G AR
50% 4 1L o B 2 5 Gk 7
A i 4 4t B A 2 IR IBEE 2
AR o 3578 B8R A T
AR R EE - 1R
KRB A58 S0
Wi 2 Rl BB AN B A

TEAERE 0 IR i 2] 5
A BRI R T (4
Whs k45 (a8 ) 15 T 45 _E O
B A H B A 5K o

(vii) B

S fol A LB < UL R 3
I OL 2 B TR 2 4P (E 5
Bk Hii 2 BatE B
g e BEEEHNZ S EER
di o R fok e T AR S R
At E TR 2 AT HEE)
B2 BatEa A g =0
ES S ET

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Staturory surplus reserve

In accordance with the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries established in the PRC, these subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
year’s losses, expand the existing operations or convert into

additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Shares held for share award scheme

The amount represents the payments made to acquire shares
from the market for the share award scheme as disclosed in

note 45(a).

(vii) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective
portion of gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of
hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The
cumulative gain and loss arising on changes in fair value of
the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated
under this reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only

when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss.
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34. WEREBLH

LUR B IR AR B2 R i 1 4 BT RE R 1Y 3 AR

TEBLIR (R 15) B ML) -

34. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred taxation (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

fek HEET
ERE R SHRRRN  REEAN  RERER
it AT fER B RRRE  oMEE RSB EE WRENE  HEAK  BBME Jle it
Investment
Withholding ~ properties
Fair value Unrealised taxon under
Accelerated of Lind  Allowance profiton retained  sublease and
ax  investment appreciation  fordoubeful  Government  intra-group  profitstobe  right-of-use Lease  Intangible
depreciation~ properties  Taxlosses  tax provisions debts subsidies  purchases  distributed assets liabilcies assets Others Total
NHFE ARKTE  ARMTE AREFR ARETE ARNTE ARETR ARETE ARETE ARRTR AREFR ARETE ARETR
RMBUOO RMBUIO RMBUO RMBUOD RMBUO0 RMBUOO RMBUO RMB 000 RMBUOD RyBUO0 RMBUOO RMBUO RyB 000
(Bt (Hiske (Bt
(Notea) (Note ) (Note b)
S At December 31, 2021
htiey o (13893200 (10,657.992) 3714951 5,751,611 3750 1559 1,067,667 (1) 6389 4016922 (572,164) 216876 (1,887,365)
RARGIA)  Charge (Crdi for he peciod 68 00T e (7 - 140,787 38100 o 160 786 08 (L700966)
g New added st - - - - - - - B 11| B V(] - - -
FRIERELT  Acquisition ofasets and bilces
REERAR through acquisiton of subsidaries
(Fistso) (Note30) - - 8161 - - - - - - - 8608 9099
AR A (300 Dispasal o subsidaries (Note 39) 5370 (20,103) (3721) (19,890) - - - - - - 132 - (37020
RRALHE Eaty terminatin ofeases - - - - - - - 0 GO - - (59567
e 3 At December 31,2022
i (1921805 (11,685,808) 3,625,100 5,034,283 3750 1599 1,208:454 (19,170 (3,157,116) 3,715,836 (523,000) 0330 (3,594620)
IR (GEA)  Charge (Credi) for te period 630310 @8257) (45354 (821,680) - - msk 70000 4718 (161,792) 44626 - 088
i Newadded s - - - - - - - - ) mi - - -
BRIEHEAT Acquisition o assets and labliies
REERAE through acquisiton of subsidiaries
(Hit36) (Nate 36 - - L5 - - - - - - - - - L5
AT AR (E39) Disposal ofsbsiciaries (Note 39) 3110 21,106 1769) (09343) - - - - - - - (82820
HERENE Dispose of nvestment properties
(Hfsk12) (Nte 12 6192 61,013 - - - - - - - - - - BT
RRRERE Eatly termination ofeases = - - - - - - - 31057 (50.337) = = (19:300)
e ArDecenber 31,2003
i | 2502819 (12480262) 3,403,198 418354 3750 1599 15099 9170 (3,055,708) 3,708,054 (478,380) 0330 (5,652.221)
WEE - Notes:
(a) %A R B FU) BB 5 0 B S T (a) This represents the tax effect of the temporary difference arising from the treatment
1 BT A 2 B B R o B of the government subsidies between the accounting standards and the tax bureau.
B BUM AR S WA > (EAEAT s 2 Tax bureau treats the government subsidies as an income but for financial reporting
S I T BT O 6 11 5 e v A 5 2 P purpose, the government subsidies have been accounted for as deduction from costs
SAIBARR © of properties under development for sales.
(b) R R T B JRE 25 B S E A T R I (b) This represents the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the deduction
TET S S A o 2 ) 0 (i o 8 P 5 of advertising expense and fair value adjustments arising from acquisition of
B o AR SR AT R AN B AR 159 1 subsidiaries. The Group can deduct its advertising expense of no more than 15% of
RIS > WA Bk A4 () Bl AT its revenue and for the part that cannot be deducted, if any, it can be carried forward
IR A - to future years.
(©) AR R b 70 s 5 1 1 B L R i 3 7 75 () According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong

3k 7, OB A 7 1 R B 1 2 B ) S
Bk 200811298 » 59 BCE T ATBLBE 3628 )
TR BB R B A 5D 259 W) B s
BRAH -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E i & E 2= p& 5 R 2 7

Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the
Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income” and Guoshuifa 2008
No. 112, where the Hong Kong resident company directly owns at least 25% of the
capital of the Mainland company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the presentation purposes of the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred taxation assets and liabilities have been offset.
The following is an analysis of the deferred taxation balances for financial

feporting purposes:

RO =EE SR
2023 2022

AR#TFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

JEIE P IE & Deferred taxation assets 11,389,985 11,217,441
EAEBIIE A 1E Deferred taxation liabilities (17,042,212)  (14,812,062)

(5,652,227)  (3,594,621)

WoFE- =T A=+ —H > AEEN
Tﬁ?ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%”ﬁ%kE%l,oszz,ooo
JC(ZE A ) o pRMESIRLIE RIS
AL R RIS T IR A A o R A
MR w4 5 W] HE A I 2 R R RR R A B I

At December 31, 2023, the Group has deductible temporary differences
of RMB1,013,782,000 (2022: nil). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences can be utilised.
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H T\ — A — H R i =
TR A BSR4 B SR
2 Hhgt R A A ) R R A Y R
ZHA N R H141,983,411,00000 ( —F ==
M0 NR130,919,162,000 70 ) 7R % 4E
BUIE » T R A 42 B A 0 IR 2 B P
[ Ry ] L0 DRy 2% A T R T B AN
[A] o

EHEBEZERER

YN

34. WBEBE @) 34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
MoE-=FE+"H=+—H » &xEH At December 31, 2023, the Group had unused estimated tax losses of
A NR18,475,552,00000 (& RMB18,475,552,000 (2022: RMB17,396,358,000) available to offset
N #517,396,358,0007C ) B 518 F B against future profits. Deferred taxation assets have been recognised in
TE e 1 AT R HE S R AR A o AR respect of RMB13,612,792,000 (2022: RMB14,500,400,000) of such
#£13,612,792,00000 ( =&~ 74 NRH losses. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect of the
14,500,400,0007T ) H 5 1EURE G248 48 i T remaining RMB4,862,760,000 (2022: RMB2,895,958,000) due to the
FE o B A AT T R AR T AR AR IR o s e unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will
AR T AR #4,862,760,0007C (= F = expire in the following years:

i N 2,895,958,000 7T ) HE 38 A AE i
TG o RMERBLIER MR LT E R R
-
—ERCO=F F o
2023 2022
AR ARBTIC
RMB’000 RMB’000
TR EE 2023 - 84,991
B 11 2024 162,669 163,229
ZETHE 2025 491,730 530,890
TR TARE 2026 979,891 987,246
Y S ot 2027 1,044,165 1,129,602
ZET)\FE 2028 2,184,305 -
4,862,760 2,895,958
AR B AR SE BB > it B A Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends

declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from January
1, 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to RMB141,983,411,000 (2022: RMB130,919,162,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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O PR A 2 9 4l £

RoE =+ A=+—H #AFHE
FH AR 4 1S Rl A8 R #107,688,00070
(F AR 0 NR#5112,128,00000) 2K H
TR AR AR B T IR S A S BT
Z WAL i o R PR A R 0 M
Wt ASGE B RERLT- W A 7 2 AR B4
SRS R B (LR Y 3 M B SRR
M AR R IR R A
FI B8 T EATHE -

TEAT SR AP EE S s R
Wt 2 ] R T SE AR S o A B R
B A (E RIS B Bt s2 -
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36.

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL

At December 31, 2023, financial liabilities at FVTPL amounting to
RMB107,688,000 (2022: RMB112,128,000) are arising from the
acquisition of certain subsidiaries engaging in property management
business in prior year. Subject to the terms and conditions of equity
transfer agreements, the Group shall settle the remaining consideration
payables to the vendors depending on the future financial or operating
performance (including the revenue or the property management areas) of
the subsidiaries which will be due in 2024 and 2025.

Fair value of contingent consideration payables are mainly determined
by the projected revenue of the subsidiaries at the end of each reporting
period. Details of valuation of contingent consideration is set out in note
52.

ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group acquired interests

in the following entities:

REbARL,/ RGP ARERMORR
WA 4 8 B Pt Bt BRE
Equity Equity
interests interests
held by held by
Place of the Group the Group
incorporation/ before after Total
Name of subsidiaries establishment acquisition acquisition  consideration
ANERT
RMB000
i A 4 Shanghai Henggu Real Estate Development i 16%(Hifka) 100% 36,240
HRAR Company Limited PRC (Note a)
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il
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JE o AR T E R

36. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group acquired interests

in the following entities:

Gl g ARG AREROER

WA R 4R TR Pt Pt AE
Equity Equity
interests inteests
held by held by
Place of the Group the Group
incorporation/ before after Total
Name of subsidiaries establishment acquisition acquisition consideration
ARETT
RMB000
B Great Smart RE LS 50% 100% 1,111,747
(B LHE )
The British
Virgin Islands
(“BVI")
T8 [0 S 7 S Xiamen Xiangzhou Real Estate Development LE 49% 499% (fititb) -
HRAR (T EMHM ) Company Limited (“Xiamen Xiangzhou”) PRC (Note b)
1,111,747
i Notes:
(a) AR G ik - B A A RGBT A5 i (a) According to the investment agreement, all of the relevant activities required

A BOR — B S R B A4 T
W — e ERE

by  HURBCE T R o T A RORGT S A
w0 PRI RIPERBOR T i AR i 2
BT o % T HEA B B S B AU ROR K
AP - HGRA > AE ISR
S1 B - HAGLEE RS &
LY TIRE > SO A AR S T B
o

242  Longfor Group Holdings Limited 3 % B2 18 5 B 2 A

approval by unanimous consent of all of its shareholders and thus it is regarded as a

joint venture of the Group.

(b) According to the investment agreement, the shareholders of the entity entered into
a supplemental agreement pursuant to which the ex-controlling shareholder has
transferred 2% of the voting right to the Group. The relevant activities of the entity
require majority voting rights of shareholders. Upon the transfer, the Group has
obtained 51% voting right of the entity and as such, the Group is able to exercise

control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.
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36. BEBOBHIE A FBRIEEEK  36. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

@) THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
o ey M
2023 2022

AR#TFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

WEYWE (Mi12) Investment properties (Note 12) = 673,967
Wi ~ B B (Bt k13) Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) - 1,302
PRIERLTE G (F3k34) Deferred taxation assets (Note 34) 1,145 90,299
WmERE Inventories of properties:
YR ES — Properties held for development = 738,335
— R AP REYE — Properties under development for sales - 54,894
— R RS Y3 — Properties held for sales 2,630 2,940,438
B H AR Contract Cost = 59,160
JREMS MR SR B LA EMCERIE ~ #2 J Accounts and other receivables, deposits and
AT E prepayments 7,176 5,984
JRE Ay A 42 3] T Amount due from Group 48,382 -
JRE S 42 ) B 4 Amounts due from non-controlling
interests - 3,337
WITEER N4 Bank balances and cash 204 216,608
JREAST BRI A B4 Accounts and bills payables, other payables and
Hofth A I K T2 accrued charges (11,342) (965,618)
BHIARK Contract liabilities = (184,107)
JREAST i R Amounts due to shareholders = (482,902)
JREAS] T B BRI Amounts due to former shareholders - (85,519)
JREAS R TE Taxation payable = (349,896)
@Eﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%’(— — AR R 3 Bank and other borrowings — due within one year = (7,670)
11 B A 3 — — AR I Bank and other borrowings — due after one year - (377,330)

48,195 2,331,282
W IR Less: Non-controlling interests - (142,201)

48,195 2,189,081
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36. BEBOBHIEA W RIEEEK  36. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

B ) THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
- = xR
2023 2022

AR#ETFE ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

IR 3 # IHAS HAE Consideration satisfied by:
Bl Cash 36,240 1,111,747
BN E R RE £ (FFF3E) Interest in an associate (Note) = 134,447
A EAZENRERS (FfF3E) Interest in a joint venture (Note) 11,955 942,887
48,195 2,189,081
B IR Net cash outflow:
EfEE Cash paid (36,240)  (1,111,747)
W CUER 4 MRS B YA Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired 204 216,608
(36,036) (895,139)
Wik - Note:
BESE-=1T2A=ZF—HIFEE A8 During the year ended December 31, 2023, the difference between the fair value of previously
A SE SRR A B A 2 T (B SO HR T (L P 22 4 held interest in joint venture and its carrying amount is insignificant to the Group.
EPA SR F A AR o
BE-Z-HFTZA=ZT—HIEE > R During the year ended December 31, 2022, the remeasurement gain of the previously held
BAELARA MRS 2 A R AR interest in a joint venture amounting to RMB357,295,000 was included in other gains or
357,295,000 7C 7t A At i 45 s 1 o G losses. The fair value of the interest in the joint venture is determined by reference to the
WM 2 A PAH T A8 S5 Wy AR B A R T 7 underlying inventories of properties.
EHRL > WCEZE A A RCETS - AL In the opinion of directors, the acquisitions of these companies does not constitute businesses.
) A B 2 ) TR 1 1R S D A S Therefore, the transactions were determined by the directors of the Company to be acquisition
B S A T A I AR R Y R 3 SR of assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries rather than a business combination
DT E IS A fF - as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
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ROk Y i 2 ) AR A 37. ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

BE-Z-=#+"A=+—HILFEE During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group acquired interests

AEBEUUELL T BRI RER - in the following entities:

AV AGEPOR  ARMRBORR

WA 4 7 LA it e it e BRE
Equity Equity
interests interests
held by held by
Place of the Group the Group
incorporation/ before after Total
Name of subsidiaries establishment acquisition acquisition  consideration
AR T
RMB000
i B G AR AT Shanghai Yangen Investment A 65% 100% 80,000
([ LA D) Management Company Limited PRC
(“Shanghai Yang'en”)
BMaER TR b E RS Fuzhou Dixinjiayuan Real Estate Company ~ # 51% 100% 70,498
HWAF(EMl&EST))  Limited (‘Fuzhou Dixinjiayuan”) PRC
FRAS SR S E H A R/ Chengdu Dongjin Company Management 60% 100% 20,000
([ Wb ) Consultant Company Limited PRC
(“Chengdu Dongjin”)
FHEMEER Jiaxing Longhu Jiatao Real Estate i 51% 100% 24,500
ARAR(EHZE]) Company Limited (“Jiaxing Jiatao”) PRC
EWEREERSGRAT  Ningbo Jiayao Real Estace Company i 51% 100% 4900
(TERER) Limited ("Ningbo Jiayao’) PRC
FRCAAR 0 B S PR Chengdu Chenxu Real Estate Company i 70% 100% 66,000
(T RN ) Limited (“Chengdu Chenxu”) PRC
R EEARAT Shenyang Jinyi Real Estate Company i 70% 100% 15,000
(&) Limited (“Shenyang Jinyi") PRC
T % BB A AT Xi'an Longyou Real Estate Company Gl 60% 70% 42,436
([PERERG ) Limited (“Xi'an Longyou”) PRC
BINEREESEAMAT  Zhanjiang City Jiachen Real Estate i 51% 100% 9,875
(LR D Company Limited (“Zhanjiang Jiachen”) ~ PRC
WITHIEHEEBEARAR  Zhanjiang City Longhu Enxiang Real Gl 51% 100% 38,425
(MR ) Estate Company Limited PRC
(“Zhanjiang Enxiang”)
HEEM RS ESREARAT Chongging Longhu Jingming Real Estate  #1 60% 100% 20,000
([EERHED Company Limited PRC
(“Chongqing Jingming”)
AR B ¥EATRAR  Chengdu Longhu Jinchuan Real Estate i 51% 100% 24,500
(Tmcasg D) Company Limited (‘Chengdu Jinchuan”)  PRC
RUBREEARAT Changsha Xirong Real Bstate Company 'l 34% (Wi ik) 419 (Wit ) 56,151
([RWEE]) Limited (“Changsha Xirong”) PRC (Note) (Note)
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37. WU B E 2 vl BAMERR )

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37. ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN

REMALL/ REMBBEE  AEEROER
WA 41 L% Firfs ek FirF e aRE
Equity Equity
interests interests
held by held by
Place of the Group the Group
incorporation/ before after Total
Name of subsidiaries establishment acquisition acquisition  consideration
ARMFx
RMB000
B YGRS e 30k 281 Beijing Shanghengjirui Commercial i 51% 100% 880,660
ARARA (TSR] Operation Management Company PRC
Limited (“Beijing Shanghengjirui”)
BERELHRAR Xi'an Beicheng Real Estate Company I 60% 100% 403,900
(17503 )) Limited (“Xi'an Beicheng”) PRC
RIIEFHER AT Changsha Shunsheng Real Bstate o 51% 100% 73,500
([RIIEHE]) Company Limited (“Changsha PRC
Shunsheng”)
KRl ELHRAR Tianjin Shengkai Real Estate Company i 51% 100% 893,295
([ RHBEHL ) Limited (“Tianjin Shengkai”) PRC
HRTFEEEERAT Yixing Jiaxi Real Estate Company o 509% itk 100% 130,000
(THELFE]) Limited (“Yixing Jiaxi”) PRC (Note)
AR & A AT Chengdu Chenpan Property Company o 350 (k) 100% 195,000
(THARED Limited (“Chengdu Chenpan”) PRC (Note)
3,048,640

WL ARORBCE AR o A SRR R A

it DASE 5 B R O AR R B DR A S
RS - HEEE B RS

i

AR A e ANk > T2 AHE
1 BiL oS A kA 2 T 2 7 4 9 B
TAG {22 [ 40 22 R L T A b i e

Note:

recognised directly in other reserve.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &g #f & @ % % B R 2 &)

According to the investment agreements, the Group has sufficiently dominant voting
interest to direct the relevant activities of this entity and therefore the Group had

control over Changsha Xirong, Yixing Jiaxi and Chengdu Chenpan.

The acquisition has been accounted for as equity transactions and the total
difference between the consideration paid and the carrying amounts of

the attributable reserves and non-controlling interest acquired had been
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Wi Y ) 2 ) AR £k (47) 37. ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

BE-ZF - "HFF+-H=F+—HILFE During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group acquired interests

AEBEUUELL T BRI RER - in the following entities:

i AP AEERER

(i) YNGR L Pt Pt ARE
Equity Equity
inerests interests
held by held by
Place of the Group the Group
incorporation/ before after Total
Name of subsidiaries establishment acquisition acquisition consideration
ARET
RMB000
R Hﬁ)tf)ﬁ?ﬂﬁ B%H /AT Fuzhou Deyuan Real Estate Company il 70% 100% 120,000
([FEMm ) Limited (“Fuzhou Deyuan”) PRC
FJIIW#[HE}@?%KE AT Guangzhou Jiaheng Real Estate Co., Led. 1] 51% 100% 538,597
(TEMEE ) (“Guangzhou Jiaheng”) PRC
BHEROEEHARAH Guiyang Jiatai Management Limited s 499 (M) 100% 444,735
([ER#R ) (“Guiyang Jiatai”) PRC (Note)
WMERFHERSARAR  Hangzhou Longhao Real Estate Company 1 55% 100% 4,500
(THMHRER ) Limited (“Hangzhou Longhao”) PRC
MM FOEMSARAT  Hangzhou Longzhuo Real Bstate Company 1 409 (M3E) 100% 6,000
(THUMEEE D) Limited (“Hangzhou Longzhuo”) PRC (Note)
TR E S ARAR  Jinan Taisheng Real Estate Company i 20% (f3E) 100% 26,816
(R ]) Limited (“Jinan Taisheng”) PRC (Note)
TFHREFHERBEARAR  Jinan Taiyi Real Estate Company Limited 1] 51% 100% 36,750
([r %4 ) (“Jinan Taiyi") PRC
BHERAEERARAT  Shenyang Hengyue Management Limited  #1] 70% 100% 7,500
([ ) (“Shenyang Hengyue”) PRC
YT HER & EHARAR  Shenzhen Yuhong Investment Limited s 51% 100% 1,833,071
([IHE ) (“Shenzhen Yuhong”) PRC
BAMBTEEARAT Yantai Xinhongyu Real Estate Co., Led. 1 60% 100% 280,000
([E&HET]) (“Yantai Xinhongyu”) PRC
T A RAF Xi'an Xianghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. I 51% 100% 24,500
(TPHRHIE ) (“Xi'an Xianghui”) PRC
MEBEEEAR A Xi'an Xucheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. i 51% 100% 171,500
([PE% R ) (“Xi'an Xucheng”) PRC
EMEMEEMNEARAT  Zhengzhou Henghu Real Estate Co., Led. 1] 60% 100% 64,332
(TER M ) (“Zhengzhou Henghu”) PRC
3,958,301
WE © ARARECE R - A A R ) TR T Note: According to the investment agreements, the Group has sufficiently dominant voting
i AR S B A BTG ) > (R interest to direct the relevant activities of these entities and therefore the Group had
VS B A~ AU HE A B 7 e A control over Guiyang Jiatai, Hangzhou Longzhuo and Jinan Taisheng.
il
AU AR AN > e The acquisition has been accounted for as equity transactions and the total
1 AL o I R A kA 2 42 o i O R difference between the consideration paid and the carrying amounts of
TE {727 1 1 48 2 A L At 1 v the attributable reserves and non-controlling interest acquired had been
g e recognised directly in other reserve.
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38. WA HE 2 A i 2 Hi g (R 2K
L PeiihE)

BESF-SFEFAST-HILEE
AL DU BRI AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38. DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF
CONTROL

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group disposed partial

interest in the following entity:

RGP ARERORR
BOL S P e ik e BRE
Equity Equity
interest interest
held by held by
the Group the Group
Place of before after Total
Name of subsidiary establishment disposal disposal  consideration
AR TE
RMB000
AMERFEREREEKH  Taizhou Yujing Real Bstate Information g 100% 83% 124,956
HRAF ([ BMHE ) Consultant Co., Ltd. (“Taizhou Yujing”) PRC

HHR L > AEEA RN EE LG L
TR E M AAREE S > FtAERE S
NHIR A FEIRE o Ot - MBI A A
FEME AT - i EC AR A
o EUE R E & EE THE M £
FUBAR LR S WAEK -

248  Longfor Group Holdings Limited 3 i % B 18 5 B 2 A

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has sufficiently dominant voting
interest to direct the relevant activities of this entity and therefore the
Group has control over Taizhou Yujing. Accordingly, Taizhou Yujing
remains as a subsidiary of the Group and the disposal has been accounted
for as an equity transaction. The difference between the consideration

received and the net asset values disposed is insignificant to the Group.
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38. WMEMBA WM R (K% 38 DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS IN

KEWIHE) ) SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF
CONTROL (Continued)

BE-Z -+ -A=+—HILFEE During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group disposed partial

ARG LU B A > i - interest in the following entity:

AEEPIERT  AEER R

i} /e L B P Bt BRE
Equity Equity
interest interest
held by held by
the Group the Group
Place of before after Total
Name of subsidiary establishment disposal disposal consideration
AR
RMB000
BN B e B Zhengzhou Lihu Real Estate Company Limited /& 65% 43% (k) 40,628
HRAT (“Zhengzhou Lihu”) PRC (Note)
(M)
MR - ARERECE TR o I A0 B B AR Note:  According to the investment agreement, the relevant activities of the entity require
B R ME R S - AR consent with more than half of the directors in the board of the entity. The Group has
P E S 19 M BCEHE  HAE B 51% of the voting right of the entity and as such, the Group is able to exercise control
BT TORHERIRE > BOUBAR A 4R M B of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.
BT -
FHERL > AEEA R TR ERER L In the opinion of the directors, the Group has sufficiently dominant voting
FRAEZ T R TS B) o PR oA 4 B IR interest to direct the relevant activities of this entity and therefore the
N1 2RI RE o Wt » SN TERIAA 73 s AR Group has control over Zhengzhou Lihu. Accordingly, Zhengzhou Lihu
LEEM B AT & CAEARERHA remains as a subsidiary of the Group and the disposal has been accounted
HE o SR AUE R i A i 2 for as an equity transaction. The difference between the consideration
R B N 10,414,0000C » B H %7 HAb received and the net asset values disposed of RMB10,414,000 had been
TRt fRTRERR recognised directly in other reserve.
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39. HENEA R 39.

BEF_=F1tA=1+—HILFE;
AL B =T HE T ME AR
%% P > {1790 I 5 o A TR I e
LR ESUYE/ESEPIE S

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group disposed the
following subsidiaries to independent third-parties, which are individually
insignificant, engaging in the property development and property

management business in the PRC.

REL,/ REMHER  AREHER
WA 4 7 L it e it e ERE
Equity Equity
interest interest
held by held by
Place of the Group the Group
incorporation/ before after Total
Name of subsidiaries establishment disposal disposal  consideration
ARMFx
RMB000
HEENSEEEA R/ Nanning Longhu Jinyao Property Company i 60% 0% 272,634
(=L ]) Limited (“Nanning Jinyao”) PRC
MEENSVEEAR/AR Nanning Longhu Jinchang Property Company 1 80% 0% 110,532
(%S5 Limited (“Nanning Jinchang”) PRC
Fr iR R EELHRAH Jinan Wanke Zhongxiang real Estate Company 1 20% 0% 10,000
(TERRE] Limited (“Wanke Zhongxiang”) PRC
REAEEEHERAT Tianjin Ruibin Real Estate Company Limited Ll 50% 50% (i ika) %
(TKEEE] (“Tianjin Ruibin”) PRC (Note a) Nil
L4 REEFMEMER Beijing Jinliangxingye Real Estate Development 1 20% 200 (MfEta) X
WA (x4 REZE])  Company Limited (‘Beijing Jinliangxingye”) ~ PRC (Note a) Nil
WM EPELHRAR  Changzhou Jiabang Real Estate Company g 51% 519 (Fitika) %
([EMFEHED Limited (‘Changzhou Jiabang”) PRC (Note a) Nil
WA G S Chonggqing Lejie Real Estate management i 100% 0% 15,005
HIRAF(TEESAE])  Company Limited (“Chongging Lejie”) PRC
S (M) (5 SRHHEEE  Huigang (Hangzhou) Information Technology 100% 0% 407,287
HRAF (WM ) Development Limited (‘Huigang (Hangzhou)”) PRC
L AFRHERS  Beijing Zhonggong Future Education il 51% 0% 82,250
HRAT (e Technology Company Limited PRC
%) (“Beijing Zhonggong Furure”)

250 = Longfor Group Holdings Limited 3 i % B §& 5 £ 2 A
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AL,/ REEGEN  ARELER
WA 2 AL itk e it e ARE
Equity Equity
interest interest
held by held by
Place of the Group the Group
incorporation/ before after Total
Name of subsidiaries establishment disposal disposal  consideration
AR T
RMB000
M EEA AR Nantong Wenhu Real Estate Company Limited 35% 339%(fifitka) 10,253
([ ) (“Nantong Wenhu”) PRC (Note a)
REERELEEAMAT Wuhan Qinglong Xinrong Real Estate Company 1 50% 499 (W&ED) 28,540
(TREFEESE)) Limited (“Wuhan Qinglongxinrong”) PRC (Note b)
MESHERMERE  Nanning Jinhongsheng Real Estate Company —~ #1H] 34% 0% 19,764
HRAF ((HESEAE])  Limited (“Nanning Jinhongsheng”) PRC
LRCHEEREESES  Beijing Ren Champion Apartment Commercial [ 100% 0% 36,410

HRAF (T HE ] Operation Management Company Limited PRC

(“Betjing Ren Champion Apartment”)

FETTHEMARIEMRE  Longkou City Longfor Yincheng Property i 51% 0% 510
HRAF(THERNMK])  Management Company Limited PRC

(“Longkou Yincheng”)

993,185

WRE - Notes:

(a) BE_Z_=F+_A=1+—HILFE > (a) During the year ended December 31, 2023, the shareholders of the Tianjin Ruibin,
REEW - RS RBZE - WM L Beijing Jinliangxingye, Changzhou Jiabang and Nantong Wenhu entered into
S Y IR T S A AT ek > ELARBRILIR supplemental agreements pursuant to which all of the relevant activities required
A R B Y R A BT A TR — B approval by unanimous consent of all of its shareholders and thus they are regarded as
B FM B s A E R . joint ventures.

(b) BE-Z =+ A=+—HIEE (b) During the year ended December 31, 2023, the shareholders of the Wuhan Qinglong

BRI A AR LW A LI
B S B PR B B0 B T
B LTRSS — MR AT -

Xinrong entered into a supplemental agreement pursuant to which the Group has
significant influence on relevant activities of the entity and thus they are regarded as

an associate.
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39. MEMNEA R @)

BE-Z-_H+_HA=t+—HILEEF
ARSE N n) B 5 = M DL R M A R
LA W 2 AR R T 5 e A FE R RS
B9 2 B 5 ST I ) S BT o

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

management business in the PRC.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Group disposed the
following subsidiaries to independent third-parties, which are individually
insignificant, engaging in the property development and property

st AL/ AR ARENER
Wi 74 Oz PRl B ARE
Equity Equity
interest interest
Place of held by held by
incorporation/ the Group the Group Total
Name of subsidiaries establishment before disposal after disposal consideration
AR
RMB000
LEBREEBLARAT  Beijing Tengtaiyiyuan Real Estate Company ~ H 25% 25% (k) %
([ereFEE) Limited (“Beijing Tengtaiyiyuan”) PRC (Note) Nil
PHRITERNEEHAR  Heilongjiang Wanrui Property Management A 51% 0% 3,000
IS Fin 5] Company Limited (‘Heilongjiang Wanrui’) ~ PRC
FEMHEREREARAT  Guangzhou Longtai Real Bstate Company i 50% 0% 23,000
(TEMER ) Limited (“Guangzhou Longtai”) PRC
ER B REAERSARAT Yunnan Jiazhuo Real Estate Development i 34% 0% 944,698
(A Company Limited (“Yunnan Jiazhuo”) PRC
BTSN E Huizhou Yachuang Real Estate Development A 51% 0% 86,406
HRAT ([ EMTES ) Company Limited (‘Huizhou Yachuang”) PRC
HiRERREARAR  Shanghai Pinhui Real Estate Company Limited 100% 0% 202,946
([ b)) (“Shanghai Pinhui”) PRC
RS EEEAER AT Nantong Jinde Real Estate Company Limited A 40% 0% 480,000
([FsRE]) (“Nantong Jinde”) PRC
HEREEEAR A Nantong Jinhui Real Estate Company Limited 40% 0% 480,000
([r@mE]) (“Nantong Jinhui") PRC
R ERERAREE Beijing Shoukai Longhu Yingtai Real Estate 1 50% 50% (Mf3E) %
HRARA( LB Company Limited (“Beijing Shoukai”) PRC (Note) Nil
MMEEEEHRAT Hangzhou Xingtong Real Estate Company i 32% 329 (MftzE) %
(TS ) Limited (“Hangzhou Xingtong”) PRC (Note) Nil
JEstAmELERAR  Beijing Jinlong Yonghui Real Estate Company 26% 0% 26,926
) Limited (“Beijing Jinlong Yonghui”) PRC
MRERRRAERAR Lakevision Capital Inc., (“Lakevision”) Bk 100% 0% 6,334
(kD) Hong Kong
BRI ARAT  Weihai Longcheng Property Service Company 1 67% 0% 670
([ HiHERL)) Limited (“Weihai Longcheng”) PRC
2,254,480

Note:

Wiak: BE-F A=t —HIEEE
4 A B O PR RERT S 72 B > RUE - BT
R ) 1 B 70 A0 R 2 B PBOR — R At
i FILH BB EAE -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the shareholders of the entity entered
into a supplemental agreement pursuant to which all of the relevant activities
required approval by unanimous consent of all of its shareholders and thus it is
regarded as a joint venture.

EHEEERERAR
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

CERCEE R
2023 2022
ANRWETIL AR¥EFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Jir B T Net assets disposed of:

TOEE( Kﬁnﬂz Investment properties (Note 12) 1,856,341 2,775,600
Y - R I (HsE13) Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 1,420 705
TR ( Wuili Goodwill (Note 15) - 4,039
B E (Mk17) Intangible assets (Note 17) = 5,298

M¥ELFE Inventories of properties:

—%fﬁﬁﬁ'%ﬂ’\] B2 — Properties under development for sales 8,932,961 8,958,608

— RS — Properties held for sales 5,699,867 1,220,290
FEN AR &ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%{ JIH -~ ek Accounts and other receivables,

TR deposits and prepayments 1,461,448 6,522,981
JEASE F§] Amounts due from the Group 398,331 -
JRE A I 7 1 B 4 Jﬁ{i Amounts due from non-controlling interests 165,565 -
B X Contract cost 12,901 -
SATH IR N & Bank balances and cash 1,404,872 1,205,543
AL ] A I Taxation recoverable 342,593 239,479
TR B (FffiE34) Deferred taxation assets (Note 34) 125,222 43714
FEATHRIE S REAT 2295 ~ HABMERTZIE  Accounts and bills payables, other payables and

MR accrued charges (3,288,810)  (5,348,141)
JEAS} A I Taxation payable (483,8406) (272,211)
AHARE Contract liabilities (5,867,306)  (2,977,305)
IEIERIE BAE (MM :134) Deferred taxation liabilities (Note 34) (42,402) (6,692)
JHE AoF A 4 [ R Amounts due to the Group (445,246) (192,275)
JREASS F F2 i 1 i R Amounts due to non-controlling interests (1,961,197)  (2,333,199)
|7 &,ﬂ\iﬁ’ﬂ,{%%’(——ﬁﬁqﬂgﬁ Bank and other borrowings — within one year (175,000) -
SRAT A 2 — — R 3 Bank and other borrowings — due after one year (1,075,000) (128,620)
BT A Net assets disposed of 7,062,714 9,717,814

W e R Less: Non-controlling interests (3,646,354) (5,812,734)

3,416,360 3,905,080
RATAT I F7 KA Consideration satisfied by:

B4 Cash 660,256 1,309,782

F Loan assignment 332,929 944,698

BN R 2 AT (K5 Fair value of interests in joint ventures (Note) 1,494,438 1,363,724

W o AIRE S5 2 AT (BT Fair value of interests in associates (Note) 1,038,080 -

3,525,703 3,618,204

HEZ B S GRE ) RA R Net cash (outflow) inflow on disposal transactions:
B4 Cash received 660,256 1,309,782
W B HERS NS EY SR Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed (1,404,872)  (1,205,543)
(744,616) 104,239

BEGE © A S R A R I B RE P T
FE R E il et O ) Ul
T o

Note:

The fair value of the equity interests in the joint ventures and associates are

determined with reference to the fair value of the underlying inventories of properties

and consideration of disposal of subsidiaries.
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A0A. YRS A A 1Y £ TR 40A.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
AN B A 42 ] [R] l E A The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
AT B EEE & - BE financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
T EA A SRR iR AL IS arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
HeRER AR EEHRERENH future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
SRBRARE ST E - of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

L gzl TEfihre EfihE SRiTh

s A EFHH Feltdeat BERHE IERfRA AR it
Amounts Amounts
dueto Amounts dueto Bank
non-controlling due to joint and other Senior Dividend Lease
interests associates ventures borrowings notes payables liabilities Total

AEHTL ARKTE ARKTFR ARETE ARETR ARETL ARETE ARKETR
RMBOW ~ RMBU®  RMBUW  RMBOW  RMBW  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUW

REFZZF-f-H AcJanuary 1, 2023 2652900 11655376 6897980 194802931 13,205,169 207262 486336 286150334
RERETE Financing cash flows (3,398,200) (2,433,990) 616,646 (20,400,110) (2,475,286) (1,762,222) (1439900 (B1293,153)
BN A Acquisition of assets and liabilities

EERAE through acquisition of subsidiaries - (48,382) = = = = = (48,382)
HEMEAA Disposalof subsidiaries (1961,197) = 178332 (1,250,000) - - - (3,032,865)
TER TR IR (3R Offset with amounts due from

non-controlling interests (2,176,428) - - - - - - (2,176,428)
FEHERITH Capital injection from
non-controlling interests (11,713,298) - - - - - - (11,713,298

TREAAG B AR Fait value option recognised at

ATl bond nitial date - - - 10851 - - - 10851
SMEHE Foreign exchange translation - - - 735,636 21,786 - - 957422
HEm Inception of leases - - - - - - 817,381 817,381
HEAEER Lease liabilities charges = = = = = = 792,734 792,734
AR Finance coss - - - 7,528,632 1,155,686 - - 8,684,318
(el illen Gain on redemption of bonds = = = (85922) = = = (85922)
EEl gt e Gain on redemption of senior notes - - - - (803,812) - - (803,812)
EEREE Dividends declared - - - - - 7,163,795 - 7,163,795
EGUL Tssue of scrip shares as dividend - - - - - (5,364,843) - (5,364,843)
BREIHE Barly termination of leases = = = = = = (201,346) (201,346)
ACEZEEFTHZT—H A December 31,203 23,403,687 9,173,004 7,692,938 181,342,018 11,303,543 2,109,362 14,832,214 249,856,786

254 - Longfor Group Holdings Limited 3 % B2 18 5 B & A
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40A.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

B e Eff A8 A
et sUR AR i it R FEfRE HERH it
Amounts Amounts
dueto Amounts due to Bank
non-controlling due to joint and other Senior Dividend Lease
interests associates ventutes borrowings notes payables liabilities Total
ARHTFL  ABEFL AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKTT ARETE
RMBU0O RMB000 RMBU0O RMBU0O RMBO0OO RMBU0O RMBOOO RMBU0O
REEZZZHE-A-H At January 1, 2022 45,863,816 10,496,275 8112495 174440156 17,626,356 2854924 16067690 275,463,712
RERENE Financing cash flows 879,717) 1,159,101 (1,214515) 8,664,439 (6,610,067) (5,512,043) (1,382,720) (5,775,522)
ERIEIE A A Acquisition of assets and liabilities
BERsk through acquisition of subsidiaries - - - 385,000 - - - 385,000
HEMEAT Disposal of subsidiaries (2.333,199) - - (128,620 - - - (2461819)
TS B R0 Fair value option recognised at
Uik bond initial date - - - (298991) - - - (29859)
SNEHE Foreign exchange translation - - - 3,606,580 1,523,079 - - 5,129,665
HERE Inception of leases - - - - - - 081,045 681,045
HEARER Lease liabilicies charges - - - - - - 888,159 888,159
AR Finance coss - - - 8,134,361 665,801 - - 8,800,162
RERTE Dividends declared - - - - - 9,548,249 - 9,548,249
B E R Issue of scrip shares as dividend - - - - - (4,818,498) - (4,818,498)
REL G Early termination of leases - - - - - - (1390,828) (1,390,828)
REFZZFFZAZ4—H At December 31,2022 42,652,900 11,655,376 6897980 194802931 13,205,169 2,072,632 14863346 286,150,334
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40B. FEIBLER Y 40B.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
WE_ZZ_=F1+ZA=+—HILF During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group offset the amounts
FE o A 52 B DL A I % ) RE £ SR K due from non-controlling interests with the amounts due to non-
SHENCE RIS 2 E > &8 A AR controlling interests for an amount of RMB2,176,428,000 (December 31,
#2,176,428,000 76 ( =% Z Z 4+ 2 J 2022: RMB4,519,682,000).

=+—H : AR%4,519,682,0007C) °

7B B (8 BRI B B 2ERT S The Group entered into new lease agreements for investment properties
T Wik o AL EBA LGN > A 4E E R under sublease. On the lease commencement, the Group recognised
fﬁlﬁ?ﬂ’]&@@%iﬂﬂj\ﬁﬁﬁﬂ 381,000 additions to investment properties under sublease amounting to

“EZZETZA=ET R AR RMB817,381,000 (December 31, 2022: RMBG681,045,000) and lease
'ﬁqk 681,045,000 ) K L& & A R ¥ liabilities of RMB817,381,000 (December 31, 2022: RMB681,045,000).

817,381,000 (—F - _“HF+_H=+—
H : AR¥681,045,0007C) °

40C. RIEBLEH I 40C. CASH OUTFLOWS FOR LEASES
EMB LR B AT Total outflows for leases are as below:

2023 2022

ABBTL  ARKTL
RMB000  RMB'000

Vi Wk d<c/Eva ViRl Leased properties under subleases classified
GINEUES as investment properties 1,439,901 1,382,720
FH AR R B Y T Tt Leasehold lands included in investment properties
under development 3,286,520 3,650,987
FIAVEAENAE T Leasehold lands included in inventories
of properties 9,109,677 31,372,756
IREE G KA Low-value assets and short-term leases 90,374 107,978

13,926,472 36,514,441
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SE P At

R B R BRI A R > A RN R
I P A 126023 T ek b T BB A B A S
T8 BERCRIRTT B o A2 7Y o 2 Bt 2
1] % 1 ) (R AR TR BB ARAE A > 3%
PSRRI A 0 7 i UG ] 2 Y 408 BT 4
BT H S R o AEERARR
PRAE A E AT A AR AT B
HERK - RoB_=F+_H=+—
H > 742 [ 57 20 ] 0 405 M i DA s A
BUREHEFOKT
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42.

BEZRC=EHT DA IR
For the year ended December 31, 2023

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by the local municipal government.
The Company’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated
on certain percentage of the average employee salary as agreed by local
municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees. The principal obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. As at December 31, 2023, there was no forfeited contributions

usable by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustee.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme and the

same amount is matched by employees.

The Group recognised the retirement benefit contributions of
RMB447,537,000 (2022: RMB661,898,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Save as disclosed elsewhere, the following assets were pledged to secure
certain banking and other facilities granted to the Group at the end of the

reporting period:

I

2023 2022

AREFLT ARETIC

RMB’000 RMB’000

[d-C//ES Investment properties 120,115,881 79,082,346
Fe (gl yES PFD 1,118,173 2,702,880
BRI EYE PUD 25,247,720 43,140,184
FRAE B PFS 8,707,757 7,188,741
BRI T 3K Pledged bank deposits 1,198,327 528,886
156,387,858 132,643,037
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BEZFZETAST—HIMEE
For the year ended December 31, 2023

43. TRAE 43. COMMITMENTS
NHECERR > ANEEH T A : At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:
E IR U— -
2023 2022
ANB#TFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
T AR RS A B R E Contracted but not provided for in the consolidated
PEHH A financial statements:
—HRN AR REYER — Expenditure in respect of projects classified
BB E YT H B X as PUD and investment properties under
development 60,865,178 69,714,412
—HHRAL RS R/ — Expenditure in respect of acquisition of PFD/
A8 R RER BH S land use rights 5,012,152 23,061,062
65,877,330 92,775,474
4. BARAM 44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RoFE =T A=+—H > AEEER The Group provided guarantees amounting to RMB19,092,799,000 (at
A BRI AR R AT R AR A December 31, 2022: RMB15,532,647,000) as at December 31, 2023
R #19,092,799,0007C (A —F — —4F+ in respect of mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of the Group’s
A=+—H : AR¥15,532,647,0007C) ) properties. Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured by
Pk o AREEGA LY ER T RITE the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released
A ERATHRALIE LR o FZAFIE BRI 1 By by banks upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and completion
A 2 TR I e 1 2 B e 5 R P 4R of the relevant mortgage properties registration.
FTIRBR -
RN ERBL > AEEWER T WNHE In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of these
S5 08 DR 5 D) 2 V(B 0 A e i AN financial guarantee contracts to the purchasers of the Group's properties
HR > DURAR RIE SRR 0 % F R are insignificant at initial recognition and the directors of the Company
BABS 8 DR A0 5 BB MR A - SRR A H 7 2 consider that the credit risk exposure to financial guarantees provided
HE T IR A HE AR I A DA AR to customers are remote because the historical observed default ratio by
A EL A0 R R R R purchasers is relatively low and the facilities are secured by the properties
/S oy Y S [N el = Y S S and the market price of the properties is higher than the guaranteed
Ft+ A=+ HRREHREEREGS amounts, accordingly, the expected credit loss arising from the guarantee
EARNFENGERERERAAREK - contracts is considered to be insignificant at the end of the reporting period

as at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.
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(a)
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REZE-WEFA AR
TRENHA AN RN AR
R ) BB A7 ok it a1 o PR P e £
WEDET B B 7E R AT B T A
LR B E R - PR - R
AE B ERA B RRAAE 2 R
B AR s B 4 R AR
PR o ) HAR RSSO 65 o IRk
BT 25 5 A 2 [ ) 5 A N LR
BB 2 ABA LA (AR
8 7 1) 57 B A AR 22 U2 1E ) B AR
A (TSR 1) A B AEAT -

BE_Z_=HF+ZA=+—HI
R > AN TR A VR T R
M8 7 % 5E AN A A 3£17,921,000
JB (2% 4R 160,763,365 1)) A
N o R SE AR SCAT A ARLAR
BN 311,136,000 0 ( =& =
i NRE1,617,960,0007) B B
SOHESS FTBR o FBe 0 Bh ) BBl 70 4
AR

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:

(a)

Restricted share award scheme

On October 28, 2014 and August 26, 2020, restricted share
award schemes were adopted by the Company. The objective of
the restricted share award scheme is to recognise and motivate the
contribution of directors and employees of the Group, to provide
incentives, to help the Group in retaining its existing employees and
recruiting additional employees and to provide them with economic
interests in attaining the long-term business objectives of the
Group. The share award scheme allows the Group to make bonus
payments to eligible persons by way of the Company’s shares (the
“Awarded Shares”) acquired by and held through an independent

trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions before vesting.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, total of 17,921,000
(2022: 60,763,365) Company’s shares were acquired by an
independent trustee appointed by the Company for the share award
scheme. The aggregate consideration paid for these shares in an
amount of RMB311,136,000 (2022: RMB1,617,960,000) was
deducted from shareholders’ equity. Details of specific categories of

share awards are as follows:

£ 3% Annual Report 2023
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45, DAIBcAy Ry 2E R WAk 38 B 40) 45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
DIRE 25 %5 000 T A 385 B % Pt Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
Jﬁ“l‘%ﬂ ' (ﬂéﬁ)
() PR A st 5t 21 (47 (a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

RZZZ=E

REFZ=E RRERA tZA

MRS RRARM R 11— e
RhmRe  BFERH =0 MEERD  BEEMER

Riin UL GO UL I G ) Bl RGTAL  BEHE
Outstanding
Number of Share awards shares
Numberof ~ share awards granted  representing
share awards grantedto  Outstanding  representing % of the
granted directors shares as at % of the shares as at
as at date asatdate  December 31, sharesasat  December 31,
Grant date of grant of grant 2023 grant date 2023 Vesting period
el v o o T o 58,700,000 9,400,000 1,863,919 0.68% 003%  “F-A\E=R=1-HE
ZRTERERET-H
Share awards March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 to March 31, 2027
el “F-\E-R-A 7,175,000 % % 0.12% 00%  ZEF-NERAETHE
B S 7,y; o o
Share awards January 1, 2018 Nil Nil June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2022
BUEC) “F-NFEAZ1-H 21,510,000 3,850,000 5,153,269 036% 0087 “F-LESNE-HE
“ENEENEH
Share awards March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 to March 31, 2028
BUEC) “F- AR 100,000 % % 0.002% 0 ZEESAET-RE
CRITEERETA
Share awards January 23,2019 Nil Nil March 31,2019 to March 31, 2022
L] SENEEAZTH 26,690,000 4800000 10971572 045% 0% “EFEZAST-HE
SEENEEA=T-R
Share awards March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 to March 31, 2039
BUEC) “FUEF A= 200,000 % % 0.003% W CE-ESRS-NE
ZRIWEERET-H
Share awards December 30, 2019 Nil Nil March 31, 2021 to March 31, 2024
Tl B SECRERA-R 36,720,000 4550000 17994160 0.61% 0% ZF--EAS-RE
ZEREEZA=TR
Share awards April 1,2020 March 31, 2021 to March 31, 2040
Tl B CEIRETCAEN 350,000.00 z 7z 0.006% 0% CEITESASH-RE
e S Y
Share awards December 31, 2020 Nil Nil March 31, 2022 to March 31, 2025

Longfor Group Holdings Limited #E 4 = B # % 5 R A &)
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DB} Ry BSR4 s 38 B 4) 45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

DLE 25 45 0 e SR T e e Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

At #l )

(a) PRI A S msh 5 ) () (a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

RERZ=E

REZZ=E MR 1A

i . ik 2R RAERR =t
RbMRG  BFEEH =0 MEERD  REEMER

iR WRGE  RGUEHE  BOEMRS Al MRBEAL  BEHH
Outstanding
Number of Share awards shares
Numberof ~ share awards granted  representing
share awards grantedto  Outstanding  representing % of the
granted directors shares as at % of the shares as at
asat date asatdate  December 31, sharesasat ~ December 31,
Grant date of grant of grant 2023 grant date 2023 Vesting period
Bl B “FEZANH 200,000 % Z 0.0035% 0% "FCFEAET-RE
CECRESR=A-H
Share awards February 9, 2021 Nil Nil March 31,2022 to March 31, 2025
TRl “RCER-N 37,995,000 4100000 24477,765 0.63% 037%  CECCESASE-NE
“EN-%=R=1-H
Share awards April 1,202 March 31,2022 to March 31, 2041
it SRR 200,000 % 25,000 0.003% 000%  “ECCEARSTHE
“EZRERAETH
Share awards July 1,2021 Nil June 30,2022 to June 30, 2025
it CEZZERATAR 55,580,000 S000000 46,025,286 0.92% 070%  “ECEERATENE
CEMZERARA
Share awards May 16,2022 May 15, 2023 to May 15, 2042
Helsm CECZENATLA 51,000,000 8000000 50,728,905 080% 077%  “FZWENRTARE
CRMEERAAH
Share awards April 17,2023 April 16,2024 to April 16, 2043
Tty SFZEELAE-H 1,000,000 S 1,000,000 002% 002 “EZWELAZT-HE
SRONELAST-R
Share awards July 31,2023 Nil July 31,2024 to July 31, 2026
Tty SFZEELA=A-H 500,000 % 500,000 0.008% 0008% —EZELAZT-HE
ZREEREERE-A
Share awards July 31,2023 Nil July 31,2024 to July 31, 2033
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45, DAIBAR B REWE W90k 58 5% (40

DAHE 25 45 B 1 T A SARD i i

it

(a)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited

(#)
R A - it 2 (47

WEF =T ZHA=1T—HIt
AR ASE R AR 2 B A i
%ﬁ%%ikE%wmmwwﬁ
i’i**ﬁ N R 564,345,000
o 7R/ T 85 B 4 4 DA A T
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁoﬁ%’%é
BE R AR R

e B B R B R R T A
:2::@@H+ﬁﬁ&&ﬁ%%
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ﬁo
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45.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(a)

Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

The Group recognised an expense of RMB194,270,000
(2022:RMB564,345,000) for the year ended December 31, 2023
in relation to shares awarded by the Company. The shares awarded
by the Company will be settled with the existing shares held by the
trust. Accordingly, the respective amounts were credited to share

award reserve.

The estimated fair value of awards granted on April 17, 2023
amounted to RMB1,097,674,000, based on the market price of the

relevant shares at the grant date.

The estimated fair value of awards granted on July 31, 2023
amounted to RMB18,973,000, based on the market price of the

relevant shares at the grant date.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, there were changes to
vesting conditions for the share awards granted on March 31, 2019,
April 1, 2020, April 1, 2021, May 16, 2022 and April 17, 2023.
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BE =Bt f = H IS

For the year ended December 31, 2023

DB Ry BSR4 K 38 B () 45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
DI HE 25 &5 55 0% e Ay 0 sh / 1% Bt R Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
At : o)
(@) BRI S sl et ol (22 (a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)
A AR R AR OB ) S ) The movements of the Company’s share awards during the year:

et H

Number of share awards

RERZ=E
REFZ=H +ZA
—~A—H =t—H
ZiHAM WAL LAE S ENER LR WAL
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Vested Cancelled asat
January 1, during during during  December 31,
Grant date 2023 the year the year the year 2023
B 0 "R -tLEEAETH 10,695,399 - (6,541,815)  (2,287,605) 1,865,919
Share awards March 31,2017
e R “F-NEZRET-R 8,036,337 - (2,136,083) (746,985 5,153,269
Share awards March 31,2018
ety “ENEEAEAA 14,548,935 - (2,650490) (926,873) 10,971,572
Share awards March 31,2019
Tty “F-FENA-H 22915883 - (3,646,534 (1,275,189) 17,994,160
Share awards Aprll 1,2020
e R “ERCENA-A 29,570,381 - BIBI50  (1,319466)  24477,765
Share awards Apnl 1,2021
et AT -FLA-H 150,000 = = (125,000) 25,000
Share awards July 1, 2021
Tty “ECTERATAR 53,474,887 - (519454 (1930,147) 46,025,286
Share awards May 16, 2022
Tt B ZECEENAAER - 51,000,000 - (1,771,095) 49,228,905
Share awards April 17,2023
et R EHELA=H = 1,000,000 = = 1,000,000
Share awards July 31, 2023
B 0 CETERELAZ A - 500,000 - - 500,000
Share awards July 31,2023

139,391,822 52,500,000  (24,267,526)  (10,382,420) 157,241,876
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45. DAIBcA 25 BEREMIN KB Bh (40) 45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
VIRE 25 45 S0 00 e A0 S i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
wl & ¢ (49)
(@) PR A s et (4 (a)  Restricted share award scheme (Continued)
I ———
Tty BB H
Number of share awards
i -
REF-_F T2H
—~A—H =t—H
i A WAL R R LRnkRE WAL
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Vested Cancelled asat
January 1, during during during  December 31,
Grant date 2022 the year the year the year 2022
i) “F-tFE=EA=TH 21,321,075 - (81306300 (2495,040) 10,695,399
Share awards March 31,2017
T R “F-NEZERET-R 11,530,912 - (2679.876) (814,699) 8,036,337
Share awards March 31,2018
et “EF-NE-RSHER 50,000 - (50,000) - -
Share awards January 23,2019
i) “F-EERETA 18,854,047 - (3294219 (1,010893) 14,548,935
Share awards March 31,2019
B “EZ—JUEFCAZTH 150,000 - (50,000) (100,000) -
Share awards December 30, 2019
et “ERCERENA-H 28,838,840 - AT (1390,783) 22,915,883
Share awards April 1,2020
i) “FCFEF =N 125,000 - (87,500) (37,500) -
Share awards December 31, 2020
e R B Sy £ 50,000 - (50,000) - -
Share awards February 9,2021
TR “ERHEIA-H 35,098,995 - A689540)  (1439,074) 29,570,381
Share awards Aprll 1,2021
i) “F- LA 200,000 - (50,000) - 150,000
Share awards July 1, 2021
e R SEZZERAYAR - 55,580,000 - QL05,113) 53,474,887
Share awards May 16, 2022

116,818,869 55,580,000 (23,613,945)  (9,393,102) 139,391,822

264  Longfor Group Holdings Limited 3 % B2 18 5 B 2 A



45.

PAIB Ay 2 BE B W k38 5% (40)

DARE i 45 55 It 473 4D 1 T

gt o)
(b)  ERRESE

2% ) i 0 FRORE S B (T I FRORE St
) mER —EENET A
SHEAERN - HRRRER
o FEEMERAERESRA
GRS R B R AR o AR IR
B AN REMBARERCE
52 T R A D A7 F B PR E o
JRCHE R B AP 1 SR A 2 H R A
104 ©

S FCHE B EL R M AR BT A T

Ao B 2 R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(b)  Share option scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)

was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on December 23, 2009

for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and

eligible employees of the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme,

the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries were granted

options to subscribe for shares in the Company. The term of the

Share Option Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

Details of specific categories of share options are as follows:

REGAE R IR

psg il b

Share options granted to directors

RUMBRE SRR i
i YA LG T BRI L} Gyt
Number of
Number of  share options
share options granted to Exercise
granted asat ~ directors as at price of Contractual life
Grant date dateof grant  dateofgrant ~ the options  Vesting period of options
“E-RELOACTERE
i SERAEFCAZEER 10600000 43550000 sabr  “FFFCACEER i
Share options December 23, 2009 HKD8.44  December 23, 2010 to December 23, 2013 10 years
“EF-CE-RTERE
TR “F—E-AtEn 46,000,000 9200000 15 “EF-RE-AER i
Shate options January 17,2011 HKD12.528  January 17, 2012 to January 17, 2015 10 years
“EEEAACTARE
T “R—ELAZTAR 150,000,000 55,600,000 s8BT  ZE-RELAZTAR 1
Share options September 28, 2011 HKD8.28  September 28, 2013 to September 28, 2016 10 years
“R-nET-AlNAE
e ZE—TE—HILH 110,000,000 11,200,000 937 ZE-EF R 4
Share options November 4, 2014 HKD9.37  November 4, 2015 to November 4, 2019 10 years

WoZFEZ =T ZHZ+—H
45 0 RE ST B B B R AT 0l
R HEE T AR e 2 A WD O B
H %516,698,500 it (—%F = —

16,698,500/ ) » A8 AN FR
ZoEFT AT HIRGW
0.25% (" FE T4 1 0.27%) °

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted

and remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme as
at December 31, 2023 was 16,698,500 (2022: 16,698,500),

representing 0.25% (2022: 0.27%) of the shares of the Company as

at December 31, 2023.
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45.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(b)  Share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date when shares of the Company were first listed on SEHK.

The movements of the Company’s share options under the Share
Option Scheme held by directors and employees during the year:

No share options under the Share Option Scheme were exercised for
the year ended December 31, 2023.

Wb B
Number of options

e S

I BRo RCRCEE

frfiife —~A=H gl +ZA=t-R

i W BEYR AfT (k) AL

Outstanding Exercised ~ Outstanding

Exercise at during the a

price January 1, year  December 31,

Grant date HKD  Vesting period 2022 (Note) 2022 and 2023
il “F-IEt-RNA 937 Z“F-MEF-ANAZE
“E- - AlA

Share option November 4, 2014 November 4, 2014 to 20,757,000 (4,058,500 16,698,500

1300 S e S
FoRA= R
Exercisable at
December 31, 2022 and 2023

I (7T
Weighted average exercise
price (HKD)

November 4, 2019

20,757,000 (4,058,500) 16,698,500

16,698,500

9.37 9.37 9.37

BbGE « AT B AT i 4T 2 B A
39.93U5 7T ©

Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HKD39.93.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

I

CERCEE R
2023 2022
ANRWETIL AR¥EFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REHNIBR (FEA) T A& AR Profit for the year has been arrived at after
AR - charging (crediting):
B Auditor’s remuneration 8,508 8,863
FEA S AR ) SE A AR Cost of property inventories included in
cost of sales 138,569,781 186,340,731
W~ WU B e Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 221,084 319,058
i RS e Depreciation of right-of-use assets 49,089 81,197
TV Amortisation of intangible assets 204,167 205,375
WA B 2 T 4 B (E Write-down of inventories of properties
to net realisable value 1,013,782 -
BT A Staff costs
R (BRI RS 45 Directors” emoluments (including
ety B BB 9455 200 equity-settled share-based payments) 171,458 208,995
Fofth B T4 Other staff costs
BRI Retirement benefit contributions 447,022 661,347
DURE £ 45 T Bty o BB A ) 3K Equity-settled share-based payments 165,701 506,154
Hopth B T A Other staff costs 4,650,061 5,303,447
M8 TR Total staff costs 5,434,242 6,679,943
W B PR R Less: Amount capitalised to properties under
REMENGEARLEH development for sales and investment
properties under development (798,627)  (1,499,203)
4,635,615 5,180,740
a4 I A Minimum lease income from investment properties  (12,386,428) (11,558,803)
RN O Contingent rental income (549,393) (321,008)
W E AR E ML Less: direct expenses that generated rental income 3,038,481 2,901,401
(9,897,340)  (8,978,410)
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

47. BEMK 47. OPERATING LEASES
ARG E M A HALA The Group as lessor
AAEE A RN B AR S AH B B A A Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to investment
MEEMERR  AEMRE—MAZE property owned by the Group with lease terms of between 1 month to 20
20 2 [ o i KB E A AHE SERE years. All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the
AT AR A R RE IR 1 T 35 Al A o 7K event that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The lessee does not have
TN TE R 5 100 e T ) S P e an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.
1o
RUE T B AT RKIIBR AT Maturity analysis of operating lease payments:
2023 2022
ARWEFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—4E R Within one year 7,357,298 7,430,820
o AR In the second year 4,680,200 4,374,947
B4R In the third year 3,176,731 2,977,652
AU In the fourth year 2,194,194 1,960,778
S AR In the fifth year 1,548,388 1,402,582
T4 After five years 5,214,809 4,896,518
24,171,620 23,043,297
TREJNBEGERTEHRMEEHES The following table presents the amounts for operating leases reported in
(i profit or loss:
0000
2023 2022
AR#FE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
fi e FL AT 3K Lease payments that are fixed 12,386,428 11,558,803
REUHE TS ek LR 2 a8 E A3 Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate 549,393 321,008
12,935,821 11,879,811
B A BURHCR A 46 el b AR 2 np 4 70 There is lease income relating to variable lease payments that do not
BEAER depend on an index or rate.
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48. Y~ 17BN B O B 48. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

AR R iR U T At s A )k 1) 48 i 1Y Directors” and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed

HEH LATBHRRIE R R F AT pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

fi
HHR
HHAS TRl e AR MAEA gt
Salaries,
allowances
Directors’  and benefits Retirement
fees in kind Bonus benefit Total

ARETFE  ARKTE  ARKTE  ARBTZ  ARETZ
RMB00O  RMBUOO ~ RMBUOO ~ RMBUOO ~ RMB00O

HE-F-=F Year ended December 31, 2023
FZAZF—HILFE

A HTEE A)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
B TEE M. Chen Xuping = 16,500 18,031 138 34,669
il it Mr. Zhao Yi = 13,000 12,000 138 25,138

MBS (k) Mr. Zhang Xuzhong (Note ) = 12,214 16,194 101 28,509

B () Madam Shen Ying (Note b) = 8,007 7,000 138 15,805
Nt Sub-total - 50,381 53,225 515 104,121

B FHITEE B)  NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

HEMIAE (k) M. Xia Yunpeng (Note c) 360 - - = 360
FREIE A (W) Mr. Shao Mingxiao (Note f) = - - _ _
NGt Sub-total 360 = - - 360

0 BuddiEH C)  INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prederick Peter Mt. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Churchouse i 360 - - - 360
BELIEE Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek 360 = - - 360
RRESE Mr. Xiang Bing 360 - - _ 360
PR (k) M. Leong Chong (Note d) 360 = = = 360
Nt Sub-total 1,440 - - - 1,440
st Total 1,800 50,381 53,225 515 105,921
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48. WY~ [T R IE B M ) 48. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

DA _E B B8 7 AT S S 18 S
AEAL A 2 P SR LA R B T S A

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

BR
HEE ERA 4 BIRAEA FiH
Salaries,
allowances
Directors  and benefits Retirement
fees in kind Bonus benefit Total
NE¥FT  ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000
BEZECCF Year ended December 31, 2022
FoAZF—HIEEE
A WTEF A)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BE A (fke) Madam Wu Yajun (Note €) - 6,600 7350 126 14,142
FRMIBEAAE (Wi3Ee) Mr. Shao Mingxiao (Note ) - 8,760 28,050 113 36923
BRFTIEE Mr. Chen Xuping - 17,000 16,728 124 33,852
e M. Zhao Yi - 14,000 19,870 138 34,008
P (fEb) Madam Shen Ying (Note b) - 1,569 2352 2 3,946
Nt Sub-total - 47,995 74,350 526 122,871
B FHiER B)  NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
FRIRE A (e M. Shao Mingxiao (Note f) - 740 - 25 765
HEMAA (ko) M. Xia Yunpeng (Note ¢) 61 - - - 61
NG Sub-total 61 740 - 25 826
0 BudTER C)  INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Frederick Peter Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Churchouse 4 342 - - - 342
EREE M. Chan Chi On, Derek 342 - - - 342
BRSAA M. Xiang Bing 342 - - - 34
s (kg Mr. Zeng Ming (Note g) 342 - - - 342
NG Sub-total 1,368 - - - 1,368
g Total 1429 48,733 74,350 551 125,065
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Wi -

@  REBEERSFC =T AERAE
RATHEDR -

b))  hELERZFDCETAS T AREZR
EAMATES -

©  HEBRER-F-_H+A-HARZ
ERFITES -

@  BAEAER A =F-A-HERER
B ERATES -

(© PRERIG IS o iyt Satets oy o & By RUINJE 2
EATES -

6 EEIBEEAR EFHELASHAHH
PATESRTENTES > TR _F =
FE—AtHEHE -

(9  WWRSEARCF A HEHMEE
FHATHE S

DA _E 7m0 A 5 2 3 S A1
Tt 55 A B A B O ) B A S P S s B
ARG MRS T A -

DAk B 7 8 37 AT 3 S g 5 o
AEAL R 2 P SR LA B T S

B SEEIR AC N R AT BUB AR E3C
27 B 4 EL % HA AT BUBBAR (L s
I o

FlEREEHEE F - =F A=+
H Lk A7 B B 4~ A CE A
WS - BRI AR A AR
104,121,0007C » B =R = ZAEAFFAR
#122,871,0007C > T B A R 18,750,000
TG o FEIR15.39 o (BLr  EIEE SR %
AR R28%)

Br b SCHTRAN » R R = BB
TS~ BRI S SRR e Rk
J& L+ DR SR AT A R B0
JEh 5% 4 4 Al B N R 6,262,000 T~ AR
#11,258,0007C ~ A R 10,753,000 78 K
AR #8,695,00070 (& — 4 ¢ RAR
BTt AHBESEAE - BT SEE
WO RbE Lt ARlAT - AR
15,163,0007G * A B #53,479,00070 ~ AR
#6,255,0007C K [ #842,0007T)

48.

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Zhang Xuzhong was appointed as an executive director with effect from January
10, 2023.

(b) Madam Shen Ying was appointed as an executive director with effect from October
28, 2022.

(c) Mr. Xia Yunpeng was appointed as a non-executive director with effect from October
28, 2022.

(d) Mr. Leong Chong was appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect
from January 1, 2023.

(e) Madam Wu Yajun was resigned as an executive director with effect from October 28,
2022.

f) Mr. Shao Mingxiao was re-designated from an executive director to a non-executive
director with effect from October 28, 2022 and resigned with effect from January 10,
2023.

(8) Mr. Zeng Ming tendered resignation as an independent non-executive director with

effect from January 1, 2023.

The executive directors’ and non-executive directors’” emoluments shown
above were for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Chen Xuping is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as
the Chief Executive.

The total amount of salaries, allowances and benefits in kind, bonus and
retirement benefit of the Directors above-mentioned for the year ended
December 31, 2023 was RMB104,121,000 (2022: RMB122,871,000), a
decrease of RMB18,750,000 or 15.3% as compared to 2022. The bonus
decreased by 28% as compared to 2022.

Apart from the above, the amount of long-term incentive bonus of Mr.
Chen Xuping, Mr. Zhao Yi, Mr. Zhang Xuzhong and Madam Shen Ying
in 2023 for achieving long-term strategic goal were RMB6,262,000,
RMB11,258,000, RMB10,753,000 and RMB8,695,000 respectively
(2022: Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Chen Xuping, Mr.
Zhao Yi and Madam Shen Ying: Nil, RMB15,163,000, RMB3,479,000,
RMB6,255,000 and RMB842,000, respectively).

£ 3% Annual Report 2023
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48.

A AT B B )

B b SCHOREMAN > N E =4 HH
BT oA - RS SRR e A R
T L1 DARE £ 45 50 2 SR 0 1Y R I
T P 22 4 %8 0 Tl s N R 14,922,000 7T
N R #4,299,0000C ~ A R #5,055,000 76
BN H4293,00000 (& 74 ¢+ SR
Wt~ ARRABESE A - BRT TR M
W Rk Lt s ARlAE - AR
27,562,0007G ~ AR #13,184,00070 * AR
#15,511,00070 % A R ¥1,934,00070) ©

R A AT AR A R B
(7] A A T B 2 B -

P I B e A Ao 5 S AT B
ARG IR B WS o A SR I A S B
s 2 B -

JRBABAE R > BRAT 4 BHAAT 34 - 18
AL MNA AR S - WES
BATHABK L AEBE MM A AR 2
BT BUAB R 1 B B B A
AT B 2 R 285 2 B T 2 A°F e < 2
% Wi E RS TEAE L TR -

AN FIATE R AR FEALA K > 1EAL
Ao A 4 T B AR T 4 B Y 2 35
&

(H=EA

KREMBLREHFMA LT > =4 (CF
T ZR)RAANAESR . HM4E
B RE o BRI (ZE A T

48.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Other than the emolument shown above, the amount of equity settled
share-based payment expense of Mr. Chen Xuping, Mr. Zhao Yi, Mr.
Zhang Xuzhong and Madam Shen Ying in 2023 are RMB14,922,000,
RMB4,299,000, RMB5,055,000 and RMB4,293,000 respectively (2022:
Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Chen Xuping, Mr. Zhao
Yi and Madam Shen Ying: Nil, RMB27,562,000, RMB13,184,000,
RMB15,511,000 and RMB1,934,000, respectively).

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

No amount was paid during the financial year or receivable by directors or
the Chief Executive as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group.

No compensation was paid during the financial year or receivable by
directors, past directors or the Chief Executive for the loss of office as a
director or the Chief Executive of any member of the Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the affairs of any member
of the Group distinguishing between contractual payments and other

payments.

Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which
are determined based on performance of the Group and individual for the

particular years.

Employee’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
(2022: three) were directors of the Company whose emolument is included

in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2022:

Z)RA L R 4 R two) individuals were as follows:
2023 2022
ARWETFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi BN CE AR R Salaries allowances and benefits in kind 12,741 23,333
FLHABITEAL Performance related bonuses 41,158 72,271
DA £ 5 58 T I A oy e T 3K Equity-settled share-based payments 6,645 26,512
RRAE R Retirement benefits contributions 152 176
60,696 122,292
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48.

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employee’s emoluments (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of

the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

ZRT=gE —FE T
2023 2022
PN IH=PN
No. of No. of
employees employees
75,500,001 %5 7G £76,000,0005 G HKD?75,500,001 to HKD76,000,000 = 1
67,000,001 7C 267,500,000 7T HKD67,000,001 to HKD67,500,000 = 1
34,500,001 957G 435,000,000 76 HKD34,500,001 to HKD35,000,000 1 -
32,500,00135 76 £ 33,000,00095 7T HKD32,500,001 to HKD33,000,000 1 -
2 2

A BA A JBE P B J06  £+F M of T 4% B e
P 4 B 25 T 5 EL I S8 o A £
iRy 2 S o JARFERAEIE A > BRAT A R
B > B A S BAL AT A AR Z
T4 B R B IR B Ok BATAT A B A A4
AL A 1S B 2 ) S5 2 I T 8 AF s ot
T B B B 2 AT T -

L Fyip)

BRI &5 & B IR LR B Wi k24 1% 28189
BT KEERON - AR ARG I L B Oy
AL R ERA S -

49.

No amount was paid to the five highest paid employees during the
financial year or receivable as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group. No compensation was paid to the five highest paid employees
during the financial year or receivable for the loss of any office in
connection with the management of the affairs of any member of the Group

distinguishing between contractual payments and other payments.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the balances with related parties as set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and in notes 24 and 28, the Group entered

into the following significant transactions with its related parties during

the year:
@ BEME (a) Joint ventures
I 20000000

B St S S
2023 2022
ARFEFE ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FLEHA Interest income 320,571 433,684
SN Consultancy income 83,950 57,377
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49. BT RYm) 49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
b) HFEAF (b) Associates
:g::@ :2::
2023 2022

AR#ETFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

FEBA Interest income 110,220 88,468
FEEIA Consultancy income 34,463 82,426
(0 FEEHERES (¢) Key management and directors
I 20000000
2023 2022

AEBTL  ARKTL
RMB000  RMB'000

B Sales of properties 49,765 42,380
LA UN Rental income 85 51
RN Renovation income 71 _
d) BHEAFE] (d) Related companies
L
B S —E T
2023 2022

ARHTFE  ARWTT
RMB000  RMB'000

RGBS (Ff5E2) Donation expense (Note 2) 31,700 130,000
PHEMIZE ~ RS Mk (BE5E2)  Sales of property, plant and equipment (Note 2) - 21,733
LB WA (3R Rental income (Note 1) - 1,950
WEEE M (FE2) Property management income (Note 2) = 1,337

F3E - Notes:

1. B B R A A B R o 1. The related companies are controlled by the major shareholder of the

Company.
2. S B A RIS & (A 2. The transactions are relating to Longfor Foundation, which is govern by the
AT FEEIEER) AR - key management of the Company.
(e) AFENEAT B FEST A 7] B e (e)  The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of

(IR B 7N W R EE 2 ) 1 367 M 0 I the Company, who are the directors of the Company, for the

548 o year is set out in note 48.
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50. i AR b 2 2
P 8 2% il ik A

50. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

TR BB K R I A AR 4 )

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

BB A E R Group that have material non-controlling interests:
AL,/ et G SR RET R
WHAR A9 TERENE RN el 2y EEERA o)
Proportion of
Place of ownership interests
incorporation/ and voting
principal place rights held by Profit (Loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests  non-controlling interest  non-controlling interests
I 002 0902020202 aaa—— 0209090
Y S S S A S " S R = A S
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
AW ARETT ARETE AEETE
RMBOOO  RMBUOO ~ RMBOOO  RMB00O
WG ELERAR  Chengdu Ruipeng Real Estate Co, Led. ]
([ H#smED) (“Chengdu Ruipeng”) PRC 50% 50% 163210 (10193 643,017 479807
TUMERCHETAR  Hangzhou Jiateng Traffic Control i
DA (HMERLE])  West Station Co., Lid PRC
(‘Hangzhou Jiateng Jiaokong”) 49% 49% 993,522 B30 3487252 2493730
BAFLHERNMEA  Individually immaterial subsidiaries
FEAMBEAT with non-controlling incerests 3,125807 8427134 80,361,289 88,105,194
42825%9  8460,671 84,491,558 91,078,731

£ 3% Annual Report 2023
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50. A BEARFERMHER2HELE 50 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
B & 2 e ) SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

AR i 3
Chengdu Ruipeng Hangzhou Jiateng Jiaokong

“ROEE i S “RTERE Y
2023 2022 2023 2022

ARMTE  AREFT  ARWTE  ARKTFT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMBU00

HEgE Current assets 1,583,523 2,097,721 8,090,395 17,897,515
B G Non-current assets = 6,795 1,046,047 -
hEaE Current liabilities (297,489) (1,102,862) (2,002,369) (12,808,270)
FiEa s Non-current liabilities = (42,040) (17,231) -

1,286,034 959,614 7,116,842 5,089,245
YN Z PN A Equity attributable to owners of the Company 643,017 479,807 3,629,590 2,593,515
eI Non-controlling interests 643,017 479,807 3,487,252 2,493,730

1,286,034 959,614 7,116,842 5,089,245

i = i S B S

2023 2022 2023 2022

ARMTE  ARKTZ  ARMTE  ARKTZ
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB00 RMB000

A Revenue 2,240,699 - 12,477,532 521,730
ANl R NEG S (R Profit (loss) attributable to the owners

of the Company 163,210 (10,193) 1,034,074 45515
FEEHIERS I A (B4 Profit (loss) attributable to the

non-controlling interests 163,210 (10,193) 993,522 43,730

SRR (B HR) B2 Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income

(B (expense) for the year 326,420 (20,386) 2,027,596 89,245
ANFERRS > ABHE KA 583 The directors of the Company considered that the cash flows of Chengdu
BB SR ESARERT ST AELR » ) Ruipeng and Hangzhou Jiateng Jiaokong are not material to the Group
S AHEAR 55 A A T B 4 A R ) B R AE and so no summarised financial information on the cash flows for the year
o are disclosed.
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51.

52.

BEZRC=EHT DA IR

For the year ended December 31, 2023

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes,
where appropriate, the borrowings and senior notes disclosed in notes
30 and 31 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,

reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and take

appropriate actions to balance its overall capital structure.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

I

SERCOEE R
2023 2022
AREFE ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
S A E Financial assets
678 Fy v LR G Derivative financial instruments designated as
TH hedging instruments 458,300 366,499
e B B Y 4 Financial assets at amortised cost 150,673,954 177,461,577
AT EFFA KM A4 Equity instruments at FVTOCI
fEa LA 6,639,807 8,108,525
A TERFAIBZE &M EE  Financial assets at FVTPL 2,000 34,933
SHAaE Financial liabilities
BB A Amortised cost 271,916,193 330,859,914
WS B E S 2 Bk A Contingent consideration for acquisition of business 107,688 112,128
e T A Derivative financial instruments 1,125,592 1,903,260
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52. RTH @
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

()

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, derivative
financial instruments, accounts and other receivables, amounts due
from/to non-controlling interests, associates and joint ventures,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, accounts and bills
payables, other payables, bank and other borrowings, senior notes,
deferred consideration payable and financial liabilities at FVTPL.
Details of these financial instruments are set out in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates risks and

other price risk (see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the

risk over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank balances
and bank and other borrowings which carried at prevailing market
interest rates and variable rate based on the interest rates quoted by
the People’s Bank of China and HIBOR respectively.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to pledged bank deposits, bank and other borrowings,

senior notes and lease liabilities which carried fixed interest rate.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

()

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The management aims at keeping material bank and other
borrowings at fixed rates at appropriate level by entering into
cross currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swap. In order
to achieve this result, the Group entered into cross currency
interest rate swaps and interest rate swap to hedge against certain
exposures to changes in interest rates of the bank borrowings. The
management adopts a policy of ensuring that all the material bank
and other borrowings of the Group are effectively on a fixed rate
basis, either through the contractual terms of the loan facilities
agreements or through the use of cross currency interest rate swaps

and interest rate swaps.

Details of the Group’s cross currency interest rate swaps, interest
rate swaps and bank and other borrowings entered into by the
Group at the end of the reporting period are set out in notes 32 and
30, respectively.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of

China arising from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured at

AU A SZRT - amortised cost is as follows:
———
TEROEE SR T
2023 2022
AREFL ARWTL
RMB’000 RMB’000
HAtbdg A Other income 874,358 1,302,279
———
TEROEE SR T
2023 2022
AR ARETFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
S IEFE A TEFT AR A M Total interest expense on financial liabilities not
AR 2 IS B SRR L measured at FVTPL and lease liability charges
& A EEH 9,619,950 9,688,321
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments carried at
variable rates (bank balances and bank and other borrowings) at the
end of the reporting period and assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 200 basis point increase or decrease for
bank and other borrowings are used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rate in

respect of bank and other borrowings.

The Group’s exposure to change in interest rate attributable to its
bank deposits is considered not significant to the Group. Therefore,

no sensitivity on bank balances is presented.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by 200 basis points in respect of bank and
other borrowings and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
RMB52,484,000(2022: RMB57,894,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2023, after excluding the borrowings under the cross
currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swaps designated as

effective hedge and capitalisation of interest costs.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of the
expenditures including expenditures incurred in property sales as

well as capital expenditures are also denominated in RMB.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
borrowings denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Company and individual subsidiaries. The Group
entered into cross currency interest rate swaps, foreign currency
forward contracts and CFF contracts to hedge certain material
bank borrowings denominated in foreign currencies. Given this,
the management considers that the net exposure to currency risk is
kept to an appropriate level. It is the Group’s policy to negotiate
the terms of the hedge derivatives to match the terms of the hedged
item to maximise hedge effectiveness. Details of the cross currency
interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and CFF
contracts entered into by the Group at the end of the reporting

period are set out in note 32.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and
the hedging instrument as the terms of the cross currency interest
rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts
match the critical terms of the floating-rate HKD bank borrowings
and fixed rate USD senior notes (i.e. notional amount of the swaps
and forward contracts, outstanding principal amounts of the
borrowings, maturity dates, interest payment and/or receipt dates
and principal repayment dates). The Group does not hedge 100% of
its borrowings and senior notes. For those hedged by cross currency
interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and CFF

contracts, they are designated as effective hedging relationship.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk arising from bank
deposits. The management maintains the portfolio of bank deposits
denominated in different currencies and the exposure to currency

risk is kept to an appropriate level.
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52. &M TH @ 52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
() TG mE B ﬁg) (¢) Market risk (Continued)

AN ol A Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
AAE B BN EHE R The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
BHEERERAB(ZHEEER monetary assets and monetary liabilities (other than bank
RCEH I Y 28 XL HER SR - AN borrowings and senior notes with cross currency interest rate swaps,
G # T B TE IR 4 2 foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts designated as
B SRAT 185 K I B S AR Bk AN ) B BR effective hedge) at the respective reporting date are as follows:
H{ET

e 0000

2023 2022

AR#FE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

EE Assets
ES USD 385,347 654,391
BT HKD 239,640 746,904
—EB= —F
2023 2022
ARWFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B fE Liabilities
EIC USD 267,855 1,079,392
ESH HKD 392,860 439,051
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(9)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange fluctuation of USD
and HKD against RMB.

The following table details of the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items (other than the
bank borrowings and senior notes subject to cross currency interest
rate swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts
designated as hedging instruments) and adjusts their translation at
the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis also includes bank balances, pledged
bank deposits and amount due from a joint venture denominated in
foreign currencies. A positive number indicates an increase in post-
tax profit for the year where RMB strengthens against the relevant
currencies. For a 5% weakening of RMB against the relevant

currencies, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the

AR S AR P B post-tax profit for the year.
2023 2022
ANBHTFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e UsD
R (R i (Loss) profit for the year (4,4006) 21,250
EPH HKD
A3 A (5 18) Profit (loss) for the year 5,746 (15,393)
Al A A o i Other price risk

A ST A B 2 M
B EAAR - TR
REB) - SR R SR
g o

The Group is exposed to equity security price risk arising from
equity investments. The management will monitor the price

movements and take appropriate actions when it is required.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(©)

(d

Market risk (Continued)

Other price risk (Continued)

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the

exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices were 10% higher or lower, the investment
revaluation reserve would increase or decrease by RMB663,981,000
(2022: RMB810,853,000) for the Group as a result of the changes
in the fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCL

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to trade receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, amounts
due from associates, joint ventures and non-controlling interests
and other receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its

financial assets and financial guarantee contracts.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

Trade receivables arise when the properties are delivered to the
customers who chose to pay the consideration by bank mortgage and
the banks have not paid the mortgage amount to the Group. Trade
receivables also arise from customers who are mainly the residents in
the residential communities managed by the Group and tenants of

the investment properties of the Group.

In order to minimise the credit risk, before accepting the bank
mortgage, the Group would assess the credit quality of the banks
and the monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that follow
up action is taken to recover these debts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. In addition, the Groups reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual customer at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment assessment under ECL

model on trade balances based on individual basis.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The
Group considered the expected credit losses on trade receivables are

insignificant.

Other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, associates
and non-controlling interests, pledged bank deposits, bank

balances and financial guarantee contracts

The credit risk of other receivables, amounts due from joint
ventures, associates and non-controlling interests are managed
through an internal process. The credit quality of each counterparty
is investigated before an advance is made. The Group also actively
monitors the outstanding amounts owed by each debtor and
identifies any credit risks in a timely manner in order to reduce the
risk of a credit related loss. Further, the Group closely monitors
the financial performance of the joint ventures and associates. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the risk of default by these
counterparties is not significant and the Group assessed that the

ECL on these balances are insignificant.

For other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, associates
and non-controlling interests, the directors of the Company
considers the counterparties with good credit worthiness based
on their credit ratings, past repayment history and subsequent
settlement. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk
of default by these counterparties is not significant and the Group

assessed that the ECL on these balances are insignificant.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, associates
and non-controlling interests, pledged bank deposits, bank

balances and financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70% of
the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage during the period of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay
the outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit the sales deposit received
from the customer and resell the repossessed properties. Therefore,
the management considers the Group would likely recover any
loss incurred arising from the guarantees provided by the Group.
The management considers the credit risk exposure to financial
guarantees provided to customers is limited because the facilities are
secured by the properties and the market price of the properties is
higher than the guaranteed amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced and the ECL is insignificant.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings and amounts
due from joint ventures, associates and non-controlling interests,
the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, in which

exposure is spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and the flexibility through the use of borrowings. The
directors of the Company closely monitor the liquidity position and
expect to have adequate sources of funding to finance the Group’s

projects and operations.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
maturity dates for non-derivative financial liabilities are based on
the agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the discounted amount is derived from interest rates existing at

the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net outflows on
derivative instruments that settle on a net basis. When the amount
payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined
by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the
yield curves existing at the end of the reporting period. The
liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual settlement dates as the
management of the Group consider that the settlement dates are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of

derivatives.
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52. R TH 52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(e) B IR\ Fax (42) () Liquidity risk (Continued)

e

2R A3

1 A= il Hei#

WHE O REE ool aZml  wEeH B B EbE L
Weighted ~ Cartying

average  amountat Total

interest  December 31, 0to0  0ltol80  181t0365 102 2t0) Over undiscounted

rate 023 days days days yeas yeats Jyears  cashflows

% AT ARNTE ARKFR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARRTT ARETR
RMBUO  RMBWO  RMBUY  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUW

Fik M Non-derivative financial

instrument
FRtEIEREE  Non-interes bearing payables BN 79200364 16646566 26951584 35,671,214 - - - 79,269,364
HARE Contingent consideration ENil 107,688 - - 50,705 56983 - - 107,688
EHIR Fixed incetest rate instruments 400 STOLISY 5219996 326439 782,005 18182215 10364895 20680852 65,539,382
EHIR Variable interest ace

instruments 439 135004378 025801 8479829 9768190 45391714 20295632 85324476 170,885,042
flEak Lease liabilicies 596 14832214 277,060 8046 1004608 1832146 1847735 16354010 21,747,605
HkERAH Financil guarantee contracts - 19,092,799 = = - = - 19,092,799
EfEERE Defered consideration payable 38 1,268 - - - 1,268 - - 1,268

280856,095 41862222 39,127818 54321782 65464326 33508202 122399,338 356,643,748
(i TR 185 Derivative-net serelement
EE AR Derivative financial instruments 384,268 06640 101804 108L25H 0TS92 BT 299985 8962530

WI40360 41928871 30229622 BABNS 72540278 RS0 12269323 365,606,298
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

TR B R ) () Liquidity risk (Continued)
ROFZE
+28 KR
mE  =t-Af REnE
il FEE oo afsf  s%56H 152 WE BeE £
Weighted ~ Cartying
average  amountar Towl
interest  December 31, 060 61to180  181t0365 102 203 Over3  undiscounted
tate 022 days days days years years yeas  cash flows
% ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETx
RMBUOO — RMBOGO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUAO  RMBOO
FitAHIE  Non-derivative financial
instrument
Rt EREREE Non-interest bearing payables BN 122396901 25003348 AL614947 55,078,606 - - - 122396901
JRILE Contingent consideration il 112,128 - - 51,903 00,23 - - 112,128
EE1R Fixed interest rate instruments 410 65,1806 1134297 906,179 6126431 7905314 6787000 0,143,109 73,002,291
FETA Variable interest rate
instruments 410 128745 3078316 8698747 803208 52894234 38562470 GLTA0M 174390439
fiEakE Lease labilities 005 14,863,340 289878 581949 815855 1480696 1578883 17333922 2141181
BERAS Financial guarantee contracts - 1553647 - - - - - 1553647
EREERE Deferred consideration payable 385 454913 - - - 454913 - - 54913
89,388 46338446 51801822 7016543 62,795,380 46928354 130,201,065 408,230,500
(i TR %54 Derivarive-net settlement
fit2MIR Derivative financial instruments 1,192,004 07,907 161155 3420777 5870692 15,949,788 857987 26,329,306
1007392 46406353 51962977 3587210 68,666,072 62,878,142 131,039,052 434,359,800

LR EEMARZEE THE
FEET IR 7 B 1 5 S Y A (R A 5 30
AR T IRE 5 AR Al S Y T A

At A LR BB I OR 6 40 2 SRR A
WERINZ 5T R > AEBREER
PRI 16 ) 42 308 DR 1 F 20 L
RN IRI R ARER R
AR % % PEAR A AT B S 406 1B T 3K
JH o SR AR 2S5 O R R
WERF LAY T REVE T A5 > 4R i
RIE 2 T REVE AR A 2 5 J7 i
TS DR < P B Wi ST 2 15 R 4R K
H AT RETE ©

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest

rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are
the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under
the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee
which is a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables

held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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52. WTH @) 52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
O SR TREMAPERE (f)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments

AR TR S A P BN SR Some of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are measured

HIARE AT ERE - TRIEMA M at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following

o] i 5 4 T M B T table gives information about how the fair values of these financial

(e 2 P {2 6 £ 5 9 2 o A assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation

AR o DLRARVEA TEFH A technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value

SR A AT B AR B R 2 NP hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised

ZRTFEBN (2= & (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

A value measurements is observable.

o FEBHATEF 2 RIS . Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
BT AR R A BRI quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
T8 (A ETE) B 2 A TE assets or liabilities;
- o

. BN EEF R RS . Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
—EBRZIRELIS - W EE other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
(BPE A% ) i fi 4 (BP e B A% 15 observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
Bz EERAERHZ prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

AV 5 R

. BN TEF R o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
T 35 A Al g 2 e Ak valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
% & E A &2 A liability that are not based on observable market data
A BHE OR ] B A B (unobservable inputs).
1%) > DMEESATG L2 A
HFME -
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

O ZEBMTANATVERR®

(f) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)
WSS
M Fair valve  fifEbCATR R BA YR
Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation techniques and key inputs
—
) “ROCE
SREE/ (AR +SREH-0 tZA=t-A
Financial assets/(liabilities) December 31,2023 December 31, 2022
ARK TR ARH T
RMBU00 RMB000
GREBRREERATEEHTAL K Bt RS WBBERE - RUBEMERRAE (REERATE
RXERAERS - HERH  MEH 458,300 366,499 S ER AR RETOmERLERAE
AORHEHERS R fiff: Al RIEHARBERE - LIRA A RBAEER
(384,268) (1,192,00) HEFRBRO LR R (EF) -
Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest Assets: Assets: Level 2 Discounted cash flows. Future cash flows are estimated
tate swaps, foreign currency forward 458,300 366,499 based on forward exchange rates and incerest rates (from
contracts and CFF contracts classified as Liabilities: Liabilities: observable forward exchange rates and yield curves at
derivative financial instruments in the (384,208) (1,192,004) the end of the reporting period) and contracted forward
consolidated statement of financial position rates and inerest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the Group or the counterparties, as
appropriate.
SARMETERAARS K60 (741,324) (711,256) BRSBTS S R A AT
Rt BEHRAR AR AR AR A MNERMRE -
LA
Early redemption option derivatives in Level 2 The fair value of early redemption options are
telation to the Domestic Corporate Bonds, determined by assessing the difference between the fair
Green Bonds and Rental Apartments Special values of the bonds by quoted price and the pure bond
Bonds issued by the Group value,
BE AT A2 W L 26,795 3,376 FoRE RERWSRAGRE -
R
Listed equity instruments designated at Level 1 Quoted bid prices inan active market.
FVTOCI
e BRI AR b2 TRERF £ 743,208 1,412,796 AR BEREAFEARMRIIENER TANAY
i e EREEASRFIEN R -
Unlisted equity instruments designated as at Level 2 The fair value of equity instruments designated as ac
FVTOCI FVTOCI are determined by recent transaction of the
entity’s own securities.
e BRI AR b2 TERF £ 644,000 ABANA FER BEREAFESARMEIIENERTAZAY
s LA E 8% BARARHRIBI TR AR
FHRER -
Unlisted equity instruments designated at Level 2 The fair value of equity instruments designated as at

FVTOCI

FVTOCI are determined by referencing to average
multiples of companies’ stock in a similar industry with
similar operating characteristics.
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52. &ML H @) 52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
6 EMTHNAEERR (f) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)
AFHES
A Fairvalue (MR EMALE
Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation techniques and key inputs
i Y3 “ECE
GHEE/ (A6 +ZA=1—H +ZA=1-H
Financial assets/(liabilities) December 31,2023 December 31, 2022
ARWFRE ANEEFIE
RMB000 RMB 000
RE B AT A S A TR L 5,225,804 6,692,393 FERA ReBEATEHARMRERENES TRHAT
MR (i B E R A BT A TR E R R

WEEBHRE - s TRA AT SR
i RAERERE A LR TANATE
MERASEROTI AR S AR
/WA > MBI R AT A
(EHEERYELE LTS
Unlisted equity instruments designated at Level 3 The fair value of equity instruments designed as at
FVTOCI FVTOCI are determined by the net asset value of
the private equity fund with underlying assets and
liabilities measured at fair value. The fair value of
listed equity instruments are determined by quoted
bid prices in an active market while the unlisted equity
instruments are determined by recent transaction of the
entity's own securities or calculated based on pricing/
yield of comparable companies with an adjustment
of discount for lack of marketability of underlying
investment portfolio and adjustments of related

expenses.

BT ARGR S RERE 2,000 34933 RS SREENATERERRSREERNRER R
BHRIINFRARET -

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 2 The fair value of financial assets ate determined by

discounted cash flows with stated expected interest
tates on sales and purchases contracts of the financial

products.

HAHHE ARG AEAR 107,088 112,128 FERG 2RABMATENSREREEERENEORER
REHG TR -

Financial liabilities at FVTPL Level 3 The fair value of financial liabilities are determined

by reference to the considerations as stipulated in the
equity transfer agteements and the projected revenue of
the investees.
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52. &M T H @ 52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
) ZEBITHEHNAFERR (f) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)
B N RATREAE SN > RN T EHTR Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the
By o NERA BB R R A B A Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial liabilities
HIHE 2 4 B 8 0 1 (i B L P (L recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
M approximate their fair values:

CECEE o
2023 2022
i i AP IR (A AFE
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

ANRHTFE  ARETTE ARKTL ARKTT
RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB00O

SEARE Financial liabilities
8% > BRI Bonds, unsecured 32,906,840 25,850,932 40,643,767 36,076,786
“F— VBT E/UE 2028 USD Notes issued in 2018
FILRE 3,276,003 1,840,298 3491915 2,615,089
CTE-NEBGTENE S 2029 USD Notes issued in 2019
%fu%‘iﬁ 4,511,433 2,776,379 5,651,243 3,800,456
CRCTERTF A 2027 USD Notes issued in 2020
ESTi 1,597,621 999,741 1,751,751 1,280,719
TRCHRERT TR =" 2032 USD Notes issued in 2020
| 1918486 1,194200 2310260 1,681,925
FIAE B &R E R RE The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities
TR B RR R AU included in Level 2 have been determined in accordance with
BBERESEE - REEBWA generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow
BB - A SRR T analysis with the most significant inputs being the discount rate
HFI7 115 B IR - that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
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53. AR ) EE R

Longfor Group Holdings Limited

53. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

AT Z BRI - (a) Financial position of the Company:
CERCOEE R
2023 2022
ANREFLE AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R E NON-CURRENT ASSETS
&M s 7 Investments in subsidiaries 60,097,132 62,157,567
fiEamTA Derivative financial instruments 358,577 201,834
60,455,709 62,359,401
B G E CURRENT ASSETS
JRE A B e A B L ik T Accounts and other receivables,

154 R AT R deposits and prepayments 1,374 1,355
it &mTA Derivative financial instruments 99,723 164,665
SRATAERR I 4 Bank balances and cash 367,965 1,416,498

469,062 1,582,518
L L CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEATHRE - HoAt AT 3k Accounts payables, other payables and

FEFTR X accrued charges 2,190,027 2,104,496
JREASE A} g 2 ) T Amounts due to subsidiaries 7,120,545 7,623,396
fitEEmTA Derivative financial instruments 8,990 114,562

9,319,562 9,842,454
B NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (8,850,500)  (8,259,936)
MEE W A& TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 51,605,209 54,099,465
PR K A i CAPITAL AND RESERVES
JBeAs (FffE33) Share capital (Note 33) 574,477 546,290
it Reserves 4,077,028 3,890,403
SR 4R TOTAL EQUITY 4,651,505 4,436,693
35‘2;%5@]& fif NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
7 R HAbE K ——44&F  Bank and other borrowings — due after one year 32,189,356 34,598,733
@%ﬁ%—*¢1ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ Senior notes — due after one year 14,389,070 13,986,597
fMESETH Derivative financial instruments 375,278 1,077,442
46,953,704 49,662,772
51,605,209 54,099,465
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53. AR EIMEER @) 53. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(b) ARk (b) Movement of reserves of the Company:
TEIER A

L LR L
RivEl Bk et f Gl MG REEN it

Shares held
for share Share Share
Share Capital award option award Hedging Retained
premium reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

AEHTR  ARBTE  ARETE  ARETZ  ARETE  ARETE  ARETE  ARKTZ
RMBWO  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUO  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBUN

R-Z-ZH—f—H At January 1, 2022 2523930 (4,290,855) 44569 1,391,490 (416,633) 3,635,762 2,888,263

B A Profi for the year - - - - - ~ 98000 9840004
ST EMATEMEIFR  Net fir value gain on hedging
instruments - - - - - 653,411 - 653411
THEABEEEMHI TR Loson hedging instruments
B teclassified to profic or loss - - - - - (3,721.941) - (3721941)
EEATR A Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (3,068330) 9,840,004 6,171,474

BEALMERRERIME  Recogaition of equity-settled

AR share-based payments - - - - 564,345 - - 564345
T () Forfeiture of shate awards - - - - (100,333) - 100,339 -
HEMRIE Dividends recognised as distribution (4,841,244) - - - - ~ 707,005 (9,548.249)
TRy Bt BB 0h  Shares vested under the share
award scheme - - 838,883 - (289,303) - (549,580) -
B ARG Issue of scrip shares as dividend 4,801,076 - - - - - - 4,801,076
TR R Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 40,168 - - (8,714) - - - 31,454
TR B R RO Purchase of shares under the
share award scheme - - (1,617,960) - - - - (1,617,960)

REZEZZEFZRAZ1—H AcDecember 31,2022 253930 (5,069932) 35,855 1566197 (3485,163) 8319516 3,890,403

A Profit for the year = - - - - - 2,179,908 2,179.908
S TAMAFEMETE  Net fir value gin on
hedging instruments - - - - = 899,539 = 899,539
EHMEEREMEN TR Loss on hedging instruments
i rechssfed to profi or loss - - = = - 929886) - (029886)
FERTNEGE Total comprehensive income
fo e year = = = = - G03D 2908 2149561

AMERA AR Recognition of equity- setcled

RN share-based payments - - - - 194,270 = = 194,270

Ve Forfeiture of share awards - - - - (106,777) - 106,777 -

ARMRIRE Dividends recognised as distribution (5,336,656) - = = = - (L8460 (7,182,726)
RO EE RSB Shares vested under the share

award scheme - - 890,602 - (317,562) - (573,040) -

#E R Issue of scrip shares as dividend 5,336,656 - - - - - - 5,336,656
RSB BIBERR  Purchase of shares under the

shate award scheme - - (311,136) - = = - (311,136)

A BT ZHEATH=4—H A December 31,2023 - 2,523,930 (4,490,466) 35,855 1,336,128 (3,515,510) 8,187,091 4,077,028
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s4. EEWBA G - FBEELE
B A IR

(a)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

MR- =K R (a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
+-H=+—H > AAdE December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
LM m R AR
R
REbAE Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of — EBGRAERA /A
AT incorporation/ e =t ZERTTH Issued and fully paid Figesiit FEEE
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
EMEREEARLE (M) GilEi 100% 00%  GEMEAARED,273,297 8850 i Ees
Changzhou Jiateng Real Estate PRC HRBANR i#132,273 ,297,885 T PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note b) Registered capital RMB2,273,297,885
Paid up capital RMB2,273,297,885
TramEEEEARARA () B 100% 0% FEMEA LR H2,800,000,0007C Gl Ees
Beijing Tongrui Wanhua Real Estate PRC SRR E12,800,000,0007C PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB2,800,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,800,000,000
TR AR A RA A (i) B 100% 0% FEMFEARH1,500,000,0007C " BT
Beijing Longhu Zhongbai Real Estate PRC BRI AR 1,500,000,00078 PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB1,500,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,500,000,000
EMTEEEEARLA (M) H 100% 100%  #E A LR H4,100,000,00078 H ke
Changzhou Jiaxin Real Estate PRC BRRANR #}[4, 100,000,0007C PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note b) Registered capital RMB4,100,000,000
Paid up capital RMB4,100,000,000
FRARE L E A RA R () hE 100% 00%  FEMEA AR H1,970,000,0007C T FEes
Chengdu Longhu Beicheng Real Estate PRC f G ZIN N#l,W0,0()0,000E PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note b) Registered capital RMB1,970,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,970,000,000
AR B A A (kD) " 5% 5% aEFEAR ARH2,000,0000007C R PR
Chengdu Xulu Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC SRR E12,000,000,0007C PRC Property development
(Note b) Registered capital RMB2,000,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,000,000,000
M B A AT (kD) bR 100% 0% EMFEA LR H966,549,865 0 if PEER
Chengdu Longhu Tongjin Real Estate PRC BRI AR 966,549,865 70 PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note b) Registered capital RMB966,549,865
Paid up capital RMB966,549,865
REERNEEEARAA () 100% 100%  #E A LR B, 485,000,00078 i DTS
Chengdu Longhu Xijin Real Estae PRC BRIRA /\EWMBXOO0,000TE PRC Property development

Company Limited (Note a)

Registered capital RMB1,485,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,485,000,000
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s4. EEWBA G - FBEELE
BN IERS )

(a)

N Y Y -
+ZA=Z+—H > KAFE
T A RFEEWT )
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

TSR e

R/ Equity interest

B attributable to the Group

Place of — EBRGRNAEREA
UGS incorporation/  “EF_=AE “ETTH Issued and fully paid R ET
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
EEENREAEREARAD  HR 100% 1009 FEMEA A RH2,660,000,0007C i ik

(FiriEa) PRC B BAR AR H2,660,000,00076 PRC Property development

Chongging Longhu Chengheng Land
Property Development Company
Limited (Note a)

BB LB AR (k) i
Chongging Henghong Investment PRC
Company Limited (Note a)

EEENAEERARAR (W) b
Chongging Longhu Company PRC
Development Limited (Note b)

EERMEEROERRARAT  HH
(Hfska) PRC
Chongging Longhu Hengyi Real Estate
Development Company
Limited (Note a)

BRI AR i
(Hfikc) PRC
Chongging Longhu Jiakai Real Estate
Development Company
Limited (Note )

EEEM R R AR i
(Hf5ka) PRC
Chongging Longhu Jingnan Real Estate

Development Limited (Note a)

BRI RAR TE
(Hfitb) PRC

Chongging Longhu Kaian Real Estate
Development Limited (Note b)

Registered capital RMB2,660,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,660,000,000

100% 100% g EA ARH10,000,0007T i BN
BB AR 110,000,000 PRC Property investment
Registered capital RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital RMB10,000,000

100% 0% FEMEA LR H1,308,000,0007C i GEESV S
BB AR H1,308,000,0007G PRC Property development
Registered capital RMB1,308,000,000 and investment

Paid up capital RMB1,308,000,000

70% 0% aFE A ARHEL000,000,0007C ] PEER
BRI AR H4,000,000,0007E PRC Property development
Registered capital RMB4,000,000,000
Paid up capital RMBA,000,000,000

100% 0% R R$1,323,000,0007C HH BRI LK
B IAR AR H1,323,000,00070 PRC Property development
Registered capital RMB1,323,000,000 and investment

Paid up capital RMB1,323,000,000

100% 100%  FE AR S 520,000,0007 Ll BEER
B TAR NR3,520,000,0007C PRC Property development
Registered capital RMB3,520,000,000
Paid up capital RMB3,520,000,000

100% 1009 FEfEA A RE,278,000,00070 TE kel
BB AR H1,278,000,00076 PRC Property development
Registered capital RMB1,278,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,278,000,000
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54, FEBBAG - SBLEREW 54 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
BN N ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

@ R-BZEZEEZRSC (a)
+ZA=+—H s KaFEE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited

S A Al SR ¢ a0)
R
il g Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of e ORTRBERAGEMEA
AL incorporation/ R ZEZTTHE Issued and fully paid mENE FEEE
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
EERNIREREREARAT  H 70% 709 FEMEAR AR T2,940,000,0007C i R
(tita) PRC B IBA N R H2,940,000,0007C PRC Property development
Chongging Longhu Langjun Real Estate Registered capital RMB2,940,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. (Note ) Paid up capital RMB2,940,000,000
B BRETEES U L Gl 100% 1007 gEMEA AR H100,000,0007C i BT
(Hf3ka) PRC BRI AR 100,000,007 PRC Property development
Chongqing Longhu Paradise Walk Registered capital RMB100,000,000
Business Real Estate Limited (Note a) Paid up capital RMB100,000,000
GEENRARMEMSHRAT b 50% 1007 FEEAART3,100,0000007C i Ehes
(Hf3ka) PRC (Hiske) B IBA NEH3,100,000,0007 PRC Property development
Chongging Longhu Shunyun Real Estate (Note e) Registered capital RMB3,100,000,000
Development Company Paid up capital RMB3,100,000,000
Limited (Note a)
EEENMARREREARAT 519 51%  sEMEANR2,660,000,0007C Gl kRS
(Hf3ka) PRC SRR\ R 12,660,000,000C PRC Property development
Chongging Longhu Xuzhu Real Estate Registered capital RMB2,660,000,000
Development Company Paid up capital RMB2,660,000,000
Limited (Note a)
TR R RRAR A i 100% 100%  FEMEA A R2,320,000,0007 i b es
(Hfita) PRC BB AR 12,320,000,00078 PRC Property development
Chongqing Longhu Yixiang Real Estate Registered capital RMB2,320,000,000
Development Company Paid up capital RMB2,320,000,000
Limited (Note a)
MRS EA A (k) ] 60% 60% kAR AR2,320,000,0007C i e
Fuzhou Chenrui Investment Co., Ltd. PRC AR B NR2,320,000,0007 PRC Property development
(Note a) Registered capital RMB2,320,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,320,000,000
WM R AR (k) B 51% 519 FEMFE AR Hs,000,000,000 i ibes s
Hangzhou Jiateng Traffic Control PRC SRR A ER5,000,000,00078 PRC Property development

West Railway Station Company
Limited (Note a)

Registered capital RMB3,000,000,000
Paid up capital RMBS,000,000,000
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

TSR e

L/ Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of e OBTREEMARGHREA
/NTEA: incorporation/ ZROCE ZETTHE Issued and fully paid W FEEHR
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
AR AEERARAD (k) P 100% 007  aEfEAARH100,00070 HH ity
Chengdu Zhaojiang Enterprise PRC B BA AR 100,00078 PRC Others
Management Company Registered capital RMB100,000
Limited (Note c) Paid up capital RMB100,000
RBGEMFEEEARAA () P 519 s1%  FEHE A LR H2,800,000,00078 i Ees
Guiyang Longhu Jiaxi Real Estate PRC AR IR AR H2,800,000,00078 PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB2,800,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,800,000,000
TN R AR A if 100% 100%  FEEA LR H1,000,000,00078 if LR
(Mf7ta) PRC BRI AR H1,000,000,00078 PRC Property development
Hangzhou Jiateng Real Estate Registered capital RMB1,000,000,000
Development Company Paid up capital RMB1,000,000,000
Limited (Note a)
BUMREN 7 S AT R A Gl 100% 100%  aEMEA 189,400,000 ] PEEER It
(HiFiEe) PRC B IRA189,400,0003 T8 PRC Property development
Hangzhou Longhu Real Estate Company Registered capital USD189,400,000 and investment
Limited (Note ¢) Paid up capital USD189,400,000
ERIEH R RRAR AR Gl 90% 90%  FEMHEAR AR 2,000,000,0007 i BEER
(HiFiEa) PRC BRI AR 12,000,000,00076 PRC Property development
Ningbo Longshang Real Estate Registered capital RMB2,000,000,000
Development Company Paid up capital RMB2,000,000,000
Limited (Note a)
LigEEREARAR (HE)  TH 51% S1%  FEE AR L 751,120,000 ] BEER
Shanghai Huyao Real Estate Company ~ PRC IR AR HE,751,120,00076 PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB1,751,120,000
Paid up capital RMB1,751,120,000
BUMHET B AR (k) i 60% 60%  FERHERARS,000,000,0007C i e
Hangzhou Longyu Real Estate Company ~ PRC BB ARHS,000,000,0007 PRC Property development

Limited (Note a)

Registered capital RMBS,000,000,000
Paid up capital RMB3,000,000,000
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54, FEBBAG - SBLEREW 54 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
BN N ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

@ R-BZEZEEZRSC (a)
+ZA=+—H s KaFEE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

300

A RFEEWT )

AREE R
L/ Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of e ORTREEMARGHEEA
N4 incorporation/ CROCE ZETTHE Issued and fully paid W FHEER
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
EHHEEEARAA (k) GlEt 55% 55%  FERFEACR H2,200,000,0007E L ke
Yunnan Jinbo Real Estate Company PRC BERAANR ﬁ%‘z,zoo,ooo,ooofn PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB2,200,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,200,000,000
RN RMELERSEARAT P 100% 100%  FEMEEA LR H2,634,090,0007 i Ees
(HftEa) PRC SRR AR H2,634,000,0007C PRC Property development
Jinan Longhu Tailang Real Estate Registered capital RMB2,634,090,000
Development Company Paid up capital RMB2,634,090,000
Limited (Note a)
FEENRRENERRARAT P 100% 0% FEMEA LR, 446,220 0007 i GEEs
(&ﬁﬁ}a) PRC ﬁiiﬂﬁ$}\§%{446,220,000ﬁ PRC Property development
Jinan Longhu Taixi Real Estate Registered capital RMB4,446,220,000
Development Company Paid up capital RMBA,446,220,000
Limited (Note a)
FRARRERLARAFA ML) B 51% S1% ISR AR HEL872,651, 13078 P PR
Qingdao Jinhao Taihua Real Estate PRC SRR R 872,651,1300C PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note b) Registered capital RMB1,872,651,130
Paid up capital RMB1,872,651,130
EARERAEREARELERT 100% 100%  FEEA RS 061,130,007 i LR
(Mfita) PRC BIEBAARES3,061,130,00076 PRC Property development
Jinan Taijia Real Estate Development Registered capital RMB3,061,130,000
Co., Ltd. (Note ) Paid up capital RMB3,061,130,000
BESRAE (R ARAR it 100% 100%  #EEA2,000,00087C it fr
(Hfitd) Hong Kong B2 172,000,000% 1T Hong Kong Tnvestment holding
Juntion Development Hong Kong Authorised capital HKD2,000,000
(Holding) Limited (Note d) Paid up capital HKD2,000,000
MR EARAT (k) ERELHE 100% 100%  wEMEAs0000% T FEELRS  HERR
Longfor Investment Co., Ltd. (Note d) BVI BERALFET BVI Investment holding
Authorised capital USD50,000
Paid up capital USD2
TR AR AT i 100% 100%  gEMFEA AR 30000000070 i kS
Longfor Property Services Group PRC BB AR AR 300,000,007 PRC Property Management

Company Limited

Registered capital RMB300,000,000
Paid up capital RMB300,000,000
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

TSR e

L/ Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of e OBTREEMARGHREA
/NTEA: incorporation/ ZROCE ZETTHE Issued and fully paid W FEEHR
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
EEMILHERN NS E LR GilET 51% 51 FERFEACRH1,600,000,0000E i GEes
HIRAR (k) PRC BB AR HE1,600,000,00076 PRC Property development
Chongging Liangjiang New District Registered capital RMB1,600,000,000
Longhu Xinyu Real Estate Paid up capital RMB1,600,000,000
Development Company
Limited (Note a)
LM S BT R ] i 100% 100%  gEMEAARE,800,000,0007C Gl LR
(Bif3Ea) PRC B TR AR IE1,800,000,00075 PRC Property development
Wenzhou Longhui Real Estate Company Registered capital RMB1,800,000,000
Limited (Note a) Paid up capital RMB1,800,000,000
P4 BB AR A (k) GG 100% 0%  FEMEARH3,500,000,0007C if GEEs
Nanjing Mingwan Real Estate Company ~ PRC BRI NERHE3,500,000,00078 PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB3,500,000,000
Paid up capital RMB3,500,000,000
EE AR AR AR i 70% 0% FEFEA ARHS,000,000,0007C if LT
(HiFiEa) PRC BRI AR 3,000,000,0007E PRC Property development
Ningbo Longzhuo Real Estate Registered capital RMB3,000,000,000
Development Company Paid up capital RMB3,000,000,000
Limited (Note a)
HEEREREARAT () b 100% 100%  FEEA R H4,300,000,00078 i LR
Shanghai Hengjun Real Estate Company ~ PRC BRI AR H4,300,000,00078 PRC Property development
Limited (Note b) Registered capital RMB4,300,000,000
Paid up capital RMB4,300,000,000
HFEERREARAE (k) b 100% 100%  EMEAARE,225 3504207 Ll UEST
Shanghai Hengqing Real Estate Company ~ PRC BRI AR I1,225,350,42078 PRC Property investment

Limited (Note c)

Registered capital RMB1,225,350,420
Paid up capital RMB1,225,350,420
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54, FEBBAG - SBLEREW 54 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

BN N ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
@ R-FB_=ZFER-F (a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

+ZHA=Z+—H > RAFE
A RFEEWT )

December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

AREE R
L/ Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of e ORTREEMARGHEEA
UGS incorporation/ ~ “F_=AF  “ETZH  Issued and fully paid R BT
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
HEERFREARLA (i) PE 100% 100%  FEREAARH3,400,000,0007C G ke
Shanghai Hengyi Real Estate Company ~ PRC BRI N\ R3,400,000,0007C PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB3,400,000,000
Paid up capital RMB3,400,000,000
HEAREREARAT (HiE) 100% 0% FEMEA AR H1,800,000,0007C i PR e f
Shanghai Heyan Real Estate Company PRC BRI NEH1,800,000,00078 PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB1,800,000,000 and investment
Paid up capital RMB1,800,000,000
B SIEEEA AT (k) i 51% 519 GERFEAAR 10,000,000 i KRS
Guiyang Zhuofeng Real Estate Company ~ PRC AR AR 110,000,000 PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital RMB10,000,000
BB AR A (ko) e 70% BNl AR 2,200,000,0007C GlE ke
Suzhou Hurui Real Estate Company PRC BRI AR 12,200,000,00078 PRC Property development
Co., Ltd. (Note ) Registered capital RMB2,200,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,200,000,000
HMEWEER N EARAR GilE1 100% 100%  aEfEA15,000,000% 7 H ES3
(Hirika) PRC BRIA15,000,000% T8 PRC Property investment
Suzhou Longhu Jiye Real Estate Registered capital USD15,000,000
Company Limited (Note a) Paid up capital USD15,000,000
SRR B AT R ) (k) it 100% 100%  FEMVEA RS 0400000007 if GEesh
Suzhou Yuhui Real Estate Company PRC BB AR H3,040,000,00076 PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB3,040,000,000
Paid up capital RMB3,040,000,000
R AW R R % i 50% 509 FEIFEAOCR 100,000,000 g W
HIRAR (Hita) PRC (Mfske) (Mfike)  SBUERA LR 1100,000,0007C PRC Property development
Wuhan Gezhouba Longhu Real Estate (Note €) (Note e) Registered capital RMB100,000,000

Development Company
Limited (Note a)

Paid up capital RMB100,000,000
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

TSR e

L/ Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of — OHBGREERA /A
/NTEA: incorporation/ ZROCE ZETTHE Issued and fully paid W FEEHR
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
FAR IR B AR ) (k) i 50% 509 sEMEA A R1,200,000,0007C R LR
Chengdu Xutai Real Estate Company PRC (Firike) (MtsEe) BBANR ﬁ%l ,200,000,000E PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) (Note e) (Note e) Registered capital RMB1,200,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,200,000,000
BOMIER BRI Wik E 51% 1% qEMEA ARH2,000,000,00070 i PR
Suzhou Longtai Real Estate Company PRC AR IR AR H2,000,000,00078 PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB2,000,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,000,000,000
EHHEREARAT (i) Gl 100% 100%  FEIEAONRH2,530,000,00078 R LR
Yunnan Yizhi Real Estate Company PRC SR IBA N EH2,530,000,00078 PRC Property development
Limited (Note a) Registered capital RMB2,530,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,530,000,000
B B (Hata) GilEi 70% 0%  aHIFEA ARE,500,000,0007C Gl Ekeds
Hangzhou Longyue Company Limited PRC B TAR AR 12,500,000,00076 PRC Property development
(Note a) Registered capital RMB2,500,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,500,000,000
BUMML B 3T B0 ) (k) i 70% 0% FEEAOLRH2,500,000,0007 T ke
Hangzhou Xuzhuo Real Estate Limited PRC i‘ﬁ/@ﬂﬁ”f*/\h’%Z,iO0,00(),OOOE PRC Property development
(Note a) Registered capital RMB2,500,000,000
Paid up capital RMB2,500,000,000
AR E AR AR ] 100% 100%  FEI A NRH2,000,000,00078 i PgET
(Hzka) PRC BRI AR H2,000,000,00078 PRC Property development
Hefei Jinhu Real Estate Development Registered capital RMB2,000,000,000
Limited (Note a) Paid up capital RMB2,000,000,000
R E R R AT thig 100% 100%  FEI AR H50,000,00078 PR LUEST4 4
(WifaEe) PRC ?ﬁﬂ_ﬁﬁ$}\%%3m PRC Property investment
Longhu Yuexiang Intelligent Property Registered capital RMB50,000,000
Services Company Limited (Note c) Paid up capital RMBNil
BRI ERRARA R 100% 100%  #EEA LR HEL,600,000,00078 i BEE R
(HriEa) PRC BRI AR H1,600,000,00076 PRC Property development

Chongqing Longhu Keheng Real Estate

Development Limited (Note a)

Registered capital RMB1,600,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,600,000,000
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

Particulars of the Company’s principal joint ventures at

December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

AR e

L/ Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of — EBGRAERA /A
AT incorporation/ i ZERTTH Issued and fully paid Figesiit FEEE
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
EEmRRDERSEERA Gl 5% 5% FFEAR ARHS,000,0000007C HH ikied
Beijing Zhaotai Real Estate Development ~ PRC (W kf) (e BUERA RS 000,000,000 PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note f) (Notef)  Registered capital RMBS5,000,000,000
Paid up capital RMBS,000,000,000
TrREEEREREREARAT B 25% 5% aEIEAARH10,000,0007 P e
Beijing Longwanhuakai Real Estate PRC (He) (t5Ef) SRR AR H10,000,0007C PRC Property development
Development Company Limited (Note f) (Notef)  Registered capital RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital RMB10,000,000
AR B B AR i 66% 66%  FHHEAARH20,000,0007 GlE LR
HIRATH PRC (W7E0) (e SUE MR AR20,000,0007C PRC Property development
Chengdu Longquanyi District Yidu Rail (Note f) (Notef)  Registered capital RMB20,000,000
City Development Company Limited Paid up capital RMB20,000,000
N EEARAR i 49% 49%  FERHEARNRT,576,854,59470 i GEes
Shenyang Huaxin Real Estate PRC (P (M350 BURBA AR B2,576,854,5947C PRC Property development
Development Company Limited (Note f) (Note f) Registered capital RMB2,576,854,594
Paid up capital RMB2,576,854,594
REREEEARAR if 50% 50 aEMEAR ARH1,060,000,0007C P PR
Wuhan Qinglong Real Estate Company ~ PRC (W) (D SR B AR H1,060,000,00070 PRC Property development
Limited (Note f) (Notef)  Registered capital RMB1,060,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,060,000,000
R B AT IR ) i 50% 50%  GEMFEA AR 300,000,000 h LR
Suzhou Huahu Real Estate Company PRC (PifzEe) (ke HEAR AR %300,000,00073 PRC Property development
Limited (Note f) (Notef)  Registered capital RMB300,000,000

Paid up capital RMB300,000,000
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54, TEBAV - ABALERM 54 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

BN RN ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(0 R-FB_=ZHER_ZF__ (c) Particulars of the Company’s principal associates at
+-H=+—H > AAHE December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

EHE A FENT

A R b
L/ Equity interest
B attributable to the Group
Place of e OBREEMARGHREA
NGES incorporation/ ~ “&F_= ZERTTH Issued and fully paid R B2
Name of company establishment 2023 2022 share capital/registered capital Place of operation  Principal activities
I ) FREREERAR  hE 30% 30%  FEMHEAARH1,000,000,0007C T GEes
Gezhouba (Hangzhou) Real Estate PRC ( Mﬁfg) ( w%g) BEBA AR 1000,000,0007C PRC Property development
Development Company Limited (Note g) (Note g)  Registered capital RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,000,000,000
TR P DAL H HE 4% 5% FFEAR ARH1,000,0000007C R e
FEARAR PRC (Hfitg) (Mitg)  BUE A ARM1,000,000,0007 PRC Property development
Xi'an Tiandiguojishishangxiaozhen Real (Note g) (Noteg) ~ Registered capital RMB1,000,000,000
Estate Development Company Limited Paid up capital RMB1,000,000,000
HEE R R AR EEAR A i 50% 50%  akMEA ARH1,500,000,0007 i ke
Chengdu Shoukaishengtai Development ~ PRC (PifzEn) (tzkn) AR AR 1500,000,0007C PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note h) (Note h) Registered capital RMB1,500,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,500,000,000
REFREREEARAT GilE1 49% 50%  FEMEA AR BEL,800,000,0007 i ileds
Wuhan Qinglong Xinrong Real Estate PRC ( Fﬁ':‘{fg) (l}ﬁi‘{g) %EH&¢:/\£€¥1,800,000,000E PRC Property development
Company Limited (Note g) (Note g) Registered capital RMB1,800,000,000
Paid up capital RMB1,800,000,000
ERREEEAR AR " 30% 0% FHFEARH4000,000 HE LR
Beijing Chenxuan Real Estate Company ~ PRC (M) (M) SR AR AR H74,000,0007C PRC Property development
Limited (Note i) (Note i) Registered capital RMB74,000,000

Paid up capital RMB74,000,000
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(9)

Particulars of the Company’s principal associates at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

(@)

The subsidiary is a domestic wholly-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.

The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

The subsidiary is a wholly owned subsidiary and directly held by the
Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The entity is accounted for as a subsidiary as in accordance with
the memorandum/articles of the entity/the investment agreement/
supplementary shareholder’s agreement, relevant activities of the entity
require consent with more than half of the directors in the board of directors
of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity, thus the Group has control of

the entity and thus the entity is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.

The entity is accounted for as a joint venture as in accordance with the
memorandum and articles of the entity, relevant activities of the entity

require the unanimous consent of all directors.

The entity is accounted for as an associate as the Group has appointed two
out of five directors in the board of directors of the entity with voting rights,

thus, the Group is able to exercise significant influence in the entity.

The entity is accounted for as an associate in accordance with the
memorandum and articles of the entity, relevant activities of the entity
requires consent with simple majority in the board of directors. The Group
is able to appoint one out of three directors in the board of directors of the

entity, thus, the Group is able to exercise significant influence in the entity.

The entity is accounted for as an associate as the Group has appointed one
out of five directors in the board of directors of the entity with voting rights,

thus, the Group is able to exercise significant influence in the entity.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(©)

Particulars of the Company’s principal associates at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at December
31, 2023, except for Chongqing Longhu Development which has

issued several bonds as disclosed in note 30.

The summarised financial information on the assets, liabilities and
profit(loss) of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that have

material non-controlling interests is disclosed in note 50.

In these consolidated financial statements, the English name of
companies established in the PRC are directly translated from their
Chinese names and are furnished for identification purpose only.
Should any inconsistencies between the Chinese names and the

English names exist, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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BETA=ZtT—HILEE

Year ended December 31,
RS DR SERTHE CERTRE R U
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
AR  AREFT AREFETFT AREFTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
s i) Revenue 180,736,575 250,565,107 223,375,477 184,547,296 151,026,432
Biw % A Profit before taxation 24,729,302 45,822,201 47,626,774 46,369,743 45,961,214
RESH Income tax expense (7,596,752)  (12,999,484) (15,838,580) (17,529,431) (19,408,749)
A Y Profit for the year 17,132,550 32,822,717 31,788,194 28,840,312 26,552,465
PURREAG Attributable to:
E/NGEEZEPN Owners of the Company 12,850,011 24,362,046 23,853,686 20,002,025 18,336,577
JEPETIRE £ Non-controlling interests 4,282,539 8,460,671 7,934,508 8,838,287 8,215,888
AF B R Profit for the year 17,132,550 32,822,717 31,788,194 28,840,312 26,552,465
BETH=T—HILEE
Year ended December 31,
it = S S SR SRCRE SR
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARWTIL AR¥FILT AREFLT AR¥TFLT AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B KA ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
ALY Total assets 700,406,875 786,774,416 875,651,107 765,158,825 652,244,848
BRAE Total liabilities (463,948,608) (553,595,326) (653,773,499) (572,434,672) (485,567,092)
236,458,267 233,179,090 221,877,608 192,724,153 166,677,756
VN/NEIE Y SN Equity attributable to
TR HE 45 owners of the Company 151,966,709 142,100,359 124,949,245 108,343,930 93,956,311
EgeyiliEn Non-controlling interests 84,491,558 91,078,731 96,928,363 84,380,223 72,721,445
236,458,267 233,179,090 221,877,608 192,724,153 166,677,756
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